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DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006

(in millions, except per share amounts)

Net sales:

General Motors and affiliates............ccooeeeeeieeieiiiiccceec e $ 5,525 $ 8,301 $ 9,344
Other CUSTOMETS ......eeivieeeiieiiieeiee e e ereeereesveeeveesbeesaseesebeesaneees 12,535 13.982 13.393
Total NEt SALES ...cuviieiiieiie ettt e e 18,060 22.283 22.737
Operating expenses:
Cost of sales, excluding items listed below...........ccceeeerieniiieneennen. 17,068 21,066 21,966
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges (Note 16).......... 78 212 2,706
GM settlement (Note 2 — MRA) .....ooveviieiieiecieeceeece e (254) — —
Depreciation and amortization ..............c.eeveeeereereenneerneeeeeeeseesneenns 827 914 954
Long-lived asset impairment charges (Note 9) ........cccoecvevveriienieennns 37 98 172
Goodwill impairment charges (Note 10).........ccceeveevrreciercieneerienrenen. 325 — —
Selling, general and adminiStrative ...........ccoceevvveeveeveneenieeieereseenenn 1,460 1,595 1,481
Securities & ERISA litigation charge (Note 18).......ccccccevevenenennene — 343 —
Total OpPerating EXPENSES ........cveeveererereeeeereienieesieereseesseesseeseseenees 19,541 24,228 27.279
OPETAtING LOSS ..utieiiieiieeiieet ettt (1,481) (1,945) (4,542)

Interest expense (Contractual interest expense for 2008, 2007 and
2006 was $564 million, $494 million and $577 million,

1eSPeCtively) (INOE 1) .ovviiiiiieiicieeieceee et (437) (769) (427)
Loss on extinguishment of debt ............ccoovevvieiiiiieienieicieceeeeen (49) 27 —
Other income, net (NOte 20)........ccceerierieiieiieieceee et 69 110 40
Reorganization items, net:
GM settlement (Notes 2 and 3 - GSA) ...oocvveveeiieiieieeieeeie e 5,332 — —
Professional fees and other, net (Note 3).......ccocveveecieeienienienienen. (185) (163) (92)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes,
minority interest and equity INCOME.........ccereruerererereeeeiereienieneens 3,249 (2,794) (5,021)
Income tax (expense) benefit .........coccevvereerieniiiieieeeeee e (166) 522 (130)
Minority interest, Net 0f taX.........ccceriirierieiieeeeee e (28) (63) (34)
Equity income, net 0f taX ........oocieiiriiiieieeee e 1 27 44
Income (loss) from continuing operations 3,056 (2,308) (5,141)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 5).................... (19) (757) (326)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax...........ccccceeunennee. — — 3
NEt iNCOME (0SS ...vevverieiererieeeeeieeeeteeee ettt eeeneaes $ 3,037 $ (3,065 $ (5464
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share
Continuing OPETAtiONS ........ccvevevieverieriierietieeteereee et ee et § 541 $ 411 $ (9.16)
Discontinued Operations.............ceceecverueriereneneneneneeeeeeneesreseeseenne e (0.03) (1.34) (0.58)
Cumulative effect of accounting change..........c.ccocevvereeerceeecienennenn. — — 0.01
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share...........cccoveeverceviereennnee. $ 538 $ (545 $ (9.73)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash EQUIVALEIILS ........c.ooveirieririeieiiiet ettt sttt et be e sse st eseneesenaeseneene
ReStricted Cash (INOE 1) ...oieiiieiiiieiiteie ettt sttt st sttt
Accounts receivable, net:
General Motors and affilIates..........ceeiiiiieierieieiceicceee ettt be e sae b e nes

Inventories, net (Note 11)
Other current assets .............
Assets held for sale (Note 5)

TOTAL CUITENT ASSELS. ...eeueeueeuteterteetietteieesiesteteteetesteeteeseestestentensessesseeseeseesteseensensansesseasansessesseeseeneensensense

Long-term assets:
Property, NEt (INOTE 9) c.c..uiiiiiiiiiiciiee ettt ettt st
Investments in affiliates (Note 19)
Goodwill (Note 10)........cccoeuneee.
Other .....cccoveveeinennnnee
TOtAl LONG-TEIIN ASSELS ...c.vevereerieieeieteiieteieiest ettt ettt et st e s e teseebe s et e st ese st es e e esensesesseneesenesseneeseneesn

TOAL @SSEES ..vvvieveeuienietesteete ettt te et et et et e s tesbeeseeseeteeseessessesse s essebeesesseeseessensessensessesseseeseesneseeneenseneans

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities:

Notes payable and current portion of long-term debt (NOte 15).......covururueuiinininirineerreeeccreeeene
Debtor-in-possession financing (Note 15) ......ccvevnevivenencne
Accounts payable..........ccoecereineennee.
Accrued liabilities (Note 12) ..
Liabilities held for sale (Note 5).

Total CUITENt LHADIIIES ......eueiiieieiiirietcici ettt

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 15)......ccccoeveenne
Employee benefit obligations (Note 17) ..
Other (NOte 12)...c.cceeeieieieieieiecieiens
Total 1ong-term HADIIIEIES ......e.veviiieiieirieiiee ettt st be e

Liabilities subject to compromise (INOLE 14) ......oouiiriiririeirieieieieieeter ettt
Total HADIILIES ....coviiiiiiiicicci e

Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)

IMIDNOTIEY TIEETEST ...ttt ettt ettt etttk ettt bttt eb ettt et bbbt st bbb eae st stebenene

Stockholders’ deficit:

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 1,350 million shares authorized, 565 million shares issued.............
Additional paid-in CAPILAl.........oc.eciiieririieiieeere ettt eae s
ACCUMUIALEA AETICIE. ... veviteiietiieieie ettt ettt s et e et e senesseneas

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Employee benefit plans (INOTE 17).....c.ooueuirieireririiieiiieiesiei ettt
OBHT ..ttt
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) ......c.ceveieerieirienirieinieieee e

Treasury stock, at cost (391 thousand and 1.5 million shares in 2008 and 2007, respectively) ...........
Total StocKhOIAers” defiCit .....veveveuiuiririeieieiiireiete et
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31,

2008 2007
(in millions)

$ 959 $ 1,036
403 173

822 1,257

1,572 2,637

1,285 1,808

613 588

497 720

6,151 8,219

3,397 3,863

303 387

62 397

393 801

4,155 5,448

$ 10,306 § 13,667
$ 554§ 749
3,620 2,746

1,771 2,904

2,171 2,281

313 412

8,429 9,092

55 59

552 443

973 1,185

1,580 1,687

14,583 16,197
24,592 26,976

139 163

6 6

2,747 2,756
(12,064) (14,976)
(4,867) (1,679)

(241) 446
(5,108) (1,233)
(6) (25)
(14.425) (13.472)

$ 10,306 § 13,667




DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:

NEL INCOME (L0SS)...vruvviviiietieietiieteitee ettt eteit et et ettt se et ese et eseese st esesseseeseseesess et essesessesssseneesassenseneas $ 3,037 $ (3,005) $ (5,464)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and amOTtIZALION. ........c.ccoirirueueueiririeieiei ettt ettt ettt eeene 827 914 954
Long-lived asset and goodwill impairment charges..........ocoeecererurierecrinininiecenenneeeecneeens 362 98 172
DEferred INCOME LAXES ...euveveueeriietiieiirieesteeetete ettt st ese sttt bt se st eseseesenaesesesesseneeseneess (15) (638) (55)
Pension and other postretirement benefit Xpenses..........cceeverreereeeerirnreiercerinnnerereerennneene 611 905 1,392
EqUity INCOME ....vevieeeieiiieieieceiceeee e . (1) 27) (44)
Reorganization items (Notes 2 and 3 — GSA) ...c.evveivieireieieieeeeeee s (5,147) 163 92
GM settlement (NOte 2 — MRA) .....couiiiiieieeee e (254) — —
GM warranty settlement (Note 13).......c.coceceveenene. (107) — —
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges... . 78 212 2,706
Loss on extinguishment of debt..........ccccccevvueeenne . 49 27 —
Securities & ERISA litigation Charge..........cocoeeeoiriririiueiinnieieiec e — 343 —
Loss on liquidation/deconsolidation of investment............... . — 79 —
Loss on assets held for sale, net of gain on sale of investment...........cccoeveeeeenreecereneenne 9 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE, NEL......cviuietiiietiieiiietieteteeteee ettt sa e es et a et st se e eneesene 1,361 (186) 78
Inventories, net ............. . 476 29 (242)
Other current assets .. 245 (38) (71)
Accounts payable.................... . (1,009) 303 411
Accrued and other long-term Habilities .........ooeueueiriniieieiiiinirieic e (512) 747 428
ONET, NMET ...ttt ettt ettt et et b e st e s e st ssene et enees e be st enenseneesenes (197) (42) 39
U.S. employee workforce transition program payments, net of reimbursement by GM (219) (528) (249)
Pension CONITDULIONS .......coveverieuiiieirieieieieieiet ettt . (383) (304) (305)
Other postretirement benefit PAYMENTS ..........cceoiririiirieiireeee e (216) (207) (262)
Receipts (payments) for GM settlement and reorganization items, N€t............ccoevverererireereereneenenn 1,115 (142) (70)
Dividends from equity investments 11 45 19
Discontinued operations (Note 5) ........cccceeuenneee. 115 1,023 480
Net cash provided by (used in) operating aCtivities..........coueveveererireeueueerinirieieeeereeeie e 236 (289) 9
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital EXPENAITUIES ...c.cvvvveiiiiirieieieit ettt ettt ettt ettt b bbb eee (797) (580) (622)
Proceeds from sale of non-U.S. trade bank NOteS ........c.covveveueiririninieieirinirinec e 219 191 173
Proceeds from divestitures and sale of ProPerty ..........ccocoevreueuiirininieieerininreceresereeeeeeseseenenes 216 129 85
Increase in reSriCted CASN......ocviiiiiirieicee ettt (230) (22) (105)
OLNET, NET ...ttt ettt ettt e st st et b e st e st s e st ese st esen s et et ese s eneeseneeseneesensesenes (37) 1 3
DiSCONINUEA OPETATIONS .....veuvvirieiiienieiesietesieteeetesteneeteseeteseetes e sestesestesessesesesesbeneesensesesesesesensesenes (110) (58) (88)
Net cash used in iNVESHING ACIVILIES .....e.veveuiereieirieirieieieieieeetee ettt seeneaes (739) (339) (554)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from amended and restated debtor-in-possession facility, net of issuance cost of $92
3,528 — —
Proceeds from refinanced debtor-in-possession facility, net of issuance cost of $7 million. . — 2,691 —
Repayments of borrowings from refinanced debtor-in-possession facility .............c....... . (2,746) — —
Net repayments of borrowings under refinanced debtor-in-possession facility .. . — (250) —
Repayments of borrowings under prepetition term loan facility .........cccocovveecennncercnnncecens — (988) —
(Repayments) borrowings under prepetition revolving credit facility..........ccccceeevverecrcnneieenene — (1,508) 2
Repayments under cash overdraft ..........c.cocoveeoinnecinnnccncnees — — (29)
Net (repayments) borrowings under other short-term debt agreements . (203) 49 (111)
Accommodation agreement ISSUANCE COSES ......vvrurrrrerieerieririeriereseeteseeseseeseseeseeesensesessesessenesseneeses (58) — —
Dividend payments of consolidated affiliates to minority shareholders.............ccccocvrerieirieinienne 47) (50) (22)
Oher, NEL ....oueiiieiiceeee et . — — 4)
Discontinued operations ) 2) 42
Net cash provided by (used in) financing aCtiVIties.........ceovvuerirerirenieeneereereree e 465 (58) (122)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents ..........c.ccccoceeeeneenennenneneens (39) 114 79
Decrease in cash and cash €qUIVALENLS ...........ooueirieirieiirieeieieee e 77) (572) (588)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year... 1.036 1.608 2.196
Cash and cash equivalents at €nd Of YEAT........cccciiivirieuiiiiiririeee e $ 959 $ 1,036 $ 1,608

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss
Retained
Common Additional Earnings Employee Total
Stock Paid-in (Accumulated Benefit Treasury Stockholders’
Shares  Amount Capital Deficit) Plans Other Total Stock Equity (Deficit)
(in millions)

Balance at December 31, 2005 565 6 2,744 (6,429) (2,395) (119) (2,514) (52) (6,245)
NEE LOSS ..ot — — — (5,464) — — — — (5,464)
Currency translation adjustments and other, net

OF X o — — — — — 231 231 — 231
Net change in unrecognized gain on derivative

instruments, net of tax .........ccccceeveeiiieiennennn. — — — — — 44 44 — 44
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of

BAX ettt — — — — 1,281 — 1,281 — 1,281

Total comprehensive loss......... (3,908)

Adoption of FASB Statement No. 158 — — — — (1,927) — (1,927) — (1,927)
Share-based compensation expense..... — — 25 — — — — — 25

Balance at December 31, 2006 ................ccccccoeunenee 565 6 2,769 (11,893) (3,041) (a) 156 (b)  (2,885) (52) (12,055)
NEt LOSS .o — — — (3,065) — — — — (3,065)
Currency translation adjustments and other, net

OF 18X 1ot — — — — — 294 294 — 294
Net change in unrecognized gain on derivative

instruments, net of taX ........cccoeveeircniienencne — — — — — “4) 4) — 4)
Employee benefit plans liability adjustment,

NEE OF X et — — — — 1,362 (c) — 1,362 — 1.362

Total comprehensive 10SS.........cccccvveeveuenne (1,413)

Adoption of FIN 48................c...... — — — (18) — — — — (18)
Share-based compensation expense.. — — 14 — — — — — 14
Treasury shares iSSUed .........cccceceverereeveuercnnenienene — — (27) — — — — 27 —

Balance at December 31, 2007 ............ccccccceunninnne 565 $§ 6 $ 2,756 $(14,976) $(1,679)(a) $ 446 (b) $(1.,233) $ (25 $(13,472)
Adoption of FASB Statement No. 158, net of

TAX v — — — (125) (12) — (12) — (137)

Balance at January 1,2008 .......................ccccoenne 565 $§ 6 $ 2,756 $(15.101) $(1,691)(a) $ 446 (b) $(1,245 $ (25 $(13,609)
NEt INCOME ..ot — — — 3,037 — — — — 3,037
Currency translation adjustments and other, net

OF LA verrereeeeeeeseeseseseseesesssseesseessseeeessseneseeees — — — — — (441) (441) — (441)
Net change in unrecognized loss on derivative
instruments, net of taX .........cococevevieerievenienns — — — — — (246) (246) — (246)
Employee benefit plans liability adjustment,
NEt OF tAX . — — — — (3,176) — (3,176) — (3.176)
Total comprehensive 10Ss.........cccveveeennene. (826)
Share-based compensation expense.. — — 10 — — — — — 10
Treasury shares issued .................. — — (19) — — — — 19 —
Balance at December 31,2008 ................cccccoeennne 565 $ 6 $ 2,747 $(12,064) $(4.867)(a) $.(241)(b) $(5.108) $ 6) $(14,425)

(a) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss —Employee Benefit Plans includes a loss for pension, postretirement and postemployment liabilities of $4,867 million (net of
a $490 million tax effect), $1,679 million (net of a $457 million tax effect) and $3,041 million (net of a $1,213 million tax effect) for 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

(b) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss —Other includes a loss of $44 million for 2008 and a gain of $394 million and $100 million for 2007 and 2006, respectively,
within currency translation adjustments and other; and a loss of $194 million for 2008 and a gain of $52 million and $56 million, for 2007 and 2006, respectively,
within net change in unrecognized gain on derivative instruments, and other loss of $3 million for 2008.

(c) Includes a tax benefit of $703 million related to $1.9 billion U.S. pre-tax other comprehensive income related to employee benefits. Refer to Note 8. Income Taxes for
more information

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations—Delphi Corporation, together with its subsidiaries and affiliates (“Delphi” or the “Company”) is a supplier of
vehicle electronics, transportation components, integrated systems and modules, and other electronic technology. Delphi’s most
significant customer is General Motors Corporation (“GM”) and North America and Europe are its most significant markets. Delphi is
continuing to diversify its customer base and geographic markets.

Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Delphi and domestic and non-U.S. subsidiaries in which
Delphi holds a controlling financial or management interest and variable interest entities of which Delphi has determined that it is the
primary beneficiary. Delphi’s share of the earnings or losses of non-controlled affiliates, over which Delphi exercises significant
influence (generally a 20% to 50% ownership interest), is included in the consolidated operating results using the equity method of
accounting. All significant intercompany transactions and balances between consolidated Delphi businesses have been eliminated. All
adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring items, which are necessary for a fair presentation, have been included.

Bankruptcy Filing— On October 8, 2005 (the “Petition Date”), Delphi and certain of its United States (“U.S.”) subsidiaries (the
“Initial Filers”) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization relief under chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (the “Bankruptcy
Code”) in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the “Court”), and on October 14, 2005, three
additional U.S. subsidiaries of Delphi (together with the Initial Filers, collectively, the “Debtors”) filed voluntary petitions for
reorganization relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code (collectively the Debtors’ October 8, 2005 and October 14, 2005 filings are
referred to herein as the “Chapter 11 Filings”). The reorganization cases are being jointly administered under the caption “In re Delphi
Corporation, et al., Case No. 05-44481 (RDD).” The Debtors continue to operate their businesses as “debtors-in-possession” under the
jurisdiction of the Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Court. Delphi’s non-
U.S. subsidiaries were not included in the Chapter 11 Filings, continue their business operations without supervision from the U.S. Courts
and are not subject to the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code. However, Delphi’s Board of Directors authorized Delphi’s indirect
wholly-owned Spanish subsidiary, Delphi Automotive Systems Espafia, S.L. (“DASE”), to file a petition for Concurso, or bankruptcy,
under Spanish law, in March 2007 exclusively for that entity. Refer to Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for more
information.

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 90-7, “Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization
under the Bankruptcy Code” (“SOP 90-7), which is applicable to companies in chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, generally does not
change the manner in which financial statements are prepared. However, among other disclosures, it does require that the financial
statements for periods subsequent to the filing of the chapter 11 petition distinguish transactions and events that are directly associated
with the reorganization from the ongoing operations of the business. Revenues, expenses, realized gains and losses, and provisions for
losses that can be directly associated with the reorganization and restructuring of the business must be reported separately as
reorganization items in the statements of operations. The balance sheet must distinguish prepetition liabilities subject to compromise from
both those prepetition liabilities that are not subject to compromise and from postpetition liabilities. Liabilities that may be affected by a
plan of reorganization must be reported at the amounts expected to be allowed, even if they may be settled for lesser amounts. In addition,
reorganization items must be disclosed separately in the statement of cash flows. Delphi adopted SOP 90-7 effective October 8, 2005 and
has segregated those items as outlined above for all reporting periods subsequent to such date.

Going Concern—The Debtors are operating pursuant to chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code and continuation of the Company as a
going concern is contingent upon, among other things, the Debtors’ ability to (i) comply with the terms and conditions of their debtor-in-
possession (“DIP”) financing agreement; (ii) reduce wage and benefit costs and liabilities during the bankruptcy process; (iii) return to
profitability; (iv) generate sufficient cash flow from operations; and (v) obtain financing sources to meet the Company’s future
obligations, including an accommodation agreement allowing the Debtors to retain the proceeds of, or an extension or replacement of their
DIP financing agreement, which otherwise matured on December 31, 2008. Prior to expiration of the DIP financing agreement (the
“Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility””), Delphi entered into an accommodation agreement (the “Accommodation Agreement”)
allowing Delphi to retain the proceeds of Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility until the earlier of June 30, 2009 (or May 5, 2009 if
Delphi does not achieve certain milestones in its reorganization cases), provided Delphi continues to remain in compliance with all
applicable covenants under the Accommodation Agreement and the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility (other than the failure to
repay the loans under the facility on the maturity date or comply with certain other repayment provisions) as described further in Note 15.
Debt.

On January 30, 2009, Delphi reached agreement with its lenders to amend (the “Amendment”) the Accommodation Agreement. In
support of Delphi’s efforts to develop a modified reorganization plan adapted to the current global economic environment, the lenders

agreed to modify certain financial covenants and pay-down requirements contained in the Accommodation Agreement. In addition, GM
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agreed to immediately accelerate payment of $50 million in payables to Delphi under the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments
Agreement and to, no later than February 27, 2009, either accelerate payment of an additional $50 million in payables under such
agreement or increase from $300 million to $350 million the amount which it is committed to advance under the GM Advance
Agreement. The Amendment and GM’s agreement to accelerate payments were effective January 30, 2009; however, both agreements
were subject to satisfaction of certain post-closing conditions, including Court approval and in the case of the Amendment, the payment of
fees to the consenting lenders. The Company filed motions with the Court seeking approval of these agreements and authority to pay the
applicable fees. Just prior to the hearing on such motions, the lenders and Delphi agreed to a further supplemental amendment to the
Accommodation Agreement (the “Supplemental Amendment”), to further extend certain milestone dates, and on February 24, 2009 the
Court approved the Amendment, the Supplemental Amendment and the amendment to the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments
Agreement. Accordingly, absent changes to the GM Advance Agreement, Delphi believes it has access to sufficient liquidity to fund its
operations and remain in compliance with the covenants in the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation
Agreement into April 2009. In addition, Delphi projects it will have sufficient additional liquidity support to manage its U.S. operations
into May 2009 as it continues discussions with its stakeholders on proposed modifications to the Plan, subject to satisfaction of certain
specified milestones in its reorganization cases and the conditions necessary to consummate the agreement reached with GM on March 3,
2009 described below whereby GM would increase the amounts available under the GM Advance Agreement to a total of $450 million.

On February 27, 2009, as provided for under the January 30, 2009 amendment to the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments
Agreement, GM opted to commit to increase from $300 million to $350 million the amounts available under the GM Advance Agreement,
subject to (i) the President’s Designee in accordance with the provisions of GM’s federal loans not having notified GM prior to March 24,
2009 that the increase is not permitted, and (ii) Court approval of the increase prior to March 25, 2009. Additionally, on March 3, 2009
GM committed to further increase from $350 million to $450 million the amounts available under the GM Advance Agreement, subject to
(1) the President’s Designee in accordance with the provisions of GM’s federal loans not having notified GM prior to March 24, 2009 that
the increase is not permitted, (ii) Court approval of the further increase prior to March 25, 2009, (iii) approval by GM's board of directors,
(iv) execution of a definitive transaction agreement relating to the sale of Delphi's Steering Business to GM prior to March 24, 2009, and
(v) Court approval of the Steering Business Option Exercise Agreement between Delphi and GM prior to March 25, 2009. The Option
Exercise Agreement contains a procedure for completing the definitive transaction agreement relating to the sale of the Steering Business
to GM which, among other things, takes into account the terms of the Amended MRA and certain modifications set forth in the Option
Exercise Agreement. Based on the terms of the Option Exercise Agreement and the Amended MRA, the terms upon which the Steering
Business will be sold to GM have been substantially agreed by GM and Delphi. The Option Exercise Agreement is subject to conditions
described in Note 25. Subsequent Events. In addition, the Amendment and Supplemental Amendment to the Accommodation Agreement
will allow Delphi to access additional liquidity through the periodic release of amounts currently in a cash collateral basket of up to $117
million, provided (i) that all of the above conditions necessary to increase amounts available under the GM Advance Agreement to $450
million are satisfied, (ii) Delphi remains in compliance with all mandatory prepayment provisions and other covenants in the
Accommodation Agreement, including the borrowing base calculation after giving effect to such release, and (iii) Delphi has achieved the
remaining specified milestones in its reorganization cases, including the filing of a plan of reorganization or modifications to the Plan
meeting the conditions specified in the Accommodation Agreement by April 2. Delphi believes receipt of GM’s commitment is a
significant step toward Delphi being able to secure such additional liquidity. Refer to Note 25. Subsequent Events for more information.

Notwithstanding the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is in default of the terms of its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility
and as a result, Delphi is no longer able to make additional draws under the facility after December 12, 2008, (the effective date of the
Accommodation Agreement). However, under the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is required to continue to comply with the
provisions of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility (as amended and modified by the Accommodation Agreement, as amended).
There can be no assurance the outside termination date of the Accommodation Agreement will not be shortened from June 30, 2009 to
May 5, 2009 or that Delphi will continue to comply with the terms and conditions of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility (as
amended and modified by the Accommodation Agreement). These matters create substantial uncertainty relating to the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments relating to the
recoverability of assets and classification of liabilities that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties. In addition, the Company
filed its proposed plan of reorganization with the Court in September 2007. The Court confirmed Delphi’s plan of reorganization, as
amended, on January 25, 2008, but Delphi was unable to consummate the plan because certain investors under the plan refused to
participate in the closing, which was commenced but not completed on April 4, 2008. Delphi subsequently filed complaints seeking
redress for the breach of the investment agreement and damages related to the consequent delay of Delphi’s emergence from chapter 11.
On July 23, 2008, Delphi’s Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors (the “Creditors’ Committee’) and Wilmington Trust Company
(“WTC”), as Indenture Trustee and a member of the Creditors’ Committee, filed separate complaints in the Court seeking revocation of
the Court order entered on January 25, 2008 confirming Delphi’s plan of reorganization. The Creditors’ Committee had earlier advised
Delphi that it intended to file the complaint to preserve its interests with regard to a 180-day statutory period that would have otherwise
expired on July 23, 2008. The Creditors’ Committee and WTC also advised Delphi that they do not intend to prosecute such complaints
pending developments on (i) the continuation of stakeholder discussions concerning potential modifications to the previously confirmed
plan of reorganization, which would permit Delphi to emerge from chapter 11 as soon as practicable, and (ii) Delphi’s litigation against an
affiliate of lead investor, Appaloosa Management L.P. and the other investors who were party to the Equity Purchase and Commitment
Agreement dated as of August 3, 2007, as amended. Pending confirmation and consummation of the plan of reorganization (as amended)
or an alternative plan of reorganization, Delphi and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries will continue as “debtors-in-possession” in chapter 11.
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On October 3, 2008, Delphi filed a motion seeking Court approval of proposed modifications to its confirmed plan of reorganization.
There can be no assurances as to when Delphi will confirm or consummate a modified plan. Consummation of a confirmed plan of
reorganization often materially changes the amounts reported in a company’s consolidated financial statements, which do not give effect
to any adjustments to the carrying value of assets or amounts of liabilities that might be necessary as a consequence of consummation of a
confirmed plan of reorganization (as amended).

Contractual Interest Expense and Interest Expense on Unsecured Claims— Contractual interest expense represents amounts due
under the contractual terms of outstanding debt, including debt subject to compromise for which interest expense is not recognized in
accordance with the provisions of SOP 90-7. Delphi did not record contractual interest expense on certain unsecured prepetition debt
from the bankruptcy filing date until the third quarter of 2007. In September 2007, Delphi began recording prior contractual interest
expense related to certain prepetition debt because it became probable that the interest would become an allowed claim based on the
provisions of the plan of reorganization filed with the Court in September 2007 and confirmed, as amended, on January 25, 2008. The
confirmed plan of reorganization also provided that certain holders of allowed unsecured claims against Delphi will be paid postpetition
interest on their claims, calculated at the contractual non-default rate from the petition date through January 25, 2008, when the Company
ceased accruing interest on these claims. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, Delphi had accrued interest of $415 million and $411 million,
respectively, in accrued liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets for prepetition claims. As discussed in Note 2. Transformation Plan
and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy, on October 3, 2008, Delphi filed modifications to its confirmed plan of reorganization that, if approved by the
Court, would eliminate postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims. Accordingly, Delphi anticipates that it will
be relieved of this liability if and when the plan modifications are approved.

Use of Estimates—Preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires Delphi to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported therein. During
2008, there were no material changes in the methods or policies used to establish accounting estimates. Generally, matters subject to
Delphi’s estimation and judgment include amounts related to accounts receivable realization, inventory obsolescence, asset impairments,
useful lives of intangible and fixed assets, deferred tax asset valuation allowances, income taxes, pension and other postretirement benefit
plan assumptions, accruals related to litigation, warranty costs, environmental remediation costs, worker’s compensation accruals and
healthcare accruals. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may be based
upon amounts that differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition—Delphi’s revenue recognition policy requires the recognition of sales when there is evidence of a sales
agreement, the delivery of goods has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable and the collectibility of revenue is reasonably
assured. Delphi generally records sales upon shipment of product to customers and transfer of title under standard commercial terms. In
addition, if Delphi enters into retroactive price adjustments with its customers, these reductions to revenue are recorded when they are
determined to be probable and estimable. From time to time, Delphi enters into pricing agreements with its customers that provide for
price reductions, some of which are conditional upon achieving certain joint cost saving targets. In these instances, revenue is recognized
based on the agreed-upon price at the time of shipment.

Sales incentives and allowances are recognized as a reduction to revenue at the time of the related sale. In addition, from time to time
Delphi makes payments to customers in conjunction with ongoing and in limited circumstances future business. Delphi recognizes these
payments to customers as a reduction to revenue at the time Delphi commits to make these payments.

Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are included in net sales, while costs of shipping and handling are included in cost of
sales.

Discontinued Operations—In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, (“SFAS 144”), a business component that is disposed of or classified as held for sale is reported as
discontinued operations if the cash flows of the component have been or will be eliminated from the ongoing operations of the Company
and the Company will no longer have any significant continuing involvement in the business component. The results of discontinued
operations are aggregated and presented separately in the consolidated statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows.
Assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations are aggregated and reported separately as assets and liabilities held for sale in the
consolidated balance sheet. SFAS 144 requires the reclassification of amounts presented for prior years to effect their classification as
discontinued operations.

Amounts have been derived from the consolidated financial statements and accounting records of Delphi using the historical basis of
assets and liabilities to be disposed of and historical results of operations related to Delphi’s global steering and halfshaft businesses (the
“Steering Business”) and its interiors and closures product line (the “Interiors and Closures Business™). The sales of the U.S. operations
and certain of the non-U.S. operations of the Steering Business are expected to be sales of assets and are expected to include (i) all assets,
except for cash, deferred tax assets, and intercompany accounts, and (ii) all liabilities, except for debt, deferred tax liabilities,
intercompany accounts, U.S. pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities, accrued payroll, and certain employee benefit accounts.
The sales of certain non-U.S. operations of the Steering Business are expected to be stock sales and are expected to include all assets and
liabilities for the sites. The sale of the Interiors and Closures Business closed on February 29, 2008. The majority of the Interiors and
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Closures Business sale was accomplished through asset sales and the buyer assumed inventory, fixed assets, non-U.S. pension liabilities
and an investment in a joint venture in Korea.

While the historical results of operations of the Steering Business and the Interiors and Closures Business include general corporate
allocations of certain functions historically provided by Delphi, such as accounting, treasury, tax, human resources, facility maintenance,
and other services, no amounts for these general corporate retained functions have been allocated to the loss from discontinued operations
in the statements of operations. Delphi expects to retain certain employee pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities for the
Steering Business and these liabilities were not allocated to liabilities held for sale in the balance sheets. Expenses related to the service
cost of employee pension and other postretirement benefit plans, however, were allocated to discontinued operations in the statements of
operations, because Delphi will not continue to incur such related expense subsequent to the divestiture of these businesses. Allocations
have been made based upon a reasonable allocation method. Refer to Note 5. Discontinued Operations for more information.

Research and Development—Delphi incurs costs in connection with research and development programs that are expected to
contribute to future earnings. Such costs are charged against income as incurred. Research and development expenses (including
engineering) were $1.9 billion, $2.0 billion and $2.0 billion for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of 90 days or less.

Marketable Securities—Delphi generally holds marketable securities with maturities of 90 days or less, which are classified as cash
and cash equivalents for financial statement purposes. Delphi also has securities that are held for a period longer than 90 days. Debt
securities are classified as held-to-maturity, and accordingly are recorded at cost in Delphi’s consolidated financial statements. Equity
securities are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at market value with changes in
market value included in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). At December 31, 2008 and 2007, Delphi had available-for-sale securities
with a cost basis of $38 million and $3 million, respectively, and a carrying value of $32 million and $3 million, respectively. In the event
that the Company’s debt or equity securities experience an other-than-temporary impairment in value, such impairment is recognized as a
loss in the statement of operations.

Restricted Cash— At December 31, 2008 and 2007, Delphi had $403 million and $173 million in restricted cash, respectively. At
December 31, 2008, Delphi provided a total of $323 million in cash collateral as required under the debtor-in-possession credit facility,
including $123 million related to outstanding letters of credit at December 31, 2008. Additionally, restricted cash includes cash for use for
the pre-retirement portion of the U.S. employee workforce transition programs, refer to Note 16. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition
Programs, and balances on deposit at financial institutions that have issued letters of credit in favor of Delphi.

Accounts Receivable—Delphi enters into agreements to sell certain of its accounts receivable, primarily in Europe. Since the
agreements allow Delphi to maintain effective control over the receivables, these various accounts receivable factoring facilities were
accounted for as short-term debt at December 31, 2008 and 2007. The Company generally does not require collateral related to its trade
accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based upon analysis of trade receivables for known collectibility
issues and the aging of the trade receivables at the end of each period. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the allowance for doubtful
accounts was $164 million and $143 million, respectively. The Company exchanges certain amounts of accounts receivable, primarily in
China, for bank notes with original maturities greater than 90 days. The collection of such notes are reflected in the investing activities in
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Refer to Note 18. Commitments and Contingencies for a discussion of Delphi’s concentration of
risk with GM sales and accounts receivable.

Inventories— Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis (“FIFO”), or market, including direct
material costs and direct and indirect manufacturing costs, refer to Note 11. Inventories, Net.

From time to time, Delphi may receive payments from suppliers. Delphi recognizes these payments from suppliers as a reduction of
the cost of the material acquired during the period to which the payments relate. In some instances, supplier rebates are received in
conjunction with or concurrent with the negotiation of future purchase agreements and these amounts are amortized over the prospective
agreement period.

Property—Property, plant and equipment, including internally-developed internal use software, is recorded at cost. Major
improvements that materially extend the useful life of property are capitalized. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to
expense as incurred. Depreciation is provided based on the estimated useful lives of groups of property generally using an accelerated
method, which accumulates depreciation of approximately two-thirds of the depreciable cost during the first half of the estimated useful
lives, or using straight-line methods. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or the life of the property,
whichever is shorter, with the amortization applied directly to the asset account.

Special Tools— Special tools balances represent Delphi-owned tools, dies, jigs and other items used in the manufacture of customer
components. At December 31, 2008 and 2007 the special tools balance was $387 million and $461 million, respectively, included within
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property, net in the consolidated balance sheet. Special tools also includes unreimbursed pre-production tooling costs related to customer-
owned tools for which the customer has provided a non-cancelable right to use the tool. Delphi-owned special tools balances are
amortized over the expected life of the special tool or the life of the related vehicle program, whichever is shorter. The unreimbursed
costs incurred related to customer-owned special tools that are not subject to reimbursement are capitalized and amortized over the
expected life of the special tool or the life of the related vehicle program, whichever is shorter. Engineering, testing and other costs
incurred in the design and development of production parts are expensed as incurred, unless the costs are reimbursable, as specified in a
customer contract. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Delphi-owned special tools balances were $321 million and $362 million,
respectively, and the customer-owned special tools balances were $66 million and $99 million, respectively.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets—Delphi periodically evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets held for use including
intangible assets when events or circumstances warrant such a review. The carrying value of a long-lived asset held for use is considered
impaired when the anticipated separately identifiable undiscounted cash flows from the asset are less than the carrying value of the asset.
In that event, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset. Fair
value is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved and our review of
appraisals. Impairment losses on long-lived assets held for sale are determined in a similar manner, except that fair values are reduced for
the cost to dispose of the assets. Refer to Note 5. Discontinued Operations and Note 9. Property, Net for more information.

Intangible Assets—Delphi has definite-lived intangible assets of approximately $28 million and $40 million as of December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively. In general, these intangible assets are being amortized over their useful lives, normally 3-17 years.

Goodwill—Delphi reviews the recoverability of goodwill at least annually as of May 31 and any time business conditions indicate a
potential change in recoverability. During 2008, Delphi recognized goodwill impairment charges totaling $325 million related to the
Electrical/Electronic Architecture and Electronics and Safety segments. Refer to Note 10. Goodwill for more information.

Environmental Liabilities—Delphi recognizes environmental remediation liabilities when a loss is probable and can be reasonably
estimated. Such liabilities generally are not subject to insurance coverage. The cost of each environmental remediation is estimated by
engineering, financial, and legal specialists within Delphi based on current law and considers the estimated cost of investigation and
remediation required and the likelihood that, where applicable, other potentially responsible parties (“PRPs”) will be able to fulfill their
commitments at the sites where Delphi may be jointly and severally liable. The process of estimating environmental remediation
liabilities is complex and dependent primarily on the nature and extent of historical information and physical data relating to a
contaminated site, the complexity of the site, the uncertainty as to what remediation and technology will be required, and the outcome of
discussions with regulatory agencies and other PRPs at multi-party sites. In future periods, new laws or regulations, advances in
remediation technologies and additional information about the ultimate remediation methodology to be used could significantly change
Delphi’s estimates. Refer to Note 18. Commitments and Contingencies.

Warranty—Delphi recognizes expected warranty costs for products sold at the time of sale of the product based on Delphi estimates of
the amount that will eventually be required to settle such obligations. These accruals are based on factors such as past experience,
production changes, industry developments and various other considerations. Delphi’s estimates are adjusted from time to time based on
facts and circumstances that impact the status of existing claims. Refer to Note 13. Warranty Obligations.

Asset Retirement Obligations—Delphi recognizes asset retirement obligations in accordance with SFAS No. 143 (“SFAS 143”),
Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, and FASB Interpretation 47 (“FIN 47”), Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations, an interpretation of SFAS No. 143. Delphi identified conditional retirement obligations primarily related to asbestos
abatement at certain of its sites. To a lesser extent, Delphi also has conditional retirement obligations at certain sites related to the removal
of storage tanks and polychlorinated biphenyl (“PCB”) disposal costs. Asset retirement obligations were $21 million and $27 million at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs— The costs related to the issuance or modification of long-term debt are generally deferred and amortized into
interest expense over the life of each debt issue. Deferred amounts associated with debt extinguished prior to maturity are expensed.
Refer to Note 15. Debt for more information.

Annual Incentive Plans— The short-term annual incentive plan (the “AIP”) provides the opportunity for incentive payments to
executives provided that specified corporate and divisional financial targets are met. During 2008, 2007 and 2006, Delphi recorded
expense of $21 million, $149 million and $167 million, respectively, related to executive and U.S. salaried employee incentive plans,
including $1 million, $18 million and $20 million, respectively, included in loss from discontinued operations. In conjunction with the
February 17, 2006 approval of the AIP, certain incentive compensation plans previously in place for Delphi executives were cancelled
resulting in the reduction of expense of approximately $21 million for incentive compensation in 2006. During the years ended December
31,2008 and 2007, Delphi paid $78 million and $155 million, respectively, related to executive and U.S. salaried employee incentive
plans.
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Postemployment Benefits— Delphi accrues for costs associated with postemployment benefits provided to inactive employees
throughout the duration of their employment. Delphi uses future production estimates combined with workforce geographic and
demographic data to develop projections of time frames and related expense for postemployment benefits. For purposes of accounting for
postemployment benefits, inactive employees represent those employees who have been other than temporarily idled. Delphi considers all
idled employees in excess of approximately 10% of the total workforce at a facility to be other than temporarily idled. As a result of the
U.S. employee special attrition programs, Delphi determined that certain previously recorded accruals for postemployment benefits,
representing the future cash expenditures expected during the period between the idling of affected employees and the time when such
employees are redeployed, retire, or otherwise terminate their employment, were no longer necessary and accordingly Delphi reduced
such accruals by $108 million during 2006, which was recorded in cost of sales. There was no liability for postemployment benefits of
other than temporarily idled employees at December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Delphi also accrues for costs associated with extended disability benefits for its employees. Discounting of the future extended-
disability expenditures is based on the nature of the obligation and the timing of the expected benefit payments. At December 31, 2008
and 2007, the short-term extended-disability liability balance of $7 million and $10 million, respectively, was included in accrued
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The long-term extended-disability liability balance included in other long-
term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $60 million and $72 million,
respectively, calculated with a weighted-average discount rate of 6.36% and 5.90%, respectively. During 2006, as a result of the U.S.
workforce transition programs, Delphi recognized a related curtailment gain of $59 million. Pursuant to the Amended MRA (as defined in
Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy), GM will reimburse Delphi for extended disability benefits paid by Delphi after
January 1, 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active, inactive, and retired employees. Refer to Note 2.
Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for more information.

Employee Termination Benefits and Other Exit Costs— Delphi continually evaluates alternatives to align its business with the
changing needs of its customers and to lower the operating costs of the Company. This includes the realignment of its existing
manufacturing capacity, facility closures, or similar actions in the normal course of business. These actions may result in voluntary or
involuntary employee termination benefits, which are mainly pursuant to union or other contractual agreements. Voluntary termination
benefits are accrued when an employee accepts the related offer. Involuntary termination benefits are accrued when Delphi commits to a
termination plan and the benefit arrangement is communicated to affected employees, or when liabilities are determined to be probable
and estimable, depending on the circumstances of the termination plan. Contract termination costs are recorded when contracts are
terminated or when Delphi ceases to use the facility and no longer derives economic benefit from the contract. All other exit costs are
expensed as incurred. Refer to Note 7. Employee Termination Benefits and Other Exit Costs. Refer to Note 2. Transformation Plan and
Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for employee termination benefits and other exit costs related to non-core product lines and refer to Note 16. U.S.
Employee Workforce Transition Programs for employee termination benefits and other exit costs related to the 2007 U.S. labor
agreements. Pursuant to the Amended MRA (as defined in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy), GM will reimburse
Delphi for severance obligations paid by Delphi after January 1, 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly
active, inactive, and retired employees.

Worker’s Compensation Benefits—Delphi’s worker’s compensation benefit accruals are actuarially determined and are subject to the
existing worker’s compensation laws that vary by state. Accruals for worker’s compensation benefits represent the discounted future cash
expenditures expected during the period between the incidents necessitating the employees to be idled and the time when such employees
return to work, are eligible for retirement or otherwise terminate their employment. The discount rate at December 31, 2008 and 2007 of
6.0% and 5.9%, respectively, was selected by analyzing the results of matching the projected benefit payments with a portfolio of high
quality fixed income investments rated AA- or higher by Standard and Poor’s. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the short-term worker’s
compensation liability included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets was $75 million and $49 million,
respectively. The long-term worker’s compensation liability included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets at December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $325 million and $328 million, respectively. Pursuant to the Amended MRA (as
defined in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy), GM will reimburse Delphi for workers compensation benefits paid
by Delphi after January 1, 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active, inactive, and retired employees.
Refer to Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for more information.

Foreign Currency Translation—Assets and liabilities of non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated to U.S. dollars at end-of-period currency
exchange rates. The consolidated statements of operations of non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated to U.S. dollars at average-period
currency exchange rates. The effect of translation for non-U.S. subsidiaries is generally reported in OCI. The effect of remeasurement of
assets and liabilities of non-U.S. subsidiaries that use the U.S. dollar as their functional currency is primarily included in cost of goods
sold. Also included in cost of goods sold are gains and losses arising from transactions denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of a particular entity. Net transaction gains, as described above, decreased cost of sales by $74 million (including $59
million recognized in the fourth quarter related to intercompany loans), $13 million and $45 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments— Delphi records all derivative instruments on the balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair
value recorded currently through earnings unless the transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales or meet special
hedge accounting criteria.
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Delphi manages its exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates, interest rates and certain commodity prices by entering into a
variety of forward contracts and swaps with various counterparties. Such financial exposures are managed in accordance with Delphi’s
policies and procedures. Delphi does not enter into derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes. As part of the hedging
program approval process, Delphi identifies the specific financial risk which the derivative transaction will minimize, the appropriate
hedging instrument to be used to reduce the risk and the correlation between the financial risk and the hedging instrument. Purchase
orders, letters of intent, capital planning forecasts and historical data are used as the basis for determining the anticipated values of the
transactions to be hedged. Delphi does not enter into derivative transactions that do not have a high correlation with the underlying
financial risk. The hedge positions entered into by Delphi, as well as the correlation between the transaction risks and the hedging
instruments, are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Foreign exchange forward contracts are accounted for as hedges of firm or forecasted foreign currency commitments to the extent
they are designated and assessed as highly effective. All other foreign exchange contracts are marked to market on a current basis.
Commodity swaps are accounted for as hedges of firm or anticipated commodity purchase contracts to the extent they are designated and
assessed as effective. All other commodity derivative contracts that are not designated as hedges are either marked to market on a current
basis or are exempted from mark to market accounting as normal purchases. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, Delphi’s exposure to
movements in interest rates was not hedged with derivative instruments. Refer to Note 23. Fair Value of Financial Instruments,
Derivatives and Hedging Activities for more information.

Common Stock and Preferred Stock—Delphi currently has one class of common stock outstanding. There are 1,350 million shares of
common stock authorized at both December 31, 2008 and 2007, of which 564,635,299were outstanding (565,025,907 shares issued less
390,608 held as treasury stock) at December 31, 2008 and 563,477,461 were outstanding (565,025,907 shares issued less 1,548,446 held
as treasury stock) at December 31, 2007. Holders of Delphi common stock are entitled to one vote per share with respect to each matter
presented to its shareholders on which the holders of common stock are entitled to vote. Delphi did not pay dividends in 2008, 2007 and
2006. There are no cumulative voting rights. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, Delphi had no issued and outstanding preferred stock.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements— In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (“SFAS 1577), Fair Value Measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issued
FASB Staff Position No. 157-2 (“FSP 157-2), Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, which partially defers the effective date of
SFAS No. 157 for one year for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a nonrecurring basis. The FSP does not defer recognition and disclosure requirements for financial assets and liabilities or
for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are remeasured at least annually. Delphi expects to adopt the provisions of SFAS
No. 157 as of January 1, 2009 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are subject to the deferral, which include long-lived assets and
goodwill.

SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in U.S. GAAP, and expands the disclosure requirements
regarding fair value measurements. The rule does not introduce new requirements mandating the use of fair value. SFAS 157 defines fair
value as “the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.” The definition of fair value is based on an exit price rather than an entry price, regardless of
whether the entity plans to hold or sell the asset, and fair value should be based on assumptions that market participants would use,
including non-performance risk. SFAS 157 also establishes a fair value hierarchy to prioritize inputs used in measuring fair value. SFAS
157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal
years. The Company utilized the fair value measures of SFAS 157 in accounting for its marketable securities, including those held by its
pension plans, and derivative financial instruments. The adoption of SFAS 157 did not have a significant impact on Delphi’s financial
statements. Refer to Note 24. Fair Value Measurements for the disclosures required by SFAS 157.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 (“SFAS 158”), Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans-an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). SFAS 158
requires, among other things, an employer to measure the funded status of its defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefits
plans as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position, with limited exceptions, effective for fiscal years ending after December
15, 2008. Historically, Delphi has measured the funded status of its U.S. retiree health care benefit plans and certain international pension
plans as of September 30 of each year. Delphi adopted the measurement date provisions of SFAS 158 as of January 1, 2008, which
resulted in adjustments that increased pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities by $139 million, the accumulated deficit by $129
million and accumulated other comprehensive loss by $10 million.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 (“SFAS 159”), The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. SFAS 159 permits entities to choose, at
specified election dates, to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently measured at fair
value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected would be reported in earnings at each
subsequent reporting date. SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements in order to facilitate comparisons between
entities choosing different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. SFAS 159 does not affect existing accounting
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requirements for certain assets and liabilities to be carried at fair value. SFAS 159 is effective as of the beginning of a reporting entity’s
first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. Delphi adopted SFAS 159 as of January 1, 2008 and has not elected the fair value
option for any financial instruments.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (“SFAS 141”), as revised in 2007 (“SFAS
141R”), Business Combinations. SFAS 141R requires an acquiring entity to recognize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
transaction at the acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions. In addition, SFAS 141R changes the accounting for various
components of a business combination, including pre-acquisition contingencies, the measurement period, in-process research and
development and restructuring activities, amongst others. SFAS 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption
is prohibited. SOP 90-7 requires the reorganization value of an entity upon emergence from bankruptcy to be allocated to the entity’s
assets in a manner consistent with the accounting for business combinations as specified by SFAS 141. As a result, entities emerging
from bankruptcy after the effective date of SFAS 141R will apply the provisions of the new standard upon emergence. Delphi is currently
assessing the impact SFAS 141R may have upon its accounting for its emergence from bankruptcy.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160 (“SFAS 160”), Noncontrolling Interests
in Consolidated Financial Statements — An Amendment of ARB No. 51. SFAS 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for
noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and for the consolidation or deconsolidation of subsidiaries upon a change in control. SFAS 160 is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is
prohibited. Delphi does not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 to have a significant impact on its financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 161 (“SFAS 161”), Disclosures about Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities - an Amendment of FASB Statement 133. SFAS 161 enhances required disclosures regarding
derivatives and hedging activities, including enhanced disclosures regarding how: (a) an entity uses derivative instruments; (b) derivative
instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, and (c) derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance,
and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after November 15,
2008. Earlier adoption is encouraged. Delphi does not expect the adoption of SFAS 161 to have a significant impact on its financial
statements other than providing the new disclosures required by SFAS 161.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position SOP 90-7-1 (“FSP SOP 90-7-17), An Amendment of AICPA Statement of
Position 90-7. FSP SOP 90-7-1 resolves the conflict between the guidance requiring early adoption of new accounting standards for
entities required to follow fresh-start reporting under SOP 90-7, and other authoritative accounting standards that expressly prohibit early
adoption. Specifically, FSP SOP 90-7-1 requires an entity emerging from bankruptcy and applying fresh-start reporting to follow only the
accounting standards in effect at the date fresh-start reporting is adopted, which include those standards eligible for early adoption if an
election is made to adopt early.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position 132(R)-1 (FSP 132(R)-1), Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assets. FSP 132(R)-1 provides guidance on disclosures about plan assets of a defined benefit pension or other postretirement
plan. Specifically, FSP 132(R)-1 requires enhanced disclosures of how investment allocation decisions are made, including pertinent
factors to further understand investment policies and strategies, the major categories of plan assets, the inputs and valuation techniques
used to measure the fair value of plan assets, the effect of fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs on changes in
plan assets for the period, and significant concentrations of risk within plan assets. FSP 132(R)-1 and the enhanced disclosures about plan
assets are required for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2009. Earlier application is permitted. Delphi is currently assessing the
impact FSP 132(R)-1 may have on its financial statements.

2. TRANSFORMATION PLAN AND CHAPTER 11 BANKRUPTCY

On September 6, 2007 Delphi filed its proposed plan of reorganization (the “Plan”) and related disclosure statement (the “Disclosure
Statement”) with the Court. The Plan and Disclosure Statement outline Delphi’s transformation centering around five core areas,
including agreements reached with each of Delphi’s principal U.S. labor unions and GM, a plan to streamline our product portfolio and
make the necessary manufacturing alignment with our new focus, transform our cost structure and resolve our pension funding situation.
On February 4, 2008, the Confirmation Order entered by the Court on January 25, 2008 with respect to Delphi’s Plan and Disclosure
Statement became final. Under the terms and subject to the conditions of the Equity Purchase and Commitment Agreement between
Delphi and certain affiliates of lead investor Appaloosa Management L.P. (“Appaloosa”), Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund I, Ltd.
(“Harbinger”), Pardus Capital Management, L.P. (“Pardus”), Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Incorporated (“Merrill”), UBS
Securities LLC (“UBS”), and Goldman Sachs & Co. (“Goldman”) (collectively the “Investors™), dated as of August 3, 2007, as amended
(and together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, the “EPCA”), the Investors committed to purchase $800 million of convertible
preferred stock and approximately $175 million of common stock in the reorganized Company. Additionally, subject to satisfaction of
other terms and conditions, the Investors committed to purchase any unsubscribed shares of common stock in connection with an
approximately $1.6 billion rights offering that was made available to unsecured creditors. On April 4, 2008, Delphi announced that
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although it had met the conditions required to substantially consummate its Plan, including obtaining $6.1 billion of exit financing, the
Investors refused to participate in a closing that was commenced but not completed on that date. Several hours prior to the scheduled
closing on April 4, 2008, Appaloosa delivered to Delphi a letter, stating that such letter “constitutes a notice of immediate termination” of
the EPCA. Appaloosa’s April 4 letter alleged that Delphi had breached certain provisions of the EPCA and that Appaloosa is entitled to
terminate the EPCA. At the time Appaloosa delivered its letter, other than the Investors, all the required parties for a successful closing
and emergence from chapter 11, including representatives of Delphi’s exit financing lenders, GM, and the Creditors’ Committee and
Equity Committee in Delphi’s chapter 11 cases were present, were prepared to move forward, and all actions necessary to consummate the
plan of reorganization were taken other than the concurrent closing and funding of the EPCA.

Throughout the second and third quarters of 2008, Delphi engaged in discussions with its stakeholders, including GM and
representatives of both statutory committees, to develop modifications to the Plan that would allow Delphi to emerge from chapter 11. On
October 3, 2008, Delphi filed proposed modifications to the Plan and related modifications to the Disclosure Statement with the Court
which contained an updated business plan associated with a mid-point total enterprise business valuation of $7.2 billion, and contemplated
that Delphi would need to raise approximately $3.75 billion of emergence capital through a combination of term debt and rights to
purchase equity. However since the filing of the proposed modifications, substantial uncertainty and a significant decline in capacity in
the credit markets, the global economic downturn generally and the current economic climate in the automotive industry have adversely
impacted Delphi’s ability to develop a revised recapitalization plan and successfully consummate a confirmed plan of reorganization.
Delphi continues to be engaged in comprehensive discussions with all of its stakeholders that have a continuing economic interest in its
reorganization cases to formulate further plan modifications. In connection with those discussions, Delphi has been making further
revisions to its business plan consistent with the extremely low volume production environment in the global automotive industry and
depressed global capital and equity markets. Although no formal valuation of the revised business plan has been completed, it is
anticipated that the total business enterprise value associated with the modified plan will be substantially below the valuation range
contained in the modifications filed in October 2008 and may be equivalent to, or even less than, the amount of Delphi’s postpetition
obligations, including its borrowings under its debtor-in-possession financing facility. These factors also continue to delay Delphi’s
emergence from chapter 11 and its ability to refinance its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility.

Plan of Reorganization and Transformation Plan

Elements of Transformation Plan

On March 31, 2006, we announced our transformation plan centered around five key elements, each of which is also addressed in
our Plan and related Disclosure Statement. The progress on each element is discussed below.

GM - Conclude negotiations with GM to finalize financial support for certain of Delphi’s legacy and labor costs and to ascertain
GM’s business commitment to Delphi going forward.

Delphi and GM have entered into comprehensive settlement agreements consisting of the Global Settlement Agreement, as
amended (the “GSA”) and the Master Restructuring Agreement, as amended (the “MRA”). The GSA and the MRA, as amended
through January 25, 2008, comprised part of the Plan and were approved in the order confirming the Plan on January 25, 2008. The
GSA and the MRA provided that such agreements were not effective until and unless Delphi emerges from chapter 11. However, as
part of Delphi’s overall negotiations with its stakeholders to further amend the Plan and emerge from chapter 11 as soon as practicable,
Delphi agreed with GM and filed further amendments to the GSA and MRA (the “Amended MRA”) with the Court on September 12,
2008 and subsequently entered into an additional amendment to the GSA as of September 25, 2008 (as so amended, the “Amended
GSA”). On September 26, 2008, Delphi received the consent of its labor unions to implement certain aspects of the agreements as
described in more detail below. The Court approved such amendments on September 26, 2008 and the Amended GSA and Amended
MRA became effective on September 29, 2008. These amended agreements include provisions related to the transfer of certain legacy
pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and became effective independent of and in advance of substantial consummation
of an amended plan of reorganization. The effectiveness of these agreements resulted in a material reduction in Delphi’s liabilities and
future expenses related to U.S. hourly workforce benefit programs.

Global Settlement Agreement - The Amended GSA resolves outstanding issues between Delphi and GM, including: litigation
commenced in March 2006 by Delphi to terminate certain supply agreements with GM; all potential claims and disputes with GM arising
out of the separation of Delphi from GM in 1999, including certain post-separation claims and disputes; the proofs of claim filed by GM
against Delphi in Delphi’s chapter 11 cases; GM’s treatment under a Delphi plan of reorganization; and various other legacy U.S. hourly
workforce benefit issues. Except for the second step of the transfer of a substantial portion of the assets and liabilities under the Delphi
Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan (the “Hourly Plan”) as specifically noted below, the obligations under the Amended GSA are not
conditioned on the effectiveness of an amended plan of reorganization.

The Amended GSA addresses commitments by Delphi and GM regarding other U.S. hourly workforce postretirement health care
benefits and employer-paid postretirement basic life insurance benefits (“OPEB”), pension obligations, and other GM contributions with

respect to labor matters and releases. In 2008, Delphi recorded a net reorganization gain of $5.3 billion in connection with the

15



effectiveness of the Amended GSA. In addition, under the Amended GSA, Delphi received net cash from GM totaling $760 million in
2008, principally related to reimbursement of hourly OPEB benefit payments since January 1, 2007 and amounts paid by Delphi under
special attrition programs.

The following table provides each component of the net reorganization gain recorded for the elements of the Amended GSA that were
implemented during 2008 and which are described in more detail below. The table also reflects the net cash received in 2008 attributable
to each of the elements of the Amended GSA:

Reorganization Cash Received Pre-Tax Earnings Cash Received
Gain (Loss) From GM Benefit From GM From GM
Upon Effectiveness Upon Effectiveness Post Effectiveness  Post Effectiveness
(in millions)

Hourly Pension Plan Settlement:

Hourly Plan First Pension Transfer to GM....................... $ 2,083 $ — $ — $ —
Recognition of Hourly Plan related OCI amounts............ (494) — — —
Hourly OPEB Settlement:
GM assumption of OPEB obligation ............cccccceeveenenne. 6,821 — — —
Recognition of OPEB related OCI amounts..................... 266 — — —
Allowed Claims and Other:
Allowed GM administrative claim.................... (1,628) — — —
Allowed GM general unsecured claim (2,500) — — —
Allowed IUE-CWA and USW claims.........c..ccceeevveneeneee. (129) — — —
OPEB reimbursement from GM ........ccccooeveeienenenneneene 353 350 60 51
Special attrition programs (Note 16)........cccoceverveirenneneee 491 230 — 68
Other, Nt ....ooouiiiiieeeee e 69 61 — —
TOtAl, NEL cvvvieieiieiereteeeec ettt $ 5,332 $ 641 $ 60 $ 119

Hourly Pension Plan Settlement — First Pension Transfer to GM - On September 26, 2008, Delphi received the consent of its labor
unions and approval from the Court to transfer certain assets and liabilities of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension
Plan pursuant to section 414(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “414(1) Net Liability Transfer”). Pursuant to the Amended GSA, the
414(1) Net Liability Transfer is to occur in two separate steps and is sufficient to avoid an Hourly Plan accumulated funding deficiency for
the plan year ended September 30, 2008. The first step occurred on September 29, 2008 and Delphi transferred liabilities of
approximately $2.6 billion and assets of approximately $486 million from the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension
Plan, representing 30% and 10% of the projected benefit obligation and plan assets, respectively, as of September 29, 2008 (the “First
Pension Transfer”). The $486 million transferred represented 90% of the initially estimated $540 million of assets to be transferred under
the First Pension Transfer. The remaining assets will be transferred by March 29, 2009 upon finalization of the related valuations. The
transfer was accounted for as a settlement under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 88, Employer’s Accounting for
Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefit (“SFAS 88”), and the obligations of the
Hourly Plan were remeasured prior to the transfer occurring. Refer to Note 17. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits for further
information. Delphi recognized $494 million of previously unrecognized actuarial losses recorded in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”), which represents the pro rata portion of the projected benefit obligation transferred to GM relative to the total projected benefit
obligation of the Hourly Plan.

Hourly Pension Plan Settlement — Second Pension Transfer to GM - The second step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer (the “Second
Pension Transfer”), will occur upon the effectiveness of an amended plan of reorganization that (i) provides for the treatment of GM’s
claims and releases as set forth in the Amended GSA, including the delivery of preferred stock to satisfy GM’s allowed administrative
claim as described below, and (ii) contains interpretive provisions required by the Amended GSA regarding conflicts between such a plan
and the Amended GSA. Due to the effectiveness of the Second Pension Transfer being contingent upon Delphi’s emergence from chapter
11, it does not meet the criteria for settlement accounting as of December 31, 2008. Delphi will continue to account for the remaining
pension liability under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, Employer’s Accounting for Pensions, until such time that it is
settled, which is currently anticipated to be upon emergence from chapter 11.

Hourly Plan Freeze and Triggering of Benefit Guarantees — As provided for under certain union settlement agreements and
implementation agreements, Delphi froze its Hourly Plan for future benefit accruals as of November 30, 2008. In addition, as a result of
the triggering of the benefit guarantees, certain eligible hourly employees will receive up to seven years of credited service under the
pension and OPEB plans sponsored by GM.

Hourly OPEB Settlement and OPEB Reimbursement from GM — On September 23, 2008, Delphi received approval from the Court
and on September 26, 2008 received the consent of its labor unions to cease providing traditional U.S. hourly OPEB. In addition, upon
effectiveness of the Amended GSA, GM assumed financial responsibility for all Delphi traditional hourly OPEB liabilities from and after
January 1, 2007. GM assumed approximately $6.8 billion of postretirement benefit liabilities for certain of the Company’s active and
retired hourly employees, which was included in the reorganization gain. The assumption of the traditional hourly OPEB liability by GM
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and GM’s agreement to reimburse postretirement benefit expenses through the transfer date constitute a settlement under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, Employer’s Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. Delphi recognized
$266 million of previously unrecognized actuarial gains recorded in OCI in connection with the settlement. Additionally, on September
30, 2008, GM reimbursed Delphi approximately $350 million for previous OPEB payments made to the hourly workforce from and after
January 1, 2007. During the fourth quarter of 2008, GM funded an additional $51 million of OPEB payments made to the hourly
workforce and an additional $9 million is recorded as a receivable from GM as of December 31, 2008. Refer to Note 17. Pensions and
Other Postretirement Benefits for further information.

Allowed GM Administrative and General Unsecured Claims - In connection with the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer, GM will receive
an allowed administrative claim in the amount of up to $2.1 billion, to be provided in two steps. Upon completion of the First Pension
Transfer on September 29, 2008, GM received a claim equivalent to 77.5% of the net unfunded liabilities transferred, or $1.6 billion.
Upon completion of the Second Pension Transfer, which will occur upon the effectiveness of an amended plan of reorganization that
satisfies the requirements of the Amended GSA, GM will receive the balance of the $2.1 billion claim. Of the $2.1 billion administrative
claim, $1.6 billion was recognized and included in the reorganization gain in 2008 and $427 million will be granted and recognized by
Delphi when the remaining assets and liabilities allocable to certain participants of the Hourly Plan included in the 414(1) Net Liability
Transfer are transferred to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan. The amount of the claim to be granted upon completion of the
Second Pension Transfer is not dependent upon the amount of the assets and liabilities at the time of the transfer.

Upon Delphi’s emergence from bankruptcy, the plan of reorganization may, subject to certain conditions, satisfy GM’s administrative
claim through the issuance of non-voting convertible preferred stock, provided that (i) Delphi’s exit financing does not exceed $3.0 billion
(plus a revolving credit facility), (ii) no equity securities are issued that are senior to or pari passu with GM’s preferred stock, (iii) the plan
of reorganization provides for the GM releases as described in the Amended GSA, and (iv) the plan of reorganization contains interpretive
provisions required by the Amended GSA regarding conflicts between such a plan and the Amended GSA.

Under the terms of the Amended GSA, if all conditions for the receipt by GM of the preferred stock described above are satisfied,
holders of general unsubordinated unsecured claims, other than holders of claims arising from Delphi’s trust preferred securities, will
receive pro rata distributions of common stock in reorganized Delphi to the extent necessary to permit such holders to receive 20% of their
allowed general unsubordinated unsecured claims, which distributions are dependent upon an agreed valuation formulation set forth in the
Amended GSA, and the distribution of non-voting convertible preferred stock to GM will be reduced by a corresponding amount. In the
event that total enterprise value set forth in the plan of reorganization or disclosure statement (as subsequently modified hereafter) exceeds
$7.13 billion, Delphi and GM have agreed to work in good faith with the official committee of unsecured creditors to establish a
reasonable allocation of the value in excess of $7.13 billion in light of the actual economic value of a reorganized Delphi.

Under the terms of the Amended GSA, if any of the conditions to GM’s acceptance of preferred stock in satisfaction of its
administrative claim is not satisfied or waived by GM, holders of general unsubordinated unsecured claims, other than holders of claims
arising from Delphi’s trust preferred securities, will receive 50% of all distributions that would otherwise be made to GM on account of its
$2.1 billion administrative claim up to the amount necessary for such holders to receive an aggregate distribution of up to $300 million,
exclusive of any value received as a result of such holders participation in any rights offering.

With respect to GM’s claims in the Company’s chapter 11 cases, GM has agreed to a general unsecured claim of $2.5 billion,
primarily for OPEB and special attrition programs for the U.S. hourly workforce, and to subordinate its recovery on such claim until other
general unsecured creditors have achieved a recovery of 20% of the allowed amount of their claims (other than holders of claims arising
from Delphi’s trust preferred securities). If Delphi’s other general unsecured creditors have received a distribution of 20% of the allowed
amount of their claims, if there is any remaining value to be distributed, GM would receive a distribution on its general unsecured claim
until it has received a 20% distribution on such claim amount. Once GM has received a 20% distribution on its general unsecured claim,
and if there is any remaining value to be distributed, any additional distributions would be shared ratably between GM and Delphi’s other
general unsecured creditors.

On October 3, 2008, Delphi filed proposed modifications to the Plan and related modifications to the Disclosure Statement with the
Court, which contained an updated business plan associated with a mid-point total enterprise business valuation of $7.2 billion, and
contemplated that Delphi would need to raise approximately $3.75 billion of emergence capital through a combination of term debt and
rights to purchase equity. However since the filing of the proposed modifications, substantial uncertainty and a significant decline in
capacity in the credit markets, the global economic downturn generally and the current economic climate in the automotive industry, have
adversely impacted Delphi’s ability to develop a revised recapitalization plan and successfully consummate a confirmed plan of
reorganization. Delphi continues to be engaged in comprehensive discussions with all of its stakeholders that have a continuing economic
interest in its reorganization cases to formulate further plan modifications. In connection with those discussions, Delphi has been making
further revisions to its business plan consistent with the extremely low volume production environment in the global automotive industry
and depressed global capital and equity markets. Although no formal valuation of the revised business plan has been completed, it is
anticipated that the total business enterprise value associated with the revised plan will be substantially below the valuation range
contained in the modifications filed in October 2008 and may be equivalent to, or even less than, the amount of Delphi’s postpetition
obligations, including its borrowings under its debtor-in-possession financing facility. Accordingly, we believe it is likely that (i) we will
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not be able to satisfy all the conditions for the receipt by GM of the preferred stock or that the economic value of reorganized Delphi will
exceed $7.13 billion, (ii) that 50% of GM’s administrative claim will be subordinated to the claims of general unsecured creditors as
described above and (iii) that GM will receive the full allowed amount of its general unsecured claim. As part of the April 2 milestone for
Delphi's filing of modifications to its previously confirmed plan of reorganization, as contemplated by the Supplemental Amendment,
Delphi and GM are discussing potential modifications to the Amended MRA, including pulling forward elements of GM's previously
agreed support for Delphi, such as the production cash burn breakeven and labor subsidy payments referred to below, into one payment at
emergence in combination with the transfer to GM of certain of Delphi's U.S. manufacturing sites dedicated principally to supplying
product to GM.

GM and certain related parties and Delphi and certain related parties have exchanged broad, global releases, effective as of the
effective date of the Amended GSA (which releases do not apply to certain surviving claims as set forth in the Amended GSA). In
addition to providing a release to GM, the Company agreed to withdraw with prejudice the sealed complaint (the “GM Complaint”) filed
against GM in the Court on October 5, 2007.

Allowed IUE-CWA and USW Claims — General unsecured claims in the amounts of $126 million and $3 million were granted to the
International Union of Electronic, Electrical, Salaried, Machine and Furniture Workers-Communication Workers of America (“IUE-
CWA”) and the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial and Service Workers International
Union and its Local Union 87L (the “USW?”), respectively, under the respective labor settlement agreements.

Special Attrition Programs — The reorganization gain included $491 million of reimbursement related to the 2006 and 2007 special
attrition programs because these programs were directly related to the chapter 11 cases. On September 30, 2008, GM reimbursed Delphi
$230 million related to the funding of various 2007 U.S. hourly workforce special attrition programs, consistent with the provisions of the
U.S. labor union settlement agreements. Additionally, previously recognized GM general unsecured claims of $333 million primarily
related to the 2006 U.S. hourly workforce attrition programs previously reimbursed by GM have been forgiven and subsumed in the
overall $2.5 billion allowed general unsecured claim granted to GM, as discussed above. During the fourth quarter of 2008, GM
reimbursed Delphi $68 million related to the funding of the UAW buydown arrangements under the 2007 U.S. hourly workforce special
attrition programs. Refer to Note 16. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs for more information.

Other, Net — Other, net of $69 million includes a $51 million reimbursement from GM related to the U.S. labor settlement agreement
with the [IUE-CWA, dated August 5, 2007, of which $25 million is reimbursement of costs and expenses incurred by Delphi in connection
with the execution and performance of the IUE-CWA labor agreement and $26 million is reimbursement to Delphi for a portion of the
allowed claim under the IUE-CWA labor agreement.

Master Restructuring Agreement - The Amended MRA is intended to govern certain aspects of Delphi and GM’s commercial
relationship since filing for chapter 11 and following Delphi’s emergence from chapter 11. The Amended MRA addresses the scope of
GM’s existing and future business awards to Delphi and related pricing and sourcing arrangements, GM commitments with respect to
reimbursement of specified ongoing U.S. hourly workforce labor costs, the disposition of certain Delphi facilities, and the treatment of
existing commercial agreements between Delphi and GM. The obligations under the Amended MRA generally are not conditioned on the
effectiveness of a modified plan of reorganization. Upon effectiveness of the Amended MRA in 2008, Delphi received net cash from GM
totaling $559 million and recognized related pre-tax earnings of $355 million, of which $254 million was recorded in GM settlement in
operating expenses and $101 million was recorded in discontinued operations. GM’s obligations under the Amended MRA are not
subject to termination until December 31, 2015 (provided that certain obligations of GM with respect to legacy International Union,
United Automobile, Aerospace and Agricultural Implement Workers of America (the “UAW”) employees would survive any such
termination). As part of the April 2 milestone for Delphi's filing of modifications to its previously confirmed plan of reorganization, as
contemplated by the Supplemental Amendment, Delphi and GM are discussing potential modifications to the Amended MRA, including
pulling forward elements of GM's previously agreed support for Delphi, such as the production cash burn breakeven and labor subsidy
payments referred to below, into one payment at emergence in combination with the transfer to GM of certain of Delphi's U.S.
manufacturing sites dedicated principally to supplying product to GM.
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The following table shows each component of the pre-tax earnings recorded upon effectiveness of the Amended MRA in 2008 and the
cash received in 2008:

GM Settlement Gain Cash Received Pre-Tax Earnings Cash Received
In Pre-Tax Earnings From GM Benefit From GM
Upon Effectiveness Upon Effectiveness Post Effectiveness  Post Effectiveness
(in millions)

Reimbursement of hourly labor costs............c..cceueee. $ 272 $ 273 $ 25 $ 2
Production cash burn breakeven reimbursement .......... 81 74 70 28
Working capital backstop — Steering Business............. — 210 — —
OReT e 2 2 — —
Total, Net....cvivieieieicireec e $ 355 $ 559 $ 95 $ 30
Continuing OPerations ...............c.cc.cceceveeeeeeeeneneancnn. 3 254 b 75
Discontinued operations..................cccceecvecveeeneennenn. 3 101 3 20

Existing and Future Business Awards and Related Matters — The Amended MRA (1) addresses the scope of existing business awards,
related pricing agreements, and extensions of certain existing supply agreements, including GM’s ability to move production to alternative
suppliers, and reorganized Delphi’s rights to bid and qualify for new business awards; (2) eliminates the requirement to implement price-
downs with respect to certain businesses since Delphi filed for chapter 11 and restricts GM’s ability to re-source products manufactured at
core U.S. operations through at least December 31, 2011 and Mexican operations through December 31, 2010; (3) contains a commitment
by GM to provide Delphi with an annual Keep Site Facilitation Fee of $110 million in 2009 and 2010 which is not contingent on Delphi’s
emergence from chapter 11, payable in quarterly installments during these periods, which, consistent with Delphi’s policy, will be
recognized in earnings over future production periods; and (4) contains commitments by GM concerning the sale of certain of Delphi’s
non-core businesses and additional commitments by GM if certain of Delphi’s businesses and facilities are not sold or wound down by
specified future dates.

Reimbursement of Hourly Labor Costs — GM has agreed to reimburse the Company for hourly workforce labor costs in excess of $26
per hour, excluding certain costs, including hourly pension and OPEB contributions provided under the supplemental wage agreement, at
specified UAW manufacturing facilities retained by Delphi. On September 30, 2008, Delphi received payment from GM of $273 million
for retroactive labor costs from October 1, 2006 through September 30, 2008. Of the total received, $239 million was included in GM
settlement as a reduction of operating expenses and $33 million was included in discontinued operations as it related to the Steering
Business and the Interiors and Closures Business. The economic substance of this provision of the Amended MRA is to lower Delphi’s
labor costs at specified UAW-represented manufacturing facilities to $26 per hour, excluding certain costs, in order to maintain
competitive operations in the U.S. Consistent with the economic substance of this provision, Delphi recorded the labor subsidy amounts
received as a reduction of cost of sales. Future labor subsidy amounts will be recognized in the period receivable from GM, and will be
treated as a reduction to cost of sales or discontinued operations, as appropriate. During the fourth quarter of 2008, Delphi refunded $5
million of the payment to GM based on agreed upon revisions to the estimates paid for retroactive labor costs and received an additional
$7 million reimbursement of labor costs from GM and an additional $22 million is recorded as a receivable from GM as of December 31,
2008, for a total reduction to cost of sales of $25 million in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Production Cash Burn Breakeven Reimbursement — Delphi has agreed to continue manufacturing at certain non-core sites to meet
GM’s production requirements and GM is providing operating cash flow breakeven support, or production cash burn breakeven (“PCBB”)
from January 1, 2008 through site-specified time periods to compensate Delphi for keeping these sites in production. Additionally, GM
has agreed to reimburse capital spending in excess of $500,000 at the PCBB sites from January 1, 2008 through site-specified time
periods. GM reimbursed Delphi $74 million on September 30, 2008 for the retroactive portion of the PCBB payments through August
2008. Upon effectiveness of the Amended MRA, Delphi recognized $81 million for the retroactive portion of the PCBB amounts
received or receivable through September 2008, of which $15 million was included in GM settlement as a reduction of operating expenses
and $66 million was included in discontinued operations. Future PCBB reimbursement, including capital spending, received from GM
will be recognized contemporaneously as incurred, and will be treated as a reduction to cost of sales, fixed assets or discontinued
operations, as appropriate. During the fourth quarter of 2008, Delphi received $28 million PCBB reimbursement from GM and an
additional $42 million is recorded as a receivable as of December 31, 2008, of which $50 million was recorded as a reduction to cost of
sales and $20 million was recorded in discontinued operations.

Working Capital Backstop — Steering Business — GM agreed to provide payments to Delphi for the Steering Business if the sales
value is less than defined estimated working capital amounts of the businesses. In addition, GM agreed to provide payments to Delphi
related to the Steering Business if it is not sold prior to the effectiveness of the MRA. GM provided a $210 million advance on working
capital recovery to Delphi related to the Steering Business on September 30, 2008. This payment is recorded as a deferred liability as of
December 31, 2008. GM also agreed that ownership of the Steering Business will transfer to GM if it is not sold to a third party by
December 31, 2010. In the event of a sale to a third party, Delphi will reimburse GM for the amount of the advance, and GM will pay
Delphi an amount equal to the lesser of (a) $210 million and (b) two thirds of the amount, if any, by which the net working capital
associated with the business exceeds the sales proceeds. In the event the Steering Business is not sold to a third party and is purchased
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by GM, the $210 million advance will be retained by Delphi to the extent it meets the working capital criteria as defined in the Amended
MRA at the time of the transfer. However, on March 3, 2009, Delphi and GM reached an agreement subject to GM receiving U.S.
Treasury and GM board of directors approval and Delphi receiving Court approval, under which GM will exercise its option to purchase
the Steering Business as contemplated under the Amended MRA to allow a wholly-owned subsidiary of GM to purchase the Steering
Business. The Steering Business is reported as discontinued operations, refer to Note 25. Subsequent Events for further information.

Reimbursement of Hourly Workers’ Compensation and Other Benefits — GM will reimburse Delphi for all current and future workers
compensation, disability, supplemental unemployment benefits, and severance obligations paid by Delphi after January 1, 2009 in relation
to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active, inactive, and retired employees. Consistent with the substance of the provision,
Delphi will recognize future anticipated reimbursements from GM contemporaneously with Delphi’s incurrence of related cash payments
in future periods. There is no financial impact related to this matter in 2008.

Accelerated GM North American Payment Terms - The Amended MRA accelerates GM’s North American payment terms through
2011 upon (a) the effectiveness of an agreement giving GM certain access rights to four of the Company’s U.S plants in the event that the
reorganized Company experiences extreme financial distress that would prevent Delphi from delivering parts at some point in the future
and (b) the consummation of a modified chapter 11 plan of reorganization pursuant to which Delphi emerges with substantially all of its
core businesses. There is no financial impact for this matter in 2008. The accelerated payments are expected to result in an increase in
cash and a reduction in accounts receivable and will have no impact on the statement of operations.

Pensions - Devise a workable solution to the current pension funding situation, whether by deferring contributions to the pension
trusts or otherwise.

Since entering chapter 11, Delphi has limited its contributions to the Hourly Plan, the Delphi Retirement Program for Salaried
Employees (the “Salaried Plan”), the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement Program, the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program, the PHI
Bargaining Retirement Plan and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan (together, the “Pension Plans”) to amounts necessary to fund
benefits accrued on account of postpetition service.

Pursuant to the pertinent terms of certain pension funding waivers secured from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) in 2006 and
2007, Delphi provided to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (“PBGC”) letters of credit in favor of the Hourly and Salaried Plans
in the amount of $122.5 million to support funding obligations under the Hourly Plan and $50 million to support funding obligations
under the Salaried Plan. Due to the expiration of the waivers, the PBGC drew against the $172.5 million of letters of credit in favor of the
Hourly and Salaried Plans on May 16, 2008. The cash proceeds from the letters of credit were deposited into the Hourly and Salaried
Plans and initially recognized as Delphi funding contributions to the respective plans for the plan year ended September 30, 2008.
However, on January 16, 2009, Delphi filed amended Forms 5500 (Annual Return Report of Employee Benefit Plan) with the IRS that
applied all contributions made to the Hourly and Salaried Plans in 2008, including the proceeds from the letters of credit, back to the plan
year ended September 30, 2007. This contribution carry back, together with the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer discussed below, had the
effect that no contributions were due under the Hourly Plan for the plan year ended September 30, 2008. Approximately $56 million
remains due as a minimum funding contribution under the Salaried Plan for the plan year ended September 30, 2008, and approximately
$13 million remains due as minimum funding contribution under the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program, the PHI Bargaining
Retirement Plan and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan. As permitted under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
(“ERISA”) and the U.S. Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), Delphi elected to defer the contribution necessary to satisfy this remaining
obligation until no later than the due date for minimum contributions, which is June 15, 2009 for the Salaried Plan and September 15,
2009 for the subsidiary plans. On December 15, 2008, Delphi applied to the IRS for a waiver of the obligation to make the minimum
funding contribution to the Salaried Plan by June 15, 2009, and permission to instead pay the amount due in installments over the next five
years. That application remains pending.

In addition to the funding strategy discussed above and the changes to the Hourly Plan discussed in the Labor section, Delphi froze
the Salaried Plan, the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement Program, the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program and the PHI Non-
Bargaining Retirement Plan effective as of September 30, 2008. Delphi reached agreement with its labor unions which allowed Delphi to
freeze the accrual of traditional benefits under the Hourly Plan effective as of November 30, 2008. Certain collectively bargained hourly
employees remain covered by the Hourly Plan’s Individual Retirement Plan formula (a cash balance benefit providing an annual pay
credit accrual of 5.4% of base wages). Refer to Note 17. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits to the consolidated financial
statements for more information.

As discussed above in the GM section, on September 26, 2008, Delphi received the consent of its labor unions and approval from the
Court to transfer certain assets and liabilities of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan. The 414(1) Net
Liability Transfer is to occur in two separate steps. The First Pension Transfer occurred on September 29, 2008. The Second Pension
Transfer will transfer substantially all of the remaining assets and liabilities of the Hourly Plan upon Delphi’s emergence from chapter 11
if the terms of the Amended GSA are met.
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As reflected above, Delphi has not made certain minimum required contributions to the Pension Plans and as a result, the IRS has
asserted against Delphi excise taxes in the approximate amounts of $17 million and $18 million for plan years ended September 30, 2005
and September 30, 2007, respectively, and may assert additional excise taxes up to an additional $122 million and $226 million for plan
years ended September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2007, respectively. If these asserted assessments are not paid, the IRS could increase
the assessments that relate to the Salaried Plan to 100% of any Salaried Plan contributions considered by the IRS to be due and unpaid.
However, because the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer to the GM hourly plan avoided an accumulated funding deficiency in the Delphi
Hourly Plan for the plan year ended September 30, 2008, exposure to the 100% excise tax related to the Delphi Hourly Plan has been
eliminated. Assuming Delphi is assessed excise taxes for all plan years through 2007, the total exposure to date could approximate $383
million, plus interest and penalties which could be substantial. In addition, if the IRS does not agree to waive the minimum required
funding contribution under the Salaried Plan for the plan year ended September 30, 2008, the IRS may assess an additional excise tax of
approximately $6 million if Delphi does not remit $56 million to the Salaried Plan by June 15, 2009. Additional excise taxes could be
assessed with respect to the subsidiary plans if the minimum required contributions to those plans for the plan year ended December 31,
2008, are not remitted by September 15, 2009. To the extent not promptly paid by Delphi, any such excise tax assessments might be
increased to 100% of any Salaried Plan and subsidiary plan contributions considered by the IRS to be due and unpaid.

Although the IRS has asserted certain of the excise tax assessments described above and might seek to assess additional excise taxes,
plus interest and penalties, related to the Pension Plans, Delphi believes that under the Bankruptcy Code, the Company is not obligated to
make contributions for pension benefits while in chapter 11 and that, as a result, the Company would not be liable for any such
assessments. Accordingly, management has concluded that an unfavorable outcome is not currently probable and, as of December 31,
2008, no amounts have been recorded for any potential excise tax assessment.

Upon emergence from chapter 11, the Company intends to meet the minimum funding standards under section 412 of the Code
applicable to the Pension Plans. If completed, the second step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer will allow us to satisfy substantially all
of the pension funding obligations to our hourly employees, however that second transfer is conditioned on our emergence from chapter
11 under a modified plan of reorganization that meets the terms of the Amended GSA. If the conditions to the second step of the 414(1)
Net Liability Transfer are not satisfied, and the second step does not take place, we do not believe we will be able to fund those U.S.
pension obligations. In addition, we still maintain responsibility for and need to meet U.S. pension funding obligations for those plans
covering our remaining hourly employees, salaried employees and certain subsidiary employees. We may be unable to satisfy our U.S.
pension funding obligations for those plans covering our remaining hourly employees, salaried employees or certain subsidiary
employees. Due to the impact of the global economic recession, including reduced global automotive production, capital markets
volatility that has adversely affected our pension asset return expectations, a declining interest rate environment, or other reasons, our
funding requirements have substantially increased since September 30, 2008. Should we be unable to obtain funding from some other
source to resolve these pension funding obligations, either Delphi or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the “PBGC”) may initiate
plan terminations. The PBGC would seek termination, if in its view, the risk of loss with respect to the plans may increase unreasonably if
the plans are not terminated. The amount of pension contributions due upon emergence from chapter 11 will be dependent upon various
factors including, among other things, the date of emergence, and the funded status of the Pension Plans at the date of emergence. Refer
to Note 17. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits for further information.

Labor - Modify our labor agreements to create a more competitive arena in which to conduct business.

During the second quarter of 2007, Delphi signed an agreement with the International Union, United Automobile, Aerospace and
Agricultural Implement Workers of America (“UAW?), and during the third quarter of 2007, Delphi signed agreements with the
remainder of its principal U.S. labor unions, which were ratified by the respective unions and approved by the Court in the third
quarter of 2007. Among other things, as approved and confirmed by the Court, this series of settlement agreements or memoranda of
understanding among Delphi, its unions, and GM settled the Debtors’ motion under sections 1113 and 1114 of the Bankruptcy Code
seeking authority to reject their U.S. labor agreements and to modify retiree benefits (the “1113/1114 Motion™). As applicable, these
agreements also, among other things, modify, extend or terminate provisions of the existing collective bargaining agreements among
Delphi and its unions and cover issues such as site plans, workforce transition and legacy pension and other postretirement benefits
obligations as well as other comprehensive transformational issues. Portions of these agreements became effective in 2007, and the
remaining portions were tied to the effectiveness of the GSA and the MRA, and substantial consummation of the Plan as confirmed by
the Court. However, as noted above, Delphi filed amendments to the GSA and the MRA in the Court on September 12, 2008, and
subsequently entered into an additional amendment to the GSA as of September 25, 2008. The Court approved such amendments on
September 26, 2008. The Amended GSA and the Amended MRA became effective on September 29, 2008.

Among other things, these agreements generally provided certain members of the union labor workforce options to either retire,
accept a voluntary severance package or accept lump sum payments in return for lower future hourly wages. Refer to Note 16. U.S.

Employee Workforce Transition Programs for more information.

On September 4, 2007, the Court confirmed that the 1113/1114 Motion was withdrawn without prejudice, subject to the Court’s prior
settlement approval orders pertaining to each of Delphi’s U.S. labor unions, as it relates to all parties and the intervening respondents, by
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entry of an Order Withdrawing Without Prejudice Debtors” Motion For Order Under 11 U.S.C. § 1113(c) Authorizing Rejection Of
Collective Bargaining Agreements And Authorizing Modification Of Retiree Welfare Benefits Under 11 U.S.C. § 1114(g).

Portfolio - Streamline our product portfolio to capitalize on world-class technology and market strengths and make the necessary
manufacturing alignment with our new focus.

In March 2006, Delphi identified non-core product lines and manufacturing sites that do not fit into Delphi’s future strategic
framework, including brake and chassis systems, catalysts, cockpits and instrument panels, door modules and latches, ride dynamics,
steering, halfshafts, wheel bearings and power products. In connection with the Company’s continuous evaluation of its product portfolio,
in 2008, Delphi determined that the global exhaust business no longer fit within the Company’s future product portfolio. With the
exception of the catalyst and global exhaust product lines, included in the Powertrain Systems segment, and the steering and halfshaft
product lines and interiors and closures product lines included in discontinued operations, these non-core product lines are included in the
Company’s Automotive Holdings Group segment, refer to Note 22. Segment Reporting.

Delphi has continued sale and wind-down efforts with respect to non-core product lines and manufacturing sites. The sale and wind-
down process is being conducted in consultation with the Company’s customers, unions and other stakeholders to carefully manage the
transition of affected product lines and manufacturing sites. The disposition of any U.S. operation is also being accomplished in
accordance with the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code and union labor contracts as applicable. The Company also has begun
consultations with the works councils in accordance with applicable laws regarding any sale or wind-down of affected manufacturing sites
in Europe.

During 2008, Delphi obtained Court approval of bidding procedures and sales agreements for the steering and halfshaft product line
and the global exhaust business and closed on the sales of the interiors and closures product line, the North American brake components
machining and assembly assets, the global bearings business, the U.S. suspensions business and the power products business. Refer to
Note 5. Discontinued Operations and Note 6. Acquisitions and Divestitures for more information.

Costs recorded during 2008 and 2007 related to the transformation plan for non-core product lines include impairments of long-lived
assets, employee termination benefits and other exit costs and U.S. employee workforce transition program charges and are further
described in Note 5. Discontinued Operations, Note 9. Property, Net, Note 7. Employee Termination Benefits and Other Exit Costs and
Note 16. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs.

Cost Structure - Transform our salaried workforce and reduce general and administrative expenses to ensure that the organizational
and cost structure is competitive and aligned with our product portfolio and manufacturing footprint.

Delphi is continuing to implement restructuring initiatives in furtherance of the transformation of its salaried workforce to reduce
selling, general and administrative expenses to support its realigned portfolio. These initiatives include financial services, information
technology and certain sales administration outsourcing activities, reduction of its global salaried workforce by taking advantage of
attrition and using salaried separation plans, and realignment of certain salaried benefit programs to bring them in line with business
needs. However, additional investment is required to fully implement these initiatives and Delphi does not expect to fully realize
substantial savings until 2009 and beyond. Additionally, due to the continuing challenging economic environment, further restructuring
initiatives may need to be implemented. However, to improve short-term cash flow until the consummation of a confirmed plan of
reorganization, certain restructuring initiatives are being delayed until the second half of 2009. In addition, Delphi continues to implement
a number of cash conservation measures, including the suspension of 2009 pay increases and annual incentive payments in the U.S. for
eligible executives and non-executive salaried employees, the intended cessation of health care and life insurance benefits in retirement to
salaried employees and retirees, a decrease in salaried severance payments and the elimination of salaried flex payments in 2009. Delphi
continues to reduce other structural costs to further align itself with the current and projected volume outlook.

Equity Purchase and Commitment Agreement

Under the terms and subject to the conditions of the EPCA between Delphi and the Investors, dated as of August 3, 2007, as amended,
the Investors committed to purchase $800 million of convertible preferred stock and approximately $175 million of common stock in the
reorganized Company. Additionally, subject to satisfaction of other terms and conditions, the Investors committed to purchase any
unsubscribed shares of common stock in connection with an approximately $1.6 billion rights offering that was made available to
unsecured creditors. The rights offering commenced on March 11, 2008 and expired on March 31, 2008. In light of the Investors’ refusal
to fund pursuant to the EPCA, as described below, in April 2008, the Company cancelled the rights offering and returned all funds
submitted.

The Company would be required to pay the Investors $83 million plus certain transaction expenses if (a) the EPCA was terminated as a
result of the Company’s agreeing to pursue an alternative investment transaction with a third party or (b) either the Company’s Board of
Directors withdrew its recommendation of the transaction or the Company willfully breached the EPCA, and within the next 24 months
thereafter, the Company then agreed to an alternative investment transaction.
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On April 4, 2008, Delphi announced that although it had met the conditions required to substantially consummate its Plan, including
obtaining $6.1 billion of exit financing, the Investors refused to participate in a closing that was commenced but not completed on that
date. Several hours prior to the scheduled closing on April 4, 2008, Appaloosa delivered to Delphi a letter, stating that such letter
“constitutes a notice of immediate termination” of the EPCA. Appaloosa’s April 4 letter alleged that Delphi had breached certain
provisions of the EPCA, that Appaloosa is entitled to terminate the EPCA and that the Investors are entitled to be paid the fee of $83
million plus certain expenses and other amounts. At the time Appaloosa delivered its letter, other than the Investors, all the required
parties for a successful closing and emergence from chapter 11, including representatives of Delphi’s exit financing lenders, GM, and the
Unsecured Creditors and Equity Committees in Delphi’s chapter 11 cases were present, were prepared to move forward, and all actions
necessary to consummate the plan of reorganization were taken other than the concurrent closing and funding of the EPCA.

On April 5, 2008, Appaloosa delivered to Delphi a letter described as “a supplement to the April 4 Termination Notice,” stating “this
letter constitutes a notice of an additional ground for termination” of the EPCA. The April 5 letter stated that the EPCA’s failure to
become effective on or before April 4, 2008 was grounds for its termination. On June 30, 2008, Merrill, Goldman, UBS and affiliates of
Pardus and Harbinger delivered to Delphi letters of termination relating to the EPCA.

Delphi believes that Appaloosa wrongfully terminated the EPCA and disputes the allegations that Delphi breached the EPCA or failed
to satisfy any condition to the Investors’ obligations thereunder as asserted by Appaloosa in its April 4 letter. Delphi’s Board of Directors
formed a special litigation committee and engaged independent legal counsel to consider and pursue any and all available equitable and
legal remedies, and on May 16, 2008, Delphi filed complaints against the Investors in the Court to seek specific performance by the
Investors of their obligations under the EPCA as well as compensatory and punitive damages. No amounts related to this matter have
been recorded in Delphi’s financial statements. The Investors filed motions to dismiss Delphi’s complaints, and on July 28, 2008, the
Court denied in part and granted in part the Investors’ motions. A trial on Delphi’s complaint is currently scheduled to occur in May
20009.

During 2007, in exchange for the Investors’ commitment to purchase common stock and the unsubscribed shares in the rights offering,
the Company paid an aggregate commitment fee of $39 million and certain transaction expenses and in exchange for the Investors’
commitment to purchase preferred stock the Company paid an aggregate commitment fee of $18 million. In addition, the Company paid
an arrangement fee of $6 million to Appaloosa to compensate Appaloosa for arranging the transactions contemplated by the EPCA. The
Company also paid certain out-of-pocket costs and expenses reasonably incurred by the Investors or their affiliates subject to certain
terms, conditions and limitations set forth in the EPCA. Delphi had deferred the recognition of these amounts in other current assets as
they were to be netted against the proceeds from the EPCA upon issuance of the new shares. However, as a result of the events relating to
the termination of the EPCA as described above, Delphi recognized $79 million of expense related to these fees and other expenses during
2008.

The Plan of Reorganization

As noted above, due to the Investors failure to fund their commitments under the EPCA, Delphi has not yet consummated the Plan.
Pursuant to an order entered by the Court on April 30, 2008, the Debtors’ exclusivity period under the Bankruptcy Code for filing a plan
of reorganization was extended until 30 days after substantial consummation of the Plan (as modified) or any modified plan and the
Debtors’ exclusivity period for soliciting acceptance of the Plan (as modified) was extended until 90 days after substantial consummation
of the Plan (as modified) or any modified plan. On July 23, 2008, Delphi’s Creditors’ Committee and WTC, as Indenture Trustee and a
member of the UCC, filed separate complaints in the Court seeking revocation of the Court order entered on January 25, 2008 confirming
Delphi’s Plan. The Creditors’ Committee had earlier advised Delphi that it intended to file the complaint to preserve its interests with
regard to a 180-day statutory period that would have otherwise expired on July 23, 2008. The Creditors’ Committee and WTC also
advised Delphi that they do not intend to schedule a hearing on the complaints pending developments on (i) the continuation of
stakeholder discussions concerning potential modifications to the Plan, which would permit Delphi to emerge from chapter 11 as soon as
practicable, and (ii) Delphi’s litigation against an affiliate of lead investor, Appaloosa, and the other Investors. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, pursuant to an order entered by the Court on October 27, 2008, the Debtors’ exclusive period for filing a plan of reorganization,
solely as to the Creditors’ Committee and the Equity Committee is extended through and including March 31, 2009 and the Debtors’
exclusive period for soliciting acceptance of a plan of reorganization, solely as to the Creditors’ Committee and the Equity Committee is
extended through and including May 31, 2009.

Throughout the second and third quarters of 2008, Delphi engaged in discussions with its stakeholders, including GM and
representatives of both statutory committees, to develop modifications to the Plan that would allow Delphi to emerge from chapter 11. On
October 3, 2008, Delphi filed proposed modifications to the Plan and related modifications to the Disclosure Statement with the Court
which contained an updated business plan associated with a mid-point total enterprise business valuation of $7.2 billion, and contemplated
that Delphi would need to raise approximately $3.75 billion of emergence capital through a combination of term debt and rights to
purchase equity. However since the filing of the proposed modifications, substantial uncertainty and a significant decline in capacity in
the credit markets, the global economic downturn generally and the current economic climate in the automotive industry, have adversely
impacted Delphi’s ability to develop a revised recapitalization plan and successfully consummate a confirmed plan of reorganization.
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Delphi continues to be engaged in comprehensive discussions with all of its stakeholders that have a continuing economic interest in its
reorganization cases to formulate further plan modifications. In connection with those discussions, Delphi has been making further
revisions to its business plan consistent with the extremely low volume production environment in the global automotive industry and
depressed global capital and equity markets. Although no formal valuation of the revised business plan has been completed, it is
anticipated that the total business enterprise value associated with the modified plan will be substantially below the valuation range
contained in the modifications filed in October 2008 and may be equivalent to, or even less than, the amount of Delphi’s postpetition
obligations, including its borrowings under its debtor-in-possession financing facility. These factors also continue to delay Delphi’s
emergence from chapter 11 and its ability to refinance its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility. To address the likelihood of
continued low U.S. automotive production volumes, Delphi continues to implement a number of cash conservation measures, including
temporary lay-offs and salaried benefit cuts for both active employees and retirees, delay of capital and other expenditures, permanent
salaried work-force reductions and other cost saving measures to ensure adequate liquidity for operations until volumes recover or until
the Company is able to complete further restructuring efforts in response to changes in vehicle markets. The combination of these actions,
together with the above noted Amendment and Supplemental Amendment to the Accommodation Agreement, and GM’s commitment to
increase amounts available under the GM Advance Agreement, assuming all required governmental approvals are received, all other
conditions with respect to such commitment are satisfied prior to March 25, 2009, and Delphi is able to meet certain specified milestones
in its reorganization cases, is expected to provide the Company with sufficient short-term U.S. liquidity to support its working capital
requirements and operations into May 2009. In addition, the Amendment and Supplemental Amendment to the Accommodation
Agreement will allow Delphi to access additional liquidity through the periodic release of amounts currently in a cash collateral basket of
up to $117 million, provided (i) that all of the above conditions necessary to increase amounts available under the GM Advance
Agreement to $450 million are satisfied, (ii) Delphi remains in compliance with all mandatory prepayment provisions and other covenants
in the Accommodation Agreement, including the borrowing base calculation after giving effect to such release, and (iii) Delphi has
achieved the remaining specified milestones in its reorganization cases, including the filing of a plan of reorganization or modifications to
the Plan meeting the conditions specified in the Accommodation Agreement by April 2. However liquidity remains constrained and
Delphi must continue implementing and executing its cash savings initiatives to preserve liquidity in this very difficult economic
environment. Delphi continues to be engaged in comprehensive discussions with GM related to GM’s role in a revised plan of
reorganization, including potential modifications the Amended MRA as part of the April 2 milestone for Delphi's filing of modifications
to its previously confirmed plan of reorganization, as contemplated by the Supplemental Amendment. Delphi and GM are discussing
pulling forward elements of GM's previously agreed support for Delphi into one payment at emergence in combination with the transfer of
certain of Delphi's U.S. sites to GM. Refer to “Elements of Transformation Plan” above.

Delphi will not emerge from bankruptcy as a going concern unless and until Delphi is able to obtain approval of necessary
modifications to the Plan that recognize the existing market conditions. Moreover, the continued forbearance by Delphi’s lenders under
the DIP financing and the effectiveness of any revised plan of reorganization is subject to a number of conditions, including the entry of
certain orders by the Court and the obtaining of necessary emergence capital. There can be no assurances that such emergence capital will
be obtained (or, if obtained, the terms thereof) or such other conditions will be satisfied. For a discussion of certain risks and
uncertainties related to the Debtors’ chapter 11 cases and reorganization objectives refer to Item 1A. Risk Factors in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. In addition, Delphi cannot assure that potential adverse publicity associated with the Chapter 11 Filings and the resulting
uncertainty regarding its future prospects will not materially hinder its ongoing business activities and its ability to operate, fund and
execute its business plan by impairing relations with existing and potential customers; negatively impacting its ability to attract, retain and
compensate key executives and to retain employees generally; limiting its ability to obtain trade credit; and impairing present and future
relationships with vendors and service providers. Accordingly, no assurance can be given as to what values, if any, will be ascribed in the
chapter 11 cases to each of these constituencies or what types or amounts of distributions, if any, they would receive. If certain
requirements of the Bankruptcy Code are met, a plan of reorganization can be confirmed notwithstanding its rejection by a company’s
equity security holders and notwithstanding the fact that such equity security holders do not receive or retain any property on account of
their equity interests under the plan. Accordingly, the Company urges that appropriate caution be exercised with respect to existing and
future investments in its common stock or other equity securities, or any claims relating to prepetition liabilities.

The Amended GSA and the Amended MRA became effective during the third quarter of 2008. For costs and benefits and timing of
recognition related to these agreements, refer to the detailed discussion under GM above. The cost related to the remaining components of
the transformation plan will be recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as each other element of the Plan (as
modified), including the remaining portions of the U.S. labor agreements, or as the terms of any future confirmed plan of reorganization,
become effective. The confirmation and consummation of a plan of reorganization and the agreements incorporated therein will
significantly impact Delphi’s accounting for long-lived asset impairments and exit costs related to the sites planned for closure or
consolidation, compensation costs for labor recognized over the term of the U.S. labor agreements, and the fair values assigned to assets
and liabilities upon Delphi’s emergence from chapter 11, among others. Such adjustments will have a material impact on Delphi’s
financial statements.

DASE Liquidation

Delphi’s Chapter 11 Filings related solely to its U.S. operations. Nevertheless, Delphi has been seeking and will continue to seek to
optimize its global manufacturing footprint to lower its overall cost structure by focusing on strategic product lines where it has significant
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competitive and technological advantages and selling or winding down non-core product lines. In particular, in February 2007, Delphi’s
indirect wholly-owned Spanish subsidiary, Delphi Automotive Systems Espafa, S.L. (“DASE”), announced the planned closure of its sole
operation at the Puerto Real site in Cadiz, Spain. The closure of this facility is consistent with Delphi’s transformation plan previously
announced in March 2006. The facility, which had approximately 1,600 employees, was the primary holding of DASE.

On March 20, 2007, DASE filed a petition for Concurso, or bankruptcy under Spanish law, exclusively for that legal entity, and in an
order dated April 13, 2007, the Spanish court declared DASE to be in voluntary Concurso. As a result of the Spanish court declaring
DASE to be in Concurso and the subsequent appointment of three DASE receivers by the Spanish court, Delphi no longer possesses
effective control over DASE and has de-consolidated the financial results of DASE effective April 2007. The total expense in 2007
associated with the exit of the Puerto Real site in Cadiz, Spain is approximately $268 million ($107 million in discontinued operations and
$161 million in the Automotive Holdings segment).

3. REORGANIZATION ITEMS

SOP 90-7 requires reorganization items such as revenues, expenses such as professional fees directly related to the process of
reorganizing the Debtors under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, realized gains and losses, and provisions for losses resulting from the
reorganization and restructuring of the business to be separately disclosed. Professional fees directly related to the reorganization include
fees associated with advisors to the Debtors, unsecured creditors, secured creditors and unions. Delphi’s reorganization items consist of
the following:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
GM Amended GSA settlement (NOte 2)......c.ceeveurereeereerenrenenea. $ 5,332 § — § —
Professional fees directly related to reorganization .................... (107) (169) (150)
INterest IMNCOME. ... eoiuiiiiiieiie et 7 11 55
Write off of previously capitalized fees and expenses related
tOthe EPCA ..c.oiiiiece et (79) — —
Gain (loss) on settlement of prepetition liabilities....................... (1) 2 3
L@ 11 1<) TSRS (5) (@A) —
Total Reorganization Items..............cceevveeieriecieeienrenieennns $ 5,147 $ (163) $ (92)

Delphi recorded a net reorganization gain of $5.3 billion in 2008 and received $641 million on September 30, 2008 as a result of the
effectiveness of the Amended GSA, as described in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy. In 2008, 2007 and 2006,
reorganization items resulted in approximately $6 million, $11 million and $60 million, respectively, of cash received related to interest
income. Cash paid for professional fees was approximately $110 million, $153 million and $122 million during 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Professional fees for 2008 also includes arrangement and other fees paid to various lenders in conjunction with the
bankruptcy exit financing that was commenced but not completed in April 2008.

4. WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES AND DIVIDENDS

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share amounts were computed using weighted average shares outstanding for each respective
period. As a result of the market price of shares as compared to the price associated with outstanding options in 2008 and the losses
incurred in 2007 and 2006, the effect of potentially dilutive securities has been excluded from the calculation of loss per share as inclusion
would have had an anti-dilutive effect.

Actual weighted average shares outstanding used in calculating basic and diluted loss per share were:

2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)

Weighted average basic and diluted shares
OULStANAING ....veeieeieieeeeeieeeie e 564,361 561,884 561,782

Securities excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share because inclusion would have had an anti-dilutive effect:

2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)
Anti-dilutive securities ..........c...ccoevveennnnn. 58,953 74,310 83,904

On September 8, 2005, the Board of Directors announced the elimination of Delphi’s quarterly dividend on Delphi common stock. In
addition, the Company’s DIP financing agreement includes a negative covenant prohibiting the payment of dividends by the Company.
The Company does not expect to pay dividends prior to emergence or in the foreseeable future.
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5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Court approval of Delphi’s plan to dispose of Interiors and Closures and the Steering Business triggered held for sale accounting
in 2007.

Steering and Halfshaft Business

In the fourth quarter of 2007, Delphi executed a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with an affiliate of Platinum
Equity, LLC, Steering Solutions Corporation (“Platinum”), for the sale of the Steering Business and a Transaction Facilitation Agreement
with GM (the “Transaction Agreement”). In February 2008, the Court issued an order authorizing Delphi to dispose of its Steering
Business. Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, any party in compliance with its obligations under the Purchase Agreement
may terminate the Purchase Agreement since the transaction did not close by August 31, 2008. Prior to entry into the agreements
described below in March 2009, neither party had terminated the Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the Amended MRA, GM has agreed
that ownership of the Steering Business will transfer to GM if it is not sold to a third party by December 31, 2010. On March 3, 2009,
however, Delphi and Platinum reached an agreement under which the Purchase Agreement would be terminated (the "Termination
Agreement") and Delphi and GM reached an agreement (the "Option Exercise Agreement"), subject to GM receiving U.S. Treasury and
GM board of directors approval and Delphi receiving Court approval, under which GM will exercise its option to purchase the Steering
Business as contemplated under the Amended MRA to allow a wholly-owned subsidiary of GM to purchase the Steering Business free
and clear of all liens and encumbrances other than certain permitted encumbrances (the “Steering Purchase”), which is described more
fully in Note 25. Subsequent Events. GM has agreed to guaranty the payment and performance of its wholly-owned subsidiary’s
obligations under the definitive transaction agreements to be entered into pursuant to the Option Exercise Agreement.

On September 30, 2008, in conjunction with the effectiveness of the Amended MRA, Delphi received and recorded as a deferred
liability a $210 million advance on working capital recovery from GM related to the Steering Business. In conjunction with the proceeds
of this working capital advance from GM, as well as entering into the Termination Agreement and the Option Exercise Agreement for the
Steering Purchase, Delphi has adjusted its estimate of assets held for sale to $210 million and continues to account for the business as a
discontinued operation. During 2008, Delphi recorded a loss of $34 million, net of tax, due to the results of operations, adjustment of
assets held for sale to fair value of the Steering Business as of December 31, 2008 and the effectiveness of the Amended MRA. In 2007,
Delphi recognized a charge of $507 million related to the assets held for sale of the Steering Business, including $26 million of
curtailment loss on pension benefits for impacted employees.

Prior to the assets of the Steering Business being classified as held for sale, Delphi recorded an impairment charge related to the
Steering Business in 2007. Based on the ongoing sale and labor negotiations during March 2007, previous estimates of sale proceeds were
reduced. Based on this development Delphi determined that an indicator of impairment was present for the U.S. long-lived assets of the
Steering Business. Delphi tested the recoverability of the Steering Business U.S. long-lived assets by comparing the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows from its use and anticipated disposition of those assets to their carrying value. Based on its recoverability
assessment, Delphi determined that the carrying value of its Steering Business assets at its U.S. sites exceeded the undiscounted estimated
future cash flows at those sites. Accordingly, Delphi determined the fair value of its held-for-use long-lived assets at those sites by
applying various valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis, replacement cost and orderly liquidation value. As a
result of its fair value assessment, Delphi recognized asset impairment charges related to the valuation of long-lived assets held-for-use for
its Steering Business of $152 million in 2007.

Interiors and Closures Business

Delphi and certain of its affiliates closed on the sale of the Interiors and Closures Business to Inteva Products, LLC (“Inteva”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Renco Group, on February 29, 2008. Delphi received proceeds from the sale of approximately $98
million consisting of $63 million of cash (less $23 million of cash at an overseas entity that was included in the sale) and the remainder in
notes at fair value. During the third quarter of 2008, Delphi and Inteva agreed on final working capital adjustments and Delphi received a
payment of $2 million. During 2008, as a result of the operating results net of the loss on sale of the Interiors and Closures Business,
Delphi recorded income of $15 million, net of tax. In 2007, Delphi recognized a charge of $88 million related to the assets held for sale of
the Interiors and Closures Business, including $8 million of curtailment loss on pension benefits for impacted employees.

Results of Discontinued Operations

The Interiors and Closures Business, through the date of the sale, and the Steering Business are reported as discontinued operations in
the consolidated statement of operations and statement of cash flows for 2008, 2007 and 2006. The assets and liabilities of the Steering
Business are reported in assets and liabilities held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. The
assets and liabilities of the Interiors and Closures Business are reported in assets and liabilities held for sale in the consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2007. The results of prior periods have been restated to reflect this presentation.
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The results of the discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
Sales:
Steering BUSINESS ......c.cuovveveveeiiereiiieieteee et $ 2,082 $§ 2602 $§ 2462
Interiors and Closures Busingss ..........cccooevvvveeeviviiinnennenen. 241 1,275 1,193
TOtal SALES ... $ 2323 § 3877 $ 3,655

Loss before income taxes (including minority interest and

equity income, net 0f taX).......ccooveeveerieieirieieeeeeeeeeereaa $ ® $ (749 $ (320)
Provision for inCOMe taxes ............covveeeveeierieeireeereeere e, (11) (8) (6)
Loss from discontinued operations ............ccoceeveerveeererienenns $ 19) $ (757) $ (326)

S1eering BUSINESS .......ccoecveveeniiiiiiiiiiieeneeeeeeieeeeeeens (34) (677) (281)

Interiors and Closures BUSIRESS...........ccccuvevceecueeeceencennenne. 15 (80) (45)

Assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)

Current Assets:

CASN. e $ 20 % 49
Accounts receivable .......oocvvviveiiieiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee e 299 411
INVENLOTY .eeiiiiiiiie e 152 188
Other CUITENt @SSELS ....ccuvvvvvieeeieiiiiieeeeeeeeeieeee e e e eeeaaees 24 8
Long-term assets:
Property, Net........coovieiiiiieieieeeeeee e — 48
Other 10Ng-term aSSets .........cceveerrierreeieereerreereereeeeenens 2 16
Assets held for Sale......oooviveiieieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, $ 497 $ 720
Steering BUSINESS ......ccueevveeeeeeiieeieeeeireecieesieeeaeens 497 594
Interiors and Closures Business ...............cccc..oo...... — 126

Current Liabilities:

Short-term debt.......ccuvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 30 $ 49
Accounts payable ... 174 271
Accrued 11abilities .......ooovvvviiiiiiiiiieieeeee e 68 53
Other long-term liabilities.........ccoocerieneeieneiierceeee, 21 14
MINOTILY INEETEST ...evveeieiieiieie e e 20 25
Liabilities held for sale...........cccoovevviiiiiieeieeeceeenene, $ 313 $ 412
StECVING BUSINESS ...ccvveevieeiieeiieeiieeeiiiesiireeiseesnaaeesees 313 392
Interiors and Closures Business..............ccccceeeeeeveennn. — 20
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Operating cash flows for discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
Charge related to assets held for sale...........cccooeevininiiinnenn. $ 33§ 561 $ —
Long-lived asset impairment charges ...........cccocceveeveeeeneenneene. — 193 43
Pension and other postretirement benefit expenses ................... 23 75 94
Pension curtailment ...........cccoceeieiieiininiie e — 34 —
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges............... 4 32 249
GM Amended MRA settlement (NoOte 2).......ccceevveevereerneennennen. (101) — —
Changes in net Operating asSets ...........ccecvverveecveereeseerreessessnennnns 156 128 94
TOtAl e $ 115 $ 1,023 3 480
Steering BUSINESS ........c.cccevveevieniiniiiiieiieeneeeenees 85 8§99 372
Interiors and Closures BUSINESS...........cccecvveeeeeevenenne. 30 124 108

6. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES
The results of operations, including the gain or loss on divestitures, associated with Delphi’s acquisitions and divestitures described
below were not significant to the consolidated financial statements in any period presented, and the divestitures did not meet the

discontinued operations criteria.

Automotive Holdings Group Segment

Power Products Business Sale — On May 27, 2008 and in accordance with the terms of an order authorizing the sale of certain assets
for less than $10 million, Delphi served notice of its intention to sell its power products business (the “Power Products Business™) to
Strattec Security Corporation, Witte-Velvert GmbH & Co. KG, Vehicle Access Systems Technology LLC, and certain of their affiliates
(collectively, the “Strattec Buyers”) for approximately $8 million. On June 4, 2008, the Debtors filed a motion to assume and assign
certain prepetition executory contracts related to the Power Products Business to the Strattec Buyers. On June 24, 2008, the Court entered
an order authorizing the Debtors to assume and assign such contracts to the Strattec Buyers. The 2007 annual revenues for the Power
Products Business were $59 million. Delphi recognized an initial loss of $3 million during the second quarter of 2008, included in cost of
sales, related to the assets held for sale of the Power Products Business. On November 7, 2008, Delphi and the Strattec Buyers agreed to
an amendment to the purchase and sale agreement, which among other things, reduced the consideration to be received by Delphi to
approximately $5 million. The sale occurred on November 30, 2008 and resulted in an additional loss of approximately $2 million, which
was recorded to cost of sales. Delphi received final consideration of approximately $7 million which includes final working capital
adjustments.

U.S. Suspensions Asset Sale — On March 7, 2008, the Debtors filed a motion to sell certain assets of Delphi’s U.S. suspensions
business including the machinery, equipment and inventory primarily used and located at its suspension manufacturing facility in
Kettering, Ohio (the “Kettering Assets”), to Tenneco Automotive Operating Company Inc. (“Tenneco”) for approximately $19 million
and other consideration. On March 20, 2008, the Court approved the bidding procedures for the Kettering Assets, but no further bids were
submitted by the bid deadline. On April 30, 2008, the Court entered an order approving the sale of the Kettering Assets to Tenneco. The
2007 annual revenues for the Kettering Assets were $113 million. The sale occurred on May 30, 2008 and resulted in a gain of $8 million,
which was recorded as a reduction to cost of sales. Additionally, Delphi received proceeds from this sale of approximately $18 million in
2008.

Bearings Business Product Sale — On January 15, 2008, the Debtors filed a motion to sell Delphi’s bearings business (the “Bearings
Business”). On January 25, 2008, the Court approved the bidding procedures authorizing Delphi to commence an auction under section
363 of the Bankruptcy Code. On February 21, 2008, the Debtors announced that they had entered into a purchase agreement with Kyklos,
Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Hephaestus Holdings, Inc. and an affiliate of KPS Special Situations Fund II, L.P. (“Kyklos”), which
was the successful bidder at the auction held on February 19, and 20, 2008. The Court entered the order confirming the sale of the
Bearings Business to Kyklos on March 19, 2008. The 2007 annual revenues for the Bearings Business were $280 million, which included
$108 million of intra-segment sales. During 2008, Delphi recognized a charge of $30 million, included in cost of sales, related to the
assets held for sale of the Bearings Business. The sale occurred on April 30, 2008, and Delphi received net proceeds from this sale of
approximately $15 million.

Brake Hose Business Sale — On September 28, 2007, Delphi closed on the sale of substantially all of the assets exclusively used in the
brake hose product line produced at one of Delphi’s manufacturing sites located in Dayton, Ohio (the “Brake Hose Business™). The sales
price for the Brake Hose Business was $10 million and the sale resulted in a gain of $2 million, which was recorded as a reduction to cost
of sales in 2007. The Brake Hose Business revenues were $33 million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2007.
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North American Brake Product Asset Sale — On September 17, 2007, Delphi and TRW Integrated Chassis Systems, LLC signed an
Asset Purchase Agreement for the sale of certain assets for Delphi’s North American brake components machining and assembly assets
(“North American Brake Components”) primarily located at its Saginaw, Michigan; Spring Hill, Tennessee; Oshawa, Ontario, Canada;
and Saltillo, Mexico facilities. The 2007 annual revenues for North American Brake Components were $568 million. The sale occurred
in the first quarter of 2008 and resulted in a gain of $5 million, which was recorded as a reduction to cost of sales. Additionally, Delphi
received proceeds from this sale of approximately $40 million.

Mexico Brake Plant Business — On July 19, 2007, Delphi received approval from the Court to proceed with the sale of certain assets
used in the brake and chassis modules product lines manufactured in a plant located in Saltillo, Mexico (the “Mexico Brake Plant
Business”) for $15 million. The sale of the Mexico Brake Plant Business closed on October 1, 2007 and resulted in a gain of $4 million,
which was recorded as a reduction to cost of sales in 2007.

Powertrain Systems Segment

Global Exhaust Business Sale — On June 27, 2008, the Debtors announced their intention to sell Delphi’s global exhaust business
relating to the design and manufacture of the exhaust system front exhaust module including catalytic converters and exhaust manifolds
(the “Exhaust Business”). On December 17, 2008 Delphi received approval from the Court for the sale of assets related to the Exhaust
Business to Bienes Turgon S.A. de C.V. for $17 million (subject to adjustments). The Exhaust Business revenues for 2008 were
approximately $317 million. The sale is expected to close during the first half of 2009 and Delphi recognized a charge of $14 million in
cost of sales during the fourth quarter of 2008 related to the assets held for sale of the Exhaust Business. Although Delphi intends to
divest its Exhaust Business, the Company intends to continue to provide full engine management systems, including air and fuel
management, and combustion and valve-train technology.

Catalyst Product Line Sale — On September 28, 2007, Delphi closed on the sale of its original equipment and aftermarket catalyst
business (the “Catalyst Business”) to Umicore for approximately $67 million which included certain post-closing working capital
adjustments. Delphi recorded the loss of $30 million on the sale of the Catalyst Business in cost of sales in the third quarter of 2007. The
Catalyst Business revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 were $249 million. During 2008, Delphi and Umicore agreed
on final working capital adjustments and Delphi received a payment of $9 million, of which $6 million offset a receivable recognized
during 2007 and $3 million was recorded as a reduction to cost of sales.

Battery Product Line Sale — In 2005, Delphi sold its battery product line, with the exception of two U.S. operations, to Johnson
Control, Inc. (“JCI”). In 2006, Delphi sold certain assets related to one of the remaining facilities to JCI, and in 2007, Delphi ceased
production at the remaining U.S. battery manufacturing facility, and closed the facility. In 2006, Delphi received approximately $10
million as agreed upon in the 2005 agreement between Delphi and GM, the principal battery customer, which was executed in connection
with the sale of Delphi’s battery business. In accordance with the 2005 agreement, upon completion of the transition of the supply of
battery products to JCI, Delphi received a $6 million payment in 2007, which was recorded as a reduction to cost of sales.

Electronics and Safety Segment

Acquisition of Joint Venture — In 2008, Delphi made an additional investment in a consolidated South American majority-owned
subsidiary for approximately $35 million in cash and short term notes. As a result, the ownership interest is now 100 percent.

Held-For-Sale Loss — In 2008, Delphi made the decision to divest a certain manufacturing business in Germany. Based on an
estimate of anticipated proceeds, Delphi recognized a charge of $13 million, included in cost of sales, related to the assets held for sale.

The divestiture is expected to occur during 2009.

MobileAria Asset Sale - In 2006, Delphi sold certain of its assets in MobileAria, a consolidated entity, which resulted in a gain of $7
million which has been recognized as a reduction of cost of sales in 2006.

Thermal Systems Segment

SDAAC Additional Investment- In 2006, Delphi made an additional investment in Shanghai Delphi Automotive Air Conditioning Co.
(“SDAAC”) for approximately $14 million, which increased its equity ownership interest in SDAAC from 34 percent to 50 percent.
SDAAC’s annual revenues for 2005 were approximately $133 million. In the third quarter of 2006 Delphi obtained a controlling
management interest in SDAAC and began consolidating the entity. Prior to obtaining a controlling management interest, the entity was
accounted for using the equity method.
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7. EMPLOYEE TERMINATION BENEFITS AND OTHER EXIT COSTS

Delphi continually evaluates alternatives to align its business with the changing needs of its customers and to lower the operating
costs of the Company. Delphi’s employee termination benefit and other exit costs are undertaken as necessary to execute management’s
strategy, streamline operations, take advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions. These
activities generally fall in one of two categories:

(1) Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities and other exit or disposal activities, as it relates to
executing the Company’s strategy in the normal course of business.
(2) Transformation plan activities, which support the Company’s overall transformation initiatives announced in 2006, including

selling or winding down non-core product lines, transforming its salaried workforce to reduce general and administrative
expenses, and modifying labor agreements with its principal unions in the U.S.

The following table summarizes the employee termination benefit and other exit cost charges recorded for the years ended December
31,2008, 2007 and 2006 by operating segment:

Segment 2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Electronics and Safety $ 147 $ 36 $ 18
POWETTIAIn SYSTEMS ..ouvieeiiiieiieiiieiesieeie st eie st e st ste e sre e beeeae s 63 55 58
Electrical/Electronic Architecture............cccccoevivineniciiiinininicnieeenn 78 132 82
Thermal Systems 24 48 73
Automotive Holdings Group ........cccoeeeeeriereeiieninieniereeieeeeeee e, 88 239 27
Corporate and Other .........cccocueviriieiieiienieeeeeee e 14 30 11
Continuing OPErations ..........ceeeerverreeruereriereeeenseseesseseessesseenes 414 540 269
Discontinued Operations 58 132 30
Total...ooeieeeircireenne $ 472 $ 672 299
Cost of sales 378 493 253
Selling, general and administrative expenses ...................c.c........ 36 47 16
Discontinued Operations ................ccccceuceioeeceeceenesiaeseeeneanen 58 132 30

The table below summarizes the activity in the employee termination benefits and exit costs liability for the year ended
December 31, 2007 and 2008:

Employee
Termination Other Exit
Benefits Liability  Costs Liability Total
(in millions)

Accrual balance at December 31, 2006.........c..ccoooveveeieveieeeieceeeeeannnn $ 163 $ 3 $ 166
Provision for estimated expenses incurred during the period...... 506 166 672
Payments made during the year ............cccoceveneneincienceenn (395) (65) (460)
Oher ..o — (79) (79)

Accrual balance at December 31, 2007 $ 274 $ 25 $ 299
Provision for estimated expenses incurred during the period...... 346 126 472
Payments made during the year ...........ccocvevvevircienieienecieeneen (415) (106) (521)

Accrual balance at December 31, 2008........cccccvviiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiieeeeens $ 205 $ 45 $ 250

Approximately $213 million and $276 million of the employee termination benefits and other exit costs accrual balance as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, is included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Approximately $13 million and $23 million of the employee termination benefits and other exit costs accrual balance as of December 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively, is included in other long-term liabilities. Approximately $24 million of the employee termination benefits
and other exit costs accrual balance as of December 31, 2008 is included in liabilities held for sale.

Delphi has initiated several programs to streamline operations and lower costs. The following are details of significant charges during
2008.

. Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities. As part of Delphi’s ongoing efforts to lower costs and
operate efficiently, Delphi’s Electronics and Safety and the Automotive Holdings Group segments plan to transfer core products
manufactured at a shared location in Portugal to a lower cost market and exit non-core products from that facility in 2009, and
recognized employee termination benefits of $51 million during 2008. Additionally, the Electronics and Safety,
Electrical/Electronic Architecture, Thermal Systems and Automotive Holdings Group segments executed initiatives to realign
manufacturing operations within North America to lower cost markets, and incurred approximately $118 million of employee
termination benefits and other related exit costs during 2008. In addition, the Electronics and Safety segment is exiting
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production of a non-profitable product line and recorded $22 million of contract termination costs. European operations in the
Electronics and Safety and Electrical/Electronic Architecture segments incurred $12 million of employee termination benefits
and other exit costs in conjunction with headcount reductions and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and
engineering process. Delphi’s Powertrain Systems segment transferred manual operations to lower cost markets in eastern
Europe and Asia Pacific during 2008 and incurred employee termination benefits and other exit costs of $10 million.

Transformation plan activities. As part of an initiative to sell or wind down non-core product lines, Delphi incurred employee
termination benefits and other exit costs of $50 million related to the closure of a manufacturing facility in Athens, Alabama
during 2008, which related to the Steering Business and was recorded in discontinued operations. As part of an effort to
transform its salaried workforce and reduce general and administrative expenses, Delphi identified certain salaried employees in
North America during 2008 for involuntary separation and incurred $160 million in related employee termination benefits
included in continuing operations, and incurred $2 million in discontinued operations.

The following are details of significant charges during 2007.

Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities. As part of Delphi’s ongoing efforts to lower costs and
operate efficiently, Delphi’s Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment transferred manufacturing operations from Germany,
Portugal and Spain to lower cost markets in Eastern Europe and Asia Pacific during 2007. As a result, the Electrical/Electronic
Architecture segment significantly reduced the number of employees at these locations, and announced involuntary employee
separation packages for approximately $66 million. Additionally, the Electrical/Electronic Architecture and Thermal Systems
segments executed initiatives to realign manufacturing operations within North America to lower cost markets, and incurred
approximately $35 million of employee termination benefits and other related exit costs.

Transformation plan activities. As part of an initiative to sell or wind down non-core product lines, Delphi incurred employee
termination benefits and other exit costs of $268 million related to the closure of a manufacturing facility in Cadiz, Spain, of
which $161 million related to the Automotive Holdings Group segment and $107 million, which related to the Steering Business,
was recorded in loss from discontinued operations. Refer to Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for more
information. As a part of an effort to transform its salaried workforce and reduce general and administrative expenses, Delphi
identified certain salaried employees, primarily in North America, during 2007 for involuntary separation, and incurred $63
million in related employee termination benefits in the Electronics and Safety, Powertrain Systems, Electrical/Electronic
Architecture, Thermal Systems, and Automotive Holdings Group segments. Additionally, Delphi is implementing a plan for
consolidation and outsourcing of certain administrative functions, including financial services and information technology.
During 2007, Delphi incurred $19 million related to the outsourcing plan in the Corporate and Other segment. Finally, as part of
Delphi’s initiative to modify its labor agreements, Delphi signed agreements with the UAW and all of its other principal U.S.
labor unions during 2007. The new agreements offered certain eligible Delphi employees severance payments and supplemental
unemployment benefits, among other options. Delphi incurred $56 million of employee termination benefits related to these
agreements, primarily in the Powertrain Systems, Electronics and Safety, Thermal Systems and Automotive Holdings Group
segments. Refer to Note 16. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs.

The following are details of significant charges during 2006:

Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities. During 2006, Delphi’s Thermal Systems segment
transferred certain operations in France to lower cost markets within Eastern Europe, and incurred related employee termination
benefit and other exit costs of approximately $65 million. Delphi’s Powertrain Systems segment transferred operations from
France and various other high cost markets within Europe to lower cost markets within Eastern Europe and Asia Pacific, and
incurred employee termination benefit and other exit costs of approximately $50 million related to these activities. Additionally,
Delphi’s Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment transferred operations from Spain and Germany to lower cost markets in
Europe, and also realigned operations within North America. The Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment incurred
approximately $49 million in employee termination benefits and other exit costs in these realignment and exit activities.

Transformation plan activities. Delphi incurred employee termination benefits and other exit costs of $15 million related to

involuntary separation of salaried employees, primarily in North America, in its Electronics and Safety, Powertrain Systems,
Electrical/Electronic Architecture, and Automotive Holdings Group segments.
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8. INCOME TAXES

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, minority interest and equity income for U.S. and non-U.S. operations
and the components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
U.S. INCOME (10SS) .vvvevevierieriitiieieeieete ettt te ettt a e e v eae s s e ssereeaeas $4,030 $(3,286) $(5,331)
Non-U.S. (I08S) INCOME ....cc.eeeiruieiieiiriieiieiierie sttt (781) 492 310
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, minority
interest and eqUIty INCOME ........cveviveveviiirieieiereieeeee e $3,249 $(2,794) $(5,021)

The non-U.S. loss of $781 million includes an inter-company loss of $863 million related to an international restructuring transaction.
This transaction involved the transfer of certain European subsidiaries to Delphi’s Luxembourg holding company in exchange for Euro
denominated debt which created an inter-company gain in the U.S. and a corresponding foreign loss. The provision (benefit) for income
taxes is comprised of:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Current income tax expense:

ULS. fEAETal ..ottt $  — $§  — $ —
Non-U.S.....cocevenene 176 166 124
U.S. state and 10cal .........cooeoiriiinininiiiiceee e 4) a7)
TOtal CUITENE ...ttt 175 162 107
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense, net:
ULS. federal....cc.oouiiiiiiiiiie s (10) (649) 2)
NONEULS ettt sttt et e e ae s 5) 8 18
U.S. StAte AN LOCAL ... — (54) —
Total deferred ......c.ooveviieieiicieeceee e (15) (695) 16
Investment tax CrEditS........covuiriererieierieiere et 1) 1) (1)
Less: Income tax benefit related to minority interest..........ccocevervevveriennnns 7 12 8
Total Income tax expense (benefit)..........coceeverireieiieiiineeeceeeene $ 166 $ (522) $ 130

Cash paid or withheld for income taxes, primarily non-U.S., was $141 million, $175 million and $171 million in 2008, 2007 and
20006, respectively.

A reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for income taxes compared with the amounts at the U.S. federal statutory rate was:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Tax at U.S. federal statutory income tax rate............cceceeeveereruerieeenennenss $ 1,137 $  (978) $ (1,757)
U.S. income taxed at other rates........................ 114 97) (62)
Non U.S. income taxed at other rates...... 281 (172) (209)
Change in valuation allowance................ (1,386) 668 2,154
Other changes in tax reserves.................. — 3) (26)
Withholding taxes........cccceeveeverervennenenn 24 30 21
Other adjustments .........ccoceeveevvereevenienenn (4) 30 9

Total income tax provision (benefit)..........ccoceverierereenieneeiieneneenne. $ 166 $  (522) $ 130

Included in loss from discontinued operations are income tax provisions of $11 million, $8 million and $6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Deferred income taxes and related valuation allowances

Delphi accounts for income taxes and the related accounts under the liability method. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities for
2008 and 2007 reflect the impact of temporary differences between amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the bases of such assets and liabilities as measured by tax laws. Significant components of Delphi’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are
as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007
Deferred tax assets (in millions)
Other postretirement benefits............cccoeeveniiniiiicincinicces $ 478 $ 3,630
Pension benefits ........cocoveverieiiiiiienree e 2,150 1,043
R&D capitaliZation .........c.ccovevieieiiiiiniinenieieeeee s 1,562 1,864
Liabilities subject t0 COMPIOMUSE ..........coerveruereriruirieneriereieenieneenaens 1,847 314
Net operating loss carryforwards 847 782
Foreign tax creditS........oooivveirieiiiniciiieiiceeceseceeeeeeeeee e 664 205
DEPreCiation.......cuivieuiieiiieieiirieieeee s 369 524
General business Credits..........eoveveererireneieirercseseeeee e 461 435
Other employee benefits ..........ccoecevveiviiciniiiiiccecees 218 248
Other ULS ..o 857 854
Other NON-ULS. ..ot 391 370
Total gross deferred taX assets ..........cccecevverenerieirieneneneeeneneenne 9,844 10,269
Less: valuation allowancCes...........cc.cooovveeeeveeeeiieeeeeeeeeeeee e (9,144) (9,744)
Total deferred tax aSSELS.......ccouevevvvieeeeieeeeeeeeeee e $ 700 $ 525
Deferred tax liabilities
DEPreCiation.......cuivveuiiiiiieieiirieiieeeeee s $ 219 $ 247
Tax on unremitted Profits.........cccoceviveriirieieininerenereeec e 23 46
Other U.LS .ot 262 73
Other NON-ULS. ..ot 51 74
Total gross deferred tax liabilities............ccoovveineeincinnciieinee 555 440
Net deferred tax assets........cccecvvererereirireneneieceeneeenee $ 145 $ 85

Net current and non-current deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the consolidated balance sheet as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)

CUITENE @SSELS ..uuvvviieiiie et e e eeeteie e e e e et e e e e e e eaaeeeeeeseeaaaeeeeseeesnnanes $ 926 $ 58
Current HaDIIITIES ....cooiiveieieiieie ettt 9) (16)
LoNg term ASSELS ....eervieniiiiiiiiiericeieente ettt 85 43
Long term Labilities .......ccceeverieiiinieieiieieeeeeeecee e (27) —

Total deferred tax @SSEL ........ocovvvviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e $ 145 $ 85

Valuation allowance

Realization of the net deferred tax assets is dependent on factors including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences
and adequate future taxable income, exclusive of reversing deductible temporary differences and tax loss or credit carryforwards.
Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets when, based on all available evidence, it is considered more likely than not
that some portion or all of the recorded deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods. Delphi evaluates the potential realization
of deferred tax assets on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis. Due to Delphi’s recent history of losses, the Company has determined that a
full valuation allowance for its net deferred tax assets continues to be appropriate in the following significant tax jurisdictions: U.S.,
France, Luxembourg, Romania and Spain. Delphi has not recognized the tax benefit on current operating losses generated in these
countries in the amount of $139 million and $172 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

During 2008, due to continued losses in Austria, Hungary, Portugal and Germany, Delphi concluded it was no longer more likely than
not that the deferred tax assets in these jurisdictions will be realized. The deferred tax assets impacted by these changes in circumstances
were approximately $14 million. Due to operational changes, Delphi recorded a reversal of the valuation allowance of $8 million related
to its Belgian operations, resulting in a net charge to the provision for income taxes of $6 million for 2008.

The net deferred tax assets of $145 million are primarily comprised of amounts from the U.K., Poland, Mexico, China and Brazil. A
significant decrease in the U.S. deferred tax asset for other postretirement benefits (“OPEB”) was a result of the assumption by GM of the
hourly OPEB obligation. Additionally, as part of the agreement to assume Delphi’s hourly OPEB obligation and certain special attrition
programs, GM has agreed to accept a general unsecured claim of $2.5 billion, which has resulted in a significant increase in the U.S.
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deferred tax asset for liabilities subject to comprise. A full valuation allowance has been recorded for all U.S. deferred tax assets,
including those for OPEB and liabilities subject to compromise.

Tax return filing determinations and elections

In connection with filing its 2008 U.S. federal income tax return, Delphi will make certain determinations and elections, based upon
the best information available at the extended U.S. federal income tax return due date of September 15, 2009, including potential
information about emergence from Chapter 11 proceedings. For example, Delphi may elect to capitalize certain 2008 U.S. research and
development (“R&D”) expenditures in order to minimize U.S.-source tax losses that offset foreign-source income, thereby facilitating the
utilization of available foreign tax credits in the U.S. federal income tax return. Such an election would have the effect of reducing the
deferred tax assets for net operating losses (“NOL’s”) and foreign tax credit carryforwards and increasing the deferred tax asset for
capitalized R&D by an equivalent amount. Such elections or determinations will not, however, have a material effect on the net deferred
tax assets, since a full valuation allowance has been recorded for all U.S. deferred tax assets.

Net operating loss carryforwards

As of December 31, 2008, Delphi has recorded deferred tax assets of approximately $847 million for NOL carryforwards, comprised
of $483 million for U.S. federal and state NOL’s and $364 million for non-U.S. NOL’s, with recorded valuation allowances of $483
million and $355 million, respectively. These NOL’s are available to offset future taxable income and realization is dependent on
generating sufficient taxable income prior to expiration of the loss carryforwards. The non-U.S. NOL’s relate primarily to France, Spain,
Luxembourg and Germany. The NOL carryforwards have expiration dates ranging from one year to an indefinite period.

Capitalized Research & Development Expenditures

Delphi has previously elected to capitalize certain R&D expenditures for U.S. tax purposes. The effect of this capitalization is to
substantially reduce the deferred tax asset with respect to U.S. NOL carryforwards and to create a deferred tax asset for capitalized R&D
expenditures. These deferred tax assets were $1,562 million and $1,864 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. A full
valuation allowance has been recorded for these deferred tax assets. The capitalized R&D expenditures will be amortized and deducted
over a period of ten years, beginning in the year of capitalization.

Tax credit carryforwards

Delphi received dividend distributions and deemed dividend distributions of accumulated earnings from certain foreign subsidiaries in
2008 and 2007. These distributions generated significant foreign tax credits and resulted in a $664 million and $205 million foreign tax
credit carryforward at December 31, 2008 and 2007 that can be used to offset future U.S. tax on foreign source income. Additionally,
Delphi’s deferred tax assets include $461 million and $435 million of general business credits (primarily R&D credits) carryforwards at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. A full valuation allowance has been recorded for these foreign tax credit and general business
credit carryforwards. These tax credit carryforwards expire in 2019 through 2028.

Other comprehensive income taxes

Generally, the amount of tax expense or benefit allocated to continuing operations is determined without regard to the tax effects of
other categories of income or loss, such as OCI. However, an exception to the general rule is provided when there is a pre-tax loss from
continuing operations and pre-tax income from other categories in the current year. In such instances, income from other categories must
offset the current loss from operations, the tax benefit of such offset being reflected in continuing operations even when a valuation
allowance has been established against the deferred tax assets. In instances where a valuation allowance is established against current year
operating losses, income from other sources, including other comprehensive income, is considered when determining whether sufficient
future taxable income exists to realize the deferred tax assets. The intraperiod tax allocation rules related to items charged directly to OCI
can result in disproportionate tax effects that remain in OCI until certain events occur.

As of December 31, 2007, Delphi had disproportionate tax effects in OCI related to the hourly pension and OPEB obligations of a
$533 million tax benefit and a $311 million tax expense, respectively. During 2008, Delphi accounted for its hourly pension and OPEB
transfer to GM as settlement of liabilities. As a result, Delphi eliminated the disproportionate tax effect in OCI related to the hourly
pension and OPEB obligations on a pro rata basis to the amount of the obligation that was settled. Accordingly, Delphi recorded a net
$9 million tax benefit in continuing operations for 2008, comprised of a $320 million tax benefit and $311 million tax expense related to
the hourly pension and OPEB obligation settlement, respectively.

In 2007, U.S. pre-tax other comprehensive income, primarily attributable to employee benefits, offset approximately $1.9 billion of

U.S. pre-tax operating losses, reducing the Company’s current year valuation allowance and resulting in a benefit of $703 million
allocated to the current year loss from continuing operations.
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Cumulative undistributed foreign earnings

Provisions are made for estimated U.S. and non-U.S. income taxes, less available tax credits and deductions, which may be incurred
on the remittance of Delphi’s share of subsidiaries’ undistributed cumulative earnings that are not deemed to be indefinitely reinvested. In
general, it is the practice and intention of Delphi to reinvest the earnings of its foreign subsidiaries in those operations. During 2008
Delphi had dividend distributions and deemed dividends related to certain financing and European restructuring transactions that result in
a significant portion of the cumulative undistributed foreign earnings being included in the U.S. income tax provision. U.S. income taxes
and non-U.S. withholding taxes were not provided on approximately $184 million and $1.4 billion of cumulative undistributed earnings as
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, as such amounts are deemed to be indefinitely reinvested. It is not practicable to calculate
the unrecognized tax provision on these earnings to the extent not indefinitely reinvested as the actual tax liability, if any, is dependent on
circumstances existing when the remittance occurs. Delphi does intend to remit dividends from certain lower-tier foreign subsidiaries.

In addition, Delphi currently experiences tax holidays in various non-U.S. jurisdictions with expiration dates from 2009 through
indefinite. The income tax benefits attributable to these tax holidays are approximately $10 million ($0.02 per share) for 2008,
approximately $21 million ($0.04 per share) for 2007 and $17 million ($0.03 per share) for 2006.

Uncertain tax positions

Delphi recognizes tax benefits only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by tax
authorities. The amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. Unrecognized tax benefits are tax benefits claimed in our tax returns that do not meet these recognition and

measurement standards.

We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. At adoption, Delphi had recorded liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits of $62 million
($92 million if interest and penalties were included) of which $71 million, if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate.

A reconciliation of the gross change in the unrecognized tax benefits balance, excluding interest and penalties is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
Balance at January 1 ........cccoovovveieiiiiiiiicieeeceeee e $ 63 $ 62
Additions related tO CUITENT YEAT.......c.ceoueruieiiriieierieeiesieeee e 17 14
Additions related tO Prior YEAT ........cccvevveeveriereieieeeeieseeeieereeaeeeeeesennes 2 5
Reductions related to Prior Year.........coceeverereerieneenienieeienieseeieseeenes (D) 8)
Reductions due to expirations of statute of limitations............c.cc....... 2) 3)
SettlementS-Cash .........cccuieiieeiiieeieceeeee e — (7)
Balance at December 31 ........cocooiviiiiiiininencieeeeee e $ 79 $ 63

A portion of our unrecognized tax benefits would, if recognized, reduce our effective tax rate. The remaining unrecognized tax benefits
relate to tax positions for which only the timing of the benefit is uncertain. Recognition of these tax benefits would reduce our effective
tax rate only through a reduction of accrued interest and penalties. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the amounts of unrecognized tax
benefit that would reduce our effective tax rate were $53 million and $60 million, respectively.

Total amounts of interest and penalties recognized

Delphi recognizes interest and penalties as part of income tax expense. Total accrued liabilities for interest and penalties were $22
million and $26 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Total interest and penalties recognized as part of income tax
expense (benefit) were $(4) million for 2008 and $(4) million for 2007

Reasonably possible that total amount of unrecognized tax benefits could significantly increase or decrease within 12 months
after the reporting date

Delphi files tax returns in multiple jurisdictions and is subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world. Foreign
taxing jurisdictions significant to Delphi include Brazil, China, France, Germany, Mexico, Poland and the U.K. It is reasonably possible
that audit settlements, the conclusion of current examinations or the expiration of the statute of limitations in several jurisdictions could
impact the company’s unrecognized tax benefits. However, Delphi does not expect the overall change in unrecognized tax benefits over
the next twelve months to be significant.
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Description of tax years that remain subject to examination by major jurisdiction

In the U.S., federal income tax returns for years prior to 2008 have been effectively settled. It is anticipated that claims pending
from prepetition periods will be settled upon emergence. In addition, open tax years related to various states remain subject to
examination, but are not considered to be material.

Foreign taxing jurisdictions significant to Delphi include Brazil, China, France, Germany, Mexico, Poland, and the U.K. Open tax
years related to these foreign taxing jurisdictions remain subject to examination and could result in additional tax liabilities. In general,
Delphi affiliates are no longer subject to income tax examinations by foreign tax authorities for years before 2002.

9. PROPERTY, NET

Property, net consisted of:

Estimated Useful December 31,
Lives (Years) 2008 2007
(in millions)
Land ..o e — $ 115 $ 123
Land and leasehold improvements.............ccecverveeeerueniennnnnnn. 3-31 190 217
BUIldings. . .coveveeeiieieeieiee e 29-40 1,643 1,818
Machinery, equipment, and tooling.............cccceeeeveerereeeenne. 3-27 4,581 6,180
Furniture and office equipment...........ccccceevecverreneeeenienneennnn 3-15 710 726
CONStruction iN PrOGIESS .....eeverveereerreeeereerieeeenueeeereeseensennes — 265 236
TOtal e 7,504 9,300
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (4.107) (5.437)
Total Property, NEt........ceeveveeeriereieieieeereeseieeeeereesennens $§ 3397 $ 3.863

Delphi evaluates the recoverability of certain long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Estimates of future cash flows used to test the recoverability of long-lived assets include separately
identifiable undiscounted cash flows expected to arise from the use and eventual disposition of the assets. Where estimated future cash
flows are less than the carrying value of the assets, impairment losses are recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value of the assets. The fair value of the assets was determined based on the “held for use” classification. Delphi may
incur significant impairment charges or losses on divestitures upon these assets being classified as “held for sale.” The following table
summarizes the impairment charges related to long-lived assets held for use for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:

Segment 2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Electronics and Safety ..........ccocooieiriiiieiieiiieieeeee e $ 15 $ 1 $ 4
Powertrain Systems ............cccueveee.. — 13 12
Electrical/Electronic Architecture.... 2 6 1
Thermal Systems ..........cccoevvevennnee. 10 — 11
Automotive Holdings Group ........c.ccceeevenerieineneneieeeeneeceeneens 10 78 144
Continuing OPETALIONS ......evverurerueeiertiriienieeiienieeieetesteeee s eeeseeeaees 37 98 172
Discontinued operations — 193 43
TOAL .ttt $ 37 291 $ 215

During 2008, Delphi’s Electronics and Safety segment recorded $10 million of long-lived asset and tooling impairment charges related
to the exit of a non-profitable product line. Additionally, the Thermal Systems segment recorded $6 million related to the planned exit of
a manufacturing facility in Suzhou, China in 2009.

Delphi’s Bearings Business was a non-core product line in the Automotive Holdings Group segment that Delphi sold in 2008. During
2007, Delphi had reassessed its estimated net proceeds from the ultimate sale and disposition of the Bearings Business, indicating an
indicator of impairment. Delphi determined that the carrying value of the Bearings Business exceeded the undiscounted estimated future
cash flows and consequently recognized impairment charges of $54 million in 2007. Also during 2007, Delphi recognized $11 million of
long-lived asset impairment related to a plant in Delphi’s Automotive Holdings Group segment. This impairment was caused by a
deterioration in the expected net proceeds resulting from the use and ultimate sale of these assets. In addition, Delphi recognized $7
million of long-lived asset impairment for the Catalyst Business in the Powertrain Systems segment in 2007, which was caused by a

deterioration in the estimated future cash flows through the expected sale date. The Catalyst Business was sold during the third quarter of
2007, refer to Note 6. Acquisitions and Divestitures.

During 2006, Delphi experienced deteriorated financial performance including reduced profitability at certain sites and product lines
resulting from flattening revenue together with higher commodity cost. These factors resulted in substantial losses and an unfavorable
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outlook, which were indicators of potential impairment. Delphi tested the recoverability of its long-lived assets using projected future
undiscounted cash flows based on internal budgets, recent and forecasted sales data, independent automotive production volume estimates
and customer commitments. Based primarily on Delphi’s review of fair value appraisals, Delphi recorded long-lived asset impairment
charges of $215 million for 2006. Refer to Note 5. Discontinued Operations for a discussion of the long-lived asset impairment charges
recorded in loss from discontinued operations.

10. GOODWILL

The changes in carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2008 2007

(in millions)
Balance at January 1, .......coccooeiiiiineeeeceeeee $ 397 $§ 378
ACQUISTHIONS ..ttt 19 —
IMPAIMENL....iiitiiiiirieiecie ettt e e re e (325) —
Currency translation........... 29) 19

Balance at December 31, $ 62(a) $ 397 (b)

(a) $62 million in Corporate and Other
(b) $165 million in Electrical/Electronic Architecture, $155 million in Electronics and Safety and $77 million in Corporate and
Other

Delphi reviews the recoverability of goodwill annually on May 31 and at any other time when business conditions indicate a potential
change in recoverability. In conjunction with Delphi’s annual recoverability tests, the deterioration of Delphi’s financial performance,
combined with an unfavorable outlook, were indicators for potential impairment. More specifically, during the second and fourth quarters
of 2008, Delphi experienced deteriorated financial performance primarily due to significant reductions in global customer production
volumes, particularly related to GM North America, continuing unfavorable pricing pressures and increasing commodity prices. This
caused previously unanticipated projected revenue and operating income declines. As a result of these changes, long-term projections
showed significant declines in discounted future operating cash flows. Fair value was also adversely affected by declining industry
market valuation metrics. These revised cash flows and declining market conditions caused the implied fair values of the
Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment and the Electronics and Safety segment to be less than their respective book values.
Accordingly, in 2008 the Company recorded goodwill impairment charges related to the Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment and
the Electronics and Safety segment, totaling $168 million and $157 million, respectively.

Delphi performed its goodwill impairment test by comparing the carrying value of each of its reporting units to the fair value of the
reporting unit. In determining fair value of reporting units, Delphi utilized a number of methodologies, including discounted cash flow
analysis and review of fair value appraisals. Where the carrying value exceeded the fair value for a particular reporting unit, goodwill
impairment charges were recognized. The goodwill impairment charges recognized were determined by stating all other assets and
liabilities of a reporting unit at their fair values with the remaining fair value of the reporting unit attributed to goodwill. The resulting
goodwill impairment charges are the excess of the recorded goodwill balance over the implied fair value of goodwill for the reporting
unit. Delphi’s reporting units are the global businesses focused on product families. The fair value of the reporting units was negatively
impacted by the continued deterioration of global business conditions as previously described.

11. INVENTORIES, NET
A summary of inventories, net is shown below:

December 31,
2008 2007

(in millions)
Productive material ...........c.coveveveueveeninirieieieeeeeeee e $ 663 $ 926
Work-in-process and SUPPlES ........ccceevvererierenienenieieneeienene 253 386
Finished g00dS .......ccveviieieiiiieicceeeeeeee e 369 496
TOtal s $ 1,285 $ 1,808

37



12. LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31,
2008 2007

(in millions)

Payroll related obligations............cccceeerverierieieieieeeeeecee e $ 207 $ 238
Employee benefits, including current pension obligations........... 136 185
Accrued INCOME taXES ........coeveueeuiriirerieieieeeeee e 72 54
Taxes other than income............... 199 195
Warranty obligations (Note 13).......ccceeveenerienineenenieiennen. 128 244
U.S. employee workforce transition programs (Note 16)............. 115 234
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs (Note 7)...... 213 276
Interest on prepetition claims (NOte 1)......coceevereeienirieeniinieies 415 411
Working capital backstop — Steering Business (Note 2) .............. 210 —
Derivative financial instruments (Note 23) 132 24
Other ...oviiciicicccc e 344 420

TOAL ..o $2,171 $2.281

Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31,
2008 2007

(in millions)
Workers COmMPenSation.............c.ocveveeeeveeeereereerirereeeereeseseseeereaees $ 325 $ 328
Environmental (Note 18) .......cccveviierieniieiieieeie e
U.S. employee workforce transition programs (Note 16).....
Extended disability benefits.........ccoevveeieriecienienieieieeienne 60 72

Warranty obligations (Note 13).... 236 315
Payroll-related obligations............ 35 34
Accrued inCOME taXes ....cc.evveeverveeeenveneennenne 71 55
Derivative financial instruments (Note 23) ... 36 —
OtheT ..ottt 105 121

TOtAl ... $§ 973 $1,185

13. WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS

Delphi recognizes expected warranty costs for products sold principally at the time of sale of the product based on Delphi’s estimate
of the amount that will eventually be required to settle such obligations. These accruals are based on factors such as past experience,
production changes, industry developments and various other considerations. Delphi’s estimates are adjusted from time to time based on
facts and circumstances that impact the status of existing claims.

The table below summarizes the activity in the product warranty liability for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
(in millions)
Accrual balance at beginning of YEar.............ccocveveiiveriiiiiieieieieeeeee e $ 559 $ 383
Provision for estimated warranties incurred during the period... 66 176
Provision for changes in estimate for preexisting warranties..... 34 115
GM warranty forgiveness..........couevererierirenenenieneeeeeeeneees (112) —
Settlements made during the year (in cash or in kind) .. (167) (128)
Foreign currency translation and other.......................... (16) 13
Accrual balance at end Of YeaT........ccceevuiiiiiiiriiiirieeeeereee e 364 $ 559

Approximately $128 million and $244 million of the warranty accrual balance as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, is
included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Approximately $236 million and $315 million of the
warranty accrual balance as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, is included in other long-term liabilities.

On September 27, 2007, the Court authorized Delphi to enter into a Warranty, Settlement, and Release Agreement (the “Warranty
Settlement Agreement”) with GM resolving certain warranty matters, including all warranty claims set forth in GM’s amended proof of
claim filed on July 31, 2006 in connection with Delphi’s chapter 11 cases. Delphi elected to defer amounts due under the Warranty
Settlement Agreement until it received payments from GM, on or about the time of its emergence from chapter 11. In conjunction with
overall negotiations regarding potential amendments to the Plan to enable Delphi to emerge from chapter 11 as soon as practicable,
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including discussions regarding support assisting Delphi in remaining compliant with the Global EBITDAR covenants in its existing
debtors-in-possession credit facility, GM agreed, on July 31, 2008 to forgive certain of the cash amounts due under the Warranty
Settlement Agreement, including any applicable interest, and as a result Delphi recorded the extinguishment of this liability as a reduction
of warranty expense in 2008, of which $107 million was included in cost of sales and $5 million was included in discontinued operations.
In 2007, Delphi recorded $83 million, net of an $8 million recovery, of additional warranty expense for a range of specific GM warranty
claims, primarily in the Electronics and Safety (related to the instrument clusters product line which was transferred to the Electronics and
Safety segment effective December 2007) and Powertrain Systems segments. Additionally, Delphi recorded an increase to warranty
reserves for specific warranty claims related to the Powertrain Systems segment during 2007. Refer to Note 18. Commitments and
Contingencies, Ordinary Business Litigation for additional disclosure regarding warranty matters.

14. LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO COMPROMISE

As a result of the Chapter 11 Filings, the payment of prepetition indebtedness is subject to compromise or other treatment under the
Debtors’ plan of reorganization. Generally, actions to enforce or otherwise effect payment of prepetition liabilities are stayed. Refer to
Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy. Although prepetition claims are generally stayed, the Court granted final
approval of the Debtors’ “first day” motions generally designed to stabilize the Debtors’ operations and covering, among other things,
human capital obligations, supplier relations, customer relations, business operations, tax matters, cash management, utilities, case
management, and retention of professionals. The following data regarding the number and amount of claims and proof of claims is
unaudited.

The Debtors have been paying and intend to continue to pay undisputed postpetition claims in the ordinary course of business. In
addition, pursuant to the Plan, the Debtors assumed most of their executory contracts and unexpired leases with respect to the Debtors’
operations, and rejected certain of them, with the approval of the Court. As of December 31, 2008, the Debtors’ have received
approximately 16,800 proofs of claim, a portion of which assert, in part or in whole, unliquidated claims. In addition, the Debtors have
compared proofs of claim they have received to liabilities they have already scheduled and determined that there are certain scheduled
liabilities for which no proof of claim was filed. In the aggregate, total proofs of claim and scheduled liabilities assert approximately $34
billion in liquidated amounts, including approximately $900 million in intercompany claims, and additional unliquidated amounts. As is
typical in reorganization cases, differences between claim amounts listed by the Debtors in their Schedules of Assets and Liabilities (as
amended) and claims filed by creditors will be investigated and resolved in connection with the claims reconciliation process or, if
necessary, the Court will make the final determination as to the amount, nature, and validity of claims. Many of these claims have been
found to be duplicative, based on contingencies that have not occurred, or are otherwise overstated, and therefore have been determined to
be invalid. As a result, the aggregate amount of claims filed with the Court exceeds the amount that has been to date allowed by the
Court. As of December 31, 2008, the Debtors have filed 33 omnibus claims objections that objected to claims on procedural or
substantive grounds. Pursuant to these claims objections, the Debtors have objected to approximately 13,400 proofs of claim which
asserted approximately $10.0 billion in aggregate liquidated amounts plus additional unliquidated amounts. As of December 31, 2008, the
Court has entered orders disallowing and/or claimants have withdrawn approximately 9,900 of those claims, which orders reduced the
amount of asserted claims by approximately $9.8 billion in aggregate liquidated amounts plus additional unliquidated amounts. In
addition, the Court has entered an order modifying approximately 3,910 claims reducing the aggregate amounts asserted on those claims
by $342 million, which amounts are subject to further objection by the Debtors at a later date on any basis. The Debtors anticipate that
additional proofs of claim will be the subject of future objections as such proofs of claim are reconciled. The determination of how these
liabilities are to be settled and treated is set forth in the Plan. In light of the number of creditors of the Debtors, the claims resolution
process may take considerable time to complete. Accordingly, the ultimate number and amount of allowed claims is not determinable at
this time. Classification for purposes of these financial statements of any prepetition liabilities on any basis other than liabilities subject to
compromise is not an admission against interest or a legal conclusion by the Debtors as to the manner of classification, treatment,
allowance, or payment in the Debtors’ chapter 11 cases, including in connection with any plan of reorganization that may be confirmed by
the Court and that may become effective pursuant to an order of the Court. As of January 25, 2008, the total general unsecured claims,
other than funded debt claims, against the Company had been reduced to an amount of approximately $1.45 billion. (Refer to Note 2.
Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for details on the chapter 11 cases).

SOP 90-7 requires prepetition liabilities that are subject to compromise to be reported at the amounts expected to be allowed, even if
they may be settled for lesser amounts. The amounts currently classified as liabilities subject to compromise may be subject to future
adjustments depending on Court actions, further developments with respect to disputed claims, determinations of the secured status of
certain claims, the values of any collateral securing such claims, or other events.
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Liabilities Subject to Compromise consist of the following:

December 31,

2008 2007
(in millions)

Pension ObIIZAtIONS. .........coiviviiiieetieeee ettt ettt ettt ettt et eae e eneaea $ 5,321 $ 3,329
Postretirement obligations other than pensions ............ccceeevvevvieieeieneenieenieeee e 1,201 8,786
Allowed GM general unsecured claim (NOte 2)......ccccvvevrrierieniieiieienieseeie e 2,500 —
Allowed GM administrative claim (NOt€ 2) .....cccvevveerieerieiierienieerieeie e 1,628 —
Allowed ITUE-CWA and USW claims (NOE 2) .....ccuvvverieriieiieienierieeie e seeeee e 129 —
Debt and notes payable..........coueiiirinininiiiieeee e 1,984 1,984
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ...c..eeuieiiiiiiiiiiitietectete ettt 732 744
Junior subordinated notes due 2033 .........cociiiiiiiiee e 391 391
GM claim for U.S. employee workforce transition programs (Note 2)...........cccceeuneev. — 312
Securities & ERISA litigation liability (Note 18).......ccceoieiiriiiiiiiiieee e 351 351
L@ 11 1T ST SRSRSRP 346 300

Total Liabilities Subject t0 COMPIOMISE........ccveevievierierreereerereesieesreereseeesseennas $ 14,583 $ 16,197

The decrease in liabilities subject to compromise as of December 31, 2008 is due to the reductions of postretirement obligations and
the GM claim for the U.S. employee workforce transition programs resulting from the effectiveness of the Amended GSA and the
Amended MRA during 2008. Refer to Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for more information. The remaining
other postretirement benefit obligations are primarily for salaried employees. On February 4, 2009, Delphi filed a motion with the Court
seeking the authority to cease providing health care and life insurance benefits in retirement to salaried employees, retirees, and surviving
spouses (refer to Note 25. Subsequent Events).

15. DEBT

Due to the Chapter 11 Filings (Refer to Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy), prepetition long-term debt of the
Debtors has been reclassified to the caption Liabilities Subject to Compromise (Refer to Note 14. Liabilities Subject to Compromise) on
the consolidated balance sheet. The following is a summary of Long-Term Debt, including current maturities, and unsecured long-term
debt included in Liabilities Subject to Compromise as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December 31,

2008 2007
Subject to Subject to
Compromise Debt Compromise Debt
(in millions)
6.55%, unsecured notes, due 2006............ccooevevveeiveriieiieeeennn, $ 500 (a)(b)(c) $§ — $ 500 (a)(b)(c) § —
6.50%, unsecured notes, due 2009........... 498 (a)(b)(c) — 498 (a)(b)(c) —
6.50%, unsecured notes, due 2013........... 493 (a)(b)(c) — 493 (a)(b)(c) —
7.125%, debentures, due 2029..................... 493 (a)(b)(c) — 493 (a)(b)(c) —
Junior subordinated notes due 2033 (d) 391 (a)(b)(c) — 391 (a)(b)(c) —
Amended and restated DIP facility .............. — 3,620 (b) - —
Refinanced DIP facility .........ccccvevierennne — — — 2,746
Accounts receivable factoring and European securitization

PIOZTAML. ..ottt — 352 — 589
Capital leases and other —(c) 257 —(c) 219
TOtal debt ....c.ovevieieieiiieiiieiiee e $2,375 $4.229 $2,375 3.554
LeSS: CUITENt POItION .......vveveeieierieiieeeeeetce et (4.174) (3.495)
Long-term debt...........cooeveveviiieicieieieeeceeeeeee e, $§ 55 $ 59

(a) Pursuant to the requirements of SOP 90-7 as of the Chapter 11 Filings, deferred financing fees related to prepetition debt are no
longer being amortized and have been included as an adjustment to the net carrying value of the related prepetition debt at December
31,2008 and 2007.

(b) Debt in default.

(c) The Chapter 11 Filings triggered defaults on substantially all prepetition debt and certain lease obligations.

(d) In conjunction with the liquidation of the Delphi Trust I and Delphi Trust IT on November 14, 2006, the interests of Delphi Trust I and
Delphi Trust II in the junior subordinated notes were transferred to the holders of the trust preferred securities issued by the two Trusts.

The stay of proceedings provisions of section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code apply to actions to collect prepetition indebtedness or to
exercise control over the property of the Debtors’ estate in respect of such defaults. The rights of and ultimate payments by the Debtors
under prepetition obligations will be addressed in any plan of reorganization and may be substantially altered. This could result in
unsecured claims being compromised at less, and possibly substantially less, than 100% of their face value.
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Current Capital Structure

Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation Agreement— During the first quarter of 2007, Delphi refinanced its
prepetition and postpetition credit facilities by entering into a Revolving Credit, Term Loan, and Guaranty Agreement (the “Refinanced
DIP Credit Facility”) to borrow up to approximately $4.5 billion from a syndicate of lenders. During the second quarter of 2008, Delphi
received Court approval and the required commitments from its lenders to amend and extend its Refinanced DIP Credit Facility (the
“Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility”), which amendments and extension became effective in May 2008. As a result of the
amendment and restatement, the aggregate size of the facility was reduced from $4.5 billion to $4.35 billion, consisting of a $1.1 billion
first priority revolving credit facility (“Tranche A” or the “Revolving Facility”), a $500 million first priority term loan (the “Tranche B
Term Loan”) and a $2.75 billion second priority term loan (the “Tranche C Term Loan”).

On November 7, 2008, Delphi filed a motion with the Court seeking authority to enter into the Accommodation Agreement allowing
Delphi to retain the proceeds of its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, which otherwise matured on December 31, 2008. On
December 3, 2008, the Court entered an order approving Delphi’s motion and authorizing Delphi to enter into the Accommodation
Agreement following the expiration of the applicable appeal period, assuming resolution of any objections filed in the interim. On
December 12, 2008, Delphi satisfied the closing conditions set forth in the Accommodation Agreement and the Accommodation
Agreement became effective. On January 30, 2009, Delphi reached agreement with its lenders to amend (the “Amendment”) the
Accommodation Agreement. In support of Delphi’s efforts to develop a modified reorganization plan adapted to the current global
economic environment, the lenders agreed to modify certain financial covenants and pay-down requirements contained in the
Accommodation Agreement. In addition, GM agreed to immediately accelerate payment of $50 million in payables to Delphi under the
Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement and to, no later than February 27, 2009, either accelerate payment of an additional
$50 million in payables under such agreement or increase from $300 million to $350 million the amount which it is committed to advance
under the GM Advance Agreement. The Amendment and GM’s agreement to accelerate payments were effective January 30, 2009;
however, both agreements were subject to satisfaction of certain post-closing conditions, including Court approval and in the case of the
Amendment, the payment of fees to the consenting lenders. The Company filed motions with the Court seeking approval of these
agreements and authority to pay the applicable fees. Just prior to the hearing on such motions, the lenders and Delphi agreed to a further
supplemental amendment to the Accommodation Agreement (the “Supplemental Amendment”), to further extend certain milestone dates,
and on February 24, 2009 the Court approved the Amendment, the Supplemental Amendment and the amendment to the Partial
Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement. Refer to Note 25. Subsequent Events for more information.

Termination Date of the Accommodation Agreement

Under the Accommodation Agreement (as amended by the Amendment and the Supplemental Amendment), Delphi may continue
using the proceeds of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and the lenders have agreed, among other things, to forbear from the
exercise of certain default-related remedies, in each case until the earlier to occur of:

° June 30, 2009, but subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions below;

. Delphi’s failure to comply with its covenants under the Accommodation Agreement or the occurrence of certain other events
set forth in the Accommodation Agreement; and

. An event of default under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility (other than the failure to repay the loans under the

facility on the maturity date or comply with certain other repayment provisions).

However, as referenced above, the expiration date of June 30, 2009 for the accommodation period will be shortened to May 5, 2009 if
Delphi has not satisfied the following conditions:

(a) received binding commitments, subject to customary conditions, on or prior to April 2, 2009, for debt and equity
financing sufficient for it to emerge from chapter 11 pursuant to the modified plan of reorganization which was filed with the
Court on October 3, 2008, or any other plan of reorganization that provides the administrative agent and the lenders under
the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility with the same treatment as that set forth in the modified plan of
reorganization; or

(b) (i) has filed on or prior to April 2, 2009, modifications to the modified plan of reorganization or any other plan of
reorganization to which the administrative agent does not submit a notice, within ten business days of such filing,
informing Delphi that either (A) the Required Lenders (as defined in the Accommodation Agreement) or (B) lenders
party to the Accommodation Agreement holding Tranche A, Tranche B Term Loan and Tranche C Term Loan
commitments and exposure representing in excess of 50% of the Tranche A, Tranche B Term Loan and Tranche C Term
Loan commitments and exposure held by all lenders party to the Accommodation Agreement (the “Required Total
Participant Lenders”), affirmatively oppose such modifications or plan of reorganization (a “Notice”), and

(ii) on or prior to May 2, 2009, has obtained entry of the Court’s order approving modifications to the Disclosure
Statement with respect to the modified plan of reorganization, as may have been further modified, or a disclosure
statement with respect to such other plan of reorganization as described above and the approval to re-solicit or solicit
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votes, as the case may be. The administrative agent would submit a Notice if either the Required Lenders or the
Required Total Participant Lenders vote, within ten business days after the filing of the modifications to the modified
plan of reorganization or the new plan of reorganization, to oppose such plan modifications (or any such other filed plan
of reorganization) on the grounds that such plan was not acceptable to them.

There can be no assurance the outside termination date of the Accommodation Agreement will not be shortened from June 30, 2009 to
May 5, 2009 because there can be no assurance that we will meet the conditions of (a) or (b) above.

Requirements of the Accommodation Agreement

Notwithstanding the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is in default of the terms of its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility
and as a result, Delphi is no longer able to make additional draws under the facility after December 12, 2008, (the effective date of the
Accommodation Agreement). However, under the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is required to continue to comply with the
provisions of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility (as amended and modified by the Accommodation Agreement).
Additionally, prior to the effective date of the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi was required to and did the following:

e replace or cash collateralize, at 105% of the undrawn amount thereof, all outstanding letters of credit under the Amended and
Restated DIP Credit Facility that had not been collateralized prior to that date, and

e limit the aggregate principal amounts outstanding under Tranche A borrowings to no more than $377 million.

Prior to the effectiveness of the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi was permitted to and did provide cash collateral, in an aggregate
amount of $200 million, which was pledged to the administrative agent for the benefit of the lenders (“Borrowing Base Cash Collateral”).
Upon Delphi’s request, portions or all of the Borrowing Base Cash Collateral will be transferred back to Delphi provided that Delphi is in
compliance with the borrowing base calculation in the Accommodation Agreement and no event of default has occurred. In addition,
under certain conditions included in the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi increased its pledge of the equity interests in Delphi’s first-
tier foreign subsidiaries from 65% to 100%, which triggered a deemed dividend for tax purposes (no additional cash taxes were incurred).

Terms of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation Agreement
The facilities currently bear interest at the Administrative Agent’s Alternate Base Rate (“ABR”) plus a specified percent, as detailed in
the table below, and the amounts outstanding (in millions) and rates effective as of December 31, 2008 were:

Borrowings as of Rates effective as of
ABR plus December 31, 2008 December 31, 2008

Tranche A.....cccoovvvveeeeeennn. 5.00% $370 9.25%
Tranche B.....ccovoovvvveenen. 5.00% $500 9.25%
Tranche C.......ooovveevveennnns, 6.25% $2,750 10.50%

Tranche A, Tranche B and Tranche C facilities include ABR floor of 4.25%

The Company had $117 million in letters of credit outstanding under the Revolving Facility as of December 31, 2008. The amount
outstanding at any one time under the First Priority Facilities is limited by a borrowing base computation as described in the
Accommodation Agreement. Under the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is required to provide weekly borrowing base calculations to
the bank lending syndicate. Based on the current borrowing base computation in effect at December 31, 2008, as defined in the
Accommodation Agreement, Delphi’s borrowing base was reduced by the maximum deduction of $275 million for unrealized losses
related to Delphi’s hedging portfolio, which as of December 31, 2008 resulted in net losses included in OCI of $194 million pre-tax,
primarily related to copper and Mexican Peso hedges, as further described in Note 23. Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Derivatives
and Hedging Activities to the consolidated financial statements.

The Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility includes affirmative, negative and financial covenants that impose restrictions on
Delphi’s financial and business operations, including Delphi’s ability, among other things, to incur or secure other debt, make
investments, sell assets and pay dividends or repurchase stock. As long as the Facility Availability Amount (as defined in the Amended
and Restated DIP Credit Facility) is equal to or greater than $500 million, compliance with the restrictions on investments, mergers and
disposition of assets does not apply (except with respect to investments in, and dispositions to, direct or indirect domestic subsidiaries of
Delphi that are not guarantors). Delphi’s Facility Availability Amount was less than $500 million at December 31, 2008 as all
commitments were cancelled with the effectiveness of the Accommodation Agreement on December 12, 2008.

The Accommodation Agreement also contains additional covenants, amends certain of the existing covenants in the Amended and
Restated DIP Credit Facility and includes additional events of default under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility. Additional
covenants under the Accommodation Agreement include (i) a prescribed minimum borrower liquidity level, (ii) a requirement to repay
obligations under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility pursuant to an Accommodation Agreement borrowing base covenant
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(approximately $131 million was repaid during January 2009 as a result of the borrowing base calculation), (iii) a requirement to repay
obligations under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility to the extent any specified litigation proceeds are received in cash, (iv) a
prohibition on the repatriation of cash from foreign subsidiaries as cash dividends, cash otherwise distributed in redemption of or in
exchange for equity interests in foreign subsidiaries or through the repayment of notes unless used to repay obligations under the
Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and (v) a requirement to repay $60 million in obligations under the Amended and Restated DIP
Credit Facility in accordance with the schedule set forth in the Accommodation Agreement.

Changes to covenants under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility include (i) a reduction in the cap on permitted debt and
liens on assets of foreign subsidiaries, (ii) a reduction in the cap on net cash proceeds from asset sales before such proceeds must be
utilized to repay the obligations under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, (iii) modifications to certain debt and lien baskets,
including permitting cash collateralization of letters of credit and an increase in secured hedging obligations and (iv) enhanced monthly
financial reporting.

The covenants require Delphi, among other things, to maintain a rolling 12-month cumulative Global EBITDAR (as defined in the
Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation Agreement) for Delphi and its direct and indirect subsidiaries, on a
consolidated basis. Prior to the Amendment the Global EBITDAR covenant was $450 million for the period ended December 31, 2008.

The covenants also impose restrictions on Delphi’s derivative contracts. Refer to Note 23. Fair Value of Financial Instruments,
Derivatives and Hedging Activities for more information.

Delphi was in compliance with the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation Agreement covenants as of
December 31, 2008. However, during December 2008 as a result of significant vehicle production cuts, particularly in North America,
the amount of outstanding accounts receivable and inventory declined, thus requiring periodic repayments of amounts outstanding under
Tranches A and B of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility to maintain compliance with the borrowing base computation. As of
January 31, 2009 there was approximately $314 million outstanding under Tranche A and approximately $425 million outstanding under
the Tranche B Term Loan. Reduced volume projections were expected to result in a significant decline in rolling 12-month cumulative
Global EBITDAR at the end of January 2009, which without the Amendment might have put Delphi’s ability to comply with the Global
EBITDAR covenants at risk. In addition, this deterioration reduced the amount of outstanding receivables, potentially requiring Delphi to
repay significant additional amounts currently outstanding under the Revolving Facility in the months of January and February 2009,
further reducing liquidity in its North American operations. However, as discussed further in Note 25. Subsequent Events, pursuant to the
Amendment, the lenders have agreed to restructure the components of the borrowing base supporting amounts outstanding under and
modify certain covenants contained in the Accommodation Agreement.

The Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility also contains certain defaults and events of default customary for debtor-in-possession
financings of this type. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any default in payment of principal, interest or other amounts
due under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, and interest on all outstanding amounts is payable on demand at 2% above the
then applicable rate.

New events of default under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility include (i) any amendment, waiver, supplement or
modification to the Amended GSA or the Amended MRA requiring Court approval that, taken as a whole, materially impairs the rights of
Delphi or its affiliated debtors as borrowers or guarantors, materially reduces the amount, or decelerates the timing of, any material
payments under either such agreement, if the Required Lenders object, (ii) any repudiation in writing or termination of the Amended GSA
or the Amended MRA by any party thereto, or a failure to perform any obligation thereunder, which failure materially impairs the rights
of Delphi thereunder, (iii) certain amendments, waivers, modifications, or supplementations of any term of the GM Advance Agreement
or the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement (as defined below), (iv) any event or condition that results in GM not funding
amounts requested under the GM Advance Agreement and (v) the enforcement or failure to stay enforcement of a judgment or order
against any borrower or guarantor with respect to any amounts advanced under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility.

In connection with the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi has paid fees to the consenting lenders of 200 basis points, or
approximately $37 million. Delphi also received approval from the Court to pay arrangement and other fees to various lenders in
conjunction with the Accommodation Agreement. The Company also received authority to pay applicable fees to various lenders in
conjunction with the Amendment and the Supplemental Amendment, and has paid approximately $11 million in fees to the consenting
lenders for both amendments.

In connection with the entry into the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility in May 2008, Delphi paid a total of approximately
$75 million to participating lenders on the Revolving Facility, the Tranche B facility and the Tranche C facility. Delphi also received
approval from the Court to pay arrangement and other fees to various lenders in conjunction with the Amended and Restated DIP Credit
Facility and the bankruptcy exit financing that was commenced but not completed.

In conjunction with the entry into the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, the Refinanced DIP Credit Facility was terminated.
Delphi incurred no early termination penalties in connection with the termination of this agreement. However, as a result of significant
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changes in the debt structure and corresponding cash flows related to the refinancing, Delphi expensed $49 million of unamortized debt
issuance costs related to the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and the Refinanced DIP Credit Facility in the second quarter of
2008, which was recognized as loss on extinguishment of debt. As of December 31, 2008, $56 million of debt issuance costs remains
deferred in other current assets and is being amortized over the term of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, as modified by the
Accommodation Agreement.

In 2007, concurrently with the entry into the Refinanced DIP Credit Facility, Delphi expensed $25 million of unamortized debt
issuance costs related to the Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Guaranty Agreement Delphi entered into on October 14, 2005, as amended
through November 13, 2006, and the Five Year Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2005 in the first
quarter of 2007, of which $23 million was recognized as loss on extinguishment of debt, as these fees relate to the refinancing of the term
loans, and $2 million was recognized as interest expense, as these fees relate to the refinancing of the revolving credit facility.

Advance Agreement and Liquidity Support from General Motors and Related Matters - Concurrently with the Amended and
Restated DIP Credit Facility, Delphi entered into an agreement with GM whereby GM agreed to advance Delphi amounts anticipated to be
paid following the effectiveness of the GSA and MRA (the “GM Advance Agreement”). The original GM Advance Agreement had a
maturity date of the earlier of December 31, 2008, when $650 million was to have been paid under the GSA and MRA and the date on
which a plan of reorganization becomes effective. The original GM Advance Agreement provided for availability of up to $650 million,
as necessary for Delphi to maintain $500 million of liquidity, as determined in accordance with the GM Advance Agreement. The
amounts advanced accrue interest at the same rate as the Tranche C Term Loan on a paid-in-kind basis. The accrued interest on the
advances made through the effectiveness of the Amended GSA and Amended MRA was cancelled due to the effectiveness of the
Amended GSA and Amended MRA, and Delphi was not able to redraw the original $650 million facility amount.

On September 26, 2008, the Court granted Delphi’s motion to amend the GM Advance Agreement to provide for an additional $300
million facility which could be drawn against from time to time as necessary for Delphi to maintain $300 million of liquidity, as
determined in accordance with the amendment to the GM Advance Agreement signed on August 7, 2008 and to give GM an
administrative claim for all unpaid advances under such additional facility. Continued availability to draw against the additional $300
million facility was conditioned upon Delphi filing a plan of reorganization and related disclosure statement in form and substance
materially consistent with Section 5 of the Amended GSA and Section 7.01 of the Amended MRA which condition was satisfied with
Delphi’s filing of proposed modifications to its previously confirmed plan of reorganization with the Court on October 3, 2008, and
certain other conditions.

In support of Delphi’s efforts to obtain the Accommodation Agreement, GM agreed to extend the term of the GM Advance
Agreement, pursuant to the terms set forth in an amendment thereto filed with the Court on November 7, 2008 (as supplemented) (the
“GM Advance Agreement Amendment”), through the earlier of (i) June 30, 2009, (ii) such date as Delphi files any motion seeking to
amend the plan of reorganization in a manner that is not reasonably satisfactory to GM, (iii) the termination of the Accommodation
Agreement or the accommodation period therein, or (iv) such date when a plan of reorganization becomes effective. The Court approved
Delphi’s motion to amend and extend the GM Advance Agreement concurrently with the approval of Delphi’s motion seeking authority to
enter into the Accommodation Agreement. Additionally, GM has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to accelerate payment of certain
payables to Delphi, pursuant to the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement, which could result in an additional $300 million
of liquidity to Delphi through May of 2009. The Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement provides that GM will generally
recoup these accelerated payments over its three subsequent monthly payments on or after the date that GM’s obligation to advance
funds under the GM Advance Agreement terminates or advances made become due and payable in accordance with the GM Advance
Agreement. Both the amendment to the GM Advance Agreement and the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement were
effective concurrent with the Accommodation Agreement, on December 12, 2008. Conforming amendments were made to the GM
Advance Agreement and Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement contemporaneously with Court approval of the Amendment
and Supplemental Amendment to the Accommodation Agreement as described in Note 25. Subsequent Events. Additionally, Delphi
anticipates filing a motion with the Court seeking approval of subsequent amendments to the GM Advance Agreement to reflect the
conditions pursuant to which GM will agree to increase the amounts available under such agreement, see Note 25. Subsequent Events.

There can be no assurances, however that GM will have sufficient liquidity to accelerate payables to Delphi or advance amounts under
the GM Advance Agreement. Refer to Item 1A. Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for risks and uncertainties related to our
business relationship with GM.

The GM Advance Agreement currently has a targeted cash balance amount of $25 million and Delphi is required to use any free cash
flow above the targeted cash balance amount (as determined in accordance with the GM Advance Agreement) to repay from time to time
any amounts outstanding thereunder. As of December 31, 2008, no amounts were outstanding pursuant to the GM Advance Agreement
and $300 million was available for future advances.

European Securitization Factoring — In December 2008, Delphi signed a termination agreement under the European accounts
receivables securitization program (the “European Program”) establishing that the program principal would be repaid by March 31, 2009.
However, in January 2009, Delphi entered into an extension to the termination period such that the program principal will be repaid by
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June 17, 2009 via amortization of principal over the extension period. The program had an availability of €178 million ($249 million with
December 31, 2008 foreign currency exchange rates) and £12 million ($17 million with December 31, 2008 foreign currency exchange
rates) until the termination date. During the extension period, the availability under the program is capped at dollar equivalent of the sum
of €38 million ($54 million with December 31, 2008 foreign currency exchange rates) and £9 million ($13 million with December 31,
2008 foreign currency exchange rates). Borrowings on the accounts receivable transferred under this program are accounted for as
short-term debt. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, outstanding borrowings under this program were approximately $88 million and
$205 million, respectively. Delphi continues to have access to other forms of receivables financing in Europe as noted below, and has
received preliminary credit approval from a syndicate of lenders on a replacement securitization program that it is seeking to implement in
the first quarter of 2009.

The table below shows a reconciliation of changes in interest in accounts receivables transferred for the period ended December 31,
2008.

(in millions)

Beginning Balance at December 31, 2007 ........c.cooviveuiiuieeieieeceeeeeeee e $ 205
Receivables transSTerred .......ooovvviiieeiiiiiieeeee e 1,496
Proceeds from New SECUIIHIZATIONS .........ccveevieeiieeieirieieereeeeeeeeseesreere e seee e e sreense e (1,549)
Receivables Repurchased..........c.ocveeiieiieiiiiiiierieee e (96)
OERET ettt et b e bbbt et ettt ene 32

Ending Balance.........c.cccveiieiiieiiiiiiciecieseee ettt $ 88

Accounts Receivable Factoring — Delphi also maintains various accounts receivable factoring facilities in Europe that are accounted
for as short-term debt. These uncommitted factoring facilities are available through various financial institutions. As of December 31,
2008 and 2007, we had $264 million and $384 million, respectively, outstanding under these accounts receivable factoring facilities.

Capital Leases and Other — As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, Delphi had other debt outstanding issued by certain international
subsidiaries, primarily bank lines in Asia Pacific, and capital lease obligations of approximately $257 million and approximately $219
million, respectively.

Junior Subordinated Notes - Delphi has outstanding junior subordinated debt with an aggregate principal value of $400 million. The
junior subordinated debt is represented by two global notes held by the Depository Trust Company or its nominee. The first junior
subordinated note, with an aggregate principal value of $250 million, bears interest at 8.25% per year and matures on November 15, 2033.
The second junior subordinated note bears interest at a fixed rate through November 15, 2008 and at an adjustable rate thereafter until it
matures on November 15, 2033. Delphi originally issued these notes to Delphi Trust I and Delphi Trust 11, respectively, both of which
were Delphi subsidiaries. Delphi’s chapter 11 filing constituted an “early termination event” pursuant to which both trusts were required
to be dissolved in accordance with their respective trust declarations. On November 14, 2006, both trusts were terminated. In connection
with the terminations, the interests of Delphi Trust I and Delphi Trust II in the subordinated notes were transferred to the holders of the
trust preferred securities issued by the two Trusts. Pursuant to the requirements of SOP 90-7, as of the Chapter 11 Filings, deferred
financing fees related to the Trusts are no longer being amortized and have been included as an adjustment of their net carrying value.
Delphi determined that both Trust I and Trust II were considered variable interest entities, of which Delphi was not the primary
beneficiary. As a result, although both Trust I and Trust II were 100% owned by Delphi, the Company did not consolidate them into its
financial statements. However, the Trust I and Trust II notes are reflected as liabilities subject to compromise on the consolidated balance
sheet. The related contractual interest for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 is not recognized in accordance with the
provisions of SOP 90-7. If Trust I and Trust II had been consolidated by Delphi, there would be no material impact in any of the periods
presented.

Interest - Cash paid for interest related to amounts outstanding within Delphi’s current capital structure totaled $442 million, $377
million and $424 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

In accordance with SOP 90-7, effective October 8, 2005, the Company ceased accruing and paying interest expense on its outstanding
unsecured prepetition debt classified as subject to compromise. In 2007, the Company began recording prior contractual interest expense
related to certain prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims because it became probable that the interest would become an allowed
claim based on the Plan. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, Delphi had accrued interest of $415 million and $411 million, respectively, in
accrued liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet for prepetition claims. As discussed in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11
Bankruptcy, on October 3, 2008, Delphi filed modifications to its confirmed plan of reorganization that, if approved by the Court, would
eliminate postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims. Accordingly, Delphi anticipates that it will be relieved of
this liability if and when the plan modifications are approved. The Company’s contractual interest not accrued or paid in 2008 was $131
million, contractual interest accrued but not paid in 2007 was $133 million, and contractual interest not accrued or paid in 2006 was $148
million. In accordance with the Court-approved first day motion, the Company continues to accrue and pay the contractual interest on the
secured credit facilities.
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The principal maturities of debt, net of applicable discount and issuance costs, and the minimum capital lease obligations not subject to
compromise for the five years subsequent to 2008 are as follows:

Debt and
Capital Lease

Year Obligations

(in millions)
2009 ..o $4,174
2010 oo 19
2011 e 5
2012 oo 5
2013 e 5
Thereafter..........cc........ 21
Total ..coooevveiree 4,229

Indebtedness Throughout 2007

Refinanced DIP Credit Facility— On January 5, 2007, the Court granted Delphi’s motion to obtain replacement postpetition financing
of approximately $4.5 billion. On January 9, 2007, Delphi refinanced its prepetition and postpetition credit facilities obligations by
entering into a Revolving Credit, Term Loan, and Guaranty Agreement (the “Refinanced DIP Credit Facility”) to borrow up to
approximately $4.5 billion from a syndicate of lenders. The Refinanced DIP Credit Facility consisted of a $1.75 billion first priority
revolving credit facility (“Tranche A” or the “Revolving Facility”), a $250 million first priority term loan (“Tranche B” or the “Tranche B
Term Loan” and, together with the Revolving Facility, the “First Priority Facilities”), and an approximate $2.5 billion second priority term
loan (“Tranche C” or the “Tranche C Term Loan”). The Refinanced DIP Credit Facility was obtained to refinance both the $2.0 billion
Amended and Restated Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of November 21, 2005 (as amended, the
“Amended DIP Credit Facility”) and the approximate $2.5 billion outstanding on its $2.8 billion Five Year Third Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2005 (as amended, the “Prepetition Facility”). As of January 9, 2007, both the Refinanced DIP
Credit Facility $250 million Tranche B Term Loan and approximately $2.5 billion Tranche C Term Loan were funded.

The Refinanced DIP Credit Facility carried an interest rate at the option of Delphi of either the Administrative Agent’s Alternate Base
Rate plus (i) with respect to Tranche A borrowings, 2.50%, (ii) with respect to Tranche B borrowings, 2.50%, (iii) with respect to Tranche
C borrowings, 3.00%, or LIBOR plus (x) with respect to Tranche A borrowings, 3.50%, (y) with respect to Tranche B borrowings 3.50%,
and (z) with respect to Tranche C borrowings 4.00%. The LIBOR interest rate period could be set at a two-week or one-, three-, or six-
month period as selected by Delphi in accordance with the terms of the Refinanced DIP Credit Facility. Accordingly, the interest rate
fluctuated based on the movement of the Alternate Base Rate or LIBOR through the term of the Refinanced DIP Credit Facility. Also as
of December 31, 2007, there were no amounts outstanding under the Revolving Facility and the Company had $255 million in letters of
credit outstanding under the Revolving Facility as of that date, including $150 million related to the letters of credit provided to the PBGC
discussed further in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy.

Other— Delphi had access to the European Program, various accounts receivable factoring facilities in Europe and had other
international subsidiary debt and capital lease obligations during 2007, as further described above under “Current Capital Structure.”

16. U.S. EMPLOYEE WORKFORCE TRANSITION PROGRAMS

The following table represents the movement in the U.S. employee workforce transition program liability for 2007 and 2008:

U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Program Liability

(in millions)

Balance at December 31, 2006..........ccccoeeiiioeieeieeieeeeeeeeeees $ 830
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges......... 52
Buy-down wage liability 323
Payments........cc.ooueeiiiiiiieiieiee e (793)
Pension and other postretirement benefits (Note 17)............ (48)
Accretion and Other..........cceveeierinieiieneeeeeee e 18

Balance at December 31, 2007 .......ccovieoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen $ 382
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges......... 21
Buy-down wage liability adjustment (37)
Payments........cooveeiienienieee e (219)
Pre-retirement program pension payment to GM ................ )
Pension and other postretirement benefits (Note 17) ........... (23)
Accretion and Other..........cccoveeienieieneniecee e 8

Balance at December 31, 2008............ccoovveeeiiieeeiiiiciieeeeieeens $ 123
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Approximately $115 million and $234 million of the U.S. employee workforce transition program liability is included in accrued
liabilities at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and approximately $8 million and $148 million is included in other long-term
liabilities at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet.

The following table represents the movement in the U.S. employee workforce transition program buydown wage asset for 2007 and
2008:

U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Program Buydown
Wage Asset
(in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2006...........ccccveveveeereieieeeeeeeeeennnn s —

Buy-down wage asset........cccoeceeevenenienieneenns 323
AmOTrtization EXPense........cceevverveerverueereenuenens (22)
Balance at December 31, 2007 ........ccoooveveeieeeeeeieeene. $ 301
Buy-down wage asset adjustment.............cceceeveeruennens (49)
AMOTtIZAtION EXPENSEC...e.vrerirrrerieereeierreererreesesseeseessesssessenses (61)
Amounts reimbursed by GM upon Amended GSA
CffECtIVENESS .ot (155)
Reclassified amounts as a receivable from GM under
Amended GSA ..o (126)
Reorganization gain..........ccceeeevieienieneenieeienie e 90
Balance at December 31, 2008 ............cooovviviviieeeieieeeeeeeeeeene $ —

As of December 31, 2007, approximately $80 million of the U.S. employee workforce transition program buydown wage asset was
included in other current assets and approximately $221 million was included in other long-term assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

2007 Workforce Transition Programs

On June 22, 2007, Delphi, GM, and the UAW signed the UAW settlement agreement which included a workforce transition program
for eligible UAW employees (the “UAW Workforce Transition Program”). Included in the UAW Workforce Transition Program is an
attrition program similar to the U.S. employee special attrition programs offered in June 2006. The attrition program in the UAW
Workforce Transition Program offered certain eligible Delphi employees the following options: (i) normal and early voluntary
retirements with a lump sum incentive payment of $35,000, (ii) a pre-retirement program under which employees with at least 26 and
fewer than 30 years of credited service are granted the ability to cease working and to receive monthly payments and benefits until they
accrue 30 years of credited service at which time they will retire without additional incentives, and (iii) buyout payments which,
depending on the amount of seniority or credited service, range from $70,000 to $140,000. The UAW Workforce Transition Program also
offered the following options: (i) flowback rights to eligible Delphi employees as of the date of the filing of Delphi’s bankruptcy petition
who do not elect the attrition options, including a relocation allowance of up to $67,000 in certain circumstances when plants cease
production, (ii) buy-down payments totaling up to $105,000 for eligible traditional employees who do not elect the attrition option or
flowback and continue to work for Delphi under the terms of the 2004 UAW-Delphi Supplemental Agreement applicable to employees
hired after 2004, transferring those employees to Supplemental Employee Status as of October 1, 2007, (iii) conversion of temporary
employees in UAW-Delphi plants to permanent employee status, and (iv) severance payments up to $40,000 or supplemental
unemployment benefits to eligible employees who are permanently laid off prior to September 14, 2011.

On August 5, 2007, Delphi, GM and the IUE-CWA signed the IUE-CWA settlement agreement, which included a workforce transition
program for eligible IUE-CWA employees (the “IUE-CWA Workforce Transition Program”) and included an attrition program similar to
the 2006 U.S. employee special attrition programs. The attrition program in the IUE-CWA Workforce Transition Program was similar to
the attrition program included in the UAW Workforce Transition Program except that the buyout payments based on seniority or credited
service ranged from $40,000 to $140,000. The IUE-CWA Workforce Transition Program also offers the following options: (i) special
employee placement opportunities with GM for eligible Delphi employees who do not elect the attrition options, including relocation
allowances of up to $67,000 in certain circumstances when specific plants cease production, (ii) provision of buy-down payments totaling
up to $125,000 for eligible employees who do not elect the attrition option or become employed by GM and continue to work for Delphi
under the terms of the [IUE-CWA settlement agreement, and (iii) severance payments up to $40,000 or supplemental unemployment
benefits to eligible employees who are permanently laid off prior to October 12, 2011.

On July 31 and August 1, 2007, Delphi and GM signed settlement agreements with the IAM, IBEW, IUOE Local 18S, IUOE Local
1018, and IUOE Local 8328 (collectively the “Splinter Unions™). With the exception of the [UOE Local 101S Agreement, these Splinter
Union settlement agreements included workforce transition programs (the “Splinter Unions Workforce Transition Program™) and included
attrition programs similar to the attrition program included in the [IUE-CWA Workforce Transition Program. The Splinter Unions
Workforce Transition Program also offered options of buy-down payments totaling up to $10,000 for eligible employees or severance
payments up to $40,000 to eligible employees who are permanently laid off prior to September 14, 2011.
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On August 16, 2007, Delphi, GM and the USW signed the USW settlement agreements, which included certain workforce transition
options for eligible USW employees at the Home Avenue and Vandalia operations similar to certain options presented in the [IUE-CWA
Workforce Transition Program.

During 2007, Delphi recorded charges for the attrition programs of approximately $52 million, which included a reduction in the U.S.
employee workforce transition program liability of $64 million due to a change in estimated future payments for both the 2006 and 2007
programs. The estimated payments to be made under the buy-down arrangements within the Workforce Transition Programs totaled $323
million and were recorded as a wage asset and liability. In accordance with EITF 88-23, “Lump-Sum Payments under Union Contracts,”
the wage asset is being amortized over the life of the respective union agreements. In 2008 and 2007, Delphi recognized $61 million and
$22 million, respectively, of wage asset amortization. The corresponding wage liability is being reduced as buy-down payments are made.
Delphi paid $83 million and $120 million during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. As of December 31, 2008
and 2007, Delphi had $83 million and $203 million of liability recorded, respectively. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, Delphi had $68
million and $2 million, respectively, recorded as receivable from GM.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, Delphi also recorded pension curtailment losses of $175 million, which were partially
offset by a curtailment gain of $5 million related to other postretirement benefits. These curtailments are discussed further in Note 17.
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits.

Total workforce transition program charges were $244 million for 2007, of which $212 million is recorded in U.S. workforce transition
program charges and $32 million is recorded in loss on discontinued operations. In addition, costs related to severance payments and
supplemental unemployment benefits for U.S. employees at sites that will be sold or wound down in accordance with the workforce
transition programs of $56 million were included in cost of sales.

2006 Attrition Programs

On March 22, 2006, Delphi, GM and the UAW agreed on a special attrition program (the “UAW Special Attrition Program”), and on
May 12, 2006, the Court entered the final order approving Delphi’s entry into the program with certain modifications. Delphi, GM, and
the UAW agreed on a supplemental agreement on June 5, 2006 (the “UAW Supplemental Agreement”) to the UAW Special Attrition
Program which was approved by the Court by order entered on July 7, 2006 (collectively, the UAW Special Attrition Program and UAW
Supplemental Agreement are referred to herein as the “UAW Attrition Programs”). The UAW Attrition Programs offered, among other
things, certain eligible Delphi U.S. hourly employees represented by the UAW normal and early voluntary retirements with a $35,000
lump sum incentive payment paid by Delphi and reimbursed by GM. The programs also provided a pre-retirement program under which
employees with at least 26 and fewer than 30 years of credited service were granted the ability to cease working and to receive monthly
payments and benefits until they accrue 30 years of credited service at which time they would be eligible to retire without additional
incentives. The programs also provided buyout payments which, depending on the amount of seniority or credited service, ranged from
$40,000 to $140,000. GM agreed to reimburse Delphi for one-half of these buyout payments and Delphi agreed to provide an allowed
prepetition general unsecured claim to GM. In addition, employees who elected to participate in the UAW Attrition Programs were
eligible to retire as employees of Delphi or flow back to GM and retire. During 2006, approximately 10,000 employees elected to flow
back to GM and retire. Although GM agreed to assume the postretirement healthcare and life insurance coverages for these retirees, due
to the volume of retirements, GM was unable immediately to transition these retirees to GM healthcare and life insurance plans. Delphi
agreed to administer health and life insurance coverage for these retirees during the transition period and GM agreed to reimburse Delphi
for the actual costs of providing such coverage. During 2007, GM overpaid Delphi. Therefore as of December 31, 2007, Delphi owed
GM approximately $10 million which was repaid during 2008.

On June 16, 2006, Delphi, GM, and the IUE-CWA reached agreement on the terms of a special attrition program which mirrored in all
material respects the UAW Attrition Programs. The lump sum incentive payments of $35,000 per eligible employee and one-half of the
$40,000 to $140,000 buyout payments are being paid by Delphi and reimbursed by GM. GM will receive an allowed prepetition general
unsecured claim equal to the amount it reimburses Delphi for the buyout payments. The IUE-CWA special attrition program (the “IUE-
CWA Special Attrition Program”) was approved by the Court by order entered on July 7, 2006.

Delphi recorded special termination benefit charges of approximately $1,117 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, for the
pre-retirement and buyout portions of the cost of the U.S. employee special attrition programs. Since Delphi agreed to provide GM with
an allowed prepetition general unsecured claim for its 50% share of the financial responsibility of the buyout payments, Delphi expensed
100% of the buyout payments. In addition, Delphi recorded net pension and postretirement benefit curtailment charges of approximately
$1,897 million and a credit of $59 million due to a curtailment gain related to extended disability benefits for the year ended December 31,
2006. Total workforce transition charges were $2,955 million, of which $2,706 million is recorded in U.S. workforce transition charges
and $249 million is recorded in loss on discontinued operations.
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2008 Reimbursement

As discussed in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy, the net reorganization gain recorded for the elements of the
Amended GSA that were implemented during 2008, included $491 million related to GM’s reimbursement of costs incurred under the
2006 and 2007 special attrition programs. GM reimbursed Delphi $230 million related to the funding of various 2007 U.S. hourly
workforce special attrition programs, consistent with the provisions of the U.S. labor union settlement agreements. Additionally,
previously recognized GM general unsecured claims of $333 million primarily related to the 2006 U.S. hourly workforce attrition
programs previously reimbursed by GM have been forgiven and subsumed in the overall $2.5 billion allowed general unsecured claim
granted to GM. The following table details this component of the reorganization gain and cash received:

Reorganization
Amended GSA Effectiveness Gain Cash
(in millions)

Amounts reimbursed for BUYOULS............ccoeivierieieieieieeseeee e $ 68 $ 68
Amounts reimbursed for retirement incentives — 7
Amounts reimbursed for buy-downs...........cocceverieieninieniineinee 90 155
Forgiveness of 2006 special attrition program allowed claim................. 333 —

TOtAL .ttt $ 491 $ 230

17. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Delphi sponsors pension plans covering unionized employees in the U.S., which generally provide benefits of stated amounts for each
year of service, as well as supplemental benefits for employees who qualify for retirement before normal retirement age. Delphi also
sponsors defined benefit plans covering U.S. salaried employees, with benefits generally based on years of service and salary history.
Certain Delphi employees also participate in non-qualified pension plans covering executives, which are based on targeted wage
replacement percentages and are unfunded. Delphi’s funding policy with respect to its qualified plans is to contribute annually, not less
than the minimum required by applicable laws and regulations, including the Bankruptcy Code. Certain of Delphi’s non-U.S. subsidiaries
also sponsor defined benefit pension plans, which generally provide benefits based on negotiated amounts for each year of service.
Delphi’s non-U.S. plans are located in France, Germany, Luxembourg, Mexico, Portugal, Korea, Turkey, Italy and the United Kingdom
(“UK”). The UK and certain Mexican plans are funded.

Delphi froze the Salaried Plan, the Supplemental Executive Retirement Program (“SERP”) the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement
Program, the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan effective as of September 30, 2008.
Effective as of October 1, 2008, Delphi’s existing Savings-Stock Purchase Program for Salaried Employees was enhanced to provide a
Delphi matching contribution and a 4% non-elective Delphi retirement contribution. Additionally, Delphi reached agreement with its
labor unions resulting in a freeze of traditional benefit accruals under the Hourly Plan effective as of November 30, 2008.

Delphi also maintains other postretirement benefit plans, which provide covered U.S. hourly and salaried employees with retiree
medical and life insurance benefits. On February 4, 2009, Delphi filed a motion with the Court seeking the authority to cease providing
health care and life insurance benefits in retirement to salaried employees, retirees, and surviving spouses (refer to Note 25. Subsequent
Events). Certain of Delphi’s non-U.S. subsidiaries have other postretirement benefit plans; although most participants are covered by
government sponsored or administered programs. The annual cost of such other postretirement benefit plans was not significant to
Delphi.
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The 2008 and 2007 amounts shown below reflect Delphi’s defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit obligations.

Benefit obligation at beginning of year..............c..........
SEIVICE COSE ..vvrntianiieiiieiieeiieseeie ettt eeeeeens
INEETESt COSE ..evnniiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e
Plan participants’ contributions...........c.ccceevevvevuennenne.
Actuarial 10Sses (ZaINS) ..cocveveeriienieeiiieiieneee e
Benefits paid.......ccccoeoiiiiiiiieee e
Special termination benefits ............coccevenieiininncnn.
Impact of transfers / settlements..........c.cccevverreennnnnen.
Impact of curtailments...........ccoceeveieveereereecieeieeeenen.
Impact of adoption of SFAS 158.......cccvvvivveiiennnen.
Plan amendments and other..........c..ccccocevivveieiennnnne.
Exchange rate movements ..........c.cocceeverveerieevennennen.

Benefit obligation at end of year...........cccceeevevverieenenen.

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year-................
Actual return on plan assets.........coceveeveriierieneeneenne
Delphi contributions..........cceceveeveereniienieneeeeeeen
Plan participants’ contributions...........ccceceeveereneennen.
Benefits paid........ccceevveiiiiiiieniieeeeeeeee e
Impact of transfers / settlements..........c..ccevverveennnnen.

Exchange rate movements and other ........................

Fair value of plan assets at end of year.........c...............

Underfunded Status .........cooovvviivvieeeiiiieeeeeeee e

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets
consist of?
Other non-current assets (including OPEB flow-in
1ECEIVADIR)...eiviiiiciicieeeeeee e

Current lHabilities ..........cocoeeiiiiiieieiieeeeeee e,
Non-current Habilities .........cc.oeoeevveeeiiieeeeeeieeeeeeee e
Liabilities subject to cOMPromise ..........cceeceveereeeeennee.

TOtal oo

Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income consist of (pre-tax):
Actuarial 10SS ......covevierienirininceeeeeeen
Prior service cost (Credit).......coevererererenceeieienienieniens
Net transition obligation ............cccceveeererreereeneerireeene.
TOtAL oo

Pension Benefits Other
Postretirement
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Benefits
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)

$ 14,054 $ 14,910 $ 1,589 $ 1,635 $ 8,732 $ 9,055
128 170 50 47 27 81
814 851 90 81 428 542
4 5 6 5 — 3
251 (589) (126) (176) (1,018) 471)
(1,150) (1,045) (146) (108) (216) (243)
— — — — — 3
(2,623) — 55 48 (6,821) —
75 (254) 2 5 (10) (100)
— — 26 — 132 —
(142) 6 59 5 (53) (138)
— — (363) 47 — —
$ 11,411 $ 14,054 $ 1,242 $ 1,589 $ 1,201 $ 8,732
$ 10,748 $ 10,722 $ 1,146 $ 1,025 $ — $ —
(3,155) 857 (263) 113 — —
264 209 119 95 216 240
4 5 6 5 — 3
(1,150) (1,045) (146) (108) (216) (243)
(540) — — — — —
(24) — (240) 16 — _
$ 6,147 $ 10,748 $ 622 $ 1,146 $ — $ —
$ (5,264) $ (3,306) $ (620) $ (443) $ (1,201) $ (8,732)
$ — 3 — 8 — 3 1 $ — 8 97
— — (21) (13) — —
— — (542) (4006) — —
(5,264) (3,306) (57) (25) (1,201) (8,829)
$ (5,264) $ (3,306) $ (620) $ (443) $(1,201) $(8,732)
$ 5062 $ 1,330 $ 412 $ 311 $ 373 $ 1,176
86 112 28 33 (518) (736)
_ _ 4 6 _ _
$ 5148 $ 1,442 $ 444 $ 350 $ (145 $ 440
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The projected benefit obligation (“PBO”), accumulated benefit obligation (“ABO”), and fair value of plan assets for pension plans with
accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets and with plan assets in excess of accumulated benefit obligations are as follows:

Primary
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2008 2007 2008 2007

(in millions)
Plans with ABO in Excess of Plan Assets

PBO ..o $11,411 $14,054 $ 1,144 $ 1,499
ABO ..o 11,409 14,051 1,002 1,284
Fair value of plan assets at end of year.. 6,147 10,748 557 1,055
Plans with Plan Assets in Excess of ABO
PBO ..ot $  — $8 — $ 98 $§ 90
ABO ..o — — 60 58
Fair value of plan assets at end of year.. — — 65 91
Total
PBO ..o $11,411 $14,054 $ 1,242 $ 1,589
ABO ..o 11,409 14,051 1,062 1,342
Fair value of plan assets at end of year.. 6,147 10,748 622 1,146

Benefit costs presented below were determined based on actuarial methods and included the following:

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
Service COSt (A)..uueeeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenen. $ 128 $ 170 $ 268 $ 50 $ 47 § 42 § 27 $ 81 $ 171
Interest CoSt....oovvvmmmiiiiiiiiiiieiieee e 814 851 793 90 81 66 428 542 561
Expected return on plan assets............. (833) (867) (820) (86) (81) (69) — — —
Special termination benefits................. — — — — — 20 — — —
Settlement 10ss (2aIN)...ccveeveeeeeeeennn.. 494 — — 55 — — (7.087) — —
Curtailment loss (gain)-PBO................ 75 22 1.518 2 60 — (8) — (349)
Curtailment loss (gain)-prior service ... — 194 397 — — — (74) (7) 329
Amortization of transition amount....... — — — 1 1 1 — — —
Amortization of prior service costs
(Credit) e 26 52 107 7 4 3 (108)  (99) (99)
Amortization of actuarial losses........... 21 75 192 5 32 26 37 74 255
Net periodic benefit cost................... $§ 725 $ 497 $2455 $124 $144 $ 89 $(6,785) $ 591 $ 868

(a) Includes $23 million, $48 million and $29 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, of costs
previously accrued related to the U.S. employee workforce transition programs.

Net periodic benefit cost above reflects $23 million, $147 million and $186 million that was included in loss from discontinued
operations for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Settlements and Curtailments

On September 26, 2008, Delphi received the consent of its labor unions and approval from the Court to transfer certain assets and
liabilities of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan, pursuant to section 414(1) of the Code (the “414(1) Net
Liability Transfer”), as agreed under the Amended GSA. The 414(1) Net Liability Transfer is to occur in two separate steps.

On September 29, 2008, Delphi completed the first step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer, transferring liabilities of approximately
$2.6 billion and assets of approximately $486 million of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan, representing
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30% and 10% of the projected benefit obligation and plan assets, respectively, as of September 29, 2008. The 414(1) Net Liability
Transfer is sufficient to avoid an accumulated funding deficiency for the Hourly Plan for plan year ended September 30, 2008. The $486
million transferred represented 90% of the initially estimated $540 million of assets to be transferred under the first step of the 414(1) Net
Liability Transfer. The remaining assets will be transferred by March 29, 2009 upon finalization of related valuations. In consideration of
the first step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer, GM received an allowed administrative bankruptcy claim equivalent to 77.5% of the net
unfunded liabilities transferred, or $1.6 billion. The first step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer was accounted for as a partial settlement
of the Hourly Plan under SFAS 88. Delphi recognized a SFAS 88 settlement loss of $494 million included in reorganization items in the
consolidated statements of operations for 2008, which reflects the recognition of $494 million of previously unrecognized actuarial losses.
The amount of actuarial losses recognized represents the proportion of the projected benefit obligation transferred to GM relative to the
total projected benefit obligation of the Hourly Plan.

The second step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer will include all remaining Hourly Plan assets and obligations related to plan
participants with prior GM service and will occur upon the effectiveness of an amended plan of reorganization that (i) provides for the
treatment of GM’s claims and releases as set forth in the Amended GSA and (ii) contains interpretive provisions under the Amended GSA
regarding conflicts between such plan and the Amended GSA, see Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy.

Under the terms of the Amended GSA and union labor agreements, GM assumed $6.8 billion of traditional hourly OPEB liabilities
related to plan participants with prior GM service. GM’s assumption of these traditional hourly OPEB liabilities constitutes a settlement
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, Employer’s Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.
Delphi recognized a settlement gain of $7.1 billion included in reorganization items in the consolidated statements of operations for 2008,
which reflects the assumption by GM of the net unfunded liability of $6.8 billion and the recognition of $266 million of previously
unrecognized actuarial gains.

As a result of the salaried workforce transformation plan activities in North America discussed in Note 7. Employee Termination
Benefits and Other Exit Costs, salaried separations in 2008 have resulted in significant reductions in expected future service, or
curtailments, of the Salaried Plan, OPEB and SERP. Delphi recorded net salaried pension curtailment losses of $75 million and salaried
OPEB curtailment gains of $82 million for 2008.

In 2007, Delphi recorded pension curtailment losses of approximately $216 million. Of this amount, $175 million was recorded to
recognize the effect of employees who elected to participate in the workforce transition programs and the effect of prospective plan
amendments that will eliminate the accrual of future defined pension benefits for salaried and certain hourly employees on emergence
from bankruptcy with $135 million included in U.S. employee workforce transition program charges and $40 million included in loss
from discontinued operations. In addition, $34 million of pension curtailment loss is included in loss from discontinued operations related
to the divestiture of businesses. The remaining $7 million of pension curtailment loss relates to U.S. employees at sites that will be sold or
wound down and is included in cost of sales. In addition, Delphi recorded other postretirement benefit curtailment gains of $7 million in
2007, of which $3 million was recorded in U.S. employee workforce transition program charges, $2 million was recorded in loss from
discontinued operations and $2 million was recorded in cost of sales, to recognize the effects of the workforce transition programs and the
elimination of the accrual of retiree medical benefits for certain hourly employees. In 2006, Delphi recorded net pension and
postretirement benefit curtailment charges of approximately $1.9 billion in the U.S. employee workforce transition program charges line
item of the statement of operations related to UAW- and IUE-CW A-represented hourly employees who elected to participate in the U.S.
employee special attrition programs discussed in Note 16. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs.

Experience gains and losses, as well as the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions are amortized over the
average future service period of employees. The estimated actuarial loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans that
will be amortized from accumulated OCI into net periodic benefit cost in 2009 are $234 million and $30 million, respectively. The
estimated actuarial loss and prior service credit for the other defined benefit postretirement plans that will be amortized from OCI into net
periodic benefit credit in 2009 are $34 million and $94 million, respectively.

The principal assumptions used to determine the pension and other postretirement expense and the actuarial value of the projected
benefit obligation for the U.S. and non-U.S. pension plan and postretirement plans were:

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31:
Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Weighted-average discount rate............ 6.16% 6.35% 6.39% 5.30% 6.12% 6.40%
Weighted-average rate of increase
in compensation levels...........c..c....... 4.50% 4.04% 3.97% 4.16% 4.50% 3.31%
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Assumptions used to determine net expense for years ended December 31:
Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Weighted-average discount rate .......... 6.35% 590% 5.50% 5.99% 4.96% 491% 6.41% 6.10% 5.50%
Weighted-average rate of increase

in compensation levels ...........cc........ 4.45% 4.12% 3.99% 4.16% 3.67% 3.45% 4.50% 3.94% 3.99%
Expected long-term rate of return

on plan assets .......coceeveveeereeineenenne 8.75%  8.75% 8.75% 8.28% 8.05% 8.20% N/A N/A N/A

In 2007 and 2006, Delphi selected discount rates for measurements by analyzing the results of matching each plan’s projected benefit
obligations with hypothetical portfolios of high quality corporate bonds rated AA- or higher by Standard and Poor’s and with a portfolio
of high quality investments. Because high quality corporate bonds in sufficient quantity and with appropriate maturities are not available
for all years when benefit cash flows are expected to be paid, hypothetical bonds were imputed based on combinations of existing bonds,
and interpolation and extrapolation reflecting current and past yield trends. In 2008, due to a reduction in the number of high quality
corporate bonds, Delphi selected discount rates for measurements as of December 31, 2008 by analyzing the results of matching each
plan’s projected benefit obligations with the portfolio of high quality investments. Delphi selected discount rates for its non-U.S. plans by
analyzing the yields of high quality fixed income investments.

For 2008, 2007 and 2006 expense, Delphi assumed a U.S. long-term asset rate of return of 8.75%. In developing the 8.75% expected
long-term rate of return assumption, Delphi evaluated input from its third party pension plan asset manager, including a review of asset
class return expectations and long-term inflation assumptions. Delphi also considered its post-spin off and GM’s pre-spinoff historical 10-
year and 20-year compounded returns, which were consistent with its long-term rate of return assumption. For the determination of 2009
expense, Delphi will assume a U.S. long-term asset rate of return of 8.25%. This 50 basis point reduction was based on the updated
historical 10-year and 20-year compounded returns analysis. The primary non-U.S. plans conduct similar studies in conjunction with local
actuaries and asset managers. While the studies give appropriate consideration to recent fund performance and historical returns, the
assumptions are primarily long-term, prospective rates.

Delphi’s pension expense for 2009 is determined at the 2008 measurement date. For purposes of analysis, the following table
highlights the sensitivity of the Company’s pension obligations and expense to changes in key assumptions:

Impact on
Change in Assumption Pension Expense Impact on PBO
25 basis point (bp) decrease in discount rate + $13 million + $300 million
25 bp increase in discount rate - $12 million - $300 million
25 bp decrease in long-term return on assets + $18 million —
25 bp increase in long-term return on assets - $18 million —

The above sensitivities reflect the effect of changing one assumption at a time. It should be noted that economic factors and conditions
often affect multiple assumptions simultaneously and the effects of changes in key assumptions are not necessarily linear. The above
sensitivities also assume no changes to the design of the pension plans and no major restructuring programs.

Delphi’s other postretirement benefit expense for 2009 is determined at the 2008 measurement date. For purposes of analysis, the
following table highlights the sensitivity of the Company’s postretirement obligations and expense to changes in assumptions:

Impact on
Impact on Postretirement
Change in Assumption Postretirement Expense  Benefit Obligation
25 basis point (bp) decrease in discount rate + $4 million + $19 million
25 bp increase in discount rate - $4 million - $18 million
1 % increase in health care trend rate + $6 million + $73 million
1 % decrease in health care trend rate - $5 million - $63 million

The above sensitivities reflect the effect of changing one assumption at a time. It should be noted that economic factors and conditions
often affect multiple assumptions simultaneously and the effects of changes in key assumptions are not necessarily linear. The above
sensitivities also assume no changes to the postretirement plan design and no major restructuring programs.
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Delphi’s pension plan asset allocation at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and target allocation for 2009 are as follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets at

Asset Category December 31, Target Allocation
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans U.S. Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007 2009

Equity Securities 55% 57% 51% 61% 60%
Fixed Income 20% 25% 28% 24% 25%
Private Equity 8% 6% — — 4%
Real Estate 11% 8% 12% 14% 7%
Other 6% 4% 9% 1% 4%
Total 100%  100%  100% 100% 100%

Delphi invests in a diversified portfolio consisting of an array of asset classes that attempts to maximize returns while minimizing
volatility. These asset classes include U.S. domestic equities, developed market equities, emerging market equities, private equity, global
high quality and high yield fixed income, real estate, and absolute return strategies.

SFAS 158 Adoption

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 158, which requires, among other things, an employer to measure the funded status of its
defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position, with limited
exceptions, effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. Historically, Delphi has measured the funded status of its U.S.
retiree health care benefit plans and certain international pension plans as of September 30 of each year. Delphi adopted the measurement
date provisions of SFAS 158 as of January 1, 2008, and utilized the second transition approach provided under SFAS 158. Under this
approach, net periodic benefit cost related to these plans for the period between the most recent measurement date of September 30, 2007
and December 31, 2008, was allocated proportionately between an adjustment of accumulated deficit as of January 1, 2008 and amounts
to be recognized as net periodic benefit cost during 2008.

The following table summarizes the pre-tax impact of the adoption of the measurement date provisions of SFAS 158:

U.S Retiree Non-U.S.
Medical Plans Pension Plans Total
Increase / (Decrease)
(in millions)

Pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities ...... § 132 $ 7 $ 139
Accumulated deficit as of January 1, 2008 ................... $ 117 § 12 § 129
Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of January 1,

2008 ...t $ 15 § 5 § 10

Pension Funding

As permitted under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, during 2008, Delphi contributed only the portion of the required contributions
attributable to service after the Chapter 11 Filings and as a result, the IRS has asserted against Delphi excise taxes in the approximate
amounts of $17 million and $18 million for plan years ended September 30, 2005, and September 30, 2007, respectively, and may assert
additional excise taxes against Delphi. Delphi believes that under the Bankruptcy Code, the Company is not obligated to make
contributions for pension benefits while in chapter 11 and, as a result, the Company would not be liable for any such assessments.
Accordingly, management has concluded that an unfavorable outcome is not currently probable and, as of December 31, 2008, no
amounts have been recorded for any potential excise tax assessment.

During 2008, Delphi contributed approximately $264 million to its U.S. pension plans, of which $45 million and $46 million related to
services rendered during the fourth quarter of 2007 and the first quarter of 2008, respectively, and the remaining $172.5 million related to
the PBGC draw against the letters of credit in favor of the Hourly and Salaried Plans discussed in Note 2. Transformation Plan and
Chapter 11 Bankruptcy to the consolidated financial statements. As permitted under ERISA and the Code, all of these amounts have been
applied to the plan years ended September 30, 2007. As further permitted under ERISA and the Code, Delphi elected to defer
contributions necessary to satisfy approximately $69 million of additional minimum funding obligations under the Salaried and subsidiary
plans until as late as June 15, 2009 for the Salaried Plan (later, if the IRS grants the funding waiver requested by Delphi on December 15,
2008) and as late as September 15, 2009 for the subsidiary plans.

During 2007 and 2006, Delphi contributed $209 million and $243 million, respectively, to its U.S. pension plans, representing the
portion of the pension contribution attributable to services rendered by employees of the Debtors in the respective plan years ended
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September 30, 2007 and 2006. Under ERISA and the Code, minimum funding payments of approximately $1.2 billion to the U.S. pension
plans were due in 2007 and 2006.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Projected Projected
Pension Postretirement
Benefit Payments Benefit Payments

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
(in millions)

2009 $ 941 $ 58 $ 74
2010 926 55 79
2011 913 58 85
2012 894 62 89
2013 878 66 88
2014 -2018 4,144 519 445

Delphi’s annual measurement date for its pension and other postretirement benefit plans is December 31, Delphi’s fiscal year-end.

For postretirement plan measurement purposes, Delphi assumed an average 8% initial annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of
covered health care benefits. The rate was assumed to decrease on a gradual basis through 2018, to the ultimate weighted-average trend
rate of 5%.

Delphi also sponsors defined contribution plans for certain U.S. hourly and salaried employees. Delphi’s expense related to the
contributions for these plans was $23 million, $10 million and $8 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Shareholder Lawsuits

As previously disclosed, the Company, along with certain of its subsidiaries, current and former directors of the Company, and certain
current and former officers and employees of the Company or its subsidiaries, and others are named as defendants in several lawsuits filed
following the Company’s announced intention to restate certain of its financial statements in 2005. These lawsuits (the “Multidistrict
Litigation”) were coordinated for pretrial proceedings by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation and assigned to Hon. Gerald E.
Rosen in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan (the “District Court”). Set forth below is a description of the
Multidistrict Litigation and a summary of a settlement concerning the Multidistrict Litigation.

The Multidistrict Litigation is comprised of lawsuits in three categories. One group of class action lawsuits, which is purportedly
brought on behalf of participants in certain of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ defined contribution employee benefit pension plans
that invested in Delphi common stock, is brought under ERISA. On October 21, 2005, the District Court appointed interim lead plaintiffs
for the putative class. On March 3, 2006, these plaintiffs filed a consolidated class action complaint (the “ERISA Action”) with a class
period of May 28, 1999 to November 1, 2005. Plaintiffs in the ERISA Action allege, among other things, that the plans suffered losses as
a result of alleged breaches of fiduciary duties under ERISA. The Company, which was initially named as a defendant in these lawsuits,
was not named as a defendant in the ERISA Action due to its chapter 11 filing, but the plaintiffs stated that they intended to proceed with
claims against the Company in the ongoing bankruptcy cases, and would seek to name the Company as a defendant in the ERISA Action
if the bankruptcy stay were modified or lifted to permit such action. On May 31, 2007, by agreement of the parties, the Court entered a
limited modification of the automatic stay, pursuant to which Delphi provided certain discovery to plaintiffs’ counsel and other parties in
the case.

A second group of class action lawsuits alleges, among other things, that the Company and certain of its current and former directors
and officers and others made materially false and misleading statements in violation of federal securities laws. On September 30, 2005,
the court-appointed Lead Plaintiffs filed a consolidated class action complaint (the “Securities Action”) on behalf of a class consisting of
all persons and entities who purchased or otherwise acquired publicly-traded securities of the Company, including securities issued by
Delphi Trust I and Delphi Trust II, during a class period of March 7, 2000 through March 3, 2005. The Securities Action names several
additional defendants, including Delphi Trust I and Delphi Trust II, certain former directors, and underwriters and other third parties, and
includes securities claims regarding additional offerings of Delphi securities. The Securities Action, which had been consolidated in the
United States District Court for Southern District of New York, was subsequently transferred to the District Court as part of the
Multidistrict Litigation (as was a related securities action filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida
concerning Delphi Trust I, which was subsequently consolidated into the Securities Action). The Securities Action was stayed against the
Company pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, but continued against the other defendants. On February 15, 2007, the District Court partially
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granted the Lead Plaintiffs’ motion to lift the stay of discovery provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, thereby
allowing the Lead Plaintiffs to obtain certain discovery from the defendants. On April 16, 2007, by agreement of the parties, the Court
entered a limited modification of the automatic stay, pursuant to which Delphi provided certain discovery to the Lead Plaintiffs and other
parties in the case.

The third group of lawsuits is comprised of shareholder derivative actions against certain current and former directors and officers of
the Company (“Shareholder Derivative Actions”). A total of four complaints were filed: two in the federal court (one in the Eastern
District of Michigan and another in the Southern District of New York) and two in Michigan state court. These suits alleged that certain
current and former directors and officers of the Company breached a variety of duties owed by them to Delphi in connection with matters
related to the Company’s restatement of its financial results. The federal cases were coordinated with the securities and ERISA class
actions in the Multidistrict Litigation. Following the filing on October 8, 2005 of the Debtors’ petitions for reorganization relief under
chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, all the Shareholder Derivative Actions were administratively closed.

Following mediated settlement discussions, on August 31, 2007, representatives of Delphi, Delphi’s insurance carriers, certain current
and former directors and officers of Delphi named as defendants, and certain other defendants involved in the Multidistrict Litigation
reached agreements with the Lead Plaintiffs in the Securities Action and the named plaintiffs in the ERISA Action to settle the claims
asserted against them in those actions (the “MDL Settlements”).

On September 5, 2007 the District Court entered an order preliminarily certifying a class in the Securities Action and the ERISA
Action, preliminarily approving the MDL Settlements, and scheduling a fairness hearing on November 13, 2007. On November 13, 2007,
the District Court conducted the fairness hearing and took the matter under advisement. Separately, on October 29, 2007, the Court
entered an order preliminarily approving the MDL Settlements subject to final consideration at the confirmation hearing on Delphi’s plan
of reorganization and the Court’s consideration of certain objections that may be filed as to the MDL Settlements. On October 29, 2007,
the Court lifted the automatic stay as to the discovery provided to the Lead Plaintiffs. On December 4, 2007, the District Court held
another hearing to consider proposed modifications to the proposed settlement of the Securities Action (as modified, the “Securities
Settlement”), and tentatively approved the Securities Settlement, after determining that the modifications were at least neutral to the class
and may potentially provide a net benefit to the class.

The District Court approved the MDL Settlements (including the Securities Settlement) in an opinion and order issued on January 10,
2008 and amended on January 11, 2008, and the District Court entered an Order and Final Judgment dated January 23, 2008 in both the
Securities Action and ERISA Action. One security holder appealed certain aspects of the District Court’s opinion and order, as amended,
approving the MDL Settlements. That appeal is pending before the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit.

On January 25, 2008, the Court approved the MDL Settlements. Under the terms of the MDL Settlements, the Lead Plaintiffs in the
Securities Action and the named plaintiffs in the ERISA Action will receive claims that will be satisfied through Delphi’s Plan as
confirmed by the Court pursuant to the confirmation order. Under the Securities Settlement, (i) the Lead Plaintiffs will be granted an
allowed claim in the face amount of $179 million, which will be satisfied by Delphi providing $179 million in consideration in the same
form, ratio, and treatment as that which will be used to pay holders of general unsecured claims under its Plan, and (ii) the class in the
Securities Action will receive $15 million to be provided by a third party, a distribution of insurance proceeds of up to approximately $89
million, including a portion of the remainder of any insurance proceeds that are not used by certain former officers and directors who are
named defendants in various actions, and a distribution of approximately $2 million from certain underwriters named as defendants in the
Securities Actions. In addition, Delphi’s insurance carriers have also agreed to provide $20 million to fund any legal expenses incurred by
certain of the former officer and director named defendants in defense of any future civil actions arising from the allegations raised in the
securities cases. If an individual plaintiff opts out of the settlement reached with the Lead Plaintiffs and ultimately receives an allowed
claim in Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, the amount received by the opt-out plaintiff will be deducted from the amount received by the class in
the Securities Action. Delphi will object to any claims filed by opt-out plaintiffs in the Court, and will seek to have such claims expunged.

The settlement of the ERISA Action is structured similarly to the settlement reached with the Lead Plaintiffs. The claim of the named
plaintiffs in the ERISA Action will be allowed in the amount of approximately $25 million and will be satisfied with consideration in the
same form, ratio, and treatment as that which will be used to pay holders of general unsecured claims under the plan of reorganization.
The class in the ERISA Action will also receive a distribution of insurance proceeds in the amount of approximately $22 million. Unlike
the settlement of the Securities Action, no member of the class in the ERISA Action can “opt out” of the settlement.

Settlement amounts from insurers and underwriters were paid and placed in escrow by September 25, 2007, pending the effective date
of the MDL Settlements.

The MDL Settlements also provide for the dismissal with prejudice of the ERISA Action and Securities Action and a release of certain
claims against certain named defendants, including Delphi, Delphi’s current directors and officers, the former directors and officers who
are named defendants, and certain of the third-party defendants. As provided in the confirmation order, the MDL Settlements are
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contingent upon the effective date of the Plan occurring as well as the payment of the $15 million amount to be provided by a third party,
and if, for any reason, these contingencies are not met, the MDL Settlements will become null and void. Delphi is in discussion with
various of its stakeholders regarding potential modifications to the terms of the MDL Settlements that would allow for the MDL
Settlements, as modified, to become effective in advance of the resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, however there can be no
assurances that the parties will reach agreement on such modifications. If the MDL Settlements are terminated according to their terms,
the parties will proceed in all aspects as if the MDL Settlements had not been executed and any related orders had not been entered.

The Company also received a demand from a shareholder that the Company consider bringing a derivative action against certain
current and former directors and officers premised on allegations that certain current and former directors and officers made materially
false and misleading statements in violation of federal securities laws and/or of their fiduciary duties. The Company appointed a
committee of the Board of Directors (the “Special Committee”) to evaluate the shareholder demand. As a component of the MDL
Settlements, the Special Committee determined not to assert these claims; however, it has retained the right to assert the claims as
affirmative defenses and setoffs against any action to collect on a proof of claim filed by those individuals named in the demand for
derivative action should the Company determine that it is in its best interests to do so.

As a result of the MDL Settlements, as of December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, Delphi has a liability of $351 million recorded
for this matter. Delphi maintains directors and officers insurance providing coverage for indemnifiable losses of $100 million, subject to a
$10 million deductible, and a further $100 million of insurance covering its directors and officers for nonindemnifiable claims, for a total
of $200 million. As part of the settlement, the insurers contributed the entire $100 million of indemnifiable coverage, and a portion of the
nonindemnifiable coverage. In conjunction with the MDL Settlements, Delphi expects recoveries of $148 million for the settlement
amounts provided to the plaintiffs from insurers, underwriters, and third-party reimbursements and will record such recoveries on the
effective date of the MDL Settlements.

Environmental Matters

Delphi is subject to the requirements of U.S. federal, state, local and non-U.S. environmental and occupational safety and health laws
and regulations. For a discussion of matters relating to compliance with laws for the protection of the environment, refer to Item 1.
Business — Environmental Compliance in this Annual report on Form 10-K.

As previously disclosed, with respect to environmental matters, Delphi has received notices that it is a potentially responsible party
(“PRP”) in proceedings at various sites, including the Tremont City Landfill Site (the “Site”) located in Tremont, Ohio, which is alleged to
involve ground water contamination. In September 2002, Delphi and other PRPs entered into a Consent Order with the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) to perform a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study (the “Feasibility Study”)
concerning a portion of the Site. The Remedial Investigation and Alternatives Array Document were finalized in 2007. The Feasibility
Study was approved (with modifications) by the EPA on November 25, 2008. On December 11, 2008, Delphi and the other PRPs filed a
Notice of Objection and Invocation of Dispute Resolution with the EPA. Delphi and the other PRPs believe that the modifications to the
Feasibility Study required by the EPA are not supported by the site assessment information developed to date, and would have the effect
of unjustifiably increasing the likelihood of the EPA ultimately selecting excavation as the remedial approach for the Site. The dispute
resolution process is pending. In the interim, Delphi and the other PRPs and the EPA are evaluating an additional remedial alternative for
inclusion in the Feasibility Study. The additional remedy would involve installation of numerous wells at the Site for removal of liquid
wastes. A Record of Decision is expected to be issued in 2009. Although Delphi believes that capping and future monitoring alone would
be an appropriate and protective remedy, a different cleanup approach ultimately may be required for the Site. Because the manner of
remediation is yet to be determined, it is possible that the resolution of this matter may require Delphi to make material future
expenditures for remediation, possibly over an extended period of time and possibly in excess of existing reserves. As of December 31,
2008, Delphi has recorded its best estimate of its share of the remediation based on the removal of liquids remedy. However, if that
remedy is not accepted, Delphi’s expenditures for remediation could increase by $11 million to $15 million in excess of its existing
reserves. Delphi will continue to reassess any potential remediation costs and, as appropriate, its environmental reserve as the
investigation proceeds.

Delphi received a Notice of Intent to File Civil Administrative Complaint (“Notice”) from the EPA on May 30, 2008 regarding a June
2007 chlorine gas cylinder leak that occurred at the Saginaw, Michigan Delphi Steering facility. The Notice alleges that Delphi failed to
properly notify agency officials about the leak or the presence of chlorine gas at the site, and describes the EPA’s intent to seek
approximately $0.1 million in civil penalties relating to the incident. Although Delphi disagrees with certain of the agency’s assertions,
Delphi resolved the matter in February 2009 through signing a Consent Agreement and Final Order that commits Delphi to pay a civil
penalty of $66,887.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, our reserve for environmental investigation and remediation was approximately $106 million (of
which $9 million was recorded in accrued liabilities and $97 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities) and $112 million
(recorded in other long-term liabilities), respectively. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, $95 million and $101 million, respectively, of
the reserve related to sites within the U.S. The amounts recorded take into account the fact that GM retained the environmental liability
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for certain inactive sites as part of the Separation. Delphi completed a number of environmental investigations during 2006 in conjunction
with our transformation plan, which contemplated significant restructuring activity, including the sale or closure of numerous facilities.
As part of developing and evaluating various restructuring alternatives, environmental assessments that included identification of areas of
interest, soil and groundwater testing, risk assessment and identification of remediation issues were performed at nearly all major U.S.
facilities. These assessments identified previously unknown conditions and led to new information that allowed us to further update our
reasonable estimate of required remediation for previously identified conditions requiring an adjustment to our environmental reserve of
approximately $70 million in 2006. The recorded reserves relate to 35 facilities and are comprised of investigation, remediation and
operation and maintenance of the remedy, including postremediation monitoring costs. Addressing contamination at various sites,
including facilities designated as non-core and slated for closure or sale, is required by the Resource Conservation & Recovery Act and
various other federal, state or local laws and regulations and represent management’s best estimate of the cost to complete such actions.
Management believes that its December 31, 2008 accruals will be adequate to cover the estimated liability for its exposure with respect to
such matters and that these costs will be incurred over the next 20 years. However, as we continue the ongoing assessment with respect to
such facilities, additional and perhaps material environmental remediation costs may require recognition, as previously unknown
conditions may be identified. We cannot ensure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or
that our eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of our current reserves. In the event that such
liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded, Delphi’s results of operations could be materially affected.

Delphi estimates environmental remediation liabilities based on the most probable method of remediation, current laws and regulations
and existing technology. Estimates are made on an undiscounted basis and exclude the effects of inflation. If there is a range of equally
probable remediation methods or outcomes, Delphi accrues at the lower end of the range. At December 31, 2008, the difference between
the recorded liabilities and the reasonably possible maximum estimate for these liabilities was approximately $82 million.

Other

As mentioned above, Delphi continues to pursue its transformation plan and continues to conduct additional assessments as the
Company evaluates whether to permanently close or demolish one or more facilities as part of its restructuring activity. These
assessments could result in Delphi being required to recognize additional and possibly material costs or demolition obligations in the
future. In 2007, Delphi commissioned building demolition assessments for certain sites that may ultimately be demolished or sold in the
next few years. These assessments provided detailed estimates of quantities of asbestos at these particular sites and detailed cost estimates
for remediation of that asbestos, which resulted in a $14 million revision to the existing estimates increasing the related asset retirement
obligations. There was no significant adjustment in 2008.

Ordinary Business Litigation

Delphi is from time to time subject to various legal actions and claims incidental to its business, including those arising out of alleged
defects, breach of contracts, product warranties, intellectual property matters, and employment-related matters.

Under section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code, the filing of a bankruptcy petition automatically stays most actions against a debtor,
including most actions to collect prepetition indebtedness or to exercise control over the property of the debtor’s estate. Absent an order
of the Court, substantially all prepetition liabilities are subject to settlement under a plan of reorganization. The modified Plan sets forth
the treatment of claims against and interest in the Debtors. (Refer to Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for details
on the chapter 11 cases). Under the modified Plan, the automatic stay remains in effect until the effective date of the modified Plan.

With respect to warranty matters, although Delphi cannot assure that the future costs of warranty claims by customers will not be
material, Delphi believes its established reserves are adequate to cover potential warranty settlements. However, the final amounts
required to resolve these matters could differ materially from the Company’s recorded estimates. Additionally, in connection with the
Separation, Delphi agreed to indemnify GM against substantially all losses, claims, damages, liabilities or activities arising out of or in
connection with its business post-Separation for which it is determined Delphi has responsibility. Due to the nature of such indemnities,
Delphi is not able to estimate the maximum amount thereof.

GM Warranty Settlement Agreement

As previously disclosed, GM alleged that catalytic converters supplied by Delphi’s Powertrain Systems segment to GM for certain
2001 and 2002 vehicle platforms did not conform to specifications. In May 2007 GM informed Delphi that it has experienced higher than
normal warranty claims with respect to certain 2003-2005 vehicle models due to instrument clusters previously supplied by Delphi’s
Automotive Holdings Group segment. Effective December 2007, the responsibility for this product line was transferred to the Electronics
and Safety segment. In 2007, Delphi reached a tentative agreement with GM to resolve these claims along with certain other known
warranty matters. Based on the agreement, Delphi recorded $83 million of additional warranty expense in cost of sales in 2007, net of $8
million of recovery, primarily related to the Electronics and Safety and Powertrain Systems segments. On September 27, 2007, the Court
authorized Delphi to enter into a Warranty, Settlement, and Release Agreement (the “Warranty Settlement Agreement”) with GM
resolving these and certain other known warranty matters. Under the terms of the Warranty Settlement Agreement, Delphi agreed to pay
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GM up to an estimated $199 million, comprised of approximately $127 million to be paid in cash over time as noted below, and up to
approximately $72 million to be paid in the form of delivery by Delphi to GM of replacement product. The Warranty Settlement
Agreement settled all outstanding warranty claims and issues related to any component or assembly supplied by Delphi to GM, which as
of August 10, 2007 were (i) known by GM, subject to certain specified exceptions, (ii) believed by GM to be Delphi’s responsibility in
whole or in part, and (iii) in GM’s normal investigation process, or which should have been within that process, but were withheld for the
purpose of pursuing a claim against Delphi. Included in the settlement were all warranty claims set forth in GM’s amended proof of claim
filed on July 31, 2006 in connection with Delphi’s chapter 11 cases (“GM’s Proof of Claim”).

In addition, the Warranty Settlement Agreement limited Delphi’s liability related to certain other warranty claims that have become
known by GM on or after June 5, 2007, and generally prohibited both GM and Delphi from initiating actions against the other related to
any warranty claims settled in the agreement. In accordance with the Warranty Settlement Agreement, Delphi’s claims agent reduced the
liquidated component relating to warranty claims contained in GM’s Proof of Claim by approximately $530 million which includes,
among other things, those personal injury claims asserted in GM’s Proof of Claim that relate to warranty claims settled in the agreement,
and expunged with prejudice the unliquidated component relating to warranty claims asserted in GM’s Proof of Claim. Pursuant to the
Warranty Settlement Agreement, GM is foreclosed from bringing any type of claim set forth on the exhibits attached thereto, if it is shown
that on or before August 10, 2007, (i) GM knew about the claim, (ii) the amount of the claim exceeded $1 million, or GM believed the
claim would exceed $1 million, (iii) the claim is in GM’s investigation process or GM determined that it should have been in GM’s
investigation process but excluded it from that process for the purpose of pursuing a claim against Delphi, and (iv) GM believed or
reasonably should have believed that Delphi had some responsibility for the claim.

Delphi elected to defer amounts due under the Warranty Settlement Agreement until its emergence from chapter 11. The amount due
under the Warranty Settlement Agreement accrued interest at the rate of 6% per annum. In conjunction with overall negotiations
regarding potential amendments to the Plan to enable Delphi to emerge from chapter 11 as soon as practicable, including discussions
regarding support assisting Delphi in remaining compliant with the Global EBITDAR covenants in its Amended and Restated DIP Credit
Facility, GM agreed, on July 31, 2008, to forgive certain of the cash amounts due under the Warranty Settlement Agreement, including
any applicable interest. As a result, Delphi recorded the extinguishment of this liability as a reduction of warranty expense in 2008, of
which $107 million was included in cost of sales, which had a corresponding favorable impact on operating income, and $5 million was
included in discontinued operations.

Other Warranty Matters

During 2008, Delphi recovered $17 million from a supplier and recorded it as a reduction of warranty expense in discontinued
operations. Delphi began experiencing quality issues regarding parts supplied to GM from the Steering Business in 2005 and established
warranty reserves to cover the estimated costs of various repairs that may be implemented. The reserve was subsequently reduced due to a
settlement reached with GM and the settlement was paid in 2006. Delphi continued to negotiate with the supplier to determine if any
portion of the expense was recoverable, and in 2008, Delphi and the supplier reached an agreement whereby the supplier paid Delphi $17
million to resolve the matter.

Also during 2008, Delphi recovered $28 million from an affiliated supplier and recorded it as a reduction of warranty expense. Delphi
began experiencing quality issues regarding parts purchased by Delphi’s Thermal Systems segment during 2006 and established warranty
reserves of approximately $60 million to cover the cost of various repairs that may be implemented. The reserve has subsequently been
adjusted for payments, settlements and the impact of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. As of December 31, 2008 and December
31, 2007, the related reserve was $17 million and $41 million, respectively.

During 2007, Delphi observed higher than normal warranty claims on engine electronic control units supplied for certain 2005-2007
vehicle models by Delphi’s Powertrain Systems segment and recorded $93 million of additional warranty expense in cost of sales in 2007.
Delphi continues to negotiate a settlement with its customer on this matter.

Intellectual Property Matters

In December 2007, the Company concluded patent license negotiations with Denso and reached a settlement agreement in connection
with variable valve timing technology. Under the settlement agreement, which was subject to the Court's approval, the Company is
authorized to use the technology pursuant to a license agreement with Denso, and the Company will pay Denso a royalty based upon the
sales of products containing the technology.

Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of individual litigated matters is not predictable with assurance. After

discussions with counsel, it is the opinion of Delphi that the outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse impact on the
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of Delphi.
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Operating Leases

Rental expense totaled $140 million, $154 million and $147 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. As of December 31, 2008, Delphi had minimum lease commitments under noncancelable operating leases totaling $385
million, which become due as follows:

Minimum Future Operating

Year Lease Commitments
(in millions)
2000 ..o $ 92
2070 1ot 73
2011 oot 63
2012 e 52
2013 e 47
Thereafter.......coevivieviericieeecieeceeie s 58
TOtAl oo $ 385

Concentrations of Risk

The Company’s business is labor intensive and utilizes a large number of unionized employees. A strike or other form of significant
work disruption by the unions would likely have an adverse effect on the Company’s ability to operate its business. The majority of
Delphi’s U.S. hourly workforce is represented by two unions, the UAW (approximately 85%) and the International Union of Electronic,
Electrical, Salaried, Machine and Furniture Workers, Industrial Division of the Communication Workers of America, AFL-CIO, CLC
(“IUE-CWA”) (approximately 12%). During the second quarter of 2007, Delphi signed an agreement with the UAW, and during the third
quarter of 2007, Delphi signed agreements with the remainder of its principal U.S. labor unions, which were ratified by the respective
unions and approved by the Court in the third quarter of 2007. Among other things, as approved and confirmed by the Court, this series of
settlement agreements or memoranda of understanding among Delphi, its unions, and GM modify, extend or terminate provisions of the
existing collective bargaining agreements among Delphi and its unions, covering a four-year term with each union.

GM is Delphi’s largest customer and accounted for 31% of its total net sales from continuing operations in 2008, and a portion of
Delphi’s non-GM sales are to Tier 1 suppliers who ultimately sell its products to GM. GM accounts for 52% of Delphi’s net sales in
North America where it has limited ability to adjust its cost structure to changing economic and industry conditions. Additionally,
Delphi’s revenues have been and will continue to be affected by decreases in GM's business or market share. GM has reported a variety
of challenges it is facing, including severe liquidity issues, its relationships with its unions and large shareholders and its cost and pricing
structures as further described in Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Delphi’s other domestic customers are facing similar pressures and challenges as those that GM is facing. Global sales to Ford Motor
Company and Chrysler Corporation were approximately 6% and 1% of total sales in 2008, respectively.

19. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

As part of our operations, we have investments in 15 non-consolidated affiliates. These affiliates are not publicly traded companies
and are located primarily in Korea, China, the U.S., Mexico, Japan, India, Spain, and Belgium. Our ownership percentages vary generally
from approximately 20% to 50%, with our most significant investments in Korea Delphi Automotive Systems Corporation (of which we
own 50%), Daesung Electric Co. Ltd (of which we own 49.5%), and Promotora de Partes Electricas Automotrices, S.A. de C.V. (of which
we own 40%). Our aggregate investment in non-consolidated affiliates was $303 million and $396 million at December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively, of which $9 million was recorded in assets held for sale in 2007. Delphi has received dividends of $11 million, $45
million and $19 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, from non-consolidated affiliates.
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The following is a summary of the combined financial information for our significant affiliates accounted for under the equity method
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 (unaudited):

As of December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
CUTTENE SSEES ...veeviieeeeeeeeeeeeee e et et eee et ee et e eeee e e eae e $ 818 § 1,128
NON-CUITENLE ASSELS....eeiiieriieeeiiieeeirieeeiiieeesreeeeeireeeeereeesaneas 501 584
TOtAl ASSELS ...vvievveeveeireeete ettt ettt ettt ere e ens $ 1,319 $ 1,712
Current lHabilities ...........cooeiieiiiiiiiieceee e, $ 504 § 662
Non-current Habilities .........c....oooveieiiiiiieieiie e, 197 240
Stockholders’ eqUIty ......cevvereerieiieeeee e 618 810
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............ccoeunneee.. § 1319 § 1712
Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
NEE SALES ..ot $ 2,477 $ 2926 $ 2595
GrOSS Profit...cececeieceicriierecieeeecree e, $ 273§ 390§ 399
NEt INCOME ..o, $ 53 $ 9 3 122
A summary of transactions with affiliates is shown below:
Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
Sales to affiliates...........ccoevveveeveiieeieeeeeneane, $ 48 $ 72 $ 71
Purchases from affiliates ...............ccccoevvenenenn, $ 267 $ 323§ 281
20. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET
Other income (expense), net included:
Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
INEEIESt INCOME......veivieeeieteeereeeeeeecteete et ete et e ete e e e ereereeeteereeereereeeeeneenreens $ 38 $ 68 $ 50
Other, net......cccccoeevveeeiieeenen. _ 31 _ 42 _(10)
Other income, net $ 69 $110 $ 40

Other, net for the year ended December 31, 2008 includes a $32 million gain from the sale of an investment accounted for under the
cost method that had been previously fully impaired, which was offset by $16 million of expense related to an allowance recorded against
a note receivable. Other, net for the year ended December 31, 2007 includes $36 million received from GM pursuant to an intellectual
property license agreement.

21. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Delphi’s share-based compensation programs include stock options, restricted stock units, and stock appreciation rights (“SAR”). The
Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based Payments (“SFAS No. 123(R)”), effective January 1, 2006 using the
modified-prospective method. This method does not require prior period amounts to be restated to reflect the adoption of SFAS No.
123(R). SFAS No. 123(R) requires compensation cost to be recognized for equity or liability instruments based on the grant-date fair
value, with expense recognized over the periods that an employee provides service in exchange for the award. In addition, SFAS No.
123(R) requires the Company to estimate forfeitures at the grant date, while prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company
accounted for forfeitures as they occurred. The related adjustment is a benefit of $3 million (there is no income tax effect due to the fact
Delphi has a full valuation allowance for all of its U.S. net deferred tax assets) and has been presented separately as a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle in the financial statements. In addition, while the Company will recognize compensation cost for newly
issued equity or liability instruments over the periods that an employee provides service in exchange for the award, the Company will
continue to follow a nominal vesting approach for all awards issued prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).
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Approximately $10 million, $14 million and $28 million of share-based compensation cost was recognized during 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively, of which $5 million and $5 million are included in loss from discontinued operations for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. As described below, 2008 expense was primarily related to the cancellation of all outstanding restricted
stock units in May 2008. All previously issued stock options had been expensed.

Share-Based Compensation Plans

Delphi has no intention during bankruptcy to deliver approximately 22 million shares of stock for future grants under its Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“LTIP”). As aresult, as of December 31, 2005, there were no shares available for future grants of options or restricted
stock units. In addition, to date, Delphi has not issued common stock for any option that was granted but unvested at the time of the
Chapter 11 Filings that subsequently vested.

A summary of activity for the Company’s stock options is as follows:
Stock Weighted Average

Options (a) Exercise Price
(in thousands)

Outstanding as of January 1, 2008 ........... 67,968 $13.49
Granted .....c.oooeeeveeineinieereeeneeeee — —
Exercised ......c.ccoeveiiinininicceee — —
Forfeited........oeueeeennnieieeinreeiecene (9.015) $13.81
Outstanding as of December 31, 2008 ..... 58,953 $13.43
Options exercisable December 31, 2008 58,953 $13.43

(a) Includes options that were granted and unvested at the time of the Chapter 11 Filings on October 8, 2005. The
Company cancelled future grants of stock-based compensation under its long-term incentive plan and will not issue any
shares of common stock pursuant to previously granted stock option awards that had not vested prior to the
commencement of reorganization cases.

The following is a summary of the range of weighted average remaining lives of options outstanding and exercisable as of December
31, 2008:

Approved by Stockholders

Range of Outstanding Weighted Average Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average
Exercise Prices Stock Options Remaining Life Exercise Price Stock Options Exercisable Exercise Price
(in thousands) (in thousands)
$0.00-$10.00 9,986 43 $ 843 9,986 $§ 843
$10.01-$20.00 33,214 2.6 $ 13.31 33,214 $ 1331
$20.01-$30.00 60 — $ 20.64 60 $ 20.64
43,260 $ 12.20 43,260 $ 12.20
Other Plans
Range of Outstanding Weighted Average Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average
Exercise Prices Stock Options Remaining Life Exercise Price Stock Options Exercisable Exercise Price
(in thousands) (in thousands)
$0.00-$10.00 — — s — _ § —
$10.01-$20.00 13,807 0.8 $ 16.29 13,807 $ 16.29
$20.01-$30.00 1.886 — $ 20.64 1.886 $ 20.64
15,693 $ 16.81 15,693 $ 16.81
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Restricted Stock Units

A summary of activity for the Company’s restricted stock units is as follows:

Weighted Average
Restricted Grant Date
Stock Units Fair Value
(in thousands)

Non-vested at January 1, 2008 ...........cccoeveiereeeierennnnes, 6,342 $ 8.47
VESEEA. ...t (1,741) $ 7.51
FOIfeited .....covveueirieiiirieiieccc e (159) $ 8.31
Cancelled........ooeiririeiiieieee e (4.442) $ 8.86
Non-vested at December 31, 2008 ...........ccooevvvveevernennne. — § —

In May 2008, Delphi cancelled all non-vested restricted stock units, resulting in the recording of $7 million of unrecognized
compensation cost. As of December 31, 2007, there was approximately $12 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-
vested restricted stock units.

22. SEGMENT REPORTING

Delphi’s operating structure consists of its core business within four segments that support its previously identified strategic product
lines, as well as the Automotive Holdings Group, consisting of business operations to be sold or wound down. An overview of Delphi’s
reporting segments, which are grouped on the basis of similar product, market and operating factors, follows:

e Electronics and Safety, which includes audio, entertainment and communications, safety systems, body controls and security
systems, displays, mechatronics and power electronics, as well as advanced development of software and silicon.

e Powertrain Systems, which includes extensive systems integration expertise in gasoline, diesel and fuel handling and full end-
to-end systems including fuel injection, combustion, electronics controls, exhaust handling, and test and validation
capabilities.

e Electrical/Electronic Architecture, which includes complete electrical architecture and component products.

e  Thermal Systems, which includes Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning (“HVAC”) systems, components for multiple
transportation and other adjacent markets, and powertrain cooling and related technologies.

e Automotive Holdings Group, which includes various non-core product lines and plant sites that do not fit Delphi’s future
strategic framework.

e  Corporate and Other, which includes the Product and Service Solutions business which is comprised of automotive
aftermarket, including diesel and original equipment service, consumer electronics and medical systems, in addition to the
expenses of corporate administration, other expenses and income of a non-operating or strategic nature, and the elimination of
inter-segment transactions and charges related to U.S. employee workforce transition programs.

We also have non-core steering and halfshaft product lines and interiors and closures product lines that are reported in discontinued
operations. Previously, the steering and halfshaft product line was a separate operating segment and the interiors and closures product line
was part of our Automotive Holdings Group segment. Refer to Note 5. Discontinued Operations for more information.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies, except that the
disaggregated financial results for the segments have been prepared using a management approach, which is consistent with the basis and
manner in which management internally disaggregates financial information for the purposes of assisting internal operating decisions.
Generally, Delphi evaluates performance based on stand-alone segment operating income and operating income before depreciation and
amortization, including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment charges, transformation and rationalization charges and discontinued
operations (“OIBDAR”) and accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, at current
market prices. Delphi’s management believes that OIBDAR is a meaningful measure of performance and it is used by management and
the Board of Directors to analyze Company and stand-alone segment operating performance. Management also uses OIBDAR for
planning and forecasting purposes.

Certain segment assets, primarily within the Electronics and Safety segment, are utilized for operations of other core segments.

Income and expense related to operation of those assets, including depreciation, are allocated to and included within the measures of
segment profit or loss of the core segment that sells the related product to the third parties.
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Included below are sales and operating data for Delphi’s segments for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 as well as
balance sheet data as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Electrical/ Automotive
Electronics Powertrain Electronic Thermal Holdings Corporate
and Safety Systems Architecture Systems Group and Other(a) Total
(in millions)
2008:
Net sales to GM and affiliates ... $ 1,165 $ 1,075 $ 1,440 $ 1,083 $ 471 $ 291 $ 5,525
Net sales to other customers ...... 2,739 3,009 4,064 957 780 986 12,535
Inter-segment net sales............... 144 386 145 81 97 (853) —
Total net sales.....oovvvenennn. $ 4,048 $ 4470 $ 5,649 $ 2,121 $ 1,348 $ 424 $ 18,060

GM settlement (Note 2 —

MRA) oo $ (42) $ 94 $ (15) $ (88) $ (62) $ 47 $ (254)
Depreciation & Amortization .... $ 235 $ 248 $ 187 $ 71 $ 32 $ 54 $ 827
Long-lived asset impairment

Charges .......cccovvvevevevereereerieans $ 15 $ — $ 2 $ 10 $ 10 $ — $ 37
Goodwill impairment charges.... $ 157 $ — $ 168 $ — $ — $ — $ 325
Operating income (loss) (b) ....... $ (654) $ (130) $ (361) $ 18 $ (68) $ (286) $  (1,481)
OIBDAR () coooovveveeeeeeeen. $ 70) $ 120 $ 96 $ 39 $ 44 $ 40 $ 269
Minority INerest ... $ — 8 a3y s a1y s @ s s — 5 @
Equity income (loss) $ — $ 3 $ 9 $ 6 $ 22 3 5 $ 1

2007:
Net sales to GM and affiliates ... $ 1,606 $ 1,563 $ 1,750 $ 1,355 $ 1,585 $ 442 $ 8,301
Net sales to other customers....... 3,179 3,607 4,038 937 1,172 1,049 13,982
Inter-segment net sales............... 250 493 180 120 189 (1.232) —
Total net sales $§ 5,035 $ 5,663 $§ 5968 $§ 2412 $ 2946 $ 259 $§ 22283
Depreciation & Amortization ... $ 267 $ 266 $ 175 $ 61 $ 63 $ 82 $ 914
Long-lived asset impairment

Charges ......ovueveeveeeeerieieeiereinns $ 1 $ 13 $ 6 $ — $ 78 $ — $ 98
Operating income (loss) (C) ....... $ 63 $ (276)  $ 36) $ 29 3 (393) $ (1,274) $  (1,945)
(0)123D 7N 2 () [ $ 439 $ 125 $ 329 $ 84 $ 73 $ 319) $ 731
Minority Interest ...........cceeueeee. $ M $ (2% $ (22) $ (©)) $ - $ ©) $ (63)
Equity income (10SS) .................. $ 1 $ 15 $ 2 s 6 $ (O 8 $ 27

2006:
Net sales to GM and affiliates... $ 1,587 $ 1,745 $ 1,772 $ 1,600 $ 2,031 $ 609 $ 9,344
Net sales to other customers ...... 3,278 3,399 3,420 849 1,376 1,071 13,393
Inter-segment net sales............... 228 421 173 158 231 (1.211) —
Total net ales......oovvovvevnnnn. $ 5,093 $§ 5565 $ 5365 $ 2,607 $ 3,638 $ 469 $ 22,737
Depreciation & Amortization ... $ 268 $ 260 $ 175 $ 67 $ 100 $ 84 $ 954
Long-lived asset impairment

Charges .......cocoeeueurueueicciens $ 4 $ 12 $ 1 $ 11 $ 144 $ — $ 172
Operating income (loss) (d)....... $ 188 $ (128)  § (110) $ (170)  $ (488) $ (3,834) $  (4542)
OIBDAR (f) coveiieieieieieieiene $ 489 $ 234 $ 154 $ (6) $ (121) $ (864) $ (114)
Minority Interest ..........cccccoeenne. $ (©) $ (28) $ an $ 9 $ - $ 8 $ (34)
Equity income (108S) .................. $ 6 $ 10 $ 18 $ (11) $ 16 $ 5 $ 44
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Electrical/ Automotive

Electronics Powertrain Electronic Thermal Holdings Corporate
and Safety Systems Architecture Systems Group(e) and Other(a) Total

(in millions)
Balance as of:
December 31, 2008

Investment in affiliates.............. $ 40 $ 57 $ 104 $ 61 $ 25 $ 16 $ 303
GoodWill.......ooeveeeiiiciciciienne $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 62 $ 62
Capital expenditures.................. $ 166 $ 306 $ 179 $ 98 $ 15 $ 33 $ 797
Segment assets ..........coeceeenenene $ 2,651 $ 3,084 $ 3,163 $ 1,112 $ 406 $ (110) $ 10,306
December 31, 2007
Investment in affiliates.............. $ 46 $ 61 $ 130 $ 77 $ 50 $ 23 $ 387
GoodWill.......ccoooveerierieiiieien, $ 155 $ — $ 165 $ — $ — $ 77 $ 397
Capital expenditures.................. $ 161 $ 149 $ 182 $ 66 $ 3 $ 19 $ 580
Segment assets .........c.cceveunnnne. $ 3,610 $ 3,450 $ 4,001 $ 1,288 $ 1,261 $ 57 $ 13,667

(a) Corporate and Other includes the elimination of inter-segment transactions and charges related to U.S. employee workforce transition programs in
the amount of $78 million in 2008, $212 million in 2007 and $2,706 million in 2006 (Refer to Note 16. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition
Programs). Corporate and Other also includes the Product and Service Solutions business, which is comprised of independent aftermarket, diesel
aftermarket, original equipment service, consumer electronics and medical systems. Additionally, Corporate and Other includes assets held for sale
of $497 million and $594 million within Segment assets for 2008 and 2007, respectively.

(b) Includes charges recorded in 2008 related to long-lived asset and goodwill impairments and costs associated with employee termination benefits
and other exit costs of $319 million for Electronics and Safety, $63 million for Powertrain Systems, $248 million for Electrical/Electronic
Architecture, $34 million for Thermal Systems, $98 million for Automotive Holdings Group and $14 million for Corporate and Other.

(c) Includes charges recorded in 2007 related to long-lived asset impairments and costs associated with employee termination benefits and other exit
costs with $37 million for Electronics and Safety, $68 million for Powertrain Systems, $138 million for Electrical/Electronic Architecture, $48
million for Thermal Systems, $317 million for Automotive Holdings Group and $30 million for Corporate and Other.

(d) Includes charges recorded in 2006 related to long-lived asset impairments and costs associated with employee termination benefits and other exit
costs with $22 million for Electronics and Safety, $70 million for Powertrain Systems, $83 million for Electrical/Electronic Architecture, $84
million for Thermal Systems, $171 million for Automotive Holdings Group and $11 million for Corporate and Other.

(e) Includes assets held for sale of $126 million within Segment assets for 2007.

(f) Delphi’s management relies on segment OIBDAR as a key performance measure. OIBDAR is defined as operating income before depreciation and
amortization, including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment charges, transformation and rationalization charges related to plant
consolidations, plant wind-downs and discontinued operations. Segment OIBDAR should not be considered a substitute for results prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP and should not be considered an alternative to operating income, which is the most directly comparable financial
measure to OIBDAR that is in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Segment OIBDAR, as determined and measured by Delphi, should also not be
compared to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

The calculation of OIBDAR, as derived from operating income, is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:

Electrical/ Automotive
Electronics Powertrain Electronic Thermal Holdings Corporate
and Safety Systems Architecture Systems Group and Other Total
(in millions)
2008:
Operating income (10SS) ..........cc.vververrrrnn. $ (654)  $ (130) 8 (361) $ 18 $ (68) S8 (286) $ (1.481)
Depreciation and amortization..................... 235 248 187 71 32 54 827
Long-lived asset impairment charges.......... 15 — 2 10 10 — 37
Goodwill impairment charges ..................... 157 — 168 — — — 325
Transformation and rationalization
charges:

U.S. employee workforce transition

program charges .........cccoecevveenenne — — — — — 78 78
GM settlement — MRA (42) (94) (15) (88) (62) 47 (254)
Employee termination benefits and

other eXit COSS....ooveirreirrerrieirienennen 147 63 78 24 88 14 414
Loss on divestitures..........cocevvevevennenene. 13 14 — — 34 — 61
Other transformation and

rationalization COSts ..........c.cecvrveuenn 59 19 37 4 — 128 247

Discontinued operations.............c....c.ceueeen.. — — — — 10 5 15

10012307\ 2 SO $ a0 $ 120 $ 96 $ 39 $ 44 $ 40 $ 269

Other transformation and rationalization costs for the year ended December 31, 2008 primarily includes approximately $140 million
of costs necessary to implement information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development initiatives;
and approximately $60 million of costs related to Delphi’s engineering and manufacturing footprint rotation, certain plant consolidations
and closures, and startup costs related to the consolidation of many staff administrative functions into a global business service group.
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Electrical/ Automotive

Electronics Powertrain Electronic Thermal Holdings Corporate
and Safety Systems Architecture Systems Group and Other Total
(in millions)

2007:

Operating income (1088) .........cccoerueueueueuennen $ 63 $ (276) $ (36) $ (29) $ (393) $  (1,274) $  (1,945)
Depreciation and amortization..................... 267 266 175 61 63 82 914
Long-lived asset impairment charges.......... 1 13 6 — 78 — 98
Transformation and rationalization

charges:

U.S. employee workforce transition

program charges ...........ccoecevveeevenenns — — — — — 212 212
Securities & ERISA litigation

— — — — — 343 343

Employee termination benefits and
other eXit COSS ....cvvverrrrerrrereirienenes 36 55 132 48 239 30 540
Loss on divestitures.........c.ccccvevrereenens — 30 — — — — 30

Other transformation and

rationalization COSts ...........c.ceceeeuenne 72 37 52 4 5 77 247
Discontinued operations.............c.coceeeeennne — — — — 81 211 292
OIBDAR.......coviiiiicicicieieneee $ 439 $ 125 $ 329 $ 84 $ 73 $ 319) $ 731

Other transformation and rationalization costs for the year ended December 31, 2007 includes approximately $110 million of costs
incurred for the deployment of the Company’s enterprise software solution, including the implementation of a perpetual inventory system,
as well as costs necessary to implement information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development
initiatives; approximately $60 million of costs related to Delphi’s engineering and manufacturing footprint rotation, certain plant
consolidations and closures, and startup costs related to the consolidation of many staff administrative functions into a global business
service group, and $32 million related to employee benefit plan settlements in Mexico.

Electrical/ Automotive
Electronics Powertrain Electronic Thermal Holdings Corporate
and Safety Systems Architecture Systems Group and Other Total
(in millions)
2006:
Operating income (10SS) ..........cc.rverrerrrrnn. $ 188 $ (128) 8 (110)  $ (170) 8 (483) $ (3,834 $  (4542)
Depreciation and amortization..................... 268 260 175 67 100 84 954
Long-lived asset impairment charges .......... 4 12 1 11 144 — 172
Transformation and rationalization
charges:
U.S. employee workforce transition
Program charges .........coceocveveevereenene — — — — — 2,706 2,706
Employee termination benefits and
other exit COSES .....overrereireririnieene 18 58 82 73 27 11 269
Other transformation and
rationalization COSts ...........c.cccceeueee 11 32 6 13 39 90 191
Discontinued Operations...............cc.eeervee.. — — — — 57 79 136
OIBDAR $ 489 $ 234 $ 154 $ (6) $ 121) $ (864) $ 14)

Other transformation and rationalization costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 includes approximately $70 million of costs
incurred to complete a number of environmental investigations in conjunction with our transformation plan; and approximately $40
million of costs necessary to implement information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development

initiatives.
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Information concerning principal geographic areas is set forth below. Net sales data reflects the manufacturing location and is for the
years ended December 31. Net property data is as of December 31.

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales
Other Net Other Net Other Net

GM Customers Total Property GM Customers Total Property GM  Customers Total Property
(dollars in millions)

North America $ 4,026 $ 3,645 $ 7,671 $ 1,425 $ 6,782 $ 4975 $11,757 $ 1,906 $ 8,040 $ 5,881 $13,921 § 2,024
Europe, Middle East, &

Africa 885 6,346 7,231 1,412 1,002 6,396 7,398 1,476 879 5,463 6,342 1,539
Asia Pacific 104 1,917 2,021 429 76 2,105 2,181 341 71 1,700 1,771 367
South America 510 627 1,137 131 441 506 947 140 354 349 703 136
Total $ 5,525 $12,535 $18,060 $ 3,397 §$ 8301 $13,982 $22283 $ 3,863 $ 9,344 $13,393 $22,737 $ 4,066

23. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Delphi’s financial instruments include its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, unsecured notes, junior subordinated notes, and
other financing instruments. The fair value of these financial instruments is based on quoted market prices for instruments with public
market data or the current book value for instruments without a quoted public market price. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the total
of the financial instruments listed above was recorded at $6.6 billion and $5.9 billion, respectively, and had estimated fair values of $1.6
billion and $4.9 billion, respectively. For all other financial instruments recorded at December 31, 2008 and 2007, fair value approximates
book value.

Delphi is exposed to market risk, such as fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and changes in interest
rates, which may result in cash flow risks. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures, Delphi aggregates the exposures on a
consolidated basis to take advantage of natural offsets. For exposures that are not offset within its operations, Delphi enters into various
derivative transactions pursuant to risk management policies. Designation is performed on a transaction basis to support hedge accounting
for most transactions. The changes in fair value of these hedging instruments are offset in part or in whole by corresponding changes in
the fair value or cash flows of the underlying exposures being hedged. Delphi assesses the initial and ongoing effectiveness of its hedging
relationships in accordance with its documented policy. Delphi does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes.

Delphi has foreign currency exchange exposure from buying and selling in currencies other than the functional currencies of its
operating units. The primary purpose of the Company’s foreign currency hedging activities is to manage the volatility associated with
forecasted foreign currency purchases and sales. Principal currencies hedged include the Mexican Peso, Euro, Turkish New Lira,
Romanian New Leu, and Hungarian Forint. Delphi primarily utilizes forward exchange contracts with average maturities of less than
24 months, which qualify as cash flow hedges.

Delphi has exposure to the prices of commodities in the procurement of certain raw materials. The primary purpose of the
Company’s commodity price hedging activities is to manage the volatility associated with these forecasted purchases. Delphi primarily
utilizes forward contracts with average maturities of less than 24 months, which qualify as cash flow hedges. These instruments are
intended to offset the effect of changes in commodity prices on forecasted purchases.

Delphi did not have any interest rate derivative instruments outstanding at December 31, 2008 or 2007.
All derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair value reported currently
through earnings unless the transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales or meet special hedge accounting criteria.

The fair value of foreign currency and commodity derivative instruments are determined using exchange traded prices and rates.
Additionally, adjustments for non-performance risk are also considered in determining fair value.
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The fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)
CUITENE SSELS ..t $ 12 $ 40
NON-CUITENT ASSELS ...veeiievvieeeireeeeeeeeeecereeeeereeeeennns — 13
TOtal ASSELS...uvvviieeeeieeeeeeeeeeee e $ 12 $ 53
Current liabilities........c.coovevverierieieeieceeseeienee. $ (132) $ 24
Non-current liabilities ......cccovvvvveeiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeenns (36) —
Total Habilities ......ccovevveeeeeiieeeeeee e $ (168) $ 24

The fair value of financial instruments recorded decreased from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008 primarily due to the
decrease in the market price of commodities and certain foreign currencies.

Gains and losses on derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges are recorded in OCI, to the extent that hedges are effective, until the
underlying transactions are recognized in earnings. Unrealized amounts in OCI will fluctuate based on changes in the fair value of open
hedge derivative contracts at each reporting period. Net unrealized losses included in OCI as of December 31, 2008, were $194 million
and net gains of $52 million were included in OCI as of December 31, 2007. Of the December 31, 2008 OCI balance, a loss of
approximately $137 million is expected to be included in cost of sales within the next 12 months and a loss of approximately $56 million
is expected to be included in cost of sales in subsequent periods and a loss of approximately $1 million is expected to be included in
depreciation and amortization expense over the lives of the related fixed assets. Cash flow hedges are discontinued when it is probable
that the original forecasted transactions will not occur. The amount included in cost of sales related to hedge ineffectiveness was $12
million, $2 million and $7 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The amount included in cost of
sales related to natural gas hedges that no longer qualified for hedge accounting due to changes in the underlying purchase contracts was
not significant in 2008 or 2007 and was $14 million in 2006.

Primarily during the fourth quarter of 2008, substantial volatility in the commodity and currency markets significantly impacted the
price of commodities and foreign currency exchange rates that impact Delphi’s operations. Two of Delphi’s largest exposures, copper and
the Mexican Peso to U.S. Dollar exchange rate, experienced substantial volatility during the fourth quarter of 2008. As a result of the
market volatility, Delphi has experienced unrealized losses in its derivative contracts. As of December 31, 2008, Delphi was in a net
derivative liability position for its hedging portfolio. As discussed further in Note 24. Fair Value Measurements, Delphi’s net derivative
liability position was reduced by $296 million to $168 million for its non-performance risk. The reduction to the net derivative liability
resulted in an increase to pre-tax earnings of $9 million, recorded as a reduction to cost of sales. The remaining adjustment amount of
$287 million is reflected in the net losses of $194 million included in OCI as of December 31, 2008 discussed above as it related to
derivative financial instruments that qualify as hedges. As a result of the net liability position for its hedging portfolio as of December 31,
2008, Delphi’s most recent weekly borrowing base computation, as further described in Note 15. Debt, included the maximum deduction
from its borrowing base of $275 million.

The Accommodation Agreement imposes restrictions on Delphi’s ability to enter into hedging transactions. Specifically, the
Accommodation Agreement disallows any new hedging activity, with the exception of any transactions to offset existing hedge positions.
Additionally, the Accommodation Agreement enables participant lenders to terminate hedging agreements if the aggregate liability of
Delphi’s hedge exposure exceeds $500 million, as defined in the Accommodation Agreement.

24. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in U.S. GAAP, and expands the disclosure
requirements regarding fair value measurements. The rule does not introduce new requirements mandating the use of fair value.

SFAS 157 defines fair value as “the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.” The definition of fair value is based on an exit price rather than an entry price,
regardless of whether the entity plans to hold or sell the asset, and fair value should be based on assumptions that market participants
would use, including non-performance risk. SFAS 157 also establishes a fair value hierarchy to prioritize inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows:

e Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

e Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own
assumptions.
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of the following three valuation techniques noted in SFAS 157:

a. Market approach: Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets
or liabilities.

b. Cost approach: Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).

c. Income approach: Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based upon market expectations (including
present value techniques, option-pricing and excess earnings models).

All derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair value reported currently
through earnings unless the transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales or meet hedge accounting criteria.
Delphi’s derivative exposures are with counterparties with long-term investment grade credit ratings. Delphi estimates the fair value of its
derivative contracts using an income approach based on valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single, discounted amount.
Estimates of the fair value of foreign currency and commodity derivative instruments are determined using exchange traded prices and
rates. Delphi also considers the risk of non-performance in the estimation of fair value, and includes an adjustment for non-performance
risk in the measure of fair value of derivative instruments. The non-performance risk adjustment reflects the full credit default spread
(“CDS”) applied to the net commodity and foreign currency exposures by counterparty. When Delphi is in a net derivative asset position,
the counterparty CDS rates are applied to the net derivative asset position. When Delphi is in a net derivative liability position, estimates
of Delphi’s CDS rates are applied to the net derivative liability position.

In certain instances where market data is not available, Delphi uses management judgment to develop assumptions that are used to
determine fair value. This could include situations of market illiquidity for a particular currency or commodity or where observable
market data may be limited. In those situations, Delphi generally surveys investment banks and/or brokers and utilizes the surveyed prices
and rates in estimating fair value.

As of December 31, 2008, Delphi was in a net derivative liability position. As a result of Delphi’s chapter 11 proceedings, CDS rates
are currently not available for Delphi debt. As a result, Delphi obtained estimates of trading levels for its debt from investment banks as
well as CDS rates for similarly situated entities to apply to its net derivative liability position for non-performance risk. The adjustment
for non-performance risk reduced Delphi’s net derivative liability position by $296 million to $168 million. The reduction to the net
derivative liability resulted in an increase to pre-tax earnings of $9 million, recorded as a reduction to cost of sales. The remaining
adjustment amount of $287 million is reflected within equity as a component of OCI as it related to derivative financial instruments that
qualify as hedges. There was no material adjustment for non-performance risk related to derivative assets as of December 31, 2008 as
Delphi’s net derivative asset position at December 31, 2008 related to exposures with counterparties with investment grade credit ratings.

As of December 31, 2008, Delphi had the following assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant Other Significant
Quoted Prices in Observable Unobservable
Total as of Active Markets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2008 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)

Available for sale SECUTItIES .........ovvrverererririierieeeieiennnns $ 32 $ 23 $ 9 $ —
Foreign currency derivatives ............cocevveereeuecrieeniennns 12 — — 12
TOLAL oottt $ 44 $ 23 $ 9 $ 12

As of December 31, 2008, Delphi had the following liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant Other Significant

Quoted Prices in Observable Unobservable
Total as of Active Markets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2008 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
Commodity derivatives .........cceeeirerierererererieeesesererennns $ 99 $ — $ — $ 99
Foreign currency derivatives .. 69 — — 69
TOtAl.ceieietieeeee e 3 168 3 — $ — $ 168
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The following table summarizes the changes in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the year
ended December 31, 2008.

Fair Value Measurement Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3):

Changes to
Total Unrealized
Realized / Net Transfers Gains /
Fair Value Unrealized Net Into / Fair Value (Losses) on
January 1, Gains / Purchases / (Out of) December 31, Instruments
2008 (Losses) (Settlements) Level 3 2008 Still Held
(in millions)
Commodity and foreign currency

derivatives.......ccovevveeeeereerererereen, $ — $ 147y $ 38 § 29 $ ase) § (163)
Total Level 3 Fair Value ........... $ — $ 147) $ (38) $ 29 $ (156) $ (163)

25. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2008 that, although they do not impact the reported balances or results of
operations as of that date, are material to the Company’s ongoing operations. These events are listed below.

Amendment to Accommodation Agreement

On January 30, 2009, Delphi reached agreement with its lenders to amend (the “Amendment”) the Accommodation Agreement. In
support of Delphi’s efforts to develop a modified reorganization plan adapted to the current global economic environment, the lenders
agreed to modify certain financial covenants and pay-down requirements contained in the Accommodation Agreement. In addition, GM
agreed to immediately accelerate payment of $50 million in payables to Delphi under the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments
Agreement and to, no later than February 27, 2009, either accelerate payment of an additional $50 million in payables under such
agreement or increase from $300 million to $350 million the amount which it is committed to advance under the GM Advance
Agreement. The Amendment and GM’s agreement to accelerate payments were effective January 30, 2009; however, both agreements
were subject to satisfaction of certain post-closing conditions, including Court approval and in the case of the Amendment, the payment of
fees to the consenting lenders. The Company filed motions with the Court seeking approval of these agreements and authority to pay the
applicable fees. Just prior to the hearing on such motions, the lenders and Delphi agreed to a further supplemental amendment to the
Accommodation Agreement (the “Supplemental Amendment”), to further extend certain milestone dates, and on February 24, 2009 the
Court approved the Amendment, the Supplemental Amendment and the amendment to the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments
Agreement.

Pursuant to the Amendment, the lenders have agreed to modify certain covenants contained in the Accommodation Agreement.
Specifically the Amendment provides for:

—  Revised rolling 12-month cumulative Global EBITDAR covenant levels based upon the current economic and automotive
environment as follows:

Period Ending Global EBITDAR
(in millions)

January 31,2009 ........cccovvveverennne, $185

February 28, 2009 .......cccevevrrenenne, $(50)

March 31,2009 ......c.ccovvevieieieiennn, $(150)

April 30,2009 .......ccoeveieieieieenn, $(250)

May 31, 2009 ....ccoooeeieieieeeee, $(350)

—  An additional cash collateral basket of up to $117 million (the “Basket”), which solely for purposes of the prepayment
provisions in the Accommodation Agreement is considered an offset to amounts outstanding under the Revolving Facility
(provided during February 2009). The Basket may be released to Delphi (and each such release may not be restored) upon the
satisfaction of certain conditions described below.

By February 27, 2009 GM agreed that it would either (a) convert, subject to obtaining the approval of the Court and obtaining any
required approvals from the President’s Designee pursuant to its loan agreement with the U.S. Treasury, the $50 million acceleration of
payment terms referred to above to increase the amount available under the GM Advance Agreement to an aggregate of $350 million or
(b) accelerate an additional $50 million in advances. The Amendment further provided that if GM chose option (a), the prescribed
minimum borrower liquidity level in the Accommodation Agreement would be reduced to $50 million and the target cash balance in the
GM Advance Agreement would be increased to $50 million, provided that all necessary approvals to amend the GM Advance Agreement
have been received, before March 25, 2009. On February 27, 2009, GM chose option (a) and committed to increase from $300 million to
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$350 million the amounts available under the GM Advance Agreement, subject to receipt prior to March 24, 2009, of required approvals
of the President’s Designee in accordance with the provisions of GM’s federal loans and prior to March 25, 2009, approval of the Court.

To provide additional liquidity support, the Amendment (as modified by the Supplemental Amendment) further provides that the
amounts in the Basket may be released to Delphi if each of the following conditions is satisfied at the time of the release (a) by April 2,
2009 Delphi has filed a plan of reorganization or modifications to Delphi’s existing plan of reorganization meeting the conditions
specified in the Accommodation Agreement and the 10 business day notice period after April 2, 2009 has elapsed without the majority of
Tranche A and Tranche B lenders or majority of all lenders who signed the Accommodation Agreement having delivered notice that such
plan of reorganization or modifications to Delphi’s existing Plan of Reorganization are not satisfactory, (b) after giving effect to the
release, Delphi is compliant with the mandatory prepayment provisions in the Accommodation Agreement and all other covenants in the
Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility as modified by the Accommodation Agreement and the Amendment, and (c) prior to March
25,2009 GM has agreed and has obtained all required approvals to increase the available amounts under the GM Advance Agreement to
$450 million (which includes any conversion by GM of the previously accelerated payables described above into advances under the GM
Advance Agreement). As noted above, GM has committed to increase to $450 million the amounts available under the GM Advance
Agreement, subject to (i) GM not being notified by the President’s Designee that such increase is not permitted in accordance with the
provisions of GM's federal loans, (ii) Court approval, (iii) the GM board of directors' approval, (iv) Delphi and GM executing a definitive
transaction agreement relating to the sale of Delphi's Steering Business, and (v) Court approval of the Steering Business Option Exercise
Agreement. The Option Exercise Agreement contains a procedure for completing the definitive transaction agreement relating to the sale
of the Steering Business to GM which, among other things, takes into account the terms of the Amended MRA and certain modifications
set forth in the Option Exercise Agreement. Based on the terms of the Option Exercise Agreement and the Amended MRA, the terms
upon which the Steering Business will be sold to GM have been substantially agreed by GM and Delphi. The Option Exercise Agreement
is subject to conditions described below under Steering and Halfshaft Business. Provided all necessary approvals are received and all
conditions are satisfied to increase the amounts available under the GM Advance Agreement to $450 million prior to March 25, 2009, the
targeted cash balance amount will be increased to $50 million. Delphi believes GM’s commitment to increase availability under the GM
Advance Agreement is a significant step toward Delphi being able to access amounts in the Basket.

Notwithstanding the above, Delphi will be required to apply all amounts in the Basket to pay down the Amended and Restated DIP
Credit Facility under the following circumstances: (i) Delphi has not delivered to the agent under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit
Facility a proposal to GM regarding Delphi’s North American sites and the related GM plan to support Delphi’s overall emergence plan
by February 17, 2009 (the “Proposal”); (ii) Delphi has not delivered to the agent under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility a
business plan incorporating the Proposal by February 20, 2009 (the “Business Plan”) and shall have delivered a supplement to such
proposal by March 24, 2009; (iii) a majority of lenders executing the Amendment direct the agent under the Amended and Restated DIP
Credit Facility on or before March 6, 2009 that the Proposal or the Business Plan is not satisfactory, (iv) a majority of lenders executing
the supplement to the First Amendment shall direct the agent under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility on or prior to April 7,
2009 that the March 24, 2009 supplement referred to in clause (ii) is not satisfactory, (v) if Delphi fails to file a plan of reorganization or
modifications to its existing plan of reorganization meeting the conditions specified in the Accommodation Agreement by April 2, 2009 or
if within 10 business days of such filing the majority of Tranche A and Tranche B lenders or majority of all lenders who signed the
Accommodation Agreement deliver notice that such filing is not satisfactory, or (vi) if on March 24, 2009 there is less than $450 million
of aggregate availability committed under the GM Advance Agreement. Delphi did timely deliver the Proposal and Business Plan to the
agent as provided in clauses (i) and (ii) above and to date has not received any indication that such items were not satisfactory. In
addition, Delphi will be required to apply an amount equal to twenty percent of the aggregate amount in the Basket to pay down the
Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility in the event that (A) Delphi does not deliver certain analyses on or before March 4, 2009, or
(B) a majority of lenders executing the Supplemental Amendment shall direct the agent under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit
Facility on or prior to March 18, 2009 that such certain analyses are not satisfactory.

The foregoing description of the Amendment, the Supplemental Amendment, the amendment to the Partial Temporary Accelerated
Payments Agreement and the amendment to the GM Advance Agreement is a general description only. For additional detail, see the
underlying agreements, which are filed or incorporated by reference as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Steering and Halfshaft Business

In the fourth quarter of 2007, Delphi executed the Purchase Agreement with an affiliate of Platinum, for the sale of the Steering
Business and executed the Transaction Agreement with GM. In February 2008, the Court issued an order authorizing Delphi to dispose of
its Steering Business. Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, any party in compliance with its obligations under the Purchase
Agreement may terminate the Purchase Agreement since the transaction did not close by August 31, 2008. Prior to entry into the
agreements described below in March 2009, neither party had terminated the Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the Amended MRA, GM
agreed that ownership of the Steering Business will transfer to GM if it is not sold to a third party by December 31, 2010. On March 3,
2009, however, Delphi and Platinum entered into the Termination Agreement and Delphi and GM entered into the Option Exercise
Agreement, subject to GM receiving U.S. Treasury and GM board of directors approval and Delphi receiving Court approval, under which
GM will exercise its option to purchase the Steering Business as contemplated under the Amended MRA to allow a wholly-owned
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subsidiary of GM to complete the Steering Purchase. GM has agreed to guaranty the payment and performance of its wholly-owned
subsidiary’s obligations under the definitive transaction agreements to be entered into pursuant to the Option Exercise Agreement.

The Option Exercise Agreement contains a procedure for completing the definitive transaction agreement relating to the sale of the
Steering Business to GM which, among other things, takes into account the terms of the Amended MRA and certain modifications set
forth in the Option Exercise Agreement. Based on the terms of the Option Exercise Agreement and the Amended MRA, the terms upon
which the Steering Business will be sold to GM have been substantially agreed to by GM and Delphi. In addition to certain other
milestones, Delphi has agreed to use its reasonable best efforts to obtain Court approval of the Option Exercise Agreement on or before
March 24, 2009, and Delphi and GM have agreed to use their reasonable best efforts to obtain Court approval of the Steering Purchase and
assignment and assumption of contracts on or before April 23, 2009 and to close the Steering Purchase on or before April 30, 2009. The
parties have agreed to file a motion seeking such required approvals of the Steering Purchase and the assignment and assumption of
contracts with the Court.

Delphi and GM will enter into a transition services agreement on reasonable and customary terms pursuant to which Delphi will
provide, among other things, general transition services with GM through mid-2011 and information technology transition services
through December 2012. Other material terms of the Option Exercise Agreement include, but are not limited to, the following: (a) at the
closing of the Steering Purchase, the parties will forego the working capital true-up set forth in the Amended MRA; (b) GM will not
exercise certain of GM's rights under the Amended MRA; (c) GM will pay all cure costs, with respect to all prepetition contracts which it
requests be assumed and assigned to it; (d) GM will assume all postpetition trade payables with respect to the contracts included within
the definition of the Steering Business (provided that Delphi will pay all trade payables prior to the closing in the ordinary course of
business); (e) in lieu of an additional labor reimbursement contemplated under the Amended MRA, at closing GM will assume certain of
Delphi's labor and workers’ compensation obligations; and (f) GM will assume responsibility, and waive any obligations of Delphi
relating to, warranty, recall, and products liability with respect to products manufactured for, or sold to, GM by the Steering Business,
whether before or after the closing and Delphi will retain responsibility for such liability with respect to products sold to non-GM
customers prior to closing. Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, Delphi and Platinum have agreed to return the deposit amount under
the Purchase Agreement to Platinum.

The closing of the Steering Purchase is conditioned on GM paying to the administrative agent under Delphi’s Amended and Restated
DIP Facility, for the benefit of the lenders thereunder, a non-refundable amount equal to the reduction in available receivables, available
inventory, and fixed asset component of the borrowing base caused directly by the consummation of such purchase. In the event Delphi
and GM reach an agreement for the sale of any of Delphi's other businesses and manufacturing sites in the U.S. to GM, then, upon the
closing of such sale, such payment would constitute partial prepayment of the consideration for the sale of such facilities. The above
summary is qualified by reference to the terms and provisions of any final agreement filed with the Court.

Salaried Retiree OPEB and Life Insurance

On February 4, 2009, Delphi filed a motion with the Court seeking the authority to cease providing health care and life insurance
benefits in retirement to salaried employees, retirees, and surviving spouses as soon as practicable after March 31, 2009. On February 24,
2009, the Court provisionally approved Delphi’s motion to modify salaried health care and life insurance benefits in retirement to
eliminate Company funding effective April 1, 2009. The Court also authorized Delphi to immediately begin the administrative process to
implement these modifications. The provisional approval was based on the Court’s finding that the Company had met its evidentiary
burdens, subject to the appointment of a Retirees” Committee to review whether it believes that any of the affected programs involved
vested benefits (as opposed to “at will” or discretionary, unvested benefits). The Court scheduled a hearing to review the committee’s
findings for March 11, 2009. Delphi’s termination of health care and life insurance benefits in retirement to salaried employees, retirees,
and surviving spouses will enable Delphi to settle the related APBO of more than $1.1 billion and conserve projected annual cash
expenditures of approximately $70 million.

Tax Credit Receipt
In January 2009, Delphi received an accelerated payment of €46 million (approximately $61 million at January 31, 2009 exchange

rates) for tax credits owed to Delphi by the government of France. Delphi is continuing to seek additional support from certain foreign
governments as part of its overall efforts to improve liquidity.
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26. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following is a condensed summary of the Company’s unaudited quarterly results of continuing operations for fiscal 2008 and
2007. These amounts have been restated for discontinued operations.

Three Months Ended
March 31,  June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Total
(in millions, except per share amounts)
2008
NEE SALES vt $ 5,252 $ 5,234 $ 4,377 $ 3,197 $18,060
COSt OF SALES ..ttt 4,897 4,821 4,117 3.233 17,068
GroSS PIOFIt (@) ....vovevevevivieirerererereeeeeeeee e $§ 355 $ 413 $ 260 $§ (36) $ 992
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges... $ 36 $ 18 $§ 22 $ 2 $ 78
GM settlement (Note 2 — MRA) .......cceveeeieeeierererennes $ — § — $ (254) $ — $ (254)
Long lived asset impairment charges............c.ccccccevevene. $ 3 $ 5 $ 5 $ 24 $ 37
Goodwill impairment charges ............cccooveveeevieievenennn. 8 — $ 168 $ — $ 157 $ 325
OPerating oSS ......c.veveuerieeiirieieieeeeeeeeee e $ (267) $ (365 $ (96) $ (753) $(1,481)
(Loss) income from continuing operations (b).............. $ (530) $ (559) $ 5,143 $ (998) $ 3,056
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of
BAX 1ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt s bt s et sene e (59) 8 75 (43) (19)
Net (1088) INCOME ....veenveeiieieiiieieieieeeee e $ (589) $ (551) $5.218 $(1.041) 3,037
Basic and diluted (loss) income per share
Continuing OPErations............eevevereereerereereereeeeenenes $ (0.94) $ (0.99) $ 9.11 $ (1.77) $§ 541
Discontinued operations (0.10) 0.01 0.13 (0.07) (0.03)
Basic and diluted (loss) income per share $ (1.04) $ (0.98) § 9.24 $ (1.84) 5.38
Common stock price
High oo $ 022 $ 0.14 $ 0.11 $ 0.08 $ 022
LOW 1ttt $ 0.04 $ 0.04 $ 0.04 $ 0.02 $ 0.02
2007
NEE SALES 1.t $ 5,682 $ 6,000 $ 5,279 $ 5,322 $22,283
COSt O SALES e, 5.306 5.654 5.111 4,995 21,066
GrOSS PrOfIt (&) .vcveeeeveeireriiereeeeieieeeetee e $ 376 $ 346 $ 168 § 327 $ 1,217
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges... $§  (6) $ — $ 197 $ 21 $ 212
Long lived asset impairment charges...........c.cc.cccovevene. $ 6 $ 34 $ 14 $ 44 $ 98
Securities and ERISA litigation charge ............ccccco..... $ — $ 332 $ 21 $ (10) $ 343
OPErating oSS ....c.cveveuerieeiirieieieee e $ (215) $ (644) $ (663) $ (423) $(1,945)
(Loss) income from continuing operations (b).............. $ (391 $ (808) $(1,149) $ 40 $(2,308)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (c) ......... (142) (13) (20) (582) (757)
NEELOSS ettt $ (533) $ (821) $(1.169) § (542) $(3.,065)
Basic and diluted (loss) income per share
Continuing OPerations...........ceeervereereerrrererereeenereenes $ (0.70) $ (1.44) $ (2.04) $§ 0.07 $ .11
Discontinued operations (0.25) (0.02) (0.04) (1.03) (1.34)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.95) $ (1.46) $ (2.08) $ (0.96) $ (5.45)
Common stock price
High oo $ 3.86 $ 3.12 $ 2.59 $ 0.49 $ 3.86
LOW 1ottt ettt $ 2.25 $ 146 $ 044 $ 0.10 $ 0.10

a) Gross profit is defined as net sales less cost of sales (excluding U.S. employee workforce transition program charges, GM settlement,
Depreciation and amortization, Long-lived asset impairment charges and Goodwill impairment charges).

b)  (Loss) income from continuing operations includes the reorganization gains of $5,586 million in the third quarter of 2008 related to the
GM settlements, and a tax benefit of $703 million in the fourth quarter of 2007 related to credits in other comprehensive income. Refer to
Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy and Note 8. Income Taxes for more information.

¢) Loss from discontinued operations includes a charge of $595 million related to the assets held for sale for the Steering and Interiors and
Closures Businesses, including the impact of curtailment loss on pension benefits for impacted employees in the fourth quarter of 2007.
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27. DEBTORS’ CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of Presentation

Condensed Combined Debtors-in-Possession Financial Statements — The financial statements contained within this note represent
the condensed combined financial statements for the Debtors only. Delphi’s non-Debtor subsidiaries are treated as non-consolidated
affiliates in these financial statements and as such their net income is included as “Equity income (loss) from non-Debtor affiliates, net of
tax” in the statement of operations and their net assets are included as “Investments in non-Debtor affiliates” in the balance sheet. The
Debtors’ financial statements contained herein have been prepared in accordance with the guidance in SOP 90-7.

Intercompany Transactions — Intercompany transactions between Debtors have been eliminated in the financial statements contained
herein. Intercompany transactions between the Debtors and non-Debtor affiliates have not been eliminated in the Debtors’ financial
statements. Therefore, reorganization items, net included in the Debtors Statement of Operations, liabilities subject to compromise
included in the Debtors’ Balance Sheet, and reorganization items and payments for reorganization items, net included in the Debtors’
Statement of Cash Flows are different than Delphi Corporation’s consolidated financial statements. As approved by the Court on January
25,2008, the Debtors sold investments in non-Debtor affiliates in the amount of $1.4 billion to a non-Debtor affiliate and received a note
receivable from non-Debtor affiliates. During 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Debtors received approximately $292 million, $644 million and
$2 million, respectively, of dividends from non-Debtor affiliates. Dividends from non-Debtor affiliates are not eliminated in the
Condensed Combined Debtors-in-Possession Statements of Operations and therefore were recorded in equity income from non-Debtor
affiliates, net of tax. During 2008 and 2007, a non-Debtor entity repatriated $16 million and $106 million, respectively, to a Debtor entity
in the form of a capital reduction. This transaction is reflected in the condensed combined statement of cash flows as a return on
investment in non-Debtor affiliates.

Contractual Interest Expense and Interest Expense on Unsecured Claims—Contractual interest expense represents amounts due
under the contractual terms of outstanding debt, including debt subject to compromise for which interest expense is not recognized in
accordance with the provisions of SOP 90-7. Delphi did not record contractual interest expense on certain unsecured prepetition debt
from the bankruptcy filing date until the third quarter of 2007. In September 2007, Delphi began recording prior contractual interest
expense related to certain prepetition debt because it became probable that the interest would become an allowed claim based on the
provisions of the plan of reorganization filed with the Court in September 2007 and confirmed, as amended, on January 25, 2008. The
confirmed plan of reorganization also provided that certain holders of allowed unsecured claims against Delphi will be paid postpetition
interest on their claims, calculated at the contractual non-default rate from the petition date through January 25, 2008, when the Company
ceased accruing interest on these claims. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, Delphi had accrued interest of $415 million and $411 million,
respectively, in accrued liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet for prepetition claims. As discussed in Note 2. Transformation Plan
and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy, on October 3, 2008, Delphi filed modifications to its confirmed plan of reorganization that, if approved by the
Court, would eliminate postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims. Accordingly, Delphi anticipates that it will
be relieved of this liability if and when the plan modifications are approved.

GM Settlement - Delphi filed amendments to the MRA in the Court on September 12, 2008, and subsequently entered into an
additional amendment to the GSA as of September 25, 2008. The Court approved such amendments on September 26, 2008 and the
Amended GSA and the Amended MRA became effective on September 29, 2008. Upon effectiveness of the Amended MRA, Delphi
recorded a reduction to operating expenses of $254 million, as discussed further in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11
Bankruptcy to the consolidated financial statements.

U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs—The workforce transition programs offer buy-down payments for eligible
traditional employees who do not elect the attrition or flowback options and continue to work for Delphi. The estimated payments to be
made under the buy-down arrangements within the UAW and ITUE-CWA Workforce Transition Programs totaled $323 million and were
recorded as a wage asset and liability. In accordance with EITF 88-23, “Lump-Sum Payments under Union Contracts,” the wage asset
was being amortized over the life of the respective union agreements. The corresponding wage liability will be reduced as buy-down
payments are made. Based on the Amended GSA, Delphi received reimbursement from GM of $230 million during the third quarter of
2008 for certain costs related to the Workforce Transition Programs. In addition, because the Amended GSA provides for reimbursement
of payments to be made under the buy-down arrangements with the UAW and IUE-CWA Workforce Transition Programs, $126 million
of the related wage asset was reclassified to GM and affiliates accounts receivable on the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,
2008 and the remaining $90 million of the related wage asset was recorded to reorganization items on the consolidated statement of
operations for 2008.

Goodwill Impairment Charges—During 2008, Delphi experienced deteriorated financial performance primarily due to significant
reductions in North American customer production volumes, particularly related to GM, continuing unfavorable pricing pressures and
increasing commodity prices. This caused previously unanticipated projected revenue and operating income declines. As a result of these
changes, long-term projections showed declines in discounted future operating cash flows. These revised cash flows and declining market
conditions caused the implied fair value of Delphi’s Electrical/Electronic Architecture and Electronics and Safety segment to be less than
their book value. The fair values were also adversely affected by declining industry market valuation metrics. Accordingly, the Debtors
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recorded $115 million of goodwill impairment charges in the Debtor financial statements during 2008 related to the Electrical/Electronic
Architecture and Electronics and Safety segments. Refer to Note 10. Goodwill for more information.

Income Tax Benefit— Delphi recorded income tax expense of $14 million for 2008 and recorded an income tax benefit of $691 million
for 2007.

Generally, the amount of tax expense or benefit allocated to continuing operations is determined without regard to the tax effects of
other categories of income or loss, such as OCI. However, an exception to the general rule is provided when there is a pre-tax loss from
continuing operations and pre-tax income from other categories in the current year. The intraperiod tax allocation rules in SFAS 109
related to items charged directly to OCI can result in disproportionate tax effects that remain in OCI until certain events occur.

As of December 31, 2007, Delphi had disproportionate tax effects in OCI related to the hourly pension and OPEB obligations of a
$533 million tax benefit and a $311 million tax expense, respectively. During 2008, Delphi accounted for its hourly pension and OPEB
transfer to GM as settlement of liabilities. As a result, Delphi eliminated the disproportionate tax effect in OCI related to the hourly
pension and OPEB obligations on a pro rata basis to the amount of the obligation that was settled. Accordingly, Delphi recorded a tax
benefit of $9 million in continuing operations for 2008, comprised of a $320 million tax benefit and $311 million tax expense related to
the hourly pension and OPEB obligation settlement, respectively. The annual effective tax rate in 2007 was impacted by tax benefit of
$703 million related to $1.9 billion U.S. pre-tax other comprehensive income related to employee benefits. Delphi continues to maintain a
full valuation allowance for its deferred tax assets in the U.S. as it is more likely than not that the benefits will not be recognized.

Additionally, Delphi’s annual effective tax rate was impacted by withholding tax expense of $21 million and $25 million in 2008 and
2007 respectively. Delphi had a tax contingency reserve expense of $7 million and a benefit of $12 million as of December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively, which also impacted the annual effective tax rate.

Liabilities— Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:
December 31,

2008 2007
(in millions)

Payroll related obligations............cccceeveveeveeeriereeeriiereenne $§ 39 § 48
Employee benefits, including current pension obligations. 84 120
Taxes other than iNCOME...........cccvevierierieeeie e 36 70
Warranty obligations ...........cecceceeeeienienienenenenenenceienens 74 173
U.S. employee workforce transition program..................... 115 234
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs ......... 81 105
Interest on prepetition claims ..........cooceeveeiinienieneeeeene 415 411
Working capital backstop — Steering Business................... 210 —
OFRET ...ttt e 264 167

TOtAL oot $1,318 $1,328

Employee benefit and other consisted of the following:

December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)

Workers cCompensation ...........ccceceeerereeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeenes $ 325 § 328
Environmental ..........coccooiiiiiiiiiieeee e 90 103
Extended disability benefits..........cccceeeverievieviiiiiiieiees 60 72
WAITANEY ...veeiieeieeece et e e e eneees 130 203
OtheT . 131 245

TOtal e $ 736 $ 951

Assets Held for Sale—The assets held for sale by the Debtors as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 include the net assets held for sale
of the Non-debtor affiliates of $263 million and $294 million, respectively, which was reclassified from investments in non-Debtor
affiliates. During 2008 and 2007, the Debtor assets held for sale were revalued based on the expected proceeds, resulting in a charge
related to the assets held for sale of $50 million and $561 million, respectively. Additionally, during 2007, Delphi recorded a $34 million
curtailment loss on pension benefits.
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CONDENSED COMBINED DEBTORS-IN-POSSESSION STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(Non-filed entities, principally non-U.S. subsidiaries, excluded from consolidated Debtor group)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

INEE SALES ...ttt et e e et e et e e e e e e e e e e eeae s e e st e et e et e e e e esaeeereeenen $ 7,988 $ 11,978 $ 14,149
Operating expenses:
Cost of sales, excluding items listed BeloW..........cccccvevvieviieiieiiiieeeieeeeeen 8,404 12,453 14,645
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges ...........ccocceeevereverveneenenne 78 212 2,706
GM settlement (NOte 2 — MRA).....c.oooiiiieiieiiee et (254) — —
Depreciation and amOrtiZation ...........c.eceereerveriereeneeneereeeeeseseesseeseesesnesenes 405 511 562
Long-lived asset impairment Charges........c..eccecvevenenerenereeeerenieneneseseeeeees 9 84 102
Goodwill impairment Charges .........c.cceeeereeerieieieieienesese ettt 115 — —
Selling, general and adminiStrative ...........c.eceereereereeeie e 857 1,008 1,006
Securities & ERISA litigation Charge ........c..coceecveveeviininencnineneeieeeeeieecenne — 343 —
Total OPErating EXPEINSES ....cc.eeruierueeiieieriientieteeteenteeeee st e tee e eeeseeeseeeseeeeeenes 9.614 14,611 19,021
OPEIAtING LOSS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt st saeesae e e eae (1,626) (2,633) 4,872)

Interest expense (contractual interest expense for the year ended December
31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $510 million, $444 million and $526

MIlLON, FESPECLIVELY) 1vvieeiiiiiiiiieiieie et (386) (722) (378)
Loss on extinguishment of debt............ccvvvierierieniieiieieieeeeeee e (49) 27 —
Other INCOME (EXPENSE), NEL....veevrererrerierierierierieeteereesreesaesseesseesseesseensessnenens 2 36 11
Reorganization items:

GM settlement (Notes 2 and 3 — GSA) ...eoieeeieieeieeeeeeee e 5,332 — —

Professional fees and other, net (NOte 3) ......oceeiieiinieiieieeee e (129) (136) (70)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax benefit and equity
TIICOIIIC ...ttt ettt ettt et a et st st ettt be bt sbe e st et e s et e b e sbeebeeaeeneen 3,144 (3,482) (5,331)
Income tax (expense) benefit .........ccoooeiiiiieiiiiiiiiee e (14) 691 (1)
Equity income from non-consolidated affiliates, net of tax ........c..ccocceeeereenne 2 21 37
Income (loss) from continuing operations before discontinued operations and
equity income from non-Debtor affiliates .........c..ccceevevvieiieiiniienieieceecieeee 3,132 (2,770) (5,295)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (NOte 5) ......cccoevevrveviieieneenreennene (62) (695) (326)
Equity (loss) income from non-Debtor affiliates, net of taX........c.ccccevcerirencnnne (33) 400 154
Cumulative effect of accounting change..............oceevvevieriieriiecieeiesieeeeee e, — — 3
Net iNCOME (10SS) ..evevivieierieiieteeieeet ettt ettt ettt et s s s ene $ 3,037 $  (3,065) $ (5,464)
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CONDENSED COMBINED DEBTORS-IN-POSSESSION BALANCE SHEET
(Non-filed entities, principally non-U.S. subsidiaries, excluded from consolidated Debtor group)

December 31,
2008 2007
(in millions)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equIVALENLS.........c..coveriririiiiiic e $ 231 $ 113
RESIICTEA CASN.....ooiieeeiieceee e 355 125
Accounts receivable, net:
General Motors and affiliates ............cccooiiiiiiiiiiic e 670 972
Other third Parties.......ooueeiieieieeee et 385 623
NON-Debtor affiliates. ..........ccouuiiieiie e 249 250
Notes receivable from non-Debtor affiliates ..........ccooeooeeeiiiiiiieiiiceececeeeee e 77 278
Inventories, net:
Productive material, work-in-process and SUpplies..........cccceeevevverierieecieieeneeie e 418 652
FiniShed ZOO0AS ....c.viiiiiiiieiieie ettt ettt ettt eebe e e nas 75 171
OthET CUITENT ASSEES ....viivvieiiieiiie et eeteeeeteeeete e et e eeteeeeteeeeteeeeteeeteeeeteeessesereeereseeseeenseeans 204 385
ASSEtS NEld FOr SALE.......coiuiiiiiieiii e et 333 475
TOtal CUITENT ASSELS....cuviieiieirieeieeiteeete ettt eet e et e e teeeteeeeteeereeebaeeaseesavaesaseesaseensneens 2,997 4,044
Long-term assets:
PrOPEItY, MET ....eeiiiiiiieeiee ettt et et 1,182 1,446
Investments in affiliates...........oooiiiieiii e 251 331
Investments in NON-Debtor affilIates .......c.vvvvviiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 1,104 3,267
GOOAWILL....oceeeeeeeeee ettt e et e e te e et e eteeereeeteseaeeenrens 37 152
Notes receivable from non-Debtor affiliates ..........cooovviivviiiiiiiiiiiieceeee s 1,429 —
ONET .. ettt et e et e et e et e e eae e et e e e eaa e ete e et e e eteeeraeenres 183 512
Total 1ONZ-TEITN ASSELS ....veevvieeiieeiierieiteeteete e st et eteeaesreesaeeseesseeaeesasesseesseessesssesanas 4.186 5,708
TOLAL @SSELS ....cvveevreereecteeete et ettt et ettt e e eteeeteeeteeeaeeseereeeaeeeseereeaseeaseesseseenseenseeneas $ 7,183 $ 9,752

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities not subject to compromise:

ShOrt-term deDt......ccuviieiiiiiiiiciie et eb e e b e reeearee e $ 3,635 $ 2,782
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...ttt 551 1,007
Accounts payable to non-Debtor affiliates ..........cc.ccoveerieiieiinineeee e 535 689
ACCIUEA TTADIIITIES ..vvvveiiiiieeeeiiei ettt e e et e e e e e e saaaaeeeeeeeeannes 1,318 1,328
Liabilities held for SAle........c.iiiieeiiiiiiieciie ettt e e e saae e 149 167
Total current HADIIITIES .......vviiieeiee it eneae e s eeaaeeeeaes 6,188 5,973
LoNG-teIM deDt...ccuviiiiiiiiiicicce et b et reen 20 24
Employee benefits and Other..........c.occviiiiiiiiiiiiieiicececeee e 736 951
Total long-term Habilities......cccueiierieriieiieieeie sttt enes 756 975
Liabilities SUDJECt 10 COMPIOMIUSE. ........erverrrerrrereereertestresseesessessressaessessessesssesseesseessenns 14,664 16,276
TOtAl THADIIIEIES ...vvevveeiieiieie et eete ettt ettt e st st esse e s e e s e enbesssensaenseenseennas 21,608 23,224
Stockholders’ deficit:
Total StoCKNOIAErS” AEfICIt......covueriiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee et e e eeaaaeeee s (14.425) (13.472)
Total liabilities and stockholders” defiCit..........cc.covevuieieiieiieiicieceeee e $§ 7,183 $§ 9752
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CONDENSED COMBINED DEBTORS-IN-POSSESSION STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Non-filed entities, principally non-U.S. subsidiaries, excluded from consolidated Debtor group)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2008 2007 2006

(in millions)
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net cash used in operating activities..........ceecveeeeerierreieenierieeee e $ (481) $ (114) $ (572)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital XPENAItUIES.......coueeueeeeiiiiteiereeeneeeee ettt (279) (224) (217)
Proceeds from divestitures and sale of property........c.ccooceeveeieneencencenennne. 178 87 21
Investment in JOINT VENTULES .....cccuereeiieriieieeie ettt 8) (11) —
Increase in restricted Cash .........cocveeciiiiiiieeciieceee e (230) (13) (102)
Proceeds from notes receivable from non-Debtor affiliates......................... 265 — —
Return on investment in non-Debtor affiliates ...........cccocevveevievieciiniennnnns 16 106 —
OthET, NET...ceiiiiiiiciecie ettt ettt te e beebe e b e eaaeseeesaeereesseessens (16) — (7)
Discontinued OPETALIONS ........cc.eeveerrerrieieeieriesresieesseeaesnesseesseeseessessaenseens (26) (28) (69)

Net used in iNVEStiNg ACtIVITIES .....eeverererrierieeieeierieseeiesiesaeseeesaeeneeens (100) (83) (374)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from amended and restated debtor-in-possession facility,

net of issuance cost of $92 million 3,528 — —
Proceeds from Refinanced DIP Credit Facility, net of issuance costs........ — 2,691 —
(Repayments) proceeds from debtor-in-possession facility, net................. — (250) —
Repayments of borrowings under term 1loan............ccoccevoenieniiiiniencenne — (988) —
(Repayments) proceeds from prepetition secured revolving credit

FACTIILY, N c..ievieeeiieiiecieee ettt et reebeenre s — (1,508) 2
Repayments of borrowings from refinanced debtor-in-possession

FACTIIEY 1ottt ettt et et steeste b e ereesaeesaeesseenseens (2,746) — —
Accommodation agreement iSSUANCE COSES....uvrrirrrrrerverreerrereereerseenseenss (58) — —
(Repayments) proceeds under cash overdraft............ccocevvenieniieciieiennnnn, — — (29)
Repayments of borrowings under other debt agreements..............c..c.co...... (25) (11) (12)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ..........ccccevererercrnenne. 699 (66) 39)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..........c.ccecevverenercnenennee. 118 (263) (985)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ..........ccccoceevenirencrennens 113 376 1,361
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period.............coceveeirieriiriererieirierneenns $ 231 $ 113 $ 376
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008
(in millions, except
per share amounts)

Net sales:
General Motors and affiliates ..........ccccoeevvvvevinereinnnen. $ 734 $ 1,641
Other CUSTOIMETS .......coiveviiiiiiee et 1,791 3,611
Total NEt SAIES......ciivveeiieiieieeee e 2,525 5,252

Operating expenses:

Cost of sales, excluding items listed below ................. 2,632 4,933
Depreciation and amortization...........c.cceeeererereenene 172 222
Selling, general and administrative...........cccceceeeeeeeunee 255 364
Total operating eXpenses.......c..cocceveeveeeeeeenvenenennen. 3.059 5,519
Operating loSS. ....cooueeiirieiieiiee e (534) (267)

Interest expense (contractual interest expense for the
three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 was

$168 million and $129 million, respectively)........... (137) (110)
Other INCOME, NEL .....covvuviiiiiiiieeeeee e 9 19
Reorganization items ...........ccceevvveveevesienieneeiennenens 1,144 (109)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income

taxes and eqUItY INCOME ........ccceevveerreereerrerrerieeneeenns 482 (467)

Income tax benefit (eXpense).......ccccevvereereeereerceernenne. 51 (63)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before equity

INCOIMEC ... veeiiieetieeiieeeireeeteeereeeteesereesvaesareesaveeesseeans 533 (530)

Equity (loss) income, net of taX .........ccccceeeeveeneeenennee. &) 11
Income (loss) from continuing operations....................... 525 (519)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of

EAX teteetteteene e ettt ettt ettt ettt b ettt e st et e 31 (58)

Net inCome (10SS) vovvervviieeiieiieieeieere et 556 (577)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest.......... 4 12
Net income (loss) attributable to Delphi ..........c.cc.c......... $ 3552 $ (589)
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share:

Continuing operations attributable to Delphi............... $ 092 $ (0.94)

Discontinued operations attributable to Delphi .......... 0.06 (0.10)

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share................... $ 098 $ (1.04)
Amounts attributable to Delphi:

Income (loss) from continuing operations ................... § 521 $ (530)

Discontinued Operations ..............cceeveeeerreenreesveenennnns 31 (59)

Net income (loss) attributable to Delphi..................... § 552 $ (589)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31,
2009 December 31,
(Unaudited) 2008
(in millions)
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ............cccecuerieriinenineninineneeeceeeeeenee § 650 $ 959
Restricted Cash.........ccoooioiiiiiiieeeeee e 449 403

Accounts receivable, net:
General Motors and affiliates..............cccocooeeiiiiiiiii e 695 822
OTNET .ttt 1,519 1,572
Inventories, Net (INOTE 3) ...ccvevieiieiieieiie ettt 1,130 1,285
Other current assets (INOtE 4) ......oeverrieriierieieneesieere et 484 613
Assets held for sale (INOte 15)....cveviiiieiieieieieeeeeeeeee e 551 497
Total CUITENTE ASSELS ...vvveiiveeieeeieee et 5,478 6,151

Long-term assets:

PropPerty, NEL...cueiieiieiiieeiee ettt 3,214 3,397
Investments in affiliates ..........ccoeevveieiiiieiiieciieceeeeeee e 280 303
Other long-term assets (NOtE€ 4) ......coceeeeeienieneneneneneeeeeeeeieneenes 442 455
Total [ong-term aSSELS......coververrerereeieieteientene e 3.936 4,155
TOtAl ASSELS ...vveeieeiieeeeeee e $ 9414 $ 10,306

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities:

Short-term debt (NOE 8) ......cvvevivieieieieeieieeete ettt $ 4244 $ 4,174
AccoUnts PAYADIC........eecieiiiiiieieeie et 1,567 1,771
Accrued liabilities (NOE 5).....ecvvieiieiiiieiieeeeieseee et 2,164 2,171
Liabilities held for sale (NOte 15) .....ccoovvevieriieiieieeieieeee e 328 293
Total current HabilitieS........ccoveeiiieeieeeieieeeeeee e 8,303 8,409
Long-Term liabilities:
Employee benefit plan obligations (Note 10) ......cccceevverrecirniereennnn. 538 552
Other long-term liabilities (NOte 5).......cceevirrenienieieeee e 1,014 1,028
Total long-term liabilities ..........cceouerieniiiiiiiii e 1,552 1,580
Liabilities subject to compromise (NOt€ 2)......c.ccceevveerveeeereerreerneeenenne 13,435 14,583
Total Habilities ... .c.eeueeieieieie et 23,290 24,572

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Stockholders’ deficit:
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 1,350 million shares authorized,

565 million shares issued in 2009 and 2008 ............ccccocevereeienene 6 6
Additional paid-in capital..........ccccovceerierierieiieeiere e 2,147 2,747
Accumulated defiCit ........coccverieiiiiiiiiiecieeee s (11,512) (12,064)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:

Employee benefit plans (Note 10) .......cceevereerienieieeiecieeee e (4,894) (4,867)

ONET .ttt sttt ne s (352) (219)

Total accumulated other comprehensive 10sS..........cccceevueeeenen. (5,246) (5,086)
Treasury stock, at cost (389 thousand and 391 thousand shares in

2009 and 2008, respectively)......ccccoerierieiereieeereeeeee e (6) (6)

Total Delphi stockholders” deficit..........ccoevueeieviieiinieniieiieieieas (14,011) (14,403)
Noncontrolling iNtEIESt..........ccvverieriieiieieeieereere et sie e 135 137

Total stockholders’ defiCit.........ccoeviviiiieniieiiciicieceeee e, (13,876) (14,266)

Total liabilities and stockholders’” deficit..........coceverenvercniirieieienenne, $ 9414 $ 10,306

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

81



DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
NEt INCOME (10SS)..veeuveiieiieirieiertietestieteste et ettt et e steebesteessesseessesseessesseessesesssessesssessesssensaessensens
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amOTtiZAtION ........c.eeverierieriesieieseetesteeteste e etesreesaesreesaesseessessesseessesseessenes
Pension and other postretirement benefit EXPenses .........ccocevveeverieriereriieneniieneneeneseeeenaeen
REOIZaniZation TLEIMS. ......ecuieieeiieiesiieieett ettt ettt ettt et sttt steeaeseeesaesbeesbesseensesseensensenes
(Gain) loss on assets held fOr SALE .........ccuiiiieiiiiiiecieeece e
Deferred INCOME TAXES. ... ccueetiriieieiiietiete ettt sttt et sttt e bt et e seeestesbeestenteeseenbeennensenee
(111 T=3 1 =1 SRR
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE, T1ET ..ottt e ettt e et e e enea e e eenaeeeenneeeeenneeens
INVENTOTIES, TIEL. . .ii ittt et e ettt e et e e e ett e e e e ae e e eeaaeeeetaeeeeaseeeesseeeeesaeeesseeanns
OLRET @SSELS ...ttt
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...ttt ettt ettt et b e sttt e b b e e enee s
Accrued and other long-term LHabilities . .........eoerieriinieiieiieieeee e
(014 1= 0 4 1= AR
U.S. employee workforce transition program payments .
Pension contributions ...........coceveveereenirineneeececsene
Other postretirement benefit PAYMENTS ......cceveriiririeiiniiierertee ettt
[44SR 4 1= APPSR
Discontinued operations (Note 15)...........
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

CaPItaA]l EXPEIAILUIES. ... eeutetieniitieiest ettt ettt ettt ettt et et e tesatebesseenbeebtenbesseensesseensesaeennensens

Proceeds from sale of property

Proceeds from sale of non-U.S. trade bank NOtes...........cecuereriererieniniinieneieneeeeeeee e

Proceeds from diVESTITUIES, NEL ..........couviiiiiiieieie ettt eae e et e e et e e e e e eaeeeeeaaeeeeneeas

Increase in restricted cash

Other, net .......cccceeeeevveeeennen.n.

DiSCONTINUE OPETALIONS ....evveuvieeieieieietietteieseetesteestesseestesteessesseessesseessessesssessesssessesseessessesssessens
Net cash used in INVESHNG ACHIVITIES. ....eeuteruiruierieriieteeiieierit ettt ettt st s saean

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net repayments of borrowings under amended and restated debtor-in-possession facility ..........
Net borrowings under refinanced debtor-in-possession facility ..........ccecceverierenieneneenieneeienns
Net (repayments) borrowings under other debt agreements............coeeverieeerirenenenereenceeees
Issuance costs related to the Accommodation AGreement ..........cecveeeereerieeieniereenienieerienieseeneens
Net borrowings under GM liquidity SUPPOIt AGIEEMENTS ........eecververererieieiesiieieneeeresieeeeeaeeneens
(034155 U 1 1< PSPPSR
Discontinued operations .............ccceeeeverveevernenns

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents...........cccceceeieiininieninenenne

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ..........cceeriirierierierienieeeeeieie e
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of Period..........ccceeeeviriiriininiinenteeeeeeeeeee
Cash and cash equivalents at end of Period.........c.ccevirieriieiieniiiieieceeee e

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Three Months Ended
___ March31, _
2009 2008
(in millions)

§ 556 § 677
172 222
126 185

(1,144) 109
“ 30
(65) 4)

8 25
130 (395)
152 (50)
115 18
(112) 176
(120) 97
49 36
(13) (71)
(25) (68)
(19) (66)
(25) (11)

— 54
(219) (290)
(166) (255)

8 21

43 62

4 87
(46) )

1 3
12) (70)
(168) (154)
(146) —
— 452
(207) 210
(16) —
453 —
(1) )

__ 14 11
97 666
19) 52
(309) 274
_ 959 _1.036
$ 650 $ 1,310



DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2009 2008
(in millions)
Net iNCOME (L0SS) ..vevrrvreiieeieieieieierie et eer e $ 556 $ (577)
Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation adjustments, net of tax (a).............. (84) 72
Net change in unrecognized loss on derivative
instruments, net of tax (b)........cceceevevieevieniienreennnn. (48) 96
Employee benefit plans adjustment, net of tax (c).......... (27) (30)
Other comprehensive (loss) income............ceeveeevennenns (159) 138
Comprehensive income (10SS) .......cevveveereereieiieieseeneene, 397 (439)
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling
TIEETEST 1.ttt 5 11
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Delphi......... $ 392 $ (450)

(d) Currency translation adjustments are net of $2 million and ($1) million tax effect for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(e) There was no tax effect on the net change in unrecognized gain on derivative instruments for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(f) Employee benefit plans adjustments includes a loss for pension, postretirement and postemployment liabilities of $(27) million (net of a ($75) million tax effect) and
($30) million (there was no tax effect) for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Unaudited)

Retained Accumulated
Common Additional Earnings Other Total
Stock Paid-in (Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury Noncontrolling Stockholders’
Shares  Amount Capital Deficit) Loss Stock Interest Deficit
(in millions)

Balance at December 31, 2008................ccccccoueenne 565 $ 6 $ 2,747 $  (12,064) $ (5,086) $ (6) 137 $  (14,266)
NEt INCOME ...t — — — 552 — — 4 556
Currency translation adjustments and other, net

OF tAX 1. — — — — (85) — 1 84
Net change in unrecognized loss on derivative
instruments, net of tax ........cccoeveeeeierienienienns — — — — (48) — — (48)
Employee benefit plans liability adjustment,
NEL OF tAX voviviieeiieicietc e — — — — 27) — — 27
Deconsolidation of noncontrolling interest ........ — — — — — — (@) (1)
Balance at March 31, 2009 ..o 565 S 6 $2747 S (11512) S (5246) S (6) 135 S (13.876)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DELPHI CORPORATION
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

General—Delphi Corporation, together with its subsidiaries and affiliates (“Delphi” or the “Company”), is a supplier of vehicle
electronics, transportation components, integrated systems and modules, and other electronic technology. Delphi’s largest customer is
General Motors Corporation (“GM”) and North America and Europe are its largest markets. Delphi is continuing to diversify its customer
base and geographic markets. The consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this report should be read in
conjunction with Delphi’s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Delphi’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008 filed with the United States (“U.S.”) Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Delphi and domestic and non-U.S. subsidiaries in which
Delphi holds a controlling financial or management interest and variable interest entities of which Delphi has determined that it is the
primary beneficiary. Delphi’s share of the earnings or losses of non-controlled affiliates, over which Delphi exercises significant
influence (generally a 20% to 50% ownership interest), is included in the consolidated operating results using the equity method of
accounting. All significant intercompany transactions and balances between consolidated Delphi businesses have been eliminated. All
adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring items, which are necessary for a fair presentation, have been included. The results for
interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected from any other interim period or for the full year and may not
necessarily reflect the consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows of Delphi in the future.

Restricted Cash— At March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, Delphi had $449 million and $403 million in restricted cash,
respectively, primarily related to cash collateral as required under its debtor-in-possession credit facility. Refer to Note 8. Debt for
additional information. Additionally, restricted cash includes cash for use for the pre-retirement portion of the U.S. employee workforce
transition programs, refer to Note 9. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs, and balances on deposit at financial institutions that
have issued letters of credit in favor of Delphi.

Bankruptcy Filing—On October 8, 2005 (the “Petition Date”), Delphi and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries (the “Initial Filers”) filed
voluntary petitions for reorganization relief under chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the “Court”), and on October 14, 2005, three additional U.S. subsidiaries
of Delphi (together with the Initial Filers, collectively, the “Debtors”) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization relief under chapter 11 of
the Bankruptcy Code (collectively, the Debtors’ October 8, 2005 and October 14, 2005 filings are referred to herein as the “Chapter 11
Filings”). The reorganization cases are being jointly administered under the caption “In re Delphi Corporation, et al., Case No. 05-44481
(RDD).” The Debtors continue to operate their businesses as “debtors-in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the Court and in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Court. Delphi’s non-U.S. subsidiaries were not
included in the Chapter 11 Filings, continue their business operations without supervision from the Court and are not subject to the
requirements of the Bankruptcy Code. However, Delphi’s Board of Directors authorized Delphi’s indirect wholly-owned Spanish
subsidiary, Delphi Automotive Systems Espafia, S.L. (“DASE”), to file a petition for Concurso, or bankruptcy, under Spanish law, in
March 2007 exclusively for that entity.

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 90-7 (“SOP 90-7"), Financial Reporting by Entities in
Reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code, which is applicable to companies in chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, generally does not
change the manner in which financial statements are prepared. However, it does require, among other disclosures, that the financial
statements for periods subsequent to the filing of the chapter 11 petition distinguish transactions and events that are directly associated
with the reorganization from the ongoing operations of the business. Revenues, expenses, realized gains and losses, and provisions for
losses that can be directly associated with the reorganization and restructuring of the business must be reported separately as
reorganization items in the statements of operations. The balance sheet must distinguish prepetition liabilities subject to compromise from
both those prepetition liabilities that are not subject to compromise and from postpetition liabilities. Liabilities that may be affected by a
plan of reorganization must be reported at the amounts expected to be allowed, even if they may be settled for lesser amounts. In addition,
reorganization items must be disclosed separately in the statement of cash flows. Delphi adopted SOP 90-7 effective October 8, 2005 and
has segregated those items as outlined above for all reporting periods subsequent to such date.

Going Concern— The Debtors are operating pursuant to chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code and continuation of the Company as a
going concern is contingent upon, among other things, the Debtors’ ability to (i) comply with the terms and conditions of their debtor-in-
possession (“DIP”) financing agreement and related accommodation agreement, as described below; (ii) reduce wage and benefit costs
and liabilities during the bankruptcy process; (iii) return to profitability; (iv) generate sufficient cash flow from operations; and (v) obtain
financing sources to meet the Company’s future obligations, including further extensions of its accommodation agreement allowing the
Debtors to retain the proceeds of, or an extension or replacement of their DIP financing agreement, which otherwise matured on
December 31, 2008. Prior to expiration of the DIP financing agreement (the “Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility”), Delphi
entered into an accommodation agreement, which has been subsequently amended to revise the applicable covenants and milestone
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requirements (as so amended through the date hereof, the “Accommodation Agreement”) allowing Delphi to retain the proceeds of the
Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility until June 30, 2009, provided Delphi continues to remain in compliance with all applicable
covenants under the Accommodation Agreement and the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility (other than the failure to repay the
loans under the facility on the maturity date or comply with certain other repayment provisions) as described further in Note 8. Debt.

In addition, GM has supplemented Delphi’s liquidity through (i) an agreement (the “GM Advance Agreement”) pursuant to which
GM has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to provide a $300 million facility ($253 million was outstanding as of March 31, 2009),
which may be drawn against from time to time as necessary for Delphi to maintain $300 million of liquidity, as determined in accordance
with the terms of the GM Advance Agreement throughout the term of the accommodation period under the Accommodation Agreement
and, (ii) by agreeing, subject to certain conditions, to accelerate payment of certain payables to Delphi, (the “Partial Temporary
Accelerated Payments Agreement”), which has resulted in an additional $200 million of liquidity in the first quarter of 2009 and which
resulted in an additional $100 million of liquidity in April 2009. Refer to Note 8. Debt for more information regarding the terms of the
Accommodation Agreement, GM Advance Agreement and the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement.

Accordingly, the Accommodation Agreement and support from GM coupled with savings realized as a result of significant cost
reductions and cash conservation measures implemented by Delphi globally have provided Delphi with access to sufficient liquidity to
fund its operations and remain in compliance with the covenants in the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation
Agreement into May 2009 as it continued discussions with its stakeholders on proposed modifications to the Plan or another consensual
resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases. Pursuant to the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi has until May 21, 2009 to deliver to the
agent under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility a detailed term sheet (the “Term Sheet”) which has been agreed to by both GM
and the U.S. Treasury and which sets forth the terms of a global resolution of matters relating to GM’s contribution to the resolution of
Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, including, without limitation, all material transactions between Delphi and GM relevant to such resolution
(refer to Note 8. Debt). Failure to deliver a satisfactory Term Sheet or meet the other milestones under the Accommodation Agreement
will be an event of default under the Accommodation Agreement and absent receipt of a waiver will result in a termination of the
accommodation period entitling Delphi’s lenders to exercise all available remedies, including foreclosure on substantially all of Delphi’s
assets. Such actions may result in the temporary or permanent suspension and ultimate sale or liquidation of the operations of Delphi.
Delphi anticipates that the Term Sheet will comprehend additional liquidity support from its stakeholders to allow it to continue operations
until a consensual resolution can be implemented, however, as discussions are ongoing, there can be no assurances that this will be the
case.

Notwithstanding the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is in default of the terms of its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility
and as a result, Delphi is no longer able to make additional draws under the facility after December 12, 2008 (the effective date of the
Accommodation Agreement). However, under the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is required to continue to comply with the
provisions of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility (as amended and modified by the Accommodation Agreement, as amended).
There can be no assurance that Delphi will continue to comply with the terms and conditions of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit
Facility (as amended and modified by the Accommodation Agreement) or that the Term Sheet will comprehend sufficient additional
liquidity support for Delphi to continue operating its business or remain compliant in view of anticipated additional production cuts by its
customers. These matters create substantial uncertainty relating to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments relating to the recoverability of assets and classification of
liabilities that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties. In addition, the Company filed its proposed plan of reorganization
with the Court in September 2007. The Court confirmed Delphi’s plan of reorganization, as amended, on January 25, 2008, but Delphi
was unable to consummate the plan because certain investors under the plan refused to participate in the closing, which was commenced
but not completed on April 4, 2008. Refer to Equity Purchase and Commitment Agreement and The Plan of Reorganization in Note 2.
Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for more information. Pending confirmation and consummation of the plan of
reorganization (as amended), an alternative plan of reorganization or other consensual resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, Delphi and
certain of its U.S. subsidiaries will continue as “debtors-in-possession” in chapter 11. On October 3, 2008, Delphi filed a motion seeking
Court approval of proposed modifications to its confirmed plan of reorganization, however the hearing on the motion has been adjourned
and Delphi continues discussions with its stakeholders regarding a path to emergence from chapter 11. There can be no assurances as to
when Delphi will confirm or consummate a modified plan or other consensual resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases. Consummation of
a confirmed plan of reorganization often materially changes the amounts reported in a company’s consolidated financial statements, which
do not give effect to any adjustments to the carrying value of assets or amounts of liabilities that might be necessary as a consequence of
consummation of a confirmed plan of reorganization (as amended).

Contractual Interest Expense and Interest Expense on Unsecured Claims— Contractual interest expense represents amounts due
under the contractual terms of outstanding debt, including debt subject to compromise for which interest expense is not recognized in
accordance with the provisions of SOP 90-7. In September 2007, Delphi began recording prior contractual interest expense related to
certain prepetition debt because it became probable that the interest would become an allowed claim based on the provisions of the plan of
reorganization filed with the Court in September 2007 and confirmed, as amended, on January 25, 2008. The confirmed plan of
reorganization also provided that certain holders of allowed unsecured claims against Delphi will be paid postpetition interest on their
claims, calculated at the contractual non-default rate from the petition date through January 25, 2008, when the Company ceased accruing
interest on these claims. Delphi recorded interest related to prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims of $14 million during the
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quarter ended March 31, 2008. At March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, Delphi had accrued interest of $415 million in accrued
liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet for prepetition claims. As discussed in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11
Bankruptcy, on October 3, 2008, Delphi filed modifications to its confirmed plan of reorganization that, if approved by the Court, would
eliminate postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims. Accordingly, Delphi anticipates that it will be relieved of
this liability if and when the plan modifications are approved.

Use of Estimates—Preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires Delphi to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported therein. During
the first quarter of 2009, there were no material changes in the methods or policies used to establish accounting estimates. Generally,
matters subject to Delphi’s estimation and judgment include amounts related to accounts receivable realization, inventory obsolescence,
asset impairments, useful lives of intangible and fixed assets, deferred tax asset valuation allowances, income taxes, pension and other
postretirement benefit plan assumptions, accruals related to litigation, warranty costs, environmental remediation costs, workers’
compensation accruals and healthcare accruals. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results reported in
future periods may be based upon amounts that differ from those estimates.

Discontinued Operations—In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, (“SFAS 144”), a business component that is disposed of or classified as held for sale is reported as
discontinued operations if the cash flows of the component have been or will be eliminated from the ongoing operations of the Company
and the Company will no longer have any significant continuing involvement in the business component. The results of discontinued
operations are aggregated and presented separately in the consolidated statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows.
Assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations are aggregated and reported separately as assets and liabilities held for sale in the
consolidated balance sheet. SFAS 144 requires the reclassification of amounts presented for prior years to effect their classification as
discontinued operations.

Amounts have been derived from the consolidated financial statements and accounting records of Delphi using the historical basis of
assets and liabilities held for sale and historical results of operations related to Delphi’s global steering and halfshaft businesses (the
“Steering Business”) and its interiors and closures product line (the “Interiors and Closures Business”). While the historical results of
operations of the Steering Business and the Interiors and Closures Business include general corporate allocations of certain functions
historically provided by Delphi, such as accounting, treasury, tax, human resources, facility maintenance, and other services, no amounts
for these general corporate retained functions have been allocated to discontinued operations in the statements of operations. Certain
employee pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities for the Steering Business were not allocated to liabilities held for sale in the
balance sheets. Expenses related to the service cost of employee pension and other postretirement benefit plans were allocated to
discontinued operations in the statements of operations. Allocations have been made based upon a reasonable allocation method. Refer to
Note 15. Discontinued Operations for more information.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements—In September 20006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (“SFAS 1577), Fair Value Measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issued
FASB Staff Position No. 157-2 (“FSP 157-2”), Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, which partially deferred the effective date of
SFAS No. 157 for one year for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a nonrecurring basis. The FSP does not defer recognition and disclosure requirements for financial assets and liabilities or
for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are remeasured at least annually. Delphi adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157
as of January 1, 2009 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are subject to the deferral (including long-lived assets and goodwill, asset
retirement obligations and liabilities for exit or disposal activities measured at fair value upon initial recognition) and the adoption did not
have a significant impact on Delphi’s financial statements. Refer to Note 14. Derivatives and Hedging Activities and Fair Value
Measurements for the disclosures required by SFAS 157.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (Revised 2007) (“SFAS 141R”), Business
Combinations. SFAS 141R requires an acquiring entity to recognize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the
acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions. SFAS 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is
prohibited. The adoption of SFAS 141R as of January 1, 2009 did not have a significant impact on Delphi’s financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160 (“SFAS 160”), Noncontrolling Interests
in Consolidated Financial Statements — An Amendment of ARB No. 51. SFAS 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for
the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Delphi adopted SFAS 160 as of January 1, 2009 and the
accompanying financial statements reflect the provisions of SFAS 160 for all periods presented.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 161 (“SFAS 161”), Disclosures about Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities - an Amendment of FASB Statement 133. SFAS 161 enhances required disclosures regarding
derivatives and hedging activities, including enhanced disclosures regarding how: (a) an entity uses derivative instruments; (b) derivative
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instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities (“SFAS 133”), and (c¢) derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial
performance, and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after
November 15, 2008. Delphi adopted SFAS 161 as of January 1, 2009. The adoption of SFAS 161 did not have a significant impact on
Delphi’s financial statements other than providing the new disclosures required by SFAS 161.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position 132(R)-1 (FSP 132(R)-1), Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assets. FSP 132(R)-1 provides guidance on disclosures about plan assets of a defined benefit pension or other postretirement
plan. Specifically, FSP 132(R)-1 requires enhanced disclosures of how investment allocation decisions are made, including pertinent
factors to further understand investment policies and strategies, the major categories of plan assets, the inputs and valuation techniques
used to measure the fair value of plan assets, the effect of fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs on changes in
plan assets for the period, and significant concentrations of risk within plan assets. FSP 132(R)-1 and the enhanced disclosures about plan
assets are required for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2009. Earlier application is permitted. Delphi is currently assessing the
impact FSP 132(R)-1 may have on its financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 141(R)-1 (“FSP 141R-17), Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities
Assumed in a Business Combination That Arise from Contingencies. FSP 141R-1 amends the guidance in SFAS 141R to:

e Require that assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination that arise from contingencies be recognized at fair
value if fair value can be reasonably estimated. If fair value of such an asset or liability cannot be reasonably estimated, the asset or
liability would generally be recognized in accordance with FASB Statement No. 5 (“SFAS 57), Accounting for Contingencies, and
FASB Interpretation No. 14, Reasonable Estimation of the Amount of a Loss. Further, the FASB decided to remove the subsequent
accounting guidance for assets and liabilities arising from contingencies from SFAS 141R, and carry forward without significant
revision the guidance in FASB Statement No. 141, Business Combinations.

o Eliminate the requirement to disclose an estimate of the range of outcomes of recognized contingencies at the acquisition date. For
unrecognized contingencies, the FASB decided to require that entities include only the disclosures required by SFAS 5 and that
those disclosures be included in the business combination footnote.

e Require that contingent consideration arrangements of an acquiree assumed by the acquirer in a business combination be treated as
contingent consideration of the acquirer and initially and subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS 141R.

FSP 141R-1 is effective for assets or liabilities arising from contingencies in business combinations for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The adoption of FSP 141R-1 as of
January 1, 2009 did not have a significant impact on Delphi’s financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 157-4 (“FSP 157-47), Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level
of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly. FSP 157-4 (i)
affirms that the objective of fair value when the market for an asset is not active is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an
orderly transaction, (ii) clarifies and includes additional factors for determining whether there has been a significant decrease in market
activity for an asset when the market for that asset is not active, (iii) eliminates the proposed presumption that all transactions are
distressed (not orderly) unless proven otherwise, but instead requires an entity to base its conclusion about whether a transaction was not
orderly on the weight of the evidence, (iv) includes an example that provides additional explanation on estimating fair value when the
market activity for an asset has declined significantly, (v) requires an entity to disclose a change in valuation technique (and the related
inputs) resulting from the application of FSP 157-4 and to quantify its effects, if practicable, and (vi) applies to all fair value measurements
when appropriate. FSP 157-4 must be applied prospectively and retrospective application is not permitted. FSP 157-4 is effective for
interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009. An entity
early adopting FSP 157-4 must also early adopt FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairments, as defined and described below. Delphi is currently assessing the impact FSP 157-4 may have on its financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position Nos. 115-2 and 124-2 (“FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2”), Recognition and
Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments. FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 (i) changes existing guidance for determining
whether an impairment is other than temporary to debt securities; (ii) replaces the existing requirement that the entity’s management assert
it has both the intent and ability to hold an impaired security until recovery with a requirement that management assert: (@) it does not have
the intent to sell the security; and (b) it is more likely than not it will not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis; (iii)
incorporates examples of factors from existing literature that should be considered in determining whether a debt security is other-than-
temporarily impaired; (iv) requires that an entity recognize noncredit losses on held-to-maturity debt securities in other comprehensive
income and amortize that amount over the remaining life of the security in a prospective manner by offsetting the recorded value of the
asset unless the security is subsequently sold or there are additional credit losses; (v) requires an entity to present the total other-than-
temporary impairment in the statement of earnings with an offset for the amount recognized in other comprehensive income; and (vi) upon
adoption requires an entity to record a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the beginning of the period of adoption to reclassify the
noncredit component of a previously recognized other-temporary impairment from retained earnings to accumulated other comprehensive
income if the entity does not intend to sell the security and it is not more likely than not that the entity will be required to sell the security
before recovery. FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 is effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early
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adoption permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009. An entity may early adopt FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 only if it also
elects to early adopt FSP 157-4. Delphi is currently assessing the impact FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 may have on its financial
statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 107-1 and Accounting Principles Board Opinion 28-1 (“FSP FAS 107-1 and
APB 28-17), Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments. This FSP amends FASB Statement No. 107, Disclosures
about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, to require an entity to provide disclosures about fair value of financial instruments in interim
financial statements. This FSP also amends APB Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial Reporting, to require those disclosures in summarized
financial information at interim reporting periods. Under FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, a publicly traded company shall include
disclosures about the fair value of its financial instruments whenever it issues summarized financial information for interim reporting
periods. In addition, an entity shall disclose in the body or in the accompanying notes of its summarized financial information for interim
reporting periods and in its financial statements for annual reporting periods the fair value of all financial instruments for which it is
practicable to estimate that value, whether recognized or not recognized in the statement of financial position, as required by Statement
107. FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 is effective for interim periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted for periods
ending after March 15, 2009. However, an entity may early adopt these interim fair value disclosure requirements only if it also elects to
early adopt FSP 157-4 and FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2. Delphi is currently assessing the impact FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 may
have on its financial statements.

2. TRANSFORMATION PLAN AND CHAPTER 11 BANKRUPTCY
Plan of Reorganization and Transformation Plan

Elements of Transformation Plan

On September 6, 2007 Delphi filed its proposed plan of reorganization (the “Plan”) and related disclosure statement (the “Disclosure
Statement”) with the Court. The Plan and Disclosure Statement outline Delphi’s transformation centering around five core areas,
including agreements reached with each of Delphi’s principal U.S. labor unions and GM, a plan to streamline our product portfolio and
make the necessary manufacturing alignment with our new focus, transform our cost structure and resolve our pension funding situation.
On February 4, 2008, the Confirmation Order entered by the Court on January 25, 2008 with respect to Delphi’s Plan and Disclosure
Statement became final. Under the terms and subject to the conditions of the Equity Purchase and Commitment Agreement between
Delphi and certain affiliates of lead investor Appaloosa Management L.P. (“Appaloosa”), Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund I, Ltd.
(“Harbinger”), Pardus Capital Management, L.P. (“Pardus”), Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Incorporated (“Merrill””), UBS
Securities LLC (“UBS”), and Goldman Sachs & Co. (“Goldman”) (collectively the “Investors”), dated as of August 3, 2007, as amended
(and together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, the “EPCA”), the Investors committed to purchase $800 million of convertible
preferred stock and approximately $175 million of common stock in the reorganized Company. Additionally, subject to satisfaction of
other terms and conditions, the Investors committed to purchase any unsubscribed shares of common stock in connection with an
approximately $1.6 billion rights offering that was made available to unsecured creditors. On April 4, 2008, Delphi announced that
although it had met the conditions required to substantially consummate its Plan, including obtaining $6.1 billion of exit financing, the
Investors refused to participate in a closing that was commenced but not completed on that date. Several hours prior to the scheduled
closing on April 4, 2008, Appaloosa delivered to Delphi a letter, stating that such letter “constitutes a notice of immediate termination” of
the EPCA. Appaloosa’s April 4 letter alleged that Delphi had breached certain provisions of the EPCA and that Appaloosa is entitled to
terminate the EPCA. At the time Appaloosa delivered its letter, other than the Investors, all the required parties for a successful closing
and emergence from chapter 11, including representatives of Delphi’s exit financing lenders, GM, and the Official Committee of
Unsecured Creditors (the “Creditors’ Committee™) and the Official Committee of Equity Security Holders (the “Equity Committee”) in
Delphi’s chapter 11 cases were present, were prepared to move forward, and all actions necessary to consummate the plan of
reorganization were taken other than the concurrent closing and funding of the EPCA. Delphi believes that Appaloosa wrongfully
terminated the EPCA and disputes the allegations that Delphi breached the EPCA or failed to satisfy any condition to the Investors’
obligations thereunder as asserted by Appaloosa in its April 4 letter.

Throughout the second and third quarters of 2008, Delphi engaged in discussions with its stakeholders, including GM and
representatives of both statutory committees, to develop modifications to the Plan that would allow Delphi to emerge from chapter 11. On
October 3, 2008, Delphi filed proposed modifications to the Plan and related modifications to the Disclosure Statement with the Court
which contained an updated business plan associated with a mid-point total enterprise business valuation of $7.2 billion, and contemplated
that Delphi would need to raise approximately $3.75 billion of emergence capital through a combination of term debt and rights to
purchase equity. However, since the filing of the proposed modifications, substantial uncertainty and a significant decline in capacity in
the credit markets, the global economic downturn generally and the current economic climate in the automotive industry have adversely
impacted Delphi’s ability to develop a revised recapitalization plan and successfully consummate a confirmed plan of reorganization or
other consensual resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases. Delphi continues comprehensive discussions with all of its stakeholders that
have a continuing economic interest in its reorganization cases to formulate further plan modifications. In connection with those
discussions, Delphi made further revisions to its business plan consistent with the extremely low volume production environment in the
global automotive industry and depressed global capital and equity markets. Although no formal valuation of the revised business plan
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has been completed, it is anticipated that the total business enterprise value associated with the modified plan or other economic
distribution in connection with another resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, will be substantially below the valuation range contained
in the modifications filed in October 2008 and may be equivalent to, or even less than, the amount of Delphi’s postpetition obligations,
including its borrowings under its debtor-in-possession financing facility. These factors also continue to delay Delphi’s emergence from
chapter 11 and its ability to refinance its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility.

GM - Conclude negotiations with GM to finalize financial support for certain of Delphi’s legacy and labor costs and to ascertain
GM’s business commitment to Delphi going forward.

Delphi and GM have entered into comprehensive settlement agreements consisting of the Global Settlement Agreement, as
amended (the “GSA”) and the Master Restructuring Agreement, as amended (the “MRA”). The GSA and the MRA, as amended
through January 25, 2008, comprised part of the Plan and were approved in the order confirming the Plan on January 25, 2008. The
GSA and the MRA provided that such agreements were not effective until and unless Delphi emerges from chapter 11. However, as
part of Delphi’s overall negotiations with its stakeholders to further amend the Plan and emerge from chapter 11 as soon as practicable,
Delphi agreed with GM and filed further amendments to the GSA and MRA (the “Amended MRA”) with the Court on September 12,
2008 and subsequently entered into an additional amendment to the GSA as of September 25, 2008 (as so amended, the “Amended
GSA”). On September 26, 2008, Delphi received the consent of its labor unions to implement certain aspects of the agreements as
described in more detail below. The Court approved such amendments on September 26, 2008 and the Amended GSA and Amended
MRA became effective on September 29, 2008. These amended agreements include provisions related to the transfer of certain legacy
pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and became effective independent of and in advance of substantial consummation
of an amended plan of reorganization. The effectiveness of these agreements resulted in a material reduction in Delphi’s liabilities and
future expenses related to U.S. hourly workforce benefit programs.

Global Settlement Agreement - The Amended GSA resolves outstanding issues between Delphi and GM, including: litigation
commenced in March 2006 by Delphi to terminate certain supply agreements with GM; all potential claims and disputes with GM arising
out of the separation of Delphi from GM in 1999, including certain post-separation claims and disputes; the proofs of claim filed by GM
against Delphi in Delphi’s chapter 11 cases; GM’s treatment under a Delphi plan of reorganization; and various other legacy U.S. hourly
workforce benefit issues. Except for the second step of the transfer of a substantial portion of the assets and liabilities under the Delphi
Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan (the “Hourly Plan) as specifically noted below, the obligations under the Amended GSA are not
conditioned on the effectiveness of an amended plan of reorganization.

The Amended GSA addresses commitments by Delphi and GM regarding other U.S. hourly workforce postretirement health care
benefits and employer-paid postretirement basic life insurance benefits (“OPEB”), pension obligations, and other GM contributions with
respect to labor matters and releases.

Hourly Pension Plan Settlement — First Pension Transfer to GM - On September 26, 2008, Delphi received the consent of its labor
unions and approval from the Court to transfer certain assets and liabilities of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension
Plan pursuant to section 414(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “414(1) Net Liability Transfer”’). Pursuant to the Amended GSA, the
414(1) Net Liability Transfer is to occur in two separate steps with the first step sufficient to avoid an Hourly Plan accumulated funding
deficiency for the plan year ended September 30, 2008. The first step occurred on September 29, 2008 and Delphi transferred liabilities of
approximately $2.6 billion and assets of approximately $0.5 billion from the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension
Plan, representing 30% and 10% of the projected benefit obligation and plan assets, respectively, as of September 29, 2008 (the “First
Pension Transfer”). The First Pension Transfer was accounted for as a settlement under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
88, Employer’s Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefit (“SFAS 88”)
in the third quarter of 2008, and the obligations of the Hourly Plan were remeasured prior to the transfer occurring.

Hourly Pension Plan Settlement — Second Pension Transfer to GM - The second step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer (the “Second
Pension Transfer”), will occur upon the effectiveness of an amended plan of reorganization that (i) provides for the treatment of GM’s
claims and releases as set forth in the Amended GSA, including the delivery of preferred stock to satisfy GM’s allowed administrative
claim as described below, and (ii) contains interpretive provisions required by the Amended GSA regarding conflicts between such a plan
and the Amended GSA. Due to the effectiveness of the Second Pension Transfer being contingent upon Delphi’s emergence from chapter
11, it does not meet the criteria for settlement accounting as of March 31, 2009. Delphi will continue to account for the remaining pension
liability under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, Employer’s Accounting for Pensions, until such time that it is settled,
which is currently anticipated to be upon emergence from chapter 11.

Hourly Plan Freeze and Triggering of Benefit Guarantees — As provided for under certain union settlement agreements and
implementation agreements, Delphi froze its Hourly Plan for future benefit accruals as of November 30, 2008. In addition, as a result of
the triggering of the benefit guarantees, certain eligible hourly employees will receive up to seven years of credited service under the
pension and OPEB plans sponsored by GM.
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Hourly OPEB Settlement and OPEB Reimbursement from GM — On September 23, 2008, Delphi received approval from the Court
and on September 26, 2008 received the consent of its labor unions to cease providing traditional U.S. hourly OPEB. In addition, upon
effectiveness of the Amended GSA, GM assumed financial responsibility for all Delphi traditional hourly OPEB liabilities from and after
January 1, 2007. GM assumed approximately $6.8 billion of postretirement benefit liabilities for certain of the Company’s active and
retired hourly employees. The assumption of the traditional hourly OPEB liability by GM and GM’s agreement to reimburse
postretirement benefit expenses through the administrative transfer date of February 1, 2009 was accounted for as a settlement under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, Employer’s Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, in the
third quarter of 2008. During the first quarter of 2009, GM funded an additional $25 million of OPEB payments made to the hourly
workforce, of which $19 million was reimbursement for amounts paid by Delphi during the quarter prior to the administrative transfer and
$6 million was applied to the receivable from GM at December 31, 2008. Refer to Note 10. Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits
for further information.

Allowed GM Administrative and General Unsecured Claims - In connection with the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer, GM will receive
an allowed administrative claim in the amount of up to $2.1 billion, to be provided in two steps. Upon completion of the First Pension
Transfer on September 29, 2008, GM received a claim equivalent to 77.5% of the net unfunded liabilities transferred, or $1.6 billion.
Upon completion of the Second Pension Transfer, which will occur upon the effectiveness of an amended plan of reorganization that
satisfies the requirements of the Amended GSA, GM will receive the balance of the $2.1 billion claim. Of the $2.1 billion administrative
claim, $1.6 billion was recognized and included in the reorganization gain in 2008 and $427 million will be granted and recognized by
Delphi when the remaining assets and liabilities allocable to certain participants of the Hourly Plan included in the 414(1) Net Liability
Transfer are transferred to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan. The amount of the claim to be granted upon completion of the
Second Pension Transfer is not dependent upon the amount of the assets and liabilities at the time of the transfer.

Upon Delphi’s emergence from bankruptcy, the plan of reorganization may, subject to certain conditions, satisfy GM’s administrative
claim through the issuance of non-voting convertible preferred stock, provided that (i) Delphi’s exit financing does not exceed $3.0 billion
(plus a revolving credit facility), (ii) no equity securities are issued that are senior to or pari passu with GM’s preferred stock, (iii) the plan
of reorganization provides for the GM releases as described in the Amended GSA, and (iv) the plan of reorganization contains interpretive
provisions required by the Amended GSA regarding conflicts between such a plan and the Amended GSA.

With respect to GM’s claims in the Company’s chapter 11 cases, GM under the Amended GSA has agreed to a general unsecured
claim of $2.5 billion, primarily for OPEB and special attrition programs for the U.S. hourly workforce, and to subordinate its recovery on
such claim until other general unsecured creditors (other than holders of claims arising from Delphi’s trust preferred securities) have
achieved a recovery of 20% of the allowed amount of their claims. Once Delphi’s other general unsecured creditors have received a
distribution of 20% of the allowed amount of their claims, if there is any remaining value to be distributed, GM would receive a
distribution on its general unsecured claim until it has received a 20% distribution on such claim amount. Once GM has received a 20%
distribution on its general unsecured claim, and if there is any remaining value to be distributed, any additional distributions would be
shared ratably between GM and Delphi’s other general unsecured creditors.

On October 3, 2008, Delphi filed proposed modifications to the Plan and related modifications to the Disclosure Statement with the
Court, which contained an updated business plan associated with a mid-point total enterprise business valuation of $7.2 billion, and
contemplated that Delphi would need to raise approximately $3.75 billion of emergence capital through a combination of term debt and
rights to purchase equity. However, since the filing of the proposed modifications, substantial uncertainty and a significant decline in
capacity in the credit markets, the global economic downturn generally and the current economic climate in the automotive industry, have
adversely impacted Delphi’s ability to develop a revised recapitalization plan and successfully consummate a confirmed plan of
reorganization or other consensual resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases. Delphi continued comprehensive discussions with all of its
stakeholders that have a continuing economic interest in its reorganization cases to formulate further plan modifications. In connection
with those discussions, Delphi made further revisions to its business plan consistent with the extremely low volume production
environment in the global automotive industry and depressed global capital and equity markets. Although no formal valuation of the
revised business plan has been completed, it is anticipated that the total business enterprise value associated with the revised plan or other
economic distribution in connection with another resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, will be substantially below the valuation range
contained in the modifications filed in October 2008 and may be equivalent to, or even less than, the amount of Delphi’s postpetition
obligations, including its borrowings under its debtor-in-possession financing facility. Accordingly, we believe it is likely that (i) we will
not be able to satisfy all the conditions for the receipt by GM of the preferred stock or that the economic value of reorganized Delphi will
exceed $7.13 billion and (i1)) GM will not receive a distribution on account of its general unsecured claim. However, if there are
distributions, pursuant to the Amended GSA, 50% of all distributions that would otherwise be made to GM on account of its
administrative claim would be made to holders of general unsecured claims until such holders have received distributions on account of
their general unsubordinated unsecured claims equal in value of up to $300 million. As part of the May 21, 2009 milestone under the
Accommodation Agreement requiring Delphi to submit the Term Sheet, Delphi is continuing discussions on proposed modifications to the
Plan, and further amendments to the Amended GSA and Amended MRA and expects that the Term Sheet will include agreement on
sources of supplemental liquidity to enable Delphi to continue financing its operations until such time as the transactions in the Term
Sheet can be implemented and Delphi is able to emerge from chapter 11 or another consensual resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases is
reached. However, as discussions are ongoing, we can provide no assurances that this will be the case.
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GM and certain related parties and Delphi and certain related parties have exchanged broad, global releases, effective as of the
effective date of the Amended GSA (which releases do not apply to certain surviving claims as set forth in the Amended GSA). In
addition to providing a release to GM, the Company agreed to withdraw with prejudice the sealed complaint (the “GM Complaint”) filed
against GM in the Court on October 5, 2007.

Allowed IUE-CWA and USW Claims — General unsecured claims in the amounts of $126 million and $3 million were granted to the
International Union of Electronic, Electrical, Salaried, Machine and Furniture Workers-Communication Workers of America (“IUE-
CWA”) and the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial and Service Workers International
Union and its Local Union 87L (the “USW?”), respectively, under the respective labor settlement agreements.

Special Attrition Programs - Previously recognized GM general unsecured claims of $333 million primarily related to the 2006 U.S.
hourly workforce attrition programs previously reimbursed by GM have been forgiven and subsumed in the overall $2.5 billion allowed
general unsecured claim granted to GM, as discussed above. As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, Delphi’s receivable from
GM related to the funding of the International Union, United Automobile, Aerospace and Agricultural Implement Workers of America
(“UAW?”) buydown arrangements under the 2007 U.S. hourly workforce special attrition programs was $68 million. Refer to Note 9. U.S.
Employee Workforce Transition Programs for more information.

Master Restructuring Agreement - The Amended MRA is intended to govern certain aspects of Delphi and GM’s commercial
relationship since filing for chapter 11 and following Delphi’s emergence from chapter 11. The Amended MRA addresses the scope of
GM’s existing and future business awards to Delphi and related pricing and sourcing arrangements, GM commitments with respect to
reimbursement of specified ongoing U.S. hourly workforce labor costs, the disposition of certain Delphi facilities, and the treatment of
existing commercial agreements between Delphi and GM. The obligations under the Amended MRA generally are not conditioned on the
effectiveness of a modified plan of reorganization. GM’s obligations under the Amended MRA are not subject to termination until
December 31, 2015 (provided that certain obligations of GM with respect to legacy UAW employees would survive any such
termination). As part of the ongoing discussions among Delphi, the United States Treasury and GM regarding GM’s overall contribution
to the resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, the parties are considering further amendments to the Amended MRA and Amended GSA,
which may include, among other things, a sale of one or more U.S. manufacturing sites to GM. Any payment that GM would make for
such sites would likely be in lieu of GM’s previously agreed upon support for Delphi, such as the production cash burn breakeven and
labor subsidy payments referred to below.

Existing and Future Business Awards and Related Matters — The Amended MRA (1) addresses the scope of existing business awards,
related pricing agreements, and extensions of certain existing supply agreements, including GM’s ability to move production to alternative
suppliers, and reorganized Delphi’s rights to bid and qualify for new business awards; (2) eliminates the requirement to implement price-
downs with respect to certain businesses since Delphi filed for chapter 11 and restricts GM’s ability to re-source products manufactured at
core U.S. operations through at least December 31, 2011 and Mexican operations through December 31, 2010; (3) contains a commitment
by GM to provide Delphi with an annual Keep Site Facilitation Fee of $110 million in 2009 and 2010 which is not contingent on Delphi’s
emergence from chapter 11, payable in quarterly installments during these periods, which, consistent with Delphi’s policy, will be
recognized in earnings over future production periods; and (4) contains commitments by GM concerning the sale of certain of Delphi’s
non-core businesses and additional commitments by GM if certain of Delphi’s businesses and facilities are not sold or wound down by
specified future dates. On March 31, 2009, Delphi received its first quarterly installment of the annual Keep Site Facilitation Fee of $27.5
million, of which approximately $25 million was recorded as revenue and approximately $3 million was recorded as a deferred liability.

Reimbursement of Hourly Labor Costs — GM has agreed to reimburse the Company for hourly workforce labor costs in excess of $26
per hour, excluding certain costs, including hourly pension and OPEB contributions provided under the supplemental wage agreement, at
specified UAW manufacturing facilities retained by Delphi. The economic substance of this provision of the Amended MRA is to lower
Delphi’s labor costs at specified UAW-represented manufacturing facilities to $26 per hour, excluding certain costs, in order to maintain
competitive operations in the U.S. Consistent with the economic substance of this provision, the labor subsidy amounts received by
Delphi are recorded as a reduction of cost of sales in the period receivable from GM. During the first quarter of 2009, Delphi received a
$38 million reimbursement from GM of hourly labor costs in excess of $26 per hour, which was recorded as a reduction to cost of sales.

Production Cash Burn Breakeven Reimbursement — Delphi has agreed to continue manufacturing at certain non-core sites to meet
GM’s production requirements and GM is providing operating cash flow breakeven support, or production cash burn breakeven (“PCBB”)
from January 1, 2008 through site-specified time periods to compensate Delphi for keeping these sites in production. Additionally, GM
has agreed to reimburse capital spending in excess of $500,000 at the PCBB sites from January 1, 2008 through site-specified time
periods. PCBB reimbursement, including capital spending, from GM is recognized contemporaneously as incurred, and is treated as a
reduction to cost of sales, fixed assets or discontinued operations, as appropriate. During the first quarter of 2009, Delphi received $56
million PCBB reimbursement from GM which was recorded in income from discontinued operations. An additional $24 million was
recorded as a receivable from GM as of March 31, 2009, of which $23 million was recorded in discontinued operations and $1 million
was recorded as a reduction to cost of sales during the first quarter of 2009.
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Working Capital Backstop — Steering Business — GM agreed to provide payments to Delphi for the Steering Business if the sales
value is less than defined estimated working capital amounts of the businesses. In addition, GM agreed to provide payments to Delphi
related to the Steering Business if it is not sold prior to the effectiveness of the MRA. GM provided a $210 million advance on working
capital recovery to Delphi related to the Steering Business on September 30, 2008. This payment is recorded as a deferred liability as of
March 31, 2009. The Steering Business is reported as discontinued operations, refer to Note 15. Discontinued Operations for further
information.

Reimbursement of Hourly Workers’ Compensation and Other Benefits — GM agreed to reimburse Delphi for all current and future
workers compensation, disability, supplemental unemployment benefits, and severance obligations paid by Delphi after January 1, 2009 in
relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active, inactive, and retired employees. Consistent with the substance of the
provision, Delphi recognizes future anticipated reimbursements from GM contemporaneously with Delphi’s incurrence of related cash
payments. During the first quarter of 2009, Delphi received reimbursement of $3 million and an additional $7 million is recorded as a
receivable from GM as of March 31, 2009, for a total reduction to cost of sales of $10 million.

Accelerated GM North American Payment Terms - The Amended MRA accelerates GM’s North American payment terms through
2011 upon (a) the effectiveness of an agreement giving GM certain access rights to four of the Company’s U.S plants in the event that the
reorganized Company experiences extreme financial distress that would prevent Delphi from delivering parts at some point in the future
and (b) the consummation of a modified chapter 11 plan of reorganization pursuant to which Delphi emerges with substantially all of its
core businesses. As these conditions have not yet occurred, the provisions of this program are not yet effective, and there was no financial
impact for this matter in the first quarter of 2009 or 2008. The accelerated payments are expected to result in an increase in cash and a
reduction in accounts receivable and will have no impact on the statement of operations.

The following table details changes during the three months ended March 31, 2009 in the GM and affiliates accounts receivable
balance attributable to the Amended GSA and the Amended MRA, recorded in GM and affiliates accounts receivable in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

Amended GSA and Amended MRA - GM
Accounts Receivable

(in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2008.............cccovevveievieveeeeerenene $ 141

GM obligations recognized.............c.ccevennenne. 175
Payments received from GM ...........cccceeuen. (150)
Balance at March 31, 2009.......c.cccoovviiioiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeens $ 166

As of March 31, 2009, $130 million of the Amended GSA and Amended MRA accounts receivable was included in accounts
receivable from General Motors and affiliates and $36 million was included in assets held for sale on the consolidated balance sheet.

The following table details the GM obligations recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2009:

GM Obligations Recognized
January 1, 2009 — March 31, 2009

(in millions)

Amount recognized in pre-taX earnings............ceeceervennne $ 74
Amount recognized in discontinued operations................. 79
Amount of pass-through OPEB reimbursement................ 19
Amount recognized in deferred liability..........cccoeevenenee. 3

TOAL ..o $ 175

Pensions - Devise a workable solution to the current pension funding situation.

Since entering chapter 11, Delphi had generally limited its contributions to the Hourly Plan, the Delphi Retirement Program for
Salaried Employees (the “Salaried Plan”), the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement Program, the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program,
the PHI Bargaining Retirement Plan and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan (together, the “Pension Plans™) to “normal cost”
contributions, which are less than the minimum funding requirements established by the IRC and ERISA. Following the Court’s approval
of the Hourly and Salaried Pension Program Modification Motion on September 23, 2008, the Salaried Plan, the Mechatronic Plan, the
ASEC Plan, and the PHI Non-Bargaining Plan were frozen effective September 30, 2008. The Hourly Plan was frozen on November 30,
2008. By freezing the Pension Plans, Delphi halted the accrual of normal cost payments going forward thereby preserving liquidity.

Pursuant to the pertinent terms of certain pension funding waivers secured from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) in 2006 and
2007, Delphi provided to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (“PBGC”) letters of credit in favor of the Hourly and Salaried Plans
in the amount of $122.5 million to support funding obligations under the Hourly Plan and $50 million to support funding obligations
under the Salaried Plan. Due to the expiration of the waivers, the PBGC drew against the $172.5 million of letters of credit in favor of the
Hourly and Salaried Plans on May 16, 2008. The cash proceeds from the letters of credit were deposited into the Hourly and Salaried
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Plans and initially recognized as Delphi funding contributions to the respective plans for the plan year ended September 30, 2008.
However, on January 16, 2009, Delphi filed amended Forms 5500 (Annual Return Report of Employee Benefit Plan) with the IRS that
applied all contributions made to the Hourly and Salaried Plans in 2008, including the proceeds from the letters of credit, back to the plan
year ended September 30, 2007. This contribution carry back, together with the September 29, 2008 414(1) Net Liability Transfer
discussed below, had the effect that no contributions were due under the Hourly Plan for the plan year ended September 30, 2008.

Approximately $56 million remains due as a minimum funding contribution under the Salaried Plan for the plan year ended
September 30, 2008, and approximately $13 million remains due as minimum funding contribution under the Delphi Mechatronics
Retirement Program, the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement Program, the PHI Bargaining Retirement Plan and the PHI Non-Bargaining
Retirement Plan for the plan year ended December 31, 2008. As permitted under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
(“ERISA”) and the U.S. Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), Delphi elected to defer the contribution necessary to satisfy this remaining
obligation until no later than the due date for minimum contributions, which is June 15, 2009 for the Salaried Plan and September 15,
2009 for the subsidiary plans. On December 15, 2008, Delphi applied to the IRS for a waiver of the minimum funding contribution of
approximately $56 million to the Salaried Plan for the plan year ended September 30, 2008, and permission to instead amortize amounts
due in over future plan years. That application remains pending.

As reflected above, Delphi has not made certain minimum required contributions to the Pension Plans and as a result, the IRS has
asserted against Delphi excise taxes in the approximate amounts of $17 million and $18 million for plan years ended September 30, 2005
and September 30, 2007, respectively, and may assert additional excise taxes up to an additional $122 million and $226 million for plan
years ended September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2007, respectively. If these asserted assessments are not paid, the IRS could increase
the assessments that relate to the Salaried Plan to 100% of any Salaried Plan contributions considered by the IRS to be due and unpaid.
However, because the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer to the GM hourly plan avoided an accumulated funding deficiency in the Delphi
Hourly Plan for the plan year ended September 30, 2008, exposure to the 100% excise tax related to the Delphi Hourly Plan has been
eliminated for the plan year ended September 30, 2008. Assuming Delphi is assessed excise taxes for all plan years through 2007, the
total exposure to date could approximate $383 million, plus interest and penalties, which could be substantial. In addition, if the IRS does
not agree to waive the minimum required funding contribution under the Salaried Plan for the plan year ended September 30, 2008, the
IRS may assess an additional excise tax of approximately $6 million if Delphi does not remit $56 million to the Salaried Plan by June 15,
2009. Additional excise taxes could be assessed with respect to the subsidiary plans if the minimum required contributions to those plans
for the plan year ended December 31, 2008, are not remitted by September 15, 2009. To the extent not promptly paid by Delphi, any such
excise tax assessments might be increased to 100% of any Salaried Plan and subsidiary plan contributions considered by the IRS to be due
and unpaid.

Although the IRS has asserted certain of the excise tax assessments described above and might seek to assess additional excise taxes,
plus interest and penalties, related to the Pension Plans, Delphi believes that under the Bankruptcy Code, the Company is not obligated to
make contributions for pension benefits while in chapter 11 and that, as a result, the Company would not be liable for any such
assessments. Accordingly, management has concluded that an unfavorable outcome is not currently probable and, as of March 31, 2009,
no amounts have been recorded for any potential excise tax assessment.

If the Company emerges from chapter 11 as contemplated by the Amended GSA and the Amended MRA, then completing the
second step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer will allow us to satisfy substantially all of the pension funding obligations to our hourly
employees, however that second transfer is conditioned on our emergence from chapter 11 under a modified plan of reorganization that
meets the terms of the Amended GSA, and it appears unlikely at this time that such conditions will be met. If the conditions to the second
step of the 414(1) Net Liability Transfer are not satisfied, and the second step does not take place, we do not believe we will be able to
fund those U.S. pension obligations. In addition, we still maintain responsibility for and need to meet U.S. pension funding obligations for
those plans covering our remaining hourly employees, salaried employees and certain subsidiary employees. We may be unable to satisfy
our U.S. pension funding obligations for those plans covering our remaining hourly employees, salaried employees or certain subsidiary
employees. Due to the impact of the global economic recession, including reduced global automotive production, capital markets
volatility that has adversely affected our pension asset return expectations, a declining interest rate environment, or other reasons, our
funding requirements have substantially increased since September 30, 2008. Should we be unable to obtain funding from some other
source to resolve these pension funding obligations, either Delphi or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the “PBGC”) may initiate
plan terminations. The PBGC would seek termination, if in its view, the risk of loss with respect to the plans may increase unreasonably if
the plans are not terminated. The amount of pension contributions due upon emergence from chapter 11 will be dependent upon various
factors including, among other things, the date of emergence, and the funded status of the Pension Plans at the date of emergence. Refer
to Note 10. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits for further information.

Labor - Modify Delphi’s labor agreements to create a more competitive arena in which to conduct business.

During the second quarter of 2007, Delphi signed an agreement with the UAW, and during the third quarter of 2007, Delphi
signed agreements with the remainder of its principal U.S. labor unions, which were ratified by the respective unions and approved by
the Court in the third quarter of 2007. Among other things, as approved and confirmed by the Court, this series of settlement
agreements or memoranda of understanding among Delphi, its unions, and GM settled the Debtors’ motion under sections 1113 and
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1114 of the Bankruptcy Code seeking authority to reject their U.S. labor agreements and to modify retiree benefits (the “1113/1114
Motion”). As applicable, these agreements also, among other things, modify, extend or terminate provisions of the existing collective
bargaining agreements among Delphi and its unions and cover issues such as site plans, workforce transition and legacy pension and
other postretirement benefits obligations as well as other comprehensive transformational issues. Portions of these agreements became
effective in 2007, and the remaining portions were tied to the effectiveness of the GSA and the MRA, and substantial consummation of
the Plan as confirmed by the Court. However, as noted above, Delphi filed amendments to the GSA and the MRA in the Court on
September 12, 2008, and subsequently entered into an additional amendment to the GSA as of September 25, 2008. The Court
approved such amendments on September 26, 2008. The Amended GSA and the Amended MRA became effective on September 29,
2008.

Among other things, these agreements generally provided certain members of the union labor workforce options to either retire,
accept a voluntary severance package or accept lump sum payments in return for lower hourly wages. Refer to Note 9. U.S. Employee
Workforce Transition Programs for more information.

Portfolio - Streamline Delphi’s product portfolio to capitalize on world-class technology and market strengths and make the
necessary manufacturing alignment with Delphi’s new focus.

In March 2006, Delphi identified non-core product lines and manufacturing sites that do not fit into Delphi’s future strategic
framework, including brake and chassis systems, catalysts, cockpits and instrument panels, door modules and latches, ride dynamics,
steering, halfshafts, wheel bearings and power products. In connection with the Company’s continuous evaluation of its product portfolio,
in 2008, Delphi determined that the global exhaust business no longer fit within the Company’s future product portfolio. With the
exception of the catalyst and global exhaust product lines, included in the Powertrain Systems segment, and the steering and halfshaft
product lines and interiors and closures product lines, included in discontinued operations, the Company’s non-core product lines are
included in the Company’s Automotive Holdings Group segment, refer to Note 18. Segment Reporting.

Delphi has continued sale and wind-down efforts with respect to non-core product lines and manufacturing sites. The sale and wind-
down process is being conducted in consultation with the Company’s customers, labor unions and other stakeholders to carefully manage
the transition of affected product lines and manufacturing sites. The disposition of any U.S. operation is also being accomplished in
accordance with the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code and union labor contracts as applicable. The Company also has consulted with
the works councils in accordance with applicable laws regarding any sale or wind-down of affected manufacturing sites in Europe.

Costs recorded in the three months ended March 31, 2009 related to the transformation plan for non-core product lines include
employee termination benefits and other exit costs and U.S. employee workforce transition program charges and are further described in
Note 7. Employee Termination Benefits and Other Exit Costs, Note 9. U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Programs and Note 15.
Discontinued Operations. In April 2009, Delphi received Court approval of bidding procedures for the sale of the remaining global
suspension and brakes business. Refer to Note 17. Acquisitions and Divestitures for more information.

Cost Structure - Transform the salaried workforce and reduce general and administrative expenses to ensure that the organizational
and cost structure is competitive and aligned with Delphi’s product portfolio and manufacturing footprint.

Delphi is continuing to implement restructuring initiatives in pursuit of its transformation objective to reduce selling, general and
administrative expenses. These initiatives include changing the model for delivery of financial services, information technology and
certain sales administration activities; as well as the reduction of the global salaried workforce by leveraging attrition and using salaried
separation plans, and the realignment of certain salaried benefit programs with business conditions. While the continually challenging
economic environment persists, further restructuring initiatives continue to be required. Delphi has implemented a number of cash
conservation measures, including a short-term salaried layoff plan, the suspension of 2009 pay increases and annual incentive payments
for eligible employees, the cessation of health care and life insurance benefits in retirement to salaried employees and retirees effective
March 31, 2009 (refer to Note 10. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits), a decrease in salaried severance payments and the
elimination of salaried flex payments in 2009. Delphi continues to reduce other structural costs to further align itself with the current and
projected volume outlook.

Equity Purchase and Commitment Agreement

Under the terms and subject to the conditions of the EPCA between Delphi and the Investors, the Investors committed to purchase
$800 million of convertible preferred stock and approximately $175 million of common stock in the reorganized Company. Additionally,
subject to satisfaction of other terms and conditions, the Investors committed to purchase any unsubscribed shares of common stock in
connection with an approximately $1.6 billion rights offering that was made available to unsecured creditors. The rights offering
commenced on March 11, 2008 and expired on March 31, 2008. In light of the Investors’ refusal to fund pursuant to the EPCA, as
described below, in April 2008, the Company cancelled the rights offering and returned all funds submitted.
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The Company would be required to pay the Investors $83 million plus certain transaction expenses if (a) the EPCA was terminated as a
result of the Company’s agreeing to pursue an alternative investment transaction with a third party or (b) either the Company’s Board of
Directors withdrew its recommendation of the transaction or the Company willfully breached the EPCA, and within the next 24 months
thereafter, the Company then agreed to an alternative investment transaction.

On April 4, 2008, Delphi announced that although it had met the conditions required to substantially consummate its Plan, including
obtaining $6.1 billion of exit financing, the Investors refused to participate in a closing that was commenced but not completed on that
date. Several hours prior to the scheduled closing on April 4, 2008, Appaloosa delivered to Delphi a letter, stating that such letter
“constitutes a notice of immediate termination” of the EPCA. Appaloosa’s April 4 letter alleged that Delphi had breached certain
provisions of the EPCA, that Appaloosa is entitled to terminate the EPCA and that the Investors are entitled to be paid the fee of $83
million plus certain expenses and other amounts. At the time Appaloosa delivered its letter, other than the Investors, all the required
parties for a successful closing and emergence from chapter 11, including representatives of Delphi’s exit financing lenders, GM, and the
Unsecured Creditors and Equity Committees in Delphi’s chapter 11 cases were present, were prepared to move forward, and all actions
necessary to consummate the plan of reorganization were taken other than the concurrent closing and funding of the EPCA.

On April 5, 2008, Appaloosa delivered to Delphi a letter described as “a supplement to the April 4 Termination Notice,” stating “this
letter constitutes a notice of an additional ground for termination” of the EPCA. The April 5 letter stated that the EPCA’s failure to
become effective on or before April 4, 2008 was grounds for its termination. On June 30, 2008, Merrill, Goldman, UBS and affiliates of
Pardus and Harbinger delivered to Delphi letters of termination relating to the EPCA.

Delphi believes that Appaloosa wrongfully terminated the EPCA and disputes the allegations that Delphi breached the EPCA or failed
to satisfy any condition to the Investors’ obligations thereunder as asserted by Appaloosa in its April 4 letter. Delphi’s Board of Directors
formed a special litigation committee and engaged independent legal counsel to consider and pursue any and all available equitable and
legal remedies, and on May 16, 2008, Delphi filed complaints against the Investors in the Court to seek specific performance by the
Investors of their obligations under the EPCA as well as compensatory and punitive damages. No amounts related to this matter have
been recorded in Delphi’s financial statements. The Investors filed motions to dismiss Delphi’s complaints, and on July 28, 2008, the
Court denied in part and granted in part the Investors’ motions. A trial on Delphi’s complaint is currently scheduled to occur in June
2009.

During 2007, in exchange for the Investors’ commitment to purchase common stock and the unsubscribed shares in the rights offering,
the Company paid an aggregate commitment fee of $39 million and certain transaction expenses and in exchange for the Investors’
commitment to purchase preferred stock the Company paid an aggregate commitment fee of $18 million. In addition, the Company paid
an arrangement fee of $6 million to Appaloosa to compensate Appaloosa for arranging the transactions contemplated by the EPCA. The
Company also paid certain out-of-pocket costs and expenses reasonably incurred by the Investors or their affiliates subject to certain
terms, conditions and limitations set forth in the EPCA. Delphi had deferred the recognition of these amounts in other current assets as
they were to be netted against the proceeds from the EPCA upon issuance of the new shares. However, as a result of the events relating to
the termination of the EPCA as described above, Delphi recognized $79 million of expense related to these fees and other expenses during
the first quarter of 2008.

The Plan of Reorganization

As noted above, due to the Investors failure to fund their commitments under the EPCA, Delphi has not yet consummated the Plan.
Pursuant to an order entered by the Court on April 30, 2008, the Debtors’ exclusivity period under the Bankruptcy Code for filing a plan
of reorganization was extended until 30 days after substantial consummation of the Plan (as modified) or any modified plan and the
Debtors’ exclusivity period for soliciting acceptance of the Plan (as modified) was extended until 90 days after substantial consummation
of the Plan (as modified) or any modified plan. On July 23, 2008, Delphi’s Creditors’ Committee and Wilmington Trust Company
(“WTC”), as Indenture Trustee and a member of the Creditors’ Committee, filed separate complaints in the Court seeking revocation of
the Court order entered on January 25, 2008 confirming Delphi’s Plan. The Creditors’ Committee had earlier advised Delphi that it
intended to file the complaint to preserve its interests with regard to a 180-day statutory period that would have otherwise expired on July
23, 2008. The Creditors’ Committee and WTC also advised Delphi that they do not intend to schedule a hearing on the complaints
pending developments on (i) the continuation of stakeholder discussions concerning potential modifications to the Plan, which would
permit Delphi to emerge from chapter 11 as soon as practicable, and (ii) Delphi’s litigation against an affiliate of lead investor, Appaloosa,
and the other Investors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to an order entered by the Court on March 24, 2009, the Debtors’
exclusive period for filing a plan of reorganization, solely as to the Creditors’ Committee and the Equity Committee, is extended through
and including May 31, 2009 and the Debtors’ exclusive period for soliciting acceptance of a plan of reorganization, solely as to the
Creditors’ Committee and the Equity Committee, is extended through and including July 31, 2009. On May 1, 2009, Delphi filed a
motion seeking to extend such exclusive periods, solely with respect to the statutory committees, to July 31, 2009 and September 30,
2009, respectively. On April 23, 2009 the Court approved Delphi’s motion to disband the Equity Committee as a result of changed
circumstances in Delphi's chapter 11 cases.
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Throughout the second and third quarters of 2008, Delphi engaged in discussions with its stakeholders, including GM and
representatives of both statutory committees, to develop modifications to the Plan that would allow Delphi to emerge from chapter 11. On
October 3, 2008, Delphi filed proposed modifications to the Plan and related modifications to the Disclosure Statement with the Court
which contained an updated business plan associated with a mid-point total enterprise business valuation of $7.2 billion, and contemplated
that Delphi would need to raise approximately $3.75 billion of emergence capital through a combination of term debt and rights to
purchase equity. However, since the filing of the proposed modifications, substantial uncertainty and a significant decline in capacity in
the credit markets, the global economic downturn generally and the current economic climate in the automotive industry, have adversely
impacted Delphi’s ability to develop a revised recapitalization plan and successfully consummate a confirmed plan of reorganization or
other consensual resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases. Delphi continued comprehensive discussions with all of its stakeholders that
have a continuing economic interest in its reorganization cases to formulate further plan modifications. In connection with those
discussions, Delphi made further revisions to its business plan consistent with the extremely low volume production environment in the
global automotive industry and depressed global capital and equity markets. Although no formal valuation of the revised business plan
has been completed, it is anticipated that the total business enterprise value associated with the modified plan or other economic
distribution in connection with another resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, will be substantially below the valuation range contained
in the modifications filed in October 2008 and may be equivalent to, or even less than, the amount of Delphi’s postpetition obligations,
including its borrowings under its debtor-in-possession financing facility. These factors also continue to delay Delphi’s emergence from
chapter 11 and its ability to refinance its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility. To address the likelihood of continued low U.S.
automotive production volumes, Delphi continues to implement a number of cash conservation measures, including temporary lay-offs
and salaried benefit cuts for both active employees and retirees, delay of capital and other expenditures, permanent salaried work-force
reductions and other cost saving measures to ensure adequate liquidity for operations until volumes recover or until the Company is able
to complete further restructuring efforts in response to changes in vehicle markets. The Accommodation Agreement and support from
GM coupled with savings realized as a result of significant cost cutting and cash conservation measures implemented by Delphi globally
have provided Delphi with access to sufficient liquidity to fund its operations and remain in compliance with the covenants in the
Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation Agreement into May 2009 as it continued discussions with its
stakeholders on proposed modifications to the Plan. As noted above, Delphi, GM and the United States Treasury are continuing to discuss
the terms of a global resolution of matters relating to GM’s contribution to the resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases. As part of the
ongoing discussions, the parties are considering further amendments to the Amended MRA and Amended GSA, which may include
among other things, a sale of one or more U.S. manufacturing sites to GM. Refer to “Elements of Transformation Plan” above. Until
such time as the Term Sheet is agreed upon and even assuming that the Term Sheet comprehends additional liquidity support to facilitate
Delphi’s emergence from chapter 11 or another consensual resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, liquidity is expected to remain
constrained through the remainder of the year and Delphi must continue implementing and executing its cash savings initiatives to
preserve liquidity in this very difficult economic environment. Additionally, there can be no assurances that any liquidity support
provided for in the Term Sheet or Delphi’s initiatives will be sufficient to compensate for the liquidity shortfall anticipated as a result of
the announced customer production cuts (refer to Item 1A. Risk Factors in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q).

Delphi will not emerge from bankruptcy as a going concern unless and until Delphi is able to obtain approval of necessary
modifications to the Plan that recognize the existing market conditions, or there is another consensual resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11
cases. Moreover, the continued forbearance by Delphi’s lenders under the DIP financing and the effectiveness of any revised plan of
reorganization are subject to a number of conditions, including the entry of certain orders by the Court and, with respect to the
effectiveness of a plan, the obtaining of necessary emergence capital. There can be no assurances that such emergence capital will be
obtained (or, if obtained, the terms thereof) or such other conditions will be satisfied. For a discussion of certain risks and uncertainties
related to the Debtors’ chapter 11 cases and reorganization objectives refer to Item 1A. Risk Factors in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 and in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. In addition, Delphi cannot assure that
potential adverse publicity associated with the Chapter 11 Filings and the resulting uncertainty regarding its future prospects will not
materially hinder its ongoing business activities and its ability to operate, fund and execute its business plan by impairing relations with
existing and potential customers; negatively impacting its ability to attract, retain and compensate key executives and to retain employees
generally; limiting its ability to obtain trade credit; and impairing present and future relationships with vendors and service providers.
Accordingly, no assurance can be given as to what values, if any, will be ascribed in the chapter 11 cases to each of these constituencies or
what types or amounts of distributions, if any, they would receive. If certain requirements of the Bankruptcy Code are met, a plan of
reorganization can be confirmed notwithstanding its rejection by a company’s equity security holders and certain classes of creditors and
notwithstanding the fact that such equity security holders and such classes of creditors do not receive or retain any property under the plan
on account of their equity or creditor interests. Accordingly, the Company urges that appropriate caution be exercised with respect to
existing and future investments in its common stock or other equity securities, or any claims relating to prepetition liabilities.

The Amended GSA and the Amended MRA became effective during the third quarter of 2008. The cost related to the remaining
components of the transformation plan will be recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as each other element of the
Plan (as modified), including the remaining portions of the U.S. labor agreements, or as the terms of any future confirmed plan of
reorganization, become effective. The confirmation and consummation of a plan of reorganization and the agreements incorporated
therein will significantly impact Delphi’s accounting for long-lived asset impairments and exit costs related to the sites planned for closure
or consolidation, compensation costs for labor recognized over the term of the U.S. labor agreements, and the fair values assigned to assets
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and liabilities upon Delphi’s emergence from chapter 11, among others. Such adjustments will have a material impact on Delphi’s
financial statements.

Reorganization Items

SOP 90-7 requires reorganization items such as revenues, expenses such as professional fees directly related to the process of
reorganizing the Debtors under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, realized gains and losses, provisions for losses, and interest income
resulting from the reorganization and restructuring of the business to be separately disclosed. Professional fees directly related to the
reorganization include fees associated with advisors to the Debtors, unsecured creditors, secured creditors and unions. The Debtors’
reorganization items consist of the following:

(Income) / Expense

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2009 2008
(in millions)
Salaried OPEB settlement (Note 10)........c.cccoveivveiiieiereerereeiene, $(1,168) $ —
Professional fees directly related to reorganization..................... 23 29
INtEIESt INCOME ....ovvvieieeiieiiieiieeieeie ettt be e seeesae s es — (2)
Write off of previously capitalized fees or expenses related to
the EPCA ..ot — 79
(15T TSRS 1 3
Total Reorganization Items ...........cccoeveveerinciesienieceeenn $(1,144) 109

Cash paid for professional fees was approximately $21 million and $18 million, respectively, for the three months ended March 31,
2009 and 2008.

Liabilities Subject to Compromise

As aresult of the Chapter 11 Filings, the payment of prepetition indebtedness is subject to compromise or other treatment under the
Debtors’ plan of reorganization. Generally, actions to enforce or otherwise effect payment of prepetition liabilities are stayed. Although
prepetition claims are generally stayed, at hearings held in October and November 2005, the Court granted final approval of the Debtors’
“first day” motions generally designed to stabilize the Debtors’ operations and covering, among other things, human capital obligations,
supplier relations, customer relations, business operations, tax matters, cash management, utilities, case management, and retention of
professionals. The following data regarding the number and amount of claims and proof of claims is unaudited.

The Debtors have been paying and intend to continue to pay undisputed postpetition claims in the ordinary course of business. In
addition, pursuant to the Plan, the Debtors assumed most of their executory contracts and unexpired leases with respect to the Debtors’
operations, and rejected certain of them, with the approval of the Court. As of March 31, 2009, the Debtors’ have received approximately
16,800 proofs of claim, a portion of which assert, in part or in whole, unliquidated claims. In addition, the Debtors have compared proofs
of claim they have received to liabilities they have already scheduled and determined that there are certain scheduled liabilities for which
no proof of claim was filed. In the aggregate, total proofs of claim and scheduled liabilities assert approximately $34 billion in liquidated
amounts, including approximately $900 million in intercompany claims, and additional unliquidated amounts. As is typical in
reorganization cases, differences between claim amounts listed by the Debtors in their Schedules of Assets and Liabilities (as amended)
and claims filed by creditors will be investigated and resolved in connection with the claims reconciliation process or, if necessary, the
Court will make the final determination as to the amount, nature, and validity of claims. Many of these claims have been found to be
duplicative, based on contingencies that have not occurred, or are otherwise overstated, and therefore have been determined to be invalid.
As a result, the aggregate amount of claims filed with the Court exceeds the amount that has been to date allowed by the Court. As of
March 31, 2009, the Debtors have filed 33 omnibus claims objections that objected to claims on procedural or substantive grounds.
Pursuant to these claims objections, the Debtors have objected to approximately 13,300 proofs of claim asserting approximately $9.9
billion in aggregate liquidated amounts plus additional unliquidated amounts. As of March 31, 2009, the Court has entered orders
disallowing and/or claimants have withdrawn approximately 10,000 of those claims, which orders reduced the amount of asserted claims
by approximately $9.8 billion in aggregate liquidated amounts plus additional unliquidated amounts. In addition, the Court has entered an
order modifying approximately 4,000 claims reducing the aggregate amounts asserted on those claims by $351 million, which amounts are
subject to further objection by the Debtors at a later date on any basis. The Debtors anticipate that additional proofs of claim will be the
subject of future objections as such proofs of claim are reconciled. The determination of how these liabilities are to be settled and treated
is set forth in the Plan. In light of the number of creditors of the Debtors, the claims resolution process may take considerable time to
complete. Accordingly, the ultimate number and amount of allowed claims is not determinable at this time. Classification for purposes of
these financial statements of any prepetition liabilities on any basis other than liabilities subject to compromise is not an admission against
interest or a legal conclusion by the Debtors as to the manner of classification, treatment, allowance, or payment in the Debtors’ chapter
11 cases, including in connection with any plan of reorganization that may be confirmed by the Court and that may become effective
pursuant to an order of the Court. As of January 25, 2008, the total general unsecured claims, other than funded debt claims, against the
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Company had been reduced to an amount of approximately $1.45 billion. Refer to Plan of Reorganization and Transformation Plan above
for details on the chapter 11 cases.

SOP 90-7 requires prepetition liabilities that are subject to compromise to be reported at the amounts expected to be allowed, even if
they may be settled for lesser amounts. The amounts currently classified as liabilities subject to compromise may be subject to future
adjustments depending on Court actions, further developments with respect to disputed claims, determinations of the secured status of
certain claims, the values of any collateral securing such claims, or other events.

Liabilities subject to compromise consist of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008
(in millions)

Pension obligations (INOtE 10) ......eeiieiiiiiiiiiieriee et $ 5,347 $ 5,321
Postretirement obligations other than pensions (Note 10).........cccceveeeieeiiiieneenieennnne. 31 1,201
Allowed GM general unsecured Claim ...........cccovvevvieviieriieiieieneee et 2,500 2,500
Allowed GM adminiStrative Claim ..........ccceeiivviiiiiiiieieeie e 1,628 1,628
Allowed ITUE-CWA and USW Claims ......ccceeoeeieienieienienieneniceieiceceeeeeeeee e 129 129
Debt and notes PaYabIe........c.cccvivierierieiieie et 1,984 1,984
ACCOUNLS PAYADIC.......eciiieiieeieiieiieie et ete sttt eae e seae et e sseesseesseesseessesssessaesseenses 730 732
Junior subordinated notes due 2033 .........ccoiiiiiiiiee e 391 391
Securities & ERISA litigation liability (Note 11)......cccceoeeiieiiinininininiieeieicncnenne 351 351
Supplemental executive retirement ProZraml .........coeeveevereerierienenereeeereeseneenenennens 117 118
L@ 11 1T ST 227 228

Total Liabilities Subject to COMPIOMISE.......cccveeverierrieiieieeieseeie e enees $§ 13435 $ 14,583

The decrease in liabilities subject to compromise at March 31, 2009 is due to the impact of the termination of health care and life
insurance benefits in retirement to salaried employees, retirees and surviving spouses effective March 31, 2009 (refer to Note 10. Pension
and Other Postretirement Benefits).

3. INVENTORIES, NET

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis (“FIFO”), or market, including direct material costs
and direct and indirect manufacturing costs. A summary of inventories, net is shown below:

March 31, December 31,

2009 2008

(in millions)
Productive material ...........o.covevevereeeninirieieieeeeeeee e $ 600 $ 663
Work-in-process and supplies 202 253
Finished g00ds .......ccovervieiiniiiieieieecceeee e 328 369
TOtal .o $ 1,130 $ 1,285

4. ASSETS
Other current assets consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,

2009 2008

(in millions)
Income and other taxes receivable ............cccoovevivviiiiiiiiiciicen, $ 166 $ 240
Prepaid insurance and other expenses 118 121
Deferred inCOME taXes ......coeevveeeerveeeeiieeeieeeeeeeeeeneeeens 85 96
Deposits t0 VENdOTS. .......ccuevveeverieecierieeienieeeesieeeeaeeens 43 46
Notes receivable.......cooeeeiiiiiiiiieieiieeeceeeeeeeeee e 20 28
37 56
15 26
$ 484 $ 613
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Other long-term assets consisted of the following:

5. LIABILITIES

Deferred INCOME tAXES .....eeeevureeeirieeeiieeeeree e eeeeee et e
Notes receivable..........cccceevveeneeennnnn.

Income and other taxes receivable ......

GoodWill ....oveeviieiiiiieeeceeee

Intangible assets.......
Deferred charges......
Other investments ....

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

Payroll-related obligations ...........ccuevuereerierieeiieniieieieeeeeeeeieee
Employee benefits, including current pension obligations...........
AcCTued INCOME LAXES ...veuveeneeeienieiieiieiesiteie st eee et see e e seeens
Taxes other than INCOME ..........c.coceviriieieininiecc e
Warranty obligations (NOte 6).........ccceeveererieneneenieneennens

U.S. employee workforce transition program (Note 9)
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs (Note 7).......
Interest on prepetition claims (NOte 1).....ccoceevevievieniniienienieiee
Working capital backstop — Steering Business (Note 2) ...
Derivative financial instruments (Note 14) .........ccccceueneee
Other-.......

Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following:

Workers COmMPENSAtion..........ccueeveeeeriereerieseeieneeiesieeeesseeeesaenes
Environmental (NOte 11) ...cccevcvieviieiieiiieiiecie e
Extended disability benefits..........ccecvereeeienieiienenieiecceeie s
Warranty obligations (Note 6)..
Payroll-related obligations........
Accrued INCOME tAXES .....eovevemrereeiereirieieieeieterteseeeeeene e ereseeneenes
Other long-term debt (NOte 8)......ceeeerverieiieniieienieieieseeeee
Derivative financial instruments (Note 14)...
Oher ..o

100

March 31, December 31,

2009 2008
(in millions)
$§ 65 $ 85
19 21
104 91
61 62
26 28
14 14
24 25
129 129
$ 442 $ 455

March 31, December 31,

2009 2008
(in millions)
§ 244 $ 207
127 136
81 72
172 199
126 128
105 115
194 213
415 415
210 210
142 132
348 344
$2,164 $2.171

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008

(in millions)

§ 311 $ 325
93 97

61 60

207 236

29 35

105 71

61 55

42 36

105 113
$1.014 1,028



6. WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS

Delphi recognizes expected warranty costs for products sold principally at the time of sale of the product based on Delphi’s estimate of
the amount that will eventually be required to settle such obligations. These accruals are based on factors such as past experience,
production changes, industry developments and various other considerations. Delphi’s estimates are adjusted from time to time based on
facts and circumstances that impact the status of existing claims.

The table below summarizes the activity in the product warranty liability for the three months ended March 31, 2009:

Warranty

Obligations
(in millions)

Balance at December 31, 2008 .......ooueeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et e et $ 364
Provision for estimated warranties issued during the period.........cccccceeveeuennnne. 13
Provision for changes in estimate for preexisting warranties .................ceueeveee.. 3)
Settlements made during the period (in cash or in kind) ......c..ccccoevenenincncnnne 3D
Foreign currency translation and other.............ccceeevieiivieniieciiiieniece e, 10)

Balance at March 31, 2009 .......ccovviiioiiieeeiie e $ 333

Approximately $126 million and $128 million of warranty obligations as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, is
included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Approximately $207 million and $236 million of
warranty obligations as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, is included in other long-term liabilities.

7. EMPLOYEE TERMINATION BENEFITS AND OTHER EXIT COSTS

Delphi continually evaluates alternatives to align its business with the changing needs of its customers and to lower the operating
costs of the Company. This includes the realignment of its existing manufacturing capacity, facility closures, or similar actions in the
normal course of business. These actions may result in voluntary or involuntary employee termination benefits, which are mainly
pursuant to union or other contractual agreements. Voluntary termination benefits are accrued when an employee accepts the related
offer. Involuntary termination benefits are accrued when Delphi commits to a termination plan and the benefit arrangement is
communicated to affected employees, or when liabilities are determined to be probable and estimable, depending on the circumstances of
the termination plan. Contract termination costs are recorded when contracts are terminated or when Delphi ceases to use the facility and
no longer derives economic benefit from the contract. All other exit costs are accrued when incurred.

Delphi’s employee termination benefit and other exit costs are undertaken as necessary to execute management’s strategy, streamline
operations, take advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions. These activities generally fall
into one of two categories:

3) Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities and other exit or disposal activities, as it relates to
executing the Company’s strategy in the normal course of business.
4 Transformation plan activities, which support the Company’s overall transformation initiatives announced in 2006, including

selling or winding down non-core product lines, transforming its salaried workforce to reduce general and administrative
expenses, and modifying labor agreements with its principal unions in the U.S.
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The following table summarizes the employee termination benefit and other exit cost charges recorded for the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008 by operating segment:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
Segment 2009 2008
(in millions)

Electronics & Safety.........cocveieveueeieeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 17 $ 28
POWETTIAIn SYSTEIMS ..ouvvevviiieiieiieiesieete st etesie e te e see e saeaeeene s 5 4
Electrical/Electronic Architecture............cccccoevivenenciiiininencieeeenn 32 13
Thermal Systems 2 3
Automotive Holdings Group .........cccceeeevienenieninienienenienenceenen, 9 43
Corporate and Other .........c.cocvevieiienieieneeeeeeeee e (6) —
Continuing OPErations ..........ceveereerreerierierienieseereeseeseesseeeeseeeneas 59 91
Discontinued Operations 10) 35
Total...ooevieveeirieireenne $ 49 126
Cost of sales 55 86
Selling, general and administrative expenses ................c..c.ccoc...... 4 5
Discontinued OPerations ..................ccocuceeeeeoiaeneneeieiaeeen (10) 35

The table below summarizes the activity in the employee termination benefits and exit costs liability for the three months ended
March 31, 2009:

Employee
Termination Other Exit
Benefits Liability  Costs Liability Total
(in millions)

Accrual balance at December 31, 2008.........c.cccoevveviiieceiceeeeceeeeeenen $ 205 $ 45 $ 250
Provision for estimated expenses incurred during the period...... 34 25 59
Provision for changes in estimates for preexisting programs...... (10) — (10)
Payments made during the year ..........ccccecevervieneniecenenieeee. (65) (26) (C2Y)
Severance reimbursed or reimbursable by GM under the

Amended MRA ...t — 53
Foreign currency and other ....................... 9 1) 10)
Accrual balance at March 31, 2009 $ 43 251

Approximately $194 million and $213 million of the employee termination benefits and other exit costs accrual balance as of March
31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, is included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Approximately $19 million and $13 million of the employee termination benefits and other exit costs accrual balance as of March 31,
2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, is included in other long-term liabilities. Approximately $38 million and $24 million of the
employee termination benefits and other exit costs accrual balance as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, is included
in liabilities held for sale.

Delphi has initiated several programs to streamline operations and lower costs. The following are details of significant charges during
the three months ended March 31, 2009.

. Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities. As part of Delphi’s ongoing efforts to lower costs and
operate efficiently, the Electronics and Safety, Powertrain Systems, Electrical/Electronic Architecture, Thermal Systems and
Automotive Holdings Group segments executed initiatives to realign manufacturing operations within North America to lower
cost markets and to reduce headcount in line with the realigned manufacturing operations, and incurred approximately $29
million of employee termination benefits and other related exit costs during the first quarter of 2009. Additionally, European,
South American and Asian operations in the Electronics and Safety and Electrical/Electronic Architecture segments incurred $11
million of employee termination benefits and other exit costs in conjunction with headcount reductions and programs related to
the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering process. Offsetting these costs, was a change in estimate to a previously
accrued liability related to settlements with the UAW and various other labor unions of $7 million.

. Transformation plan activities. As part of an effort to transform its salaried workforce and reduce general and administrative
expenses, Delphi identified certain salaried employees in North America during the first quarter of 2009 for involuntary
separation and incurred $17 million in related employee termination benefits included in continuing operations. Delphi also
incurred $7 million of U.S. salaried separations recorded in discontinued operations. As a result of the Amended MRA, $53
million of U.S. employee termination benefits have been or will be reimbursed by GM, of which $44 million related to U.S.
hourly separations and $9 million related to U.S. salaried separations.
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The following are details of significant charges during the three months ended March 31, 2008.

. Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities. As part of Delphi’s ongoing efforts to lower costs and
operate efficiently, Delphi’s Electronics and Safety and Automotive Holdings Group segments plan to transfer core products
manufactured at a shared location in Portugal to a lower cost market and exit non-core products from that facility and recognized
employee termination benefits of $44 million. Additionally, Electronics and Safety, Electrical / Electronic Architecture segment,
Thermal Systems and the Automotive Holdings Group executed initiatives to realign manufacturing operations within North
America to lower cost markets, and incurred approximately $23 million of employee termination benefits and other related exit
costs.

. Transformation plan activities. As part of an initiative to sell or wind down non-core product lines, Delphi incurred employee
termination benefits and other exit costs of $31 million related to the closure of a manufacturing facility in Athens, Alabama
during the first quarter of 2008, which related to the Steering Business and was recorded in loss from discontinued operations.
As part of an effort to transform its salaried workforce and reduce general and administrative expenses, Delphi identified certain
salaried employees in North America during the first quarter of 2008 for involuntary separation and incurred $18 million in
related employee termination benefits in the Electronics and Safety, Powertrain Systems, Electrical / Electronic Architecture and
Automotive Holdings Group segments.

8. DEBT
Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation Agreement

During the first quarter of 2007, Delphi refinanced its prepetition and postpetition credit facilities by entering into a Revolving Credit,
Term Loan, and Guaranty Agreement (the “Refinanced DIP Credit Facility”) to borrow up to approximately $4.5 billion from a syndicate
of lenders. During the second quarter of 2008, Delphi received Court approval and the required commitments from its lenders to amend
and extend its Refinanced DIP Credit Facility (the “Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility”), which amendments and extension
became effective in May 2008. As a result of the amendment and restatement, the aggregate size of the facility was reduced from $4.5
billion to $4.35 billion, consisting of a $1.1 billion first priority revolving credit facility (the “Tranche A Facility” or the “Revolving
Facility”), a $500 million first priority term loan (the “Tranche B Term Loan”) and a $2.75 billion second priority term loan (the “Tranche
C Term Loan™).

On November 7, 2008, Delphi filed a motion with the Court seeking authority to enter into the Accommodation Agreement allowing
Delphi to retain the proceeds of its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, which otherwise matured on December 31, 2008. On
December 3, 2008, the Court entered an order approving Delphi’s motion and authorizing Delphi to enter into the Accommodation
Agreement following the expiration of the applicable appeal period, assuming resolution of any objections filed in the interim. On
December 12, 2008, Delphi satisfied the closing conditions set forth in the Accommodation Agreement and the Accommodation
Agreement became effective. On January 30, 2009, Delphi reached agreement with its lenders to amend (the “Amendment”) the
Accommodation Agreement. In support of Delphi’s efforts to develop a modified reorganization plan adapted to the current global
economic environment, the lenders agreed to modify certain financial covenants and pay-down requirements contained in the
Accommodation Agreement. In addition, GM agreed to immediately accelerate payment of $50 million in payables to Delphi under the
Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement and to, no later than February 27, 2009, either accelerate payment of an additional
$50 million in payables under such agreement or increase from $300 million to $350 million the amount which it is committed to advance
under the GM Advance Agreement. The Amendment and GM’s agreement to accelerate payments were effective January 30, 2009;
however, both agreements were subject to satisfaction of certain post-closing conditions, including Court approval and in the case of the
Amendment, the payment of fees to the consenting lenders. The Company filed motions with the Court seeking approval of these
agreements and authority to pay the applicable fees. Just prior to the hearing on such motions, the lenders and Delphi agreed to a further
supplemental amendment to the Accommodation Agreement (the “Supplemental Amendment”), to further extend certain milestone dates,
and on February 24, 2009 the Court approved the Amendment, the Supplemental Amendment and the amendment to the Partial
Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement. On March 31, 2009, Delphi entered into the Second Amendment to the Accommodation
Agreement that included certain updated milestones and covenant provisions that were subsequently eliminated in the First Supplement
entered on April 3, 2009. The First Supplement contained a number of new covenants and milestone requirements. On April 22, 2009,
Delphi entered into the Second Supplement that, amount other things, extended certain milestone dates.

In connection with the Second Amendment Delphi applied all previously collected interest payments in respect of the Tranche C
Term Loan, approximately $86 million, ratably as repayments of principal outstanding under the Tranche A Facility and Tranche B Term
Loan. In conjunction with the effectiveness of the Second Supplement, $25 million of amounts in a cash collateral account were ratably
applied to pay down principal amounts outstanding under the Tranche A Facility and Tranche B Term Loan. In addition, the Second
Supplement provides that all future Tranche C interest payments will be applied ratably to repayments of principal amounts outstanding
under the Tranche A Facility and the Tranche B Term Loan until paid in full.
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On May 7, 2009 Delphi entered into a further amendment (the “Third Amendment”) to the Accommodation Agreement, which
further extended certain milestones dates in the Accommodation Agreement. The Third Amendment received interim approval on May 7,
2009 and became immediately effective, however, it is subject to certain post-closing conditions including receipt of final approval of the
Court before May 23, 2009 and the payment of fees and certain expenses to consenting lenders. In conjunction with the effectiveness of
the Third Amendment, $45 million of amounts in a cash collateral account were ratably applied to pay down principal amounts
outstanding under the Tranche A Facility and Tranche B Term Loan with the result that as of May 8§, 2009, there remained approximately
$230 million and $311 million outstanding under each facility, respectively. There also remained approximately $2.75 billion outstanding
under the Tranche C Term Loan.

Termination Date of the Accommodation Agreement

Under the Accommodation Agreement (as amended by the Amendment and Supplemental Amendment and the Second Amendment
and Second Supplement), Delphi may continue using the proceeds of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and the lenders have
agreed, among other things, to forbear from the exercise of certain default-related remedies, in each case until the earlier to occur of (i)
June 30, 2009; (ii) Delphi’s failure to comply with its covenants, including the milestone dates described below, under the
Accommodation Agreement or the occurrence of certain other events set forth in the Accommodation Agreement; and (iii) an event of
default under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility (other than the failure to repay the loans under the facility on the maturity
date or comply with certain other repayment provisions).

However, the Accommodation Agreement (as amended by the Third Amendment) contains certain milestone dates, which if not met
require Delphi to apply the $47 million currently held as cash collateral in the “Basket” (as defined below) to pay down a portion of the
Tranche A Facility and Tranche B Term Loan (the “Repayment Obligation”) and may result in an event of default and termination of the
accommodation period. Specifically, Delphi is required to deliver on or before May 21, 2009 to the agent under the Amended and
Restated DIP Credit Facility a detailed term sheet (the “Term Sheet”), which has been agreed to by both GM and the U.S. Treasury and
which sets forth the terms of a global resolution of matters relating to GM’s contribution to the resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases,
including, without limitation, all material transactions between Delphi and GM relevant to such resolution. The Accommodation
Agreement further provides that the Repayment Obligation will be triggered and an event of default under the Accommodation Agreement
will occur (i) on May 22, 2009 if the Term Sheet is not delivered by May 21, 2009, or (ii) in the event a majority of the Tranche A and
Tranche B lenders who have signed the Accommodation Agreement or a majority of all lenders who have signed the Accommodation
Agreement either (A) notify Delphi within 3 business days of delivery of the Term Sheet that the Term Sheet is not satisfactory or (B) fail
to notify Delphi within such time period, that the Term Sheet is satisfactory. In addition, the accommodation period under the
Accommodation Agreement will terminate (a) at any time during the occurrence and during the continuation of an event of default under
the Accommodation Agreement resulting from a failure to timely deliver the Term Sheet or to satisfy the Repayment Obligation, in each
case upon the direction by the Tranche A and Tranche B lenders who have signed the Accommodation Agreement or upon the direction of
a majority of all lenders who have signed the Accommodation Agreement (or in any event, upon the expiration of a five business day
period beginning upon such event of default, in the case of a failure to satisfy the Repayment Obligation) and (b) upon expiration of a five
business day period beginning upon notice by the requisite lenders described above that the Term Sheet is not satisfactory or Delphi not
receiving notice that the Term Sheet is satisfactory. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the accommodation period under the Accommodation
Agreement will terminate on June 2, 2009, in the event that a majority of the Tranche A and Tranche B lenders who have signed the
Accommodation Agreement and a majority of all lenders who signed the Accommodation Agreement had not notified Delphi that the
Term Sheet is satisfactory on or before June 1, 2009.

Requirements of the Accommodation Agreement

Notwithstanding the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is in default of the terms of its Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility
and as a result, as of December 12, 2008, the effective date of the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is no longer able to make additional
draws under the facility. However, under the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is required to continue to comply with the provisions of
the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility (as amended and modified by the Accommodation Agreement). Additionally, prior to the
effective date of the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi was required to and did the following (i) replace or cash collateralize, at 105% of
the undrawn amount thereof, all outstanding letters of credit under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility that had not been
collateralized prior to that date, and (ii) limit the aggregate principal amounts outstanding under the Tranche A Facility borrowings to no
more than $377 million.

In addition, in conjunction with the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi increased its pledge of the equity interests in Delphi’s first-
tier foreign subsidiaries from 65% to 100%, which triggered a deemed dividend for tax purposes (no additional cash taxes were incurred).

Prior to the effectiveness of the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi was permitted to and did provide cash collateral, in an aggregate
amount of $200 million, which was pledged to the administrative agent for the benefit of the lenders (“Borrowing Base Cash Collateral”).
Upon Delphi’s request, portions or all of the Borrowing Base Cash Collateral will be transferred back to Delphi provided that (i) Delphi is
in compliance with the borrowing base calculation in the Accommodation Agreement, (ii) no event of default has occurred and (iii) Delphi
maintains a Minimum Borrowing Base Cash Collateral Account Balance (as defined in the Accommodation Agreement) of $160 million
through and including April 18, 2009, $115 million from April 19, 2009 until the Term Sheet has been approved by the lenders as set forth
above, and thereafter at an amount set forth in the Term Sheet.
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In conjunction with the Amendment, a separate cash collateral account of up to $117 million (the “Basket”) was established, which
solely for purposes of the prepayment provisions in the Accommodation Agreement is considered an offset to amounts outstanding under
the Revolving Facility. As noted above, in conjunction with the Second Supplement and the Third Amendment, $25 million and $45
million from the Basket, respectively, was ratably applied to pay down principal amounts outstanding under the Tranche A Facility and
Tranche B Term Loan. Remaining amounts in the Basket may be released to Delphi (and each such release may not be restored) if each
of the following conditions is satisfied at the time of the release: (a) after giving effect to the release, Delphi is compliant with the
mandatory prepayment provisions in the Accommodation Agreement and all other covenants in the Amended and Restated DIP Credit
Facility as modified by the Accommodation Agreement and the Amendment, and (b) availability under the GM Advance Agreement has
been increased to and remains at $450 million. GM had previously agreed to increase amounts available under the GM Advance
Agreement to $450 million, subject to (i) GM not being notified by the President’s Designee that such increase is not permitted in
accordance with the provisions of GM’s federal loans, (ii) Court approval, (iii) the GM board of directors’ approval, (iv) Delphi and GM
executing a definitive transaction agreement relating to the sale of Delphi’s Steering Business, and (v) Court approval of the Steering
Business Option Exercise Agreement. The Option Exercise Agreement contains a procedure for completing the definitive transaction
agreement relating to the sale of the Steering Business to GM which, among other things, takes into account the terms of the Amended
MRA and certain modifications set forth in the Option Exercise Agreement. Based on the terms of the Option Exercise Agreement and
the Amended MRA, the terms upon which the Steering Business will be sold to GM have been substantially agreed by GM and Delphi.
The Option Exercise Agreement is subject to conditions described in Note 15. Discontinued Operations. However, the U.S. Treasury
objected to the proposed increase to GM’s commitments under the GM Advance Agreement and as a result of such objections, Delphi
adjourned the hearings on its motions to obtain Court approval of the amendments to the GM Advance Agreement and the Steering
Business Option Exercise Agreement. To date, Delphi has been able to maintain sufficient liquidity to continue operations despite being
prevented from effectuating the above-described increases in GM’s commitments under the GM Advance Agreement. However, there can
be no assurances this will continue to be the case, particularly in the absence of a near term agreement on a Term Sheet which
comprehends additional liquidity support (refer to Liquidity Outlook in Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and Item 1A. Risk Factors in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q).

Terms of the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation Agreement
The facilities currently bear interest at the Administrative Agent’s Alternate Base Rate (“ABR”) plus a specified percent, as detailed in
the table below, and the amounts outstanding (in millions) and rates effective as of March 31, 2009 were:

Borrowings as of  Rates effective as of

ABR plus March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009
(in millions)
Tranche A.....coceeeeveecveeeeeen, 5.00% $308 9.25%
Tranche B.....coovoovvvveenen. 5.00% $416 9.25%
Tranche C.....ooovvevevveeeen. 6.25% $2,750 10.50%

The Tranche A, Tranche B and Tranche C facilities include an ABR floor of 4.25%.

The Company had $107 million in letters of credit outstanding under the Revolving Facility as of March 31, 2009. The amount
outstanding at any one time under the First Priority Facilities is limited by a borrowing base computation as described in the
Accommodation Agreement. Under the Accommodation Agreement, Delphi is required to provide weekly borrowing base calculations to
the bank lending syndicate. Based on the borrowing base computation in effect at March 31, 2009, as defined in the Accommodation
Agreement, Delphi’s borrowing base was reduced by a deduction of $249 million for unrealized losses related to Delphi’s hedging
portfolio, which as of March 31, 2009 resulted in net losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income (“OCI”) of $242
million pre-tax, primarily related to copper and Mexican Peso hedges, as further described in Note 14. Derivatives and Hedging Activities
and Fair Value Measurements.

The Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility includes affirmative, negative and financial covenants that impose restrictions on
Delphi’s financial and business operations, including Delphi’s ability, among other things, to incur or secure other debt, make
investments, sell assets and pay dividends or repurchase stock. As long as the Facility Availability Amount (as defined in the Amended
and Restated DIP Credit Facility) is equal to or greater than $500 million, compliance with the restrictions on investments, mergers and
disposition of assets does not apply (except with respect to investments in, and dispositions to, direct or indirect domestic subsidiaries of
Delphi that are not guarantors). Delphi’s Facility Availability Amount was less than $500 million at March 31, 2009 as all commitments
were cancelled with the effectiveness of the Accommodation Agreement on December 12, 2008.

The Accommodation Agreement also contains additional covenants, amends certain of the existing covenants in the Amended and
Restated DIP Credit Facility and includes additional events of default under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility. Additional
covenants under the Accommodation Agreement include (i) a prescribed minimum borrower liquidity level, which in conjunction with the
Second Supplement was set at $25 million through the remainder of the accommodation period, (ii) a requirement to repay obligations
under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility pursuant to an Accommodation Agreement borrowing base covenant, (iii) a
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requirement to repay obligations under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility to the extent any specified litigation proceeds are
received in cash, (iv) a prohibition on the repatriation of cash from foreign subsidiaries as cash dividends, cash otherwise distributed in
redemption of or in exchange for equity interests in foreign subsidiaries or through the repayment of notes unless used to repay obligations
under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and (v) a requirement to repay $60 million in obligations under the Amended and
Restated DIP Credit Facility in accordance with the schedule set forth in the Accommodation Agreement.

Changes to covenants under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility include (i) a reduction in the cap on permitted debt and
liens on assets of foreign subsidiaries, (ii) a reduction in the cap on net cash proceeds from asset sales before such proceeds must be
utilized to repay the obligations under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, (iii) modifications to certain debt and lien baskets,
including permitting cash collateralization of letters of credit and an increase in secured hedging obligations and (iv) enhanced monthly
financial reporting. The covenants require Delphi, among other things, to maintain a rolling 12-month cumulative Global EBITDAR (as
defined in the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation Agreement) for Delphi and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis. The covenants also impose restrictions on Delphi’s derivative contracts. Refer to Note 14.
Derivatives and Hedging Activities and Fair Value Measurements for more information. Delphi was in compliance with the Amended
and Restated DIP Credit Facility and Accommodation Agreement covenants as of March 31, 2009, including the Global EBITDAR
covenant of $(150) million.

The Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility also contains certain defaults and events of default customary for debtor-in-possession
financings of this type. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any default in payment of principal, interest or other amounts
due under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, and interest on all outstanding amounts is payable on demand at 2% above the
then applicable rate.

New events of default under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility include (i) any amendment, waiver, supplement or
modification to the Amended GSA or the Amended MRA requiring Court approval that, taken as a whole, materially impairs the rights of
Delphi or its affiliated debtors as borrowers or guarantors, materially reduces the amount, or decelerates the timing of, any material
payments under either such agreement, if the Required Lenders object, (ii) any repudiation in writing or termination of the Amended GSA
or the Amended MRA by any party thereto, or a failure to perform any obligation thereunder, which failure materially impairs the rights
of Delphi thereunder, (iii) certain amendments, waivers, modifications, or supplementations of any term of the GM Advance Agreement
or the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement (as defined below), (iv) any event or condition that results in GM not funding
amounts requested under the GM Advance Agreement and (v) the enforcement or failure to stay enforcement of a judgment or order
against any borrower or guarantor with respect to any amounts advanced under the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility.

In the first quarter of 2009, the Company received authority from the Court to pay applicable fees to various lenders in conjunction

with the Amendment and Supplemental Amendment, and paid approximately $16 million in fees to the consenting lenders for both
amendments. Delphi also paid arrangement and other fees to various lenders associated with the amendments.
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Advance Agreement and Liquidity Support from General Motors and Related Matters

Concurrently with the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility, Delphi entered into an agreement with GM whereby GM agreed to
advance Delphi amounts anticipated to be paid following the effectiveness of the GSA and MRA (the “GM Advance Agreement”). The
original GM Advance Agreement had a maturity date of the earlier of December 31, 2008, when $650 million was to have been paid
under the GSA and MRA and the date on which a plan of reorganization becomes effective. The original GM Advance Agreement
provided for availability of up to $650 million, as necessary for Delphi to maintain $500 million of liquidity, as determined in accordance
with the GM Advance Agreement. The amounts advanced accrue interest at the same rate as the Tranche C Term Loan on a paid-in-kind
basis. The accrued interest on the advances made through the effectiveness of the Amended GSA and Amended MRA was cancelled due
to the effectiveness of the Amended GSA and Amended MRA, as more fully described in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11
Bankruptcy, and Delphi was not able to redraw the original $650 million facility amount.

On September 26, 2008, the Court granted Delphi’s motion to amend the GM Advance Agreement to provide for a $300 million
facility, which could be drawn against from time to time as necessary for Delphi to maintain $300 million of liquidity, as determined in
accordance with the amendment to the GM Advance Agreement signed on August 7, 2008 and to give GM an administrative claim for all
unpaid advances under such additional facility. Continued availability to draw against the additional $300 million facility was conditioned
upon Delphi filing a plan of reorganization and related disclosure statement in form and substance materially consistent with Section 5 of
the Amended GSA and Section 7.01 of the Amended MRA which condition was satisfied with Delphi’s filing of proposed modifications
to its previously confirmed plan of reorganization with the Court on October 3, 2008, and certain other conditions.

In support of Delphi’s efforts to obtain the Accommodation Agreement, GM agreed to extend the term of the GM Advance
Agreement, pursuant to the terms set forth in an amendment thereto filed with the Court on November 7, 2008 (as supplemented) (the
“GM Advance Agreement Amendment”), through the earlier of (i) June 30, 2009, (ii) such date as Delphi files any motion seeking to
amend the plan of reorganization in a manner that is not reasonably satisfactory to GM, (iii) the termination of the Accommodation
Agreement or the accommodation period therein, or (iv) such date when a plan of reorganization becomes effective. The Court approved
Delphi’s motion to amend and extend the GM Advance Agreement concurrently with the approval of Delphi’s motion seeking authority to
enter into the Accommodation Agreement. Additionally, GM has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to accelerate payment of certain
payables up to $300 million to Delphi, pursuant to the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement. As of March 31, 2009, GM
had accelerated payment of $200 million under such agreement and in April, GM accelerated the remaining $100 million, therefore no
amounts remain to be accelerated thereunder. The Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement provides that GM will generally
recoup these accelerated payments over its three subsequent monthly payments on or after the date that GM’s obligation to advance
funds under the GM Advance Agreement terminates or advances made become due and payable in accordance with the GM Advance
Agreement. Both the amendment to the GM Advance Agreement and the Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement were
effective concurrent with the Accommodation Agreement, on December 12, 2008. Conforming amendments were made to the GM
Advance Agreement and Partial Temporary Accelerated Payments Agreement contemporaneously with Court approval of the Amendment
and Supplemental Amendment to the Accommodation Agreement as described above. Delphi and GM entered into subsequent
amendments to the GM Advance Agreement to reflect the conditions pursuant to which GM will agree to increase the amounts available
under such agreement, however, as noted in the immediately preceding section under “Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility and
Accommodation Agreement,” the U.S. Treasury objected to such amendments and Delphi adjourned the Court hearing seeking approval
of the proposed amendments.

The GM Advance Agreement currently has a targeted cash balance amount of $25 million and Delphi is required to use any free cash
flow above the targeted cash balance amount (as determined in accordance with the GM Advance Agreement) to repay from time to time
any amounts outstanding thereunder. As of March 31, 2009, $253 million was outstanding pursuant to the GM Advance Agreement and
$47 million was available for future advances. There can be no assurances, however, that GM will have sufficient liquidity to continue to
advance amounts under the GM Advance Agreement. Refer to Item 1A. Risk Factors in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2008 and Part II. Item 1A. Risk Factors in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for risks and uncertainties
related to our business relationship with GM.
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9. U.S. EMPLOYEE WORKFORCE TRANSITION PROGRAMS

The following table represents the activity in the U.S. employee workforce transition program liability for the three months ended
March 31, 2009:

U.S. Employee Workforce Transition Program Liability

Pre-Retirement

Buydown Wage Program
Liability Liability Total
(in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2008 .........c.coooivoeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeene $ 83 $ 40 $ 123
Payments.......c.cooeiiiiiniiie e — (13) (13)
Balance at March 31, 2009.......ccooooviiiiiieiiiieeeee e $ 83 $ 27 $ 110

At March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, $105 million and $115 million, respectively, of the U.S. employee workforce transition
program liability is included in accrued liabilities, and $5 million and $8 million, respectively, is included in other long-term liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheets. At March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, Delphi had $68 million of buydown wage liability recorded
as a receivable from GM related to Delphi’s buydown wage obligations pursuant to the terms of the Amended GSA (see Note 2.
Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy).

10. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Delphi sponsors pension plans covering unionized employees in the U.S., which generally provide benefits of stated amounts for each
year of service, as well as supplemental benefits for employees who qualify for retirement before normal retirement age. Delphi also
sponsors defined benefit plans covering U.S. salaried employees, with benefits generally based on years of service and salary history.
Certain Delphi employees also participate in non-qualified pension plans covering executives, which are based on targeted wage
replacement percentages and are unfunded. Delphi’s funding policy with respect to its qualified plans is to contribute annually, not less
than the minimum required by applicable laws and regulations, including the Bankruptcy Code. Certain of Delphi’s non-U.S. subsidiaries
also sponsor defined benefit pension plans, which generally provide benefits based on negotiated amounts for each year of service.
Delphi’s primary non-U.S. plans are located in France, Germany, Luxembourg, Mexico, Portugal, Korea, Turkey, Italy and the United
Kingdom (“UK”). The UK and certain Mexican plans are funded quarterly.

Delphi froze the Salaried Plan, the Supplemental Executive Retirement Program (“SERP”), the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement
Program, the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan effective September 30, 2008.
Effective as of October 1, 2008, Delphi’s existing Savings-Stock Purchase Program for Salaried Employees was renamed the Salaried
Retirement Savings Program and was enhanced to provide a Delphi matching contribution and a 4% non-elective Delphi retirement
contribution. Additionally, Delphi reached agreement with its labor unions resulting in a freeze of traditional benefit accruals under the
Hourly Plan effective as of November 30, 2008. Certain collectively bargained hourly employees remain covered by the Hourly Plan’s
Individual Retirement Plan formula (a cash balance benefit providing an annual pay credit accrual of 5.4% of base wages).

On February 4, 2009, Delphi filed a motion with the Court seeking the authority to cease providing retiree medical and life insurance
benefits (collectively “OPEB”) benefits in retirement to salaried employees, retirees, and surviving spouses after March 31, 2009. On
February 24, 2009, the Court provisionally approved Delphi’s motion to terminate such benefits effective March 31, 2009 based on the
Court’s finding that the Company had met its evidentiary burdens, subject to the appointment of a retirees’ committee (the “Retirees’
Committee™) to review whether it believes that any of the affected programs involved vested benefits (as opposed to “at will” or
discretionary, unvested benefits). On March 11, 2009, the Court issued a final order approving Delphi’s motion to terminate salaried
OPEB benefits. The Court approved a settlement agreement (the “Settlement”), between Delphi and the Retirees’ Committee and the
Delphi Salaried Retirees’ Association (the “Association”) settling any and all rights for the parties to appeal the Court’s March 11, 2009
final order authorizing Delphi to terminate salaried OPEB benefits to the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York (the
“District Court”). Pursuant to the Settlement, Delphi has agreed to provide the Retirees’ Committee with consideration of $9 million to
resolve pending litigation, including withdrawing the appeals of the Retirees’ Committee and the Association to the District Court. The
consideration provided by Delphi under the Settlement includes an initial $1 million payment in May 2009 to a hardship fund, subsequent
monthly payments of $1.25 million for five months beginning in June 2009, and a final $1 million payment in November 2009. In
addition, Delphi has agreed to contribute $500,000 by May 1, 2009 toward the creation of a Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary
Association (“VEBA”) and to reimburse up to an additional $250,000 of reasonable legal expenses incurred by the counsel for the
Retirees’ Committee and the Association. Delphi has no future funding obligations or commitments to the VEBA. Following the initial
payment by May 1, 2009 of the $1.5 million, the District Court dismissed the appeal filed by the retirees with prejudice. Delphi
recognized a salaried OPEB settlement gain from reorganization of $1,168 million during the three months ended March 31, 2009. This
settlement gain reflects the reversal of existing liabilities of $1,173 million ($1,181 million net of $8 million to pay salaried OPEB claims
incurred but not reported as of March 31, 2009) and the recognition of previously unamortized net gains included in accumulated other
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comprehensive income of $4 million. The reorganization gain also reflects the impact of the $9 million consideration to be provided for
the Settlement described above.

The amounts shown below reflect the defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit expense for the three-month periods
ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 for U.S. and non-U.S. employees:

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
(in millions)

Service cost (@) ..oevvereeveeriereeerierenna. $ 5 § 41 $ 8 $ 11 $ 4 $ 7

Interest CoSt......ovuvriivreivieneenreeereenenne. 168 213 18 23 18 137
Expected return on plan assets........... (146) (218) (14) (23) — —
Settlements ........ccceeeeeeiereerieecieenennn. — — 15 11 (1,177) —
Amortization of prior service costs.... 7 7 1 1 (24) 27

Amortization of actuarial losses ........ 54 5 _ 4 _ 6 9 11

Net periodic benefit cost................. $ 88 $ 48 $ 32 $ 29 $(1,170) $ 128

(a) Includes $9 million for the three month periods ended March 31, 2008 of costs previously accrued related to the U.S. employee
workforce transition programs.

Net periodic benefit cost above reflects $1 million and $11 million that were included in loss from discontinued operations for the
three-month periods ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Refer to Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for information about the funding of Delphi’s pension plans and
excise taxes asserted by the IRS against Delphi.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Shareholder Lawsuits

As previously disclosed, the Company, along with certain of its subsidiaries, current and former directors of the Company, and certain
current and former officers and employees of the Company or its subsidiaries, and others are named as defendants in several lawsuits filed
following the Company’s announced intention to restate certain of its financial statements in 2005. These lawsuits (the “Multidistrict
Litigation”) were coordinated for pretrial proceedings by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation and assigned to Hon. Gerald E.
Rosen in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan (the “District Court™). Set forth below is a description of the
Multidistrict Litigation and a summary of a settlement concerning the Multidistrict Litigation.

The Multidistrict Litigation is comprised of lawsuits in three categories. One group of class action lawsuits, which is purportedly
brought on behalf of participants in certain of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ defined contribution employee benefit pension plans
that invested in Delphi common stock, is based on allegations that the plans suffered losses as a result of alleged breaches of fiduciary
duties under ERISA (the “ERISA Action”). A second group of class action lawsuits (the “Securities Action”) alleges, among other things,
that the Company and certain of its current and former directors and officers and others made materially false and misleading statements
in violation of federal securities laws. The third group of lawsuits is comprised of shareholder derivative actions against certain current
and former directors and officers of the Company (“Shareholder Derivative Actions”). A total of four complaints were filed: two in the
federal court (one in the Eastern District of Michigan and another in the Southern District of New York) and two in Michigan state court.
These suits alleged that certain current and former directors and officers of the Company breached a variety of duties owed by them to
Delphi in connection with matters related to the Company’s restatement of its financial results. The federal cases were coordinated with
the securities and ERISA class actions in the Multidistrict Litigation. Following the filing on October 8, 2005 of the Debtors’ petitions for
reorganization relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, all the Shareholder Derivative Actions were administratively closed. For
more details regarding the procedural history of the three categories of lawsuits, refer to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2008.

Following mediated settlement discussions, on August 31, 2007, representatives of Delphi, Delphi’s insurance carriers, certain current
and former directors and officers of Delphi named as defendants, and certain other defendants involved in the Multidistrict Litigation
reached agreements with the Lead Plaintiffs in the Securities Action and the named plaintiffs in the ERISA Action to settle the claims
asserted against them in those actions (the “MDL Settlements”).
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On September 5, 2007 the District Court entered an order preliminarily certifying a class in the Securities Action and the ERISA
Action, preliminarily approving the MDL Settlements, and scheduling a fairness hearing on November 13, 2007. On November 13, 2007,
the District Court conducted the fairness hearing and took the matter under advisement. Separately, on October 29, 2007, the Court
entered an order preliminarily approving the MDL Settlements subject to final consideration at the confirmation hearing on Delphi’s plan
of reorganization and the Court’s consideration of certain objections that may be filed as to the MDL Settlements. On October 29, 2007,
the Court lifted the automatic stay as to the discovery provided to the Lead Plaintiffs. On December 4, 2007, the District Court held
another hearing to consider proposed modifications to the proposed settlement of the Securities Action (as modified, the “Securities
Settlement”), and tentatively approved the Securities Settlement, after determining that the modifications were at least neutral to the class
and may potentially provide a net benefit to the class.

The District Court approved the MDL Settlements (including the Securities Settlement) in an opinion and order issued on January 10,
2008 and amended on January 11, 2008, and the District Court entered an Order and Final Judgment dated January 23, 2008 in both the
Securities Action and ERISA Action. One security holder appealed certain aspects of the District Court’s opinion and order, as amended,
approving the MDL Settlements. That appeal is pending before the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit.

On January 25, 2008, the Court approved the MDL Settlements. Under the terms of the MDL Settlements, the Lead Plaintiffs in the
Securities Action and the named plaintiffs in the ERISA Action will receive claims that will be satisfied through Delphi’s Plan as
confirmed by the Court pursuant to the confirmation order. Under the Securities Settlement, (i) the Lead Plaintiffs will be granted an
allowed claim in the face amount of $179 million, which will be satisfied by Delphi providing $179 million in consideration in the same
form, ratio, and treatment as that which will be used to pay holders of general unsecured claims under its Plan, and (ii) the class in the
Securities Action will receive $15 million to be provided by a third party, a distribution of insurance proceeds of up to approximately $89
million, including a portion of the remainder of any insurance proceeds that are not used by certain former officers and directors who are
named defendants in various actions, and a distribution of approximately $2 million from certain underwriters named as defendants in the
Securities Actions. In addition, Delphi’s insurance carriers have also agreed to provide $20 million to fund any legal expenses incurred by
certain of the former officer and director named defendants in defense of any future civil actions arising from the allegations raised in the
securities cases. If an individual plaintiff opts out of the settlement reached with the Lead Plaintiffs and ultimately receives an allowed
claim in Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, the amount received by the opt-out plaintiff will be deducted from the amount received by the class in
the Securities Action. Delphi will object to any claims filed by opt-out plaintiffs in the Court, and will seek to have such claims expunged.

The settlement of the ERISA Action is structured similarly to the settlement reached with the Lead Plaintiffs. The claim of the named
plaintiffs in the ERISA Action will be allowed in the amount of approximately $25 million and will be satisfied with consideration in the
same form, ratio, and treatment as that which will be used to pay holders of general unsecured claims under the plan of reorganization.
The class in the ERISA Action will also receive a distribution of insurance proceeds in the amount of approximately $22 million. Unlike
the settlement of the Securities Action, no member of the class in the ERISA Action can “opt out” of the settlement.

Settlement amounts from insurers and underwriters were paid and placed in escrow by September 25, 2007, pending the effective date
of the MDL Settlements.

The MDL Settlements also provide for the dismissal with prejudice of the ERISA Action and Securities Action and a release of certain
claims against certain named defendants, including Delphi, Delphi’s current directors and officers, the former directors and officers who
are named defendants, and certain of the third-party defendants. As provided in the confirmation order, the MDL Settlements are
contingent upon the effective date of the Plan occurring as well as the payment of the $15 million amount to be provided by a third party,
and if, for any reason, these contingencies are not met, the MDL Settlements will become null and void. Delphi is in discussion with
several of its stakeholders regarding potential modifications to the terms of the MDL Settlements that would allow for the MDL
Settlements, as modified, to become effective in advance of the resolution of Delphi’s chapter 11 cases, however there can be no
assurances that the parties will reach agreement on such modifications. If the MDL Settlements are terminated according to their terms,
the parties will proceed in all aspects as if the MDL Settlements had not been executed and any related orders had not been entered.

The Company also received a demand from a shareholder that the Company consider bringing a derivative action against certain
current and former directors and officers premised on allegations that certain current and former directors and officers made materially
false and misleading statements in violation of federal securities laws and/or of their fiduciary duties. The Company appointed a
committee of the Board of Directors (the “Special Committee”) to evaluate the shareholder demand. As a component of the MDL
Settlements, the Special Committee determined not to assert these claims; however, it has retained the right to assert the claims as
affirmative defenses and setoffs against any action to collect on a proof of claim filed by those individuals named in the demand for
derivative action should the Company determine that it is in its best interests to do so.

As a result of the MDL Settlements, as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, Delphi has a liability of $351 million recorded for
this matter. Delphi maintains directors and officers insurance providing coverage for indemnifiable losses of $100 million, subject to a
$10 million deductible, and a further $100 million of insurance covering its directors and officers for nonindemnifiable claims, for a total
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of $200 million. As part of the settlement, the insurers contributed the entire $100 million of indemnifiable coverage, and a portion of the
nonindemnifiable coverage. In conjunction with the MDL Settlements, Delphi expects recoveries of $148 million for the settlement
amounts provided to the plaintiffs from insurers, underwriters, and third-party reimbursements and will record such recoveries on the
effective date of the MDL Settlements.

Salaried OPEB Settlement

The Court approved a settlement between Delphi and the group of retirees who had filed objections to Delphi’s motion seeking the
authority to cease providing health care and life insurance benefits in retirement to salaried employees, retirees, and surviving spouses as
of March 31, 2009. Refer to Note 10. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits for more information.

Ordinary Business Litigation

Delphi is from time to time subject to various legal actions and claims incidental to its business, including those arising out of alleged
defects, breach of contracts, product warranties, intellectual property matters, and employment-related matters.

Under section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code, the filing of a bankruptcy petition automatically stays most actions against a debtor,
including most actions to collect prepetition indebtedness or to exercise control over the property of the debtor’s estate. Absent an order
of the Court, substantially all prepetition liabilities are subject to settlement under a plan of reorganization. Refer to Note 2.
Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for details on the chapter 11 cases.

With respect to warranty matters, although Delphi cannot assure that the future costs of warranty claims by customers will not be
material, Delphi believes its established reserves are adequate to cover potential warranty settlements. However, the final amounts
required to resolve these matters could differ materially from the Company’s recorded estimates. Additionally, in connection with the
Separation, Delphi agreed to indemnify GM against substantially all losses, claims, damages, liabilities or activities arising out of or in
connection with its business post-Separation for which it is determined Delphi has responsibility. Due to the nature of such indemnities,
Delphi is not able to estimate the maximum amount thereof.

During the first quarter of 2008, Delphi recovered $28 million from an affiliated supplier and recorded it as a reduction of warranty
expense. Delphi began experiencing quality issues regarding parts purchased by Delphi’s Thermal Systems segment during the third
quarter of 2006 and established warranty reserves of approximately $60 million to cover the cost of various repairs that may be
implemented. The reserve has subsequently been adjusted for payments and settlements. As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
the related reserve was $12 million and $17 million, respectively.

Environmental Matters

As previously disclosed, with respect to environmental matters, Delphi has received notices that it is a potentially responsible party
(“PRP”) in proceedings at various sites, including the Tremont City Landfill Site (the “Site”) located in Tremont, Ohio, which is alleged to
involve ground water contamination. In September 2002, Delphi and other PRPs entered into a Consent Order with the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) to perform a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study (the “Feasibility Study”)
concerning a portion of the Site. The Remedial Investigation and Alternatives Array Document were finalized in 2007. The Feasibility
Study was approved (with modifications) by the EPA on November 25, 2008. On December 11, 2008, Delphi and the other PRPs filed a
Notice of Objection and Invocation of Dispute Resolution with the EPA. Delphi and the other PRPs believe that the modifications to the
Feasibility Study required by the EPA are not supported by the site assessment information developed to date, and would have the effect
of unjustifiably increasing the likelihood of the EPA ultimately selecting excavation as the remedial approach for the Site. The dispute
resolution process is pending. In the interim, Delphi and the other PRPs and the EPA are evaluating an additional remedial alternative for
inclusion in the Feasibility Study. The additional remedy would involve installation of numerous wells at the Site for removal of liquid
wastes. A Record of Decision is expected to be issued in 2009. Although Delphi believes that capping and future monitoring alone would
be an appropriate and protective remedy, a different cleanup approach ultimately may be required for the Site. Because the manner of
remediation is yet to be determined, it is possible that the resolution of this matter may require Delphi to make material future
expenditures for remediation, possibly over an extended period of time and possibly in excess of existing reserves. As of March 31, 2009,
Delphi has recorded its best estimate of its share of the remediation based on the removal of liquids remedy. However, if that remedy is
not accepted, Delphi’s expenditures for remediation could increase by $11 million to $15 million in excess of its existing reserves. Delphi
will continue to reassess any potential remediation costs and, as appropriate, its environmental reserve as the investigation proceeds.

Delphi received a Notice of Intent to File Civil Administrative Complaint (“Notice”) from the EPA on May 30, 2008 regarding a June
2007 chlorine gas cylinder leak that occurred at the Saginaw, Michigan Delphi Steering facility. The Notice alleges that Delphi failed to
properly notify agency officials about the leak or the presence of chlorine gas at the site, and describes the EPA’s intent to seek
approximately $0.1 million in civil penalties relating to the incident. Although Delphi disagreed with certain of the agency’s assertions,
Delphi resolved the matter in February 2009 through signing a Consent Agreement and Final Order and paying a civil penalty of $66,887.
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As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, our reserve for environmental investigation and remediation was approximately $103
million (of which $10 million was recorded in accrued liabilities and $93 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities) and $106
million (of which $9 million was recorded in accrued liabilities and $97 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities), respectively.
As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, $93 million and $95 million, respectively, of the reserve related to sites within the U.S.
The amounts recorded take into account the fact that GM retained the environmental liability for certain inactive sites as part of the
Separation. Addressing contamination at various sites, including facilities designated as non-core and slated for closure or sale, is
required by the Resource Conservation & Recovery Act and various other federal, state or local laws and regulations and represent
management’s best estimate of the cost to complete such actions. Management believes that its March 31, 2009 accruals will be adequate
to cover the estimated liability for its exposure with respect to such matters and that these costs will be incurred over the next 20 years.
However, as we continue the ongoing assessment with respect to such facilities, additional and perhaps material environmental
remediation costs may require recognition, as previously unknown conditions may be identified. We cannot ensure that environmental
requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will
not exceed the amount of our current reserves. In the event that such liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded,
Delphi’s results of operations could be materially affected.

Delphi estimates environmental remediation liabilities based on the most probable method of remediation, current laws and regulations
and existing technology. Estimates are made on an undiscounted basis and exclude the effects of inflation. If there is a range of equally
probable remediation methods or outcomes, Delphi accrues at the lower end of the range. At March 31, 2009, the difference between the
recorded liabilities and the reasonably possible maximum estimate for these liabilities was approximately $85 million.

Other

Delphi continues to pursue its transformation plan and continues to conduct additional assessments as the Company evaluates whether
to permanently close or demolish one or more facilities as part of its restructuring activity. These assessments could result in Delphi being
required to recognize additional and possibly material costs or demolition obligations in the future.

Concentrations of Risk

GM is Delphi’s largest customer and accounted for 29% of its total net sales from continuing operations during the three months ended
March 31, 2009, and a portion of Delphi’s non-GM sales are to Tier 1 suppliers who ultimately sell its products to GM. GM accounts for
52% of Delphi’s net sales in North America. Delphi’s revenues have been and will continue to be affected by decreases in GM's business
or market share. GM has reported a variety of challenges it is facing, including severe liquidity issues, its relationships with its unions and
large shareholders and its cost and pricing structures as further described in Item 1A. Risk Factors of the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 and in Part II. Item 1A. Risk Factors in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Delphi’s other domestic customers are facing similar pressures and challenges as those that GM is facing. Global sales to Ford Motor
Company and Chrysler LLC (“Chrysler”) were approximately 7% and 1% of total sales during the three months ended March 31, 2009,
respectively. In the accompanying balance sheet, Delphi has approximately $23 million recorded as accounts receivable from Chrysler,
which filed for reorganization relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code on April 30, 2009. Of this total, Delphi has collected
approximately $12 million subsequent to March 31, 2009 and prior to Chrysler’s chapter 11 filing. In addition, Delphi has applied to be a
participant in the U.S. government Auto Supplier Support Program relative to certain of its receivables from Chrysler. Of the remaining
accounts receivable not collected through April 30, 2009, approximately $7 million is related to Chrysler entities not encompassed in
Chrysler’s chapter 11 filing.

12. INCOME TAXES

Generally, the amount of tax expense or benefit allocated to continuing operations is determined without regard to the tax effects of
other categories of income or loss, such as OCI. However, an exception to the general rule is provided when there is a pre-tax loss from
continuing operations and pre-tax income from other categories in the current year. The intraperiod tax allocation rules in Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, (“SFAS 109”) related to items charged directly to OCI can result
in disproportionate tax effects that remain in OCI until certain events occur.

As discussed in Note 10. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits, Delphi recognized a salaried OPEB settlement gain from
reorganization of $1,168 million during the three months ended March 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2008, Delphi had disproportionate
tax effects in OCI related to the salaried OPEB obligations of a $52 million tax benefit. Delphi eliminated the disproportionate tax effect
in OCI related to the salaried OPEB obligations on a pro rata basis based on the amount of the obligation that was settled. Accordingly,
Delphi has recorded a $52 million tax benefit in continuing operations for the three months ended March 31, 2009.
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13. WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share amounts were computed using weighted average shares outstanding for each respective
period. As a result of the market price of shares as compared to the price associated with outstanding options in the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and the losses incurred in the three months ended March 31, 2008, the effect of potentially dilutive securities has been
excluded from the calculation of loss per share as inclusion would have had an anti-dilutive effect.

Actual weighted average shares outstanding used in calculating basic and diluted income (loss) per share were:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2009 2008
(in thousands)
Weighted average basic and diluted shares outstanding........ 564,637 563,646

Securities excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share because inclusion would have had an anti-dilutive effect:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2009 2008
(in thousands)
66,696

Anti-dilutive securities .............coeveeeeuveennn. 46,543

14. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Delphi is exposed to market risk, such as fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and changes in interest
rates, which may result in cash flow risks. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures, Delphi aggregates the exposures on a
consolidated basis to take advantage of natural offsets. For exposures that are not offset within its operations, Delphi enters into various
derivative transactions pursuant to its risk management policies, which prohibit holding or issuing derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes, and designation of derivative instruments is performed on a transaction basis to support hedge accounting. The changes
in fair value of these hedging instruments are offset in part or in whole by corresponding changes in the fair value or cash flows of the
underlying exposures being hedged. Delphi assesses the initial and ongoing effectiveness of its hedging relationships in accordance with
its documented policy. As of March 31, 2009, Delphi has entered into derivate instruments to hedge cash flows extending out to February
2011.
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As of March 31, 2009, the Company had the following outstanding notional amounts related to commodity and foreign currency

forward contracts that were entered into to hedge forecasted exposures:

Quantity Unit of
Commodity Hedged Measure
(in thousands)

COPPET .ttt 69,280 pounds
Secondary Aluminum..............ccevveneee. 15,309 pounds
8,488 pounds

802 MMBTU
382 pounds

Foreign Currency

(in millions)

Korean Won ....oooovvveeiiiii 18,534
MeXican Peso .........cococveveeeeeeeeeienennnn, 10,814
Hungarian Font ........c.cccovveniinininenne. 5,691
Japanese Yen.......ccooocveveevciveiienieeeenene 1,168
Romanian Leu.........cccooovveeiieieececicen, 175
EUTO..ooiiiiieecee e 147
New Turkish Lira........cccoooovveiiiiiiiinnn, 145

Polish ZIOty .....c.coveveeveeiiieieniieieeeee 29
Singapore Dollar .........cccoeceeveniecienennnne. 20
South African Rand.......ccoooeveciininnnnne. 19

KRW
MXN
HUF
JPY
RON
EUR
TRY
PLN
SGD
ZAR

The Company had additional foreign currency forward contracts that individually amounted to less than $10 million.

As of December 31, 2008, the fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as current
assets were $12 million, as current liabilities were $132 million and as non-current liabilities were $36 million. The fair value of
derivative financial instruments recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2009 are as follows:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
March 31, March 31,
Balance Sheet Location 2009 Balance Sheet Location 2009
(in millions)

Designated derivatives instruments:
Commodity derivatives..........c.ccceveenenne. Other Current Assets $ — Accrued Liabilities $ 63
Foreign currency derivatives................... Other Current Assets 1 Accrued Liabilities 79
Foreign currency derivatives*................. Accrued Liabilities 12 Other Current Assets —
Commodity derivatives.............. Other Long-Term Assets — Other Long-Term Liabilities 10
Foreign currency derivatives™® Other Long-Term Liabilities 26 Other Long-Term Liabilities 63

Total derivatives designated as

hedging instruments $ 39 $ 215
Derivatives not designated:
Commodity derivatives .........c.ccccevvueuennee Other Current Assets $ — Accrued Liabilities $ 17
Foreign currency derivatives................... Other Current Assets — Accrued Liabilities 13
Foreign currency derivatives*................. Accrued Liabilities 18 Other Current Assets —
Foreign currency derivatives*................. Other Long-Term Liabilities 5 Other Long-Term Liabilities —

Total derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments $ 23 $§ 30

* Derivative instruments within this category are subject to master netting arrangements and are presented on a net basis in the
consolidated balance sheets in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 39, Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts (An

Interpretation of APB Opinion No. 10 and FASB Statement No. 105).

The fair value of the net liability position of Delphi’s financial instruments increased from December 31, 2008 to March 31, 2009
primarily due to the increase in the market price of commodities and the adjustment for non-performance risk.
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The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2009 is
as follows:

Location of
Gain (Loss)

Location of Amount of Recognized in Amount of Gain
Loss Loss Income Recognized in
Amount of Reclassified Reclassified (Ineffective Income
Loss from OCI into from OCI Portion (Ineffective
Recognized in Income into Income Excluded from Portion Excluded
OCI (Effective (Effective (Effective Effectiveness from Effectiveness
Portion) Portion) Portion) Testing) Testing)

(in millions)
Designated derivatives instruments:

Commodity derivatives...........cccvene.... $ (42) Cost of sales $ (49) Cost of sales $ —
Foreign currency derivatives ............... (73) Cost of sales (18) Cost of sales 7
Total S (115) S (67) S 7
Location of Amount of
Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Recognized in
Income Income
Derivatives not designated:
Commodity derivatives........... ... Cost of sales $ (15)
Foreign currency derivatives Cost of sales 5
Total 3 10)

Gains and losses on derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges are recorded in OCI, to the extent that hedges are effective, until the
underlying transactions are recognized in earnings. Unrealized amounts in OCI will fluctuate based on changes in the fair value of hedge
derivative contracts at each reporting period. Net losses included in accumulated OCI as of March 31, 2009 were $242 million pre-tax.
Of this pre-tax total, a loss of approximately $186 million is expected to be included in cost of sales within the next 12 months and a loss
of approximately $55 million is expected to be included in cost of sales in subsequent periods and a loss of approximately $1 million is
expected to be included in depreciation and amortization expense over the lives of the related fixed assets. Cash flow hedges are
discontinued when it is no longer probable that the originally forecasted transactions will occur. The amount included in cost of sales
related to hedge ineffectiveness was an approximate gain of $7 million and $1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively. The amount included in cost of sales related to the time value of options was not significant in the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008.

During the latter part of 2008 and through March 31, 2009, substantial volatility in the commodity and currency markets significantly
impacted the price of commodities and foreign currency exchange rates that impact Delphi’s operations. Two of Delphi’s largest
exposures, copper and the Mexican Peso to U.S. Dollar exchange rate, experienced substantial volatility during the first quarter of 2009.
As a result of the market volatility, Delphi has experienced unrealized losses in its derivative contracts. As of March 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, Delphi was in a net derivative liability position for its hedging portfolio. As discussed further under Fair Value
Measurements below, Delphi’s net derivative liability position was reduced to $184 million as of March 31, 2009 and to $168 million as
of December 31, 2008. As a result of the net liability position for its hedging portfolio as of March 31, 2009, Delphi’s borrowing base
computation in effect at March 31, 2009, as further described in Note 8. Debt, included a deduction from its borrowing base of $249
million.

The Accommodation Agreement imposes restrictions on Delphi’s ability to enter into hedging transactions. Specifically, the
Accommodation Agreement disallows any new hedging activity, with the exception of any transactions to offset existing hedge positions.
Additionally, the Accommodation Agreement enables participant lenders to terminate hedging agreements if the aggregate liability of
Delphi’s hedge exposure exceeds $500 million, as defined in the Accommodation Agreement.

Fair Value Measurements

All derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair value reported currently
through earnings unless the transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales or meet hedge accounting criteria.
Delphi’s derivative exposures are with counterparties with long-term investment grade credit ratings. Delphi estimates the fair value of its
derivative contracts using an income approach based on valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single, discounted amount.
Estimates of the fair value of foreign currency and commodity derivative instruments are determined using exchange traded prices and
rates. Delphi also considers the risk of non-performance in the estimation of fair value, and includes an adjustment for non-performance
risk in the measure of fair value of derivative instruments. The non-performance risk adjustment reflects the full credit default spread
(“CDS”) applied to the net commodity and foreign currency exposures by counterparty. When Delphi is in a net derivative asset position,
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the counterparty CDS rates are applied to the net derivative asset position. When Delphi is in a net derivative liability position, estimates
of Delphi’s CDS rates are applied to the net derivative liability position.

In certain instances where market data is not available, Delphi uses management judgment to develop assumptions that are used to
determine fair value. This could include situations of market illiquidity for a particular currency or commodity or where observable
market data may be limited. In those situations, Delphi generally surveys investment banks and/or brokers and utilizes the surveyed prices

and rates in estimating fair value.

As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, Delphi was in a net derivative liability position. As a result of Delphi’s chapter 11
proceedings, CDS rates are currently not available for Delphi debt. As a result, Delphi obtained estimates of trading levels for its debt
from investment banks as well as CDS rates for similarly situated entities to apply to its net derivative liability position for non-
performance risk. The adjustment for non-performance risk reduced Delphi’s net derivative liability position as of March 31, 2009 by
$140 million to $184 million and as of December 31, 2008 by $296 million to $168 million. The reduction to the net derivative liability as
of March 31, 2009 resulted in a decrease to pre-tax earnings of $5 million, recorded as an increase to cost of sales. The remaining
adjustment amount of $135 million is reflected within equity as a component of OCI as it related to derivative financial instruments that
qualify as hedges. There was no material adjustment for non-performance risk related to derivative assets as of March 31, 2009 or
December 31, 2008 as Delphi’s net derivative asset position at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 related to exposures with

counterparties with investment grade credit ratings.

As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, Delphi had the following assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurements Using:

As of March 31, 2009:

Available for sale SECUTIti€S.........c..ccvevveecreeereeereereenen.
Foreign currency derivatives .......c..cccceeeeveereenieneenienenne
TOtal oo

As of December 31, 2008:

Available for sale SeCUrities..........cceevvrerrierieereecrieenens

Foreign currency derivatives ..........ccccoeveveereerieneeniennenns
TOtAl .o

Total
$ 22
1
$ 23
$ 32
12
$ 44

Significant Other Significant
Quoted Prices in Observable Unobservable
Active Markets Inputs Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
$ 16 $ 6 $ —
— — 1
$ 16 $ 6 $ 1
$ 23 $ 9 $ —
[ — e — 712
$ 23 $ 9 $ 12

As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, Delphi had the following liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurements Using:

As of March 31, 2009:

Commodity derivatives .........cecerereerieeieneneenieneeieniene
Foreign currency derivatives...........ccceeeeriereenieneesieneenne
TOtal oo

As of December 31, 2008:
Commodity derivatives .........ccvevverreerereereenieeeesieseennens
Foreign currency derivatives ..

Total
$ 90
94
$ 184
$ 99
69
$ 168
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Significant Other Significant
Quoted Prices in Observable Unobservable
Active Markets Inputs Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
$ — $ — $ 90
JE—— - 794
R $ - $ 184
5  — $ — $ 99
P e — 769
$ = s = $§ 168



The following table summarizes the changes in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the three
months ended March 31, 2009.

Fair Value Measurement Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3):

Changes to
Total Unrealized
Realized / Net Transfers Gains /
Fair Value Unrealized Into / Fair Value (Losses) on
January 1, Gains / Net (Out of) March 31, Instruments
2009 (Losses) Settlements Level 3 2009 Still Held
(in millions)
Commodity and foreign currency

derivatives.......ccovevveeeeereerererereen, $ (156) § (115  $ 88 $ — $ (183) § (96)
Total Level 3 Fair Value ........... $ (156) $ (115) $ 88 $ — $ (183) $ (96)

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Court approval of Delphi’s plan to dispose of the Steering Business and the Interiors and Closures Business triggered held for sale
accounting under SFAS 144 in 2007.

Steering and Halfshaft Business

In the fourth quarter of 2007, Delphi executed a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with an affiliate of
Platinum Equity, LLC, Steering Solutions Corporation (“Platinum”), for the sale of the Steering Business and a Transaction Facilitation
Agreement with GM (the “Transaction Agreement”). In February 2008, the Court issued an order authorizing Delphi to dispose of its
Steering Business. Pursuant to the Amended MRA, GM has agreed that ownership of the Steering Business will transfer to GM if it is not
sold to a third party by December 31, 2010. On March 3, 2009, Delphi and Platinum reached an agreement under which the Purchase
Agreement was terminated (the "Termination Agreement") and Delphi and GM reached an agreement (the "Option Exercise Agreement"),
subject to GM receiving U.S. Treasury and GM board of directors approval and Delphi receiving Court approval, under which GM will
exercise its option to purchase the Steering Business as contemplated under the Amended MRA to allow a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GM to purchase the Steering Business free and clear of all liens and encumbrances other than certain permitted encumbrances (the
“Steering Purchase”). GM has agreed to guaranty the payment and performance of its wholly-owned subsidiary’s obligations under the
definitive transaction agreements to be entered into pursuant to the Option Exercise Agreement.

The Option Exercise Agreement contains a procedure for completing the definitive transaction agreement relating to the sale of the
Steering Business to GM which, among other things, takes into account the terms of the Amended MRA and certain modifications set
forth in the Option Exercise Agreement. Based on the terms of the Option Exercise Agreement and the Amended MRA, the terms upon
which the Steering Business will be sold to GM have been substantially agreed to by GM and Delphi. Delphi agreed to use its reasonable
best efforts to obtain Court approval of the Option Exercise Agreement on or before March 24, 2009, and Delphi and GM agreed to use
their reasonable best efforts to obtain Court approval of the Steering Purchase and assignment and assumption of contracts on or before
April 23, 2009 and to close the Steering Purchase on or before April 30, 2009. For a detailed description of the terms of the Option
Exercise Agreement refer to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. On March 23, 2009
GM received a written notice from the U.S. Treasury objecting to GM’s entry into the Option Exercise Agreement. In its notice, the U.S.
Treasury stated that it would reconsider such objection upon further review of the proposal. In order to provide the U.S. Treasury with
additional time to consider the option to purchase the Steering Business, Delphi adjourned the Court hearing seeking approval of
agreement until May 21, 2009. As discussed in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy, discussions on a Term Sheet
continue and it is anticipated that such discussions will include a final resolution regarding the Steering Business and other Delphi non-
core manufacturing facilities and product lines.

On September 30, 2008, in conjunction with the effectiveness of the Amended MRA, Delphi received and recorded as a deferred
liability a $210 million advance on working capital recovery from GM related to the Steering Business. During the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008, Delphi recorded income of $31 million, net of tax, and a loss of $77 million, net of tax, respectively, due to the
results of operations and adjustment of assets held for sale to fair value of the Steering Business.
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Interiors and Closures Business

Delphi and certain of its affiliates closed on the sale of the Interiors and Closures Business to Inteva Products, LLC (“Inteva”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Renco Group, on February 29, 2008. Delphi received proceeds from the sale of approximately $98
million consisting of $63 million of cash (less $23 million of cash at an overseas entity that was included in the sale) and the remainder in
notes at fair value. During the first quarter of 2008, as a result of the operating results and sale of the Interiors and Closures Business,
Delphi recorded income of $18 million, net of tax.

The Interiors and Closures Business, through the date of the sale, and the Steering Business are reported as discontinued operations in
the consolidated statement of operations and statement of cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. The assets and
liabilities of the Steering Business are reported in assets and liabilities held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2009
and December 31, 2008.

Results of Discontinued Operations

The results of the discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2009 2008

(in millions)

Sales:

Steering BUSINESS ........cocveveviiereiiieieriiereteeeeeee e $ 358 $ 569
Interiors and Closures BUSIinesS ..........ccoeevvvveveveereeeiveinnneenn. — 241
TOtal SALES. ... $ 358 $ 810

Income (loss) before income taxes (including loss
attributable to noncontrolling interest and equity income,

NEE OF TAX) 1.viivieieriiceeeteet ettt ettt $ 33 $ (55)
Provision for inCOME taXes .........cc.eeeeeeereeecreeeireeereeereeereeennenn (2) 4)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations................c.cv.e..... $ 31 $ (59)

Steering BUSINESS ........cccoceecuieiinieiienieeeceee e 31 (77)

Interiors and Closures BUSINESS ..............ccceeeeeeeieeeeeienaen, — 18

Assets and liabilities of the Steering Business are summarized as follows:

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008

(in millions)

Current assets:

CASN..c s $ 20 $ 20
Accounts reCeIVabIE ......ooovvvvvieiiiieieeee e 328 299
INVENLOTY ..eeiiiiiiii e 158 152
Other CUITENT @SSELS ....uvvveiiieiiieeieieeeeeeeeeeireeeeeeeeeeeaareeeeeeeas 23 24
LoNg-term aSSETS....c.eeruiereieiieieeiienieeie ettt 22 2
Assets held for Sale......oo.ooioiiiiieeeeee e $ 551 $ 497
Current liabilities:
ShOTt-term debt .......oovieeeeeeeeieee et $ 37 $ 30
Accounts payable .........cocveviieiieiiiieee e 176 174
Accrued Habilities ..........ccoveieeiviiiieee e 94 68
Other long-term liabilities.........cccccverieriieriieieeieri e 21 21
Liabilities held for sale.........cccoovvvveiiiiieiiiiiieceeeeeeeeee, $ 328 $ 293
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Cash flows from operating activities for discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2009 2008

(in millions)
(Gain) charge related to assets held for sale...........cccoeevereennnn, $ (20) $ 7
Pension and other postretirement benefit expenses.................... 1 11
U.S. employee workforce transition program charges................ — 1
Changes in net Operating assets .........coceveeerererererenereeeenenns 19 35
TOTAL ..o $ — $ 54
St ING BUSINESS ...ccveeeeeeeeieseee et — 24
Interiors and Closures BUSINESS ..........cccoevevceicercenencieeann, — 30

16. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET

Other income (expense), net included:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2009 2008
(in millions)
INtErest INCOME. .....ooviveeeieeieieeeeeeeee et $ 3 $ 13
(011115 2801 1= RO 6 6
Other INCOME, NEL........coeuvvriiiieeieieieeeeee e $ 9 $ 19

17. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES
The results of operations, including the gain or loss on divestitures, associated with Delphi’s acquisitions and divestitures described
below were not significant to the consolidated financial statements in any period presented, and the divestitures did not meet the

discontinued operations criteria.

Automotive Holdings Group Segment

Bearings Business Product Sale — On January 15, 2008, the Debtors filed a motion to sell Delphi’s bearings business (the “Bearings
Business™). On January 25, 2008, the Court approved the bidding procedures authorizing Delphi to commence an auction under section
363 of the Bankruptcy Code. On February 21, 2008, the Debtors announced that they had entered into a purchase agreement with Kyklos,
Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Hephaestus Holdings, Inc. and an affiliate of KPS Special Situations Fund II, L.P. (“Kyklos”), which
was the successful bidder at the auction held on February 19, and 20, 2008. The Court entered the order confirming the sale of the
Bearings Business to Kyklos on March 19, 2008. The 2007 annual revenues for the Bearings Business were $280 million, which included
$108 million of intra-segment sales. During the first quarter of 2008, Delphi recognized a charge of $30 million, included in cost of sales,
related to the assets held for sale of the Bearings Business. The sale occurred on April 30, 2008, and Delphi received net proceeds from
this sale of approximately $15 million.

North American Brake Product Asset Sale — On September 17, 2007, Delphi and TRW Integrated Chassis Systems, LLC signed an
Asset Purchase Agreement for the sale of certain assets for Delphi’s North American brake components machining and assembly assets
(“North American Brake Components™) primarily located at its Saginaw, Michigan; Spring Hill, Tennessee; Oshawa, Ontario, Canada;
and Saltillo, Mexico facilities. The 2007 annual revenues for North American Brake Components were $568 million. The sale occurred
in the first quarter of 2008 and resulted in a gain of $5 million, which was recorded as a reduction to cost of sales. Additionally, Delphi
received proceeds from this sale of approximately $38 million during the first quarter of 2008.

Global Suspension and Brakes Business Sale — On March 31, 2009, Delphi announced that it had entered into an asset sale and
purchase agreement with BeijingWest Industries Co., Ltd. for the sale of Delphi’s remaining chassis business, the global suspension and
brakes business, whereby Beijing West Industries Co., Ltd. will acquire machinery and equipment, intellectual property and certain real
property. The carrying value of the net assets to be sold approximates $100 million as of March 31, 2009. Certain customer and supplier
contracts will also be assumed and/or assigned to BeijingWest Industries Co., Ltd. Delphi filed a motion with the Court on March 31,
2009 requesting a hearing on April 23, 2009, to approve bidding procedures, and a hearing on May 21, 2009, to authorize and approve the
sale of the assets. The Court approved bidding procedures for the sale of these assets on April 23, 2009 which will result in held for sale
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accounting under SFAS 144 in the second quarter of 2009. Delphi expects the hearing to proceed on May 21, 2009 and the closing of the
sale to occur during the fourth quarter of 2009.

Powertrain Systems Segment

Global Exhaust Business Sale — On June 27, 2008, the Debtors announced their intention to sell Delphi’s global exhaust business
relating to the design and manufacture of the exhaust system front exhaust module including catalytic converters and exhaust manifolds
(the “Exhaust Business”). On December 17, 2008, Delphi received approval from the Court for the sale of assets related to the Exhaust
Business to Bienes Turgon S.A. de C.V. (“Bienes Turgon”) for $17 million (subject to adjustments). The Exhaust Business revenues for
2008 were approximately $317 million. On April 30, 2009, Delphi finalized the sale of the assets and shares related to the Company’s
global exhaust business in Blonie, Poland; Clayton, Australia; Port Elizabeth, South Africa; joint venture interests in Monterrey, Mexico;
technical centers in Auburn Hills, Michigan; and Bascharage, Luxembourg. As part of this transaction, the sale of assets to Bienes Turgon
from the remaining two locations (Gurgaon, India and Shanghai, China) is expected to close during the second half of 2009, and Delphi
recognized a charge of $14 million in cost of sales during the fourth quarter of 2008 and a reduction of $1 million in cost of sales during
the first quarter of 2009 related to the assets held for sale of the Exhaust Business. Although Delphi is divesting its Exhaust Business, the
Company intends to continue to provide full engine management systems, including air and fuel management, and combustion and valve-
train technology.

Catalyst Product Line Sale — On September 28, 2007, Delphi closed on the sale of its original equipment and aftermarket catalyst
business (the “Catalyst Business™) to Umicore for approximately $67 million which included certain post-closing working capital
adjustments. Delphi recorded the loss of $30 million on the sale of the Catalyst Business in cost of sales in the third quarter of 2007. The
Catalyst Business revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 were $249 million. During the first quarter of 2008, Delphi
and Umicore agreed on final working capital adjustments and Delphi received a payment of $9 million, of which $6 million offset a
receivable recognized during 2007 and $3 million was recorded as a reduction to cost of sales.

Electronics and Safety Segment

Held-For-Sale Gain — In 2008, Delphi made the decision to divest a certain manufacturing business in Germany. Based on an
estimate of anticipated proceeds, Delphi recognized a charge of $13 million, included in cost of sales, in the fourth quarter of 2008 and
recognized a gain of $1 million during the first quarter of 2009 related to the assets held for sale. The divestiture is expected to occur
during 2009.

18. SEGMENT REPORTING

Delphi’s operating structure consists of its core business within four segments that support its previously identified strategic product
lines, as well as the Automotive Holdings Group, consisting of business operations to be sold or wound down. An overview of Delphi’s
reporting segments, which are grouped on the basis of similar product, market and operating factors, follows:

e Electronics and Safety, which includes audio, entertainment and communications, safety systems, body controls and security
systems, displays, mechatronics and power electronics, as well as advanced development of software and silicon.

e Powertrain Systems, which includes extensive systems integration expertise in gasoline, diesel and fuel handling and full end-
to-end systems including fuel injection, combustion, electronics controls, exhaust handling, and test and validation
capabilities.

e  Electrical/Electronic Architecture, which includes complete electrical architecture and component products.

e Thermal Systems, which includes Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning (“HVAC”) systems, components for multiple
transportation and other adjacent markets, and powertrain cooling and related technologies.

e Automotive Holdings Group, which includes various non-core product lines and plant sites that do not fit Delphi’s future
strategic framework.

e Corporate and Other, which includes the Product and Service Solutions business which is comprised of independent
aftermarket, diesel aftermarket, original equipment service and medical systems, in addition to the expenses of corporate
administration, other expenses and income of a non-operating or strategic nature, and the elimination of inter-segment
transactions and charges related to U.S. employee workforce transition programs.

Delphi also has non-core steering and halfshaft product lines and interiors and closures product lines that are reported in discontinued
operations. Previously, the steering and halfshaft product line was a separate operating segment and the interiors and closures product line
was part of the Automotive Holdings Group segment. Refer to Note 15. Discontinued Operations for more information.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1. Basis of Presentation, except that the disaggregated

financial results for the segments have been prepared using a management approach, which is consistent with the basis and manner in
which management internally disaggregates financial information for the purposes of assisting internal operating decisions. Generally,
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Delphi evaluates performance based on stand-alone segment operating income and operating income before depreciation and
amortization, including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment charges, transformation and rationalization charges and discontinued
operations (“OIBDAR”) and accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, at current
market prices. Delphi’s management believes that OIBDAR is a meaningful measure of performance and it is used by management and
the Board of Directors to analyze Company and stand-alone segment operating performance. Management also uses OIBDAR for
planning and forecasting purposes.

Certain segment assets, primarily within the Electronics and Safety segment, are utilized for operations of other core segments.
Income and expense related to operation of those assets, including depreciation, are allocated to and included within the measures of

segment profit or loss of the core segment that sells the related product to the third parties.

Included below are sales and operating data for Delphi’s segments for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008.

Electrical/ Automotive
Electronics Powertrain Electronic Thermal Holdings Corporate
and Safety Systems Architecture Systems Group and Other Total

(in millions)
For the Three Months Ended:

March 31, 2009
Net sales to GM and affiliates.... § 164 $ 155 $ 193 $ 124 $ 23 $ 75 $ 734
Net sales to other customers....... 351 413 608 146 93 180 1,791
Inter-segment net sales................ 21 67 23 16 8 (135) —
Total net sales ..........cocovevence $ 536 $ 635 $ 824 $ 286 $ 124 $ 120 $ 2,525
Depreciation and amortization... § 48 $ 49 $ 47 $ 16 $ 2 $ 10 $ 172
Operating (loss) income ............. $ (160) $ 139 S a178) $ 43 S asy s 1 $ (534)
OIBDAR.......cccooiiriricie. $ ©n s 80) § 97 S 25 S 5 8 7 $ (291)
Equity (loss) income................... $ 4 3 3 s 1 $ — $ 1 s (1) $ 8)
Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interest............ $ — $ 1 $ 1 $ 2 $ — $ — $ 4
March 31, 2008
Net sales to GM and affiliates.... § 349 $ 308 $ 403 $ 296 $ 195 $ 90 $ 1,641
Net sales to other customers....... 818 866 1,137 251 280 259 3,611
Inter-segment net sales................ 48 109 44 27 42 (270) —
Total net sales e 8 1,215 $ 1,283 $ 1,584 $ 574 $ 517 $ 79 $ 5252
Depreciation and amortization... § 64 $ 68 $ 45 $ 15 $ 14 $ 16 $ 222
Operating (loss) income ............. $ 80) $ (13) s © 3 26 $ (700 $ (124) $ (267)
(0)1217:N 3 S $ 27 $ 62 $ 60 $ 45 $ 30 $ (70) $ 154
Equity income..........cccocvevvrueuence. $ — $ 4 $ 3 $ 2 $ ) $ 3 $ 11
Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interest............ $ — $ 6 $ 4 $ 1 $ — $ 1 $ 12

Delphi’s management relies on segment OIBDAR as a key performance measure. OIBDAR is defined as operating income before
depreciation and amortization, including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment charges, transformation and rationalization charges
related to plant consolidations, plant wind-downs and discontinued operations. Segment OIBDAR should not be considered a substitute
for results prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and should not be considered an alternative to operating income, which is the most
directly comparable financial measure to OIBDAR that is in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Segment OIBDAR, as determined and
measured by Delphi, should also not be compared to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.
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The calculation of OIBDAR, as derived from operating income, is as follows for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Electrical/ Automotive
Electronics Powertrain Electronic Thermal Holdings Corporate
and Safety Systems Architecture Systems Group and Other Total
For the Three Months Ended . e
(in millions)
March 31, 2009:
Operating income (10SS) ..........ccovveeverrrrrnn. $ (160)  § (139  § 178  $ 43 S 1s) s 1 $ (534)
Depreciation and amortization..................... 48 49 47 16 2 10 172
Transformation and rationalization
charges:
Employee termination benefits and
other exit COStS......vvvrreerreerieirienenen 17 5 32 2 9 (6) 59
Other transformation and
rationalization Costs .............c..co...... 4 5 2 — (1) (1) 9
Discontinued operations.............cccoeceeveereene — — — — — 3 3
OIBDAR ..ottt $ 91) $ (80) $ (97) $ (25) $ 5) $ 7 $ (291)

Other transformation and rationalization costs for the three months ended March 31, 2009 primarily includes $12 million of workers
compensation liabilities assumed by GM. These costs were offset by approximately $7 million of costs necessary to implement

information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development initiatives.

Electrical/ Automotive
Electronics Powertrain Electronic Thermal Holdings Corporate
and Safety Systems Architecture Systems Group and Other Total
For the Three Months Ended (in millions)

March 31, 2008:

Operating income (10SS) ..........ccccoevveveererrnrnnns $ (80) 8 13 s 6 S 26 $ (700 8 (124) $ (267)
Depreciation and amortization..................... 64 68 45 15 14 16 222
Transformation and rationalization

charges:
U.S. employee workforce transition
program charges ...........ccoceeveveeerenenne — — — — — 36 36
Employee termination benefits and
other eXit COStS.....ovrriereririireeieneenes 28 4 13 3 43 — 91
Loss on divestitures..........ccooveveeeeeennnns — — — — 30 — 30
Other transformation and
rationalization costs .. 15 3 8 1 5 27 59
Discontinued operations.............cccocceveenuene — — — — 8 (25) a7)
OIBDAR ...ttt $ 27 $ 62 $ 60 $ 45 $ 30 $ (70) $ 154

Other transformation and rationalization costs for the three months ended March 31, 2008 primarily includes approximately $21
million of costs necessary to implement information technology systems to support finance, manufacturing and product development
initiatives; and approximately $16 million of costs related to Delphi’s engineering and manufacturing footprint rotation, certain plant
consolidations and closures, and startup costs related to the consolidation of many staff administrative functions into a global business

service group
19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Certain events have occurred subsequent to March 31, 2009 that do not impact the reported balances or results of operations as of that
date, but are material to the Company’s ongoing operations. These events are listed below.

Anaheim Land Sale

On April 20, 2009, Delphi closed on the sale of a parcel of land located in the City of Anaheim, County of Orange, California to
Birtcher Anaheim Magnolia Avenue LLC (the “Buyer”), and received proceeds of $20 million. The sale is expected to result in a gain of
approximately $16 million in the second quarter of 2009.

Accommodation Agreement

On April 2, 2009, the Court approved on an interim basis the Second Amendment entered into on March 31, 2009, as supplemented
by certain further modifications to the Accommodation Agreement and the Amended and Restated DIP Credit Facility by the
Supplemental Amendment, subject to requisite lender approval of those modifications. On April 3, 2009, the requisite approval of the
lenders was obtained. On April 3, 2009, Delphi entered into the First Supplement. On April 22, 2009, Delphi entered into a further
supplement (the “Second Supplement”) to the Second Amendment. The Second Supplement received the required lender consent and was
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immediately effective, however, it was subject to certain post-closing conditions. On April 23, 2009, the Court approved on a final basis
the Second Amendment as supplemented by the First Supplement and Second Supplement (the “Supplemental Amendment”). On May 7,
2009 Delphi entered into a further amendment (the “Third Amendment”) to the Accommodation Agreement, which further extended
certain milestones dates in the Accommodation Agreement. Refer to Note 8. Debt for further information on the conditions of the
Supplemental Amendment.

20. DEBTORS’ CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of Presentation

Condensed Combined Debtors-in-Possession Financial Statements — The financial statements contained within this note represent
the condensed combined financial statements for the Debtors only. Delphi’s non-Debtor subsidiaries are treated as non-consolidated
affiliates in these financial statements and as such their net income is included as “Equity income (loss) from non-Debtor affiliates, net of
tax” in the statement of operations and their net assets are included as “Investments in non-Debtor affiliates” in the balance sheet. The
Debtors’ financial statements contained herein have been prepared in accordance with the guidance in SOP 90-7.

Intercompany Transactions — Intercompany transactions between Debtors have been eliminated in the financial statements contained
herein. Intercompany transactions between the Debtors and non-Debtor affiliates have not been eliminated in the Debtors’ financial
statements. Therefore, reorganization items, net included in the Debtors Statement of Operations, liabilities subject to compromise
included in the Debtors’ Balance Sheet, and reorganization items and payments for reorganization items, net included in the Debtors’
Statement of Cash Flows are different than Delphi Corporation’s consolidated financial statements. As approved by the Court on January
25,2008, the Debtors sold investments in non-Debtor affiliates in the amount of $1.4 billion to a non-Debtor affiliate and received a note
receivable from non-Debtor affiliates. During the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Debtors did not receive dividends
from non-Debtor affiliates. Dividends from non-Debtor affiliates are not eliminated in the Condensed Combined Debtors-in-Possession
Statements of Operations and therefore would be recorded in equity income from non-Debtor affiliates, net of tax.

Contractual Interest Expense and Interest Expense on Unsecured Claims— Contractual interest expense represents amounts due
under the contractual terms of outstanding debt, including debt subject to compromise for which interest expense is not recognized in
accordance with the provisions of SOP 90-7. Delphi did not record contractual interest expense on certain unsecured prepetition debt
during the six months ended June 30, 2007. In September 2007, Delphi began recording prior contractual interest expense related to
certain prepetition debt because it became probable that the interest would become an allowed claim based on the provisions of the plan of
reorganization filed with the Court in September 2007 and confirmed, as amended, on January 25, 2008. The confirmed plan of
reorganization also provided that certain holders of allowed unsecured claims against Delphi will be paid postpetition interest on their
claims, calculated at the contractual non-default rate from the petition date through January 25, 2008, when the Company ceased accruing
interest on these claims. At March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, Delphi had accrued interest of $415 million in accrued liabilities in
the accompanying balance sheet for prepetition claims. As discussed in Note 2. Transformation Plan and Chapter 11 Bankruptcy, on
October 3, 2008, Delphi filed modifications to its confirmed plan of reorganization that, if approved by the Court, would eliminate
postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured claims. Accordingly, Delphi anticipates that it will be relieved of this
liability if and when the modifications are approved.

Income Tax Benefit— Delphi recorded income tax benefit of $52 million and income tax expense of $3 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, Delphi recognized $52 million tax benefit in continuing operations related to the
elimination of the disproportionate tax effects in OCI related to the salaried OPEB obligation which was settled during the same period
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Assets— Other current assets consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008

(in millions)

Taxes other than INCOME ...........ceeevieievieirieieeiieeeeee e $ 10 $ 10
Prepaid insurance and other eXpenses.........ccoevveveviereeceenieeieniens 64 70
Deposits t0 VENAOTS.......cc.eerierieiieiieieriieieeieeee ettt ene 34 36
Dbt iSSUANCE COSES ..uveurenieiiriirteiterieieieieeieeie et 37 56
ORET ittt 15 32

TOtAL .o $ 160 $ 204

Other long-term assets consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008

(in millions)

Long-term notes receivable............ccooivieieieiiieieneeeeeee e $ 19 $ 21
Income taxes receivable ..........ccooeivineneinineneeeeen 45 45
GOOAWILL ..t 37 37
Intangible assets 16 18
Deferred charges ........c.oovevieviiiininieniieseeeeeeeeeeee 10 10
Other investments 16 22
Other .......cccevveereerennn 74 67

TOTAL .t $ 217 $ 220

Liabilities— Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008
(in millions)

Payroll related obligations...........ccecereerieiinieniereeee § 38 $ 39
Employee benefits, including current pension obligations. 80 84
Taxes other than iNCOME...........cocverieiieiiieie e 33 36
Warranty obligations ...........ceeeevveecveeveseeneenieeeeeeeeeenneens 74 74
U.S. employee workforce transition program..................... 105 115
Employee termination benefits and other exit costs ......... 80 81
Interest on prepetition claims .........c.ccceeeveeeierierienieeeeeneenn, 415 415
Working capital backstop — Steering Business................... 210 210
OthET .t 182 264

TOtAL ettt $1,217 $1.318

Employee benefit and other consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008
(in millions)

Workers compensation ...........c.cceeeveevereenieerieseeseeneeneenes $ 311 $ 325
Environmental ..........ccccooiviiiiiiniiiiiieeee 86 90
Extended disability benefits..........ccccevvvevienieniencienieies 61 60
WATTANEY ...t 116 130
Other long-term debt ........c.coceveriiieiinininnncceeeeeene 19 20
ONET .ottt ees 130 131

TOtALceeeieeeieee et $ 723 $ 756

Assets Held for Sale—The assets held for sale by the Debtors at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 include the net assets held
for sale of the non-Debtor affiliates of $430 million and $263 million, respectively, which was reclassified from investments in non-
Debtor affiliates. During the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Debtor assets held for sale were revalued based on the
expected proceeds, resulting in a gain related to the assets held for sale of $20 million and a loss of $7 million, respectively.
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CONDENSED COMBINED DEBTORS-IN-POSSESSION STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)
(Non-filed entities, principally non-U.S. subsidiaries, excluded from consolidated Debtor group)

Three Months
Ended
March 31
2009 2008
(in millions)
INEE SALES ..eiutieeitie ettt ettt ettt et e ettt e et e et e e st e e eabeeeabeeeabeesabeeeabeesabeaenseeeabeeensaeeareennns $ 1,029 $ 2,328
Operating expenses:
Cost of sales, excluding items listed DElOW .........cccieiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeee 1,268 2,489
Depreciation and amortiZation...........ooeereerriieiierieeeee e e 83 115
Selling, general and admMINISIrAtIVE. .........ccveeviecieiierieeie ettt eeeesre e 132 225
Total OPETAtiNg EXPEINSES....eevieeriieieitierieeteeteertesteesteeseesesseesseesseesseessesssesaeesseessesseens 1,483 2,829
OPETALING LOSS ..eevvieniieiiiiie ettt ettt ettt e e e aestesteesseeseenseesseessesseenseensennsesssensaenns (454) (501)
Interest expense (contractual interest expense for the three months ended March
31,2009 and 2008 was $161 million and $113 million, respectively)..................... (131) (95)
Other EXPENSE, NMET ....c.viuirueeiieiietitente ettt ettt et ettt st sbe bttt et esaesbe e eaees 4) —
Reorganization items, NEt .........ceceeeeieriirierineneeieet ettt ettt et 1,159 (100)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax expense and equity
TMCOITIC ..ottt ettt ettt sttt ettt b e sa e bt et et et et bt sbeeaeeneennenees 570 (696)
Income tax benefit (EXPENSE) ....covueeieriirieiieie ettt 52 3)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before equity income..........ccccoeceeveeeereennennn, 622 (699)
Equity (loss) income from non-consolidated affiliates, net of tax........c.cccceeeeercnncnne, () 7
Income (loss) from continuing operations before discontinued operations and equity
income from non-Debtor affiliates ..........ccocvevvieiieiicieiieeeece e, 615 (692)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net 0f taX........ccceeevevvereerieciereeneenieenen, 25 (82)
Equity (loss) income from non-Debtor affiliates, net of taX ........c.ccocevevencnincncnene, (88) 185
Net inCome (10SS) c.vveeverierieiieriieie et 552 (589)
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest — —
Net income (loss) attributable to Debtors..........cccvevuieriieiirieieeeeseee e, $ 552 $ (589)
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CONDENSED COMBINED DEBTORS-IN-POSSESSION BALANCE SHEET
(Non-filed entities, principally non-U.S. subsidiaries, excluded from consolidated Debtor group)

March 31,2009 December 31,
(Unaudited) 2008
(in millions)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS.........c..coiririnirinieeee et $ 61 $ 231
REStIICtEd CASN.....ooeeeiiiieeeeee e 410 355

Accounts receivable, net:
General Motors and affiliates .............ooooiiiiiiiii i 523 670
Other third PArtiSS.......ccvievieieiiecieceee ettt ettt e b e e saessaesaeesaeesseennas 336 385
NON-Debtor AffTlIAtES......ccuviiiuiiiiie e ettt eeaee e 253 249
Notes receivable from non-Debtor affiliates ..........cooovvviveiiiiiiiiiiiieceee e 97 77
LAY 117076 (1IN0 ] AR PRRRT 471 493
OthET CUITENT ASSELS ...eeeuviieeiieeiieeieeeteeetee et e eteeereeereeetreesbeeeareesaseesaseestseenaseensseenneenees 160 204
ASSEtS NEld fOr SALE......iiiiiiiiiiiiii e et 485 333
TOtal CUITENE ASSELS....uviieiieiiieeiieiieeeie et eete et e eseeeteeesteeebesebaeeaseesabaeeaseessseessseens 2,796 2,997

Long-term assets:

PIrOPEItY, MET ....eeiiiiiiieeee ettt ettt et s 1,165 1,182
Investments in affiliates...........oooiiiiiiii e 229 251
Investments in NON-Debtor affiliates .......c..vvvviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e 752 1,104
Notes receivable from non-Debtor affiliates ...........ooooivvieiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee e 1,429 1,429
Other 10NZ-1EIMN ASSELS ......ciuiiitieiieiieieetieteete ettt e st e steeae st e steesteesbeesaeereesreesseesseessesseens 217 220
TOtal 1ONZ-TEITN ASSCLS ....veevvieeiieerierietieieeteeeee st esteeteeeesreesaeeseesseessesasesseesseessesssesanas 3,792 4,186
TOLAL ASSELS.....eveieeeeeeeeereete ettt ettt ettt et eeeeneee e s et e et e ereereeaeeneeneenneaeereere e $ 6,588 $ 7,183

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities not subject to compromise:

SHOTE-1EIM AEDE ...eovviiiiiiiiie ettt e et e v e e ve e s b e e esbeesabeeeaseesereas $ 3,942 $ 3,635
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ..ottt sttt 473 551
Accounts payable to non-Debtor affiliates .............ccoveierierieiieiieeeeeee e 486 535
ACCTUEA HADIIITIES ..ot e e e e e e e e e eennaaeeeas 1,217 1,318
Liabilities held fOr Sale..........oooiiiiiiieieeeeee e e e 262 149
Total CUITent HHADIIITIES .....vvvvviiiiiiiiiiieieee ettt et e e e e e eaaae e e e e e e eennes 6,380 6,188
Long-term liabilities not subject to compromise:
Employee benefits and Other............occuiiiiiiiiiiiiiciieeececeeee et 723 756
Total long-term Habilities........c.coverieriieiicie ettt ens 723 756
Liabilities SUDJECt t0 COMPIOMISE. ......ververrrerrrerieieeriesteesseesessessresseesseesessesssesseesseessenss 13,516 14,664
TOtal HADILILIES ..ottt 20,619 21,608
Stockholders’ deficit:
Total Debtors stockholders” defiCit.........ccevirerinininirieieienencceecceeeeee (14,031) (14,425)
NONCONLIOIING TNTETESE ....veeueeeiieieieeiiesiieie ettt ettt sseese e eeees — —
Total StOCKNOLAEIS” AEICIE c..vvvvveiiiiiiiiceiieeeee et e e (14.031) (14.425)
Total liabilities and stockholders” defiCit .........ccooeviririiriiieeee e $ 6,588 § 7183
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CONDENSED COMBINED DEBTORS-IN-POSSESSION STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(Non-filed entities, principally non-U.S. subsidiaries, excluded from consolidated Debtor group)

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2009 2008

(in millions)
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net cash used in Operating aCtiVItIES .......ceeeereeeeeeieienienene e $ (369) $ (555)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital EXPENAITUIES ...c..eeieieeieiieie ettt ettt ettt et et e st e e e e eeeenbeeneeeneens (45) (105)
Proceeds from sale of ProPerty ......c.ceoueeiiiiiiiiiee et 4 11
Proceeds from divVeStItUIES . ......eeiueeiiiieiie ettt 1 85
Decrease (increase) in restricted Cash........c.oovevvieiieiiiieiiciecceeeeee e (55) —
Proceeds from notes receivable from non-Debtor affiliates............coceeverieiienenienenenne. — 100
OhET, NET ...eiiiiciicieeieee ettt ettt et e e e e b e e tb e aeesae e beesbeesaeeseesseesseesseesseessens 5 (12)
DiScontinued OPEIAtIONS .......ccveeverereriierrieriieteeteseeseesseeseesseesseessessaesseesseessesssessnesseenses 1) (38)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing aCtiVities ........c.cccververevereerienrresierieeeenenns 91) 41

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net repayments of borrowings under amended and restated debtor-in-

POSSESSION FACIIILY ..ottt e (146) —
Net borrowings under refinanced debtor-in-possession facility ........c..ccccocevercrenennene — 452
Repayments of borrowings under other debt agreements............c.ccecceriiriiniiiinnncnne (1) 4)
Issuance costs related to the Accommodation Agreement............cccooeveeerieniiienceneenne. (16) —
Net borrowings under GM liquidity support agreements ............ccceeeeeveereenieeeeneeneenn 453 —

Net cash provided by financing activities...........cceevverreevrievieeierieneeie e 290 448
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents ..............ccoevevieviieiicienieece e (170) (66)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period...........cccoeeuveiirienievieiieiecieieeene 231 113
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period...........ccecveievievieniininicieecceeeeeeeeeae $ 61 $ 47
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